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PROTIUM/BSE/DEBT/ 16/ 2025-26
Date: August 22, 2025

To,

The Manager

Listing Department (Debt)
BSE Limited,

P.J. Towers, Dalal Street,
Mumbai — 400001.

Scrip Code: 974769
ISIN: INE003507024

Sub: 1. Intimation under Regulation 50(2) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 — Notice of 7" Annual General Meeting of the Company for Financial Year March
31,2025
2. Annual Report pursuant to Regulation 53 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015

Dear Sir/Madam,

We are pleased to inform you that 7% Annual General Meeting of the Members of Protium Finance Limited
(Company) will be held on Monday, September 15, 2025, at 11.00 a.m. IST at the registered office of the Company at
Nirlon Knowledge Park, B2, 7th Floor, Pahadi Village, Off. Western Express Highway, Goregaon (East), Mumbai -
400063 to transact the businesses, as set forth in the Notice.

Further, pursuant to the Regulation 53 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,
please find enclosed the Annual Report of the Company for Financial Year 2024-25 along with the Notice for the 7%
Annual General Meeting of the Company.

Further, please note that the Company has also dispatched Notice of 7" Annual General Meeting along with Annual Report
to all the Members through electronic mode earlier today.

Further, the Notice along with the Annual Report for the Financial Year 2024-25 is also available on the website of the
Company i.e. https://protium.co.in/regulatory-disclosure/.

Kindly take the above on records.
Thanking You
For PROTIUM FINANCE LIMITED

Digitally signed

ANSHU byasi”™
MOHTA

MOHT A pate: 20250822

12:51:17 +05'30'

Anshu Mohta

Company Secretary & CCO
Membership No.: A18287
Encl.: As above
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NOTICE OF 7™ ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE is hereby given for the 7" Annual General Meeting (‘PFL/AGM/2024-25") of the Members of Protium
Finance Limited (‘the Company’ or ‘PFL’) will be held on Monday, September 15, 2025, at the registered office
of the Company at Nirlon Knowledge Park, B2, 7th Floor, Pahadi Village, Off. Western Express Highway,
Goregaon (East), Mumbai - 400063 at 11:00 A.M. IST to transact the following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESSES:

1. To receive, consider and Adopt the Annual Financial Statements (Standalone and Consolidated) for
the Financial Year 2024-25

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:

(a) Adoption of Audited Standalone Financial Statements

“RESOLVED THAT the audited standalone financial statements of the Company for the financial year
ended March 31, 2025, together with the reports of board of directors and auditor’s thereon, be and are
hereby received, considered and adopted.”

(b) Adoption of Audited Consolidated Financial Statements

“RESOLVED THAT the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company for the financial
year ended March 31, 2025, together with the report of the auditor’s thereon, be and are hereby received,
considered and adopted.”

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Peeyush Misra (DIN: 08422699). who retires by rotation and
being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable, if any, provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Peeyush Misra (DIN: 08422699), who retires by rotation at this meeting, and
being eligible, has offered himself for re-appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as a Director of the
Company, liable to retire by rotation.”

SPECIAL BUSINESSES:

3. To appoint Mr. Pravin Raghavendra (DIN: 09686944) as the Independent Director of the Company

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 150, 152 and 161 read with Schedule IV
and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Appointment
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and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including statutory modification(s) or reenactment (s) thereof
for the time being in force) and any amendments thereto and pursuant to Reserve Bank of India (RBI) Master
Direction on Non-Banking Financial Company — Scale Based Regulation Directions, 2023 as amended from
time to time, Articles of Association of the Company and on recommendation of Nomination and
Remuneration Committee, Mr. Pravin Raghavendra (DIN: 09686944) who was appointed by the Board of
Directors as an Additional Independent Director of the Company w.e.f. June 26, 2025 and who meets the
criteria of independence under Section 149 of the Act and who holds office up to the date of this Annual
General Meeting of the Company and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing under
Section 160 of the Act from a member proposing his candidature for the office of Director, being eligible, be
appointed as a Non-executive Independent Director of the Company, not liable to retire by rotation to hold
office, for a term of five (5) consecutive years commencing from June 26, 2025 to June 25, 2030.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the Directors, Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary of the
Company be and are hereby severally authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters, things and execute, deliver
and/or file all such documents, as may be necessary or desirable in connection with and to give effect to the
above resolution, including but not limited to filing of requisite forms and returns with the statutory authorities
as may be necessary and to take all necessary actions in this regard.”

4. To Approve Borrowing under section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a Special
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT in supersession of the earlier Resolution passed by the Members at their Meeting held
on August 31, 2024 and pursuant to the provisions of Section 180(1)(c) and other applicable provisions, if
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014,
including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force, and other
applicable provisions of the Articles of Association of the Company, the consent of the members be and is
hereby accorded to borrow any sum or sums of money from time to time at its discretion, for the purpose of
the business of the Company, from any one or more Banks, Financial Institutions and other Persons, Firms,
Bodies Corporate, in the form of including but not limited to Credit Facilities which includes Term loan,
senior secured / unsecured non-convertible debentures, Commercial Paper, Working Capital Demand Loan
(WDCL), Cash Credit, Bank Overdraft Facilities, Securitization liabilities, any senior non-convertible non
participative subordinated or participating or compulsorily convertible debt instruments and debt securities
( together called “ the Credit facilities”) notwithstanding that the money to be borrowed together with the
money already borrowed by the Company (apart from temporary loans obtained from the Company’s
Bankers in the ordinary course of business) may, at any time, not exceed the aggregate of Rs.
8,000,00,00,000 crores (Rupees Eight Thousand Crores only) on outstanding basis (Limit includes the
specific limit of Commercial Paper of Rs. 500 crores).

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board or its Committees, be and are hereby empowered and
authorized to arrange or fix the terms and conditions of all such monies to be borrowed from time to time as
to interest, repayment, security or otherwise as it may, in its absolute discretion, think fit.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
(including Section 179 (3),180(1)(c) and the rules made there under and in accordance with the
Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association of the Company, approval of the members be and
is hereby accorded to the Company for:
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e entering into necessary documents, deeds, notices, letters, agreements, power of attorneys, declarations,
subordination deeds, memorandums, indentures, undertakings, instruments and forms as may be required
in relation to or in connection with the obligations of the Company under the agreements or pursuant to
any other purpose mentioned in these resolutions or to give effect to any transactions contemplated in
such documents in relation to the Facility.

e amending, novating, supplementing, extending, restating or making any other modification to any
documents/ as may be required, from time to time, in relation to or in connection with or pursuant to give
effect to any resolutions and

e doing all acts, deeds and things that may be required to be done by the Company to undertake and perfect
(including filings relevant forms with any government authority under the Act) (as applicable) the
obligations of the Company under the executed agreements, to the satisfaction of the Lender.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Peeyush Misra, Managing Director & CEO , Mr. Amit Gupta, CFO,
Ms. Anshu Mohta, Company Secretary of the Company be and hereby severally authorized to negotiate, re-
negotiate, deal with, modify, alter, amend, finalize, sign, execute and undertake all other acts, deeds, things
and matters and notices (including the notice of draw down) in respect of the form of Credit Facilities which
includes Term loan, Debentures, Commercial Paper, Working Capital Demand Loan (WDCL),Cash Credit,
Bank Overdraft Facilities, Securitization liabilities and any other debt instrument’s agreement / Deed of
Hypothecation and such other acts/deeds may be considered necessary for the purpose of giving effect to
this resolution.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Peeyush Misra, Managing Director & CEO, Mr. Amit Gupta, CFO,
Ms. Anshu Mohta, Company Secretary of the Company be and are hereby severally authorized to take all
necessary and appropriate steps relating to including but not limited to:

e payment of stamp duty in relation to the agreements.

e Depositing the title deeds, if any in relation to mortgage proposed to be created and registering documents
or charges with the relevant sub-registrar of assurances, where required, and also to sign and submit the
necessary forms with the Registrar of Companies and other relevant governmental authorities.

e creation of, opening, establishing, operating, and closing the bank accounts of any type, as permissible
under prevalent statutes and in accordance with any executed agreements and do all such acts, matters,
deeds and things and to execute all documents, and file all forms in connection therewith do all such acts,
matters, deeds and things and to execute all documents, file forms with, make applications and receive
approvals from, any persons, authorized dealers, governmental / regulatory authorities, including but not
limited to the Income Tax Department, the Reserve Bank of India, the Registrar of Companies, the sub
registrar of assurances, and the relevant stock exchange and Registrar and Transfer Agents and
Depositories.

e execute, furnish, authenticate, certify, collect, acknowledge or submit all deeds, documents, undertakings,
declarations, letters, power of attorneys, applications, statements, outstanding dues, or acknowledgement
of debt or any other documents which may be deemed necessary to give effect to the resolution, in respect
of the Facility and as may be required by Lender from time to time.
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e amend, novate, supplement, extend, restate or make any other modification (before or after execution
thereof) to the executed agreements, to the satisfaction of the Lender, as may be required, from time to
time, in relation to or in connection with or pursuant to the agreement/Deed of Hypothecation or to give
effect to any transactions contemplated in the term loan agreement/Deed of Hypothecation.

e sign and/or dispatch notices to be signed and/or dispatched by the Company under or in connection with
the executed agreement and

e to take all steps and do all things and give such directions, as may be required, necessary, expedient or
desirable for giving effect to the agreement / Deed of Hypothecation, the transactions contemplated
therein, and the resolutions mentioned herein.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Peeyush Misra, Managing Director & CEO, Mr. Amit Gupta, CFO,
Ms. Anshu Mohta, Company Secretary of the Company be and are hereby severally empowered to delegate
any of the powers contained herein above to any of identified officers (“Authorised Signatories") of the
Company or such other persons as may be considered expedient/necessary for the purpose of carrying out
said acts”.

5. Transfer of Loan exposure and / or Creation of charge on the Company’s assets, both present and
future, to / in favour of lenders

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a Special
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT in supersession of the earlier Resolution passed by the Members at their Meeting held
on August 31, 2024 and pursuant to the provisions of Section 180(1)(a) and other applicable provisions, if
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers)
Rules, 2014 including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force,
and the Articles of Association of the Company, the consent of Members be and is hereby accorded to
Transfer its Loan Exposures (“Transfer") of / creation of charge / mortgage / pledge / hypothecation /
security on such terms as the Board or its Committee may determine, on all or any of the moveable and / or
immovable properties, tangible or intangible assets of the Company, both present and future and / or the
whole or any part of the undertaking(s) of the Company in normal course of business as the case may be in
favour of the Lender(s), Agent(s) and Trustee(s) or any other entities, in relation to Transfer or for securing
the borrowings availed / to be availed by the Company by way of Credit Facilities which includes Term
loan, senior secured / unsecured non-convertible debentures, Commercial Paper, Working Capital Demand
Loan (WDCL), Cash Credit, Bank Overdraft Facilities , Securitization liabilities , any senior non-convertible
non participative subordinated or participating or compulsorily convertible debt instruments and debt
securities ( together called “ the Credit facilities”) from time to time , subject to the limits approved under
Section 180(1)(c) of the Act together on an outstanding basis, with interest at the respective agreed rates
and all other monies payable by the Company in terms of the Loan Agreement(s), or any other document,
entered into / to be entered into between the Company and the Lender(s) / Agent(s) / Trustee(s) in respect of
the said Transfer / loans / borrowings .

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the securities to be created by the Company as aforesaid may rank prior
to the mortgages and /or charges already created or to be created in future by the Company or in such other
manner and ranking as may be thought expedient by the Board and as may be agreed to between the
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concerned parties.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Peeyush Misra, Managing Director & CEO , Mr. Amit Gupta, CFO,
Ms. Anshu Mohta, Company Secretary of the Company be and are hereby severally authorized to finalise,
settle, and execute such documents / deeds / writings / papers / agreements as may be required and to do all
such acts, deeds, matters and things, as it may in its absolute discretion deem necessary, proper or desirable
and to settle any question, difficulty or doubt that may arise in regard to creating mortgages / charges as
aforesaid.”

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT subject to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and other
applicable laws and regulations, the Company be and is hereby authorised to Transfer by the way of Credit
Facilities together with all of the Company's rights, titles and interests thereto, whether under equity, law or
in contract to the extent as decided by the board from time to time within the overall limits of under section
180(1)(a) upto Rs. 8,000,00,00,000/- (Rupees Eight Thousand Crores Only) on an outstanding basis , to a
third party on such terms and conditions as mutually agreed among the parties.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Peeyush Misra, Managing Director & CEO, Mr. Amit Gupta, CFO
Ms. Anshu Mohta, Company Secretary, be and are hereby severally authorized to do any act or execute any
such documents, deeds, agreements, filings, disclosures, notices and intimations that may be necessary or
desirable on behalf of the Company any other documents and the transaction contemplated thereunder.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the Mr. Peeyush Misra, Managing Director & CEO and/or or Mr.
Amit Gupta, CFO and/or Ms. Anshu Mohta, Company Secretary be and is hereby authorized to file necessary
forms with Registrar of Companies.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Peeyush Misra Managing Director & CEO and/or Mr. Amit Gupta
Chief Financial Officer and be and is hereby further empowered to delegate any of the powers contained
herein above to any of officers of the Company or such other persons as may be considered
expedient/necessary for the purpose of carrying out said acts”.

6. To approve limits under Section 180(1)(a) for Direct Assienment and Co-lending

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a Special
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT in supersession of the earlier Resolution passed by the Members at their Meeting held
on August 31, 2024 and pursuant to the provisions of Section 180(1)(a) and other applicable provisions, if
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with the rules made thereunder including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force, and the Articles of Association of the
Company, the approval of the Members be and is hereby accorded to Transfer by the way of Direct
Assignment or Co-lending together with all of the Company's rights, titles and interests thereto, whether
under equity, law or in contract to the extent as decided by the board from time to time within the overall
limits of Rs. 5,000,00,00,000/- (Rupees Five Thousand Crores Only) on an outstanding basis, to a third party
on such terms and conditions as mutually agreed among the parties.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Peeyush Misra, Managing Director & CEO , Mr. Amit Gupta, CFO
Ms. Anshu Mohta, Company Secretary of the Company be and are hereby severally authorized to finalise
the third party as mentioned above and to negotiate, finalise and execute and/or ratify, on behalf of the
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Company, the terms and conditions of the assignment, the Deed of Assignment, and any other documents
that may be required in connection of the above and to present the same for registration before any statutory
/ regulatory / governmental authority (if required), and to do all such acts, deeds and things as may be
necessary or expedient to implement this resolution and the transaction contemplated under the Deed of
Assignment or any other documents required to be executed to effect such transaction.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Peeyush Misra, Managing Director & CEO , Mr. Amit Gupta, CFO
Ms. Anshu Mohta, Company Secretary, be and are hereby severally authorized to do any act or execute any
such documents, deeds, agreements, filings, disclosures, notices and intimations that may be necessary or
desirable on behalf of the Company under or in connection with the Deed of Assignment or any other
documents and the transaction contemplated thereunder.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the Mr. Peeyush Misra, Managing Director & CEO and/or or Mr.
Amit Gupta, CFO and/or Ms. Anshu Mohta, Company Secretary be and is hereby authorized to file necessary
forms with Registrar of Companies.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Peeyush Misra Managing Director & CEO and/or Mr. Amit Gupta
Chief Financial Officer and be and is hereby further empowered to delegate any of the powers contained
herein above to any of officers of the Company or such other persons as may be considered
expedient/necessary for the purpose of carrying out said acts”.

7. Commission to Non-Executive Independent Directors of the Company

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT in supersession of the earlier Resolution passed by the Members at their Meeting held
on August 31, 2024 and pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149(9), 197, 198 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) read with Rules made thereunder, including statutory
modification(s) or reenactment (s) thereof for the time being in force, the Articles of Association of the
Company, and pursuant to the recommendation of the Board of Directors of the Company, the consent of the
Members be and is hereby accorded to pay remuneration of Rs. 24,00,000 (Rupees Twenty-Four Lakhs only)
per annum (payable on quarterly basis) as profit related commission to each of the Non-executive
Independent Directors of the Company or such other remuneration as may be decided by Board of Directors
of the Company which shall not exceed the limits prescribed under Section 197 of the Act.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in addition to aforesaid remuneration, Non-executive Independent
Directors shall also be entitled for sitting fees, as may be decided by the Board from time to time and
reimbursement of the expenses for  attending meetings of the Board and its committee(s) thereof, as
permissible under the Act.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the Directors, Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary of the
Company be and are hereby severally authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters, things and execute,
deliver and/or file all such documents, as may be necessary or desirable in connection with and to give effect
to the above resolution, including but not limited to filing of requisite forms and returns with the statutory
authorities as may be necessary and to take all necessary actions in this regard”.
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8.

Issue and allotment of Non-convertible Debentures (NCDs) on a private placement basis

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Special
Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 42, 71 and other applicable provisions, if any, of
the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Companies Act") read together with the Companies (Prospectus and
Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014, including any modification, amendment, substitution or re-enactment
thereof, for the time being in force and the provisions of the memorandum of association and the articles of
association of the Company, the Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) (Issue and Listing of Non-
Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021, as amended from time to time, other applicable SEBI regulations,
circulars and guidelines, the directions issued by the Reserve Bank of India (“RBI”), and subject to other
applicable laws, rules, regulations, directions and guidelines, the approval of the members of the Company
be and is hereby accorded to the board of directors of the Company (the "Board") to make offer and/or make
invitation and/or Issue and/or allot to eligible persons to subscribe to, non-convertible debentures ((a) listed
or unlisted (to the extent permitted under applicable law), (b) senior secured, (c) senior unsecured, (d)
unsecured, (e) subordinated, (f) market linked, (g) perpetual, (h) rated or unrated (to the extent permitted
under applicable law), and/or (i) any others, as may be agreed) ("NCDs"), on a private placement basis, in
one or more tranches, on such terms and conditions as the Board may deem fit and depending on the prevailing
market conditions, during the period of one year from the date of passing of this resolution, provided that the
outstanding principal amounts of all such NCDs at any time during the period shall not exceed INR 1000
crores (Indian Rupees Thousand Crores).

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Peeyush Misra, Managing Director & CEO, Mr. Amit Gupta, CFO,
Ms. Anshu Mohta, Company Secretary of the Company and is hereby authorized and empowered to arrange,
settle and determine the terms and conditions (including without limitation, interest, repayment, security or
otherwise) as it may think fit of such NCDs, and to do all such acts, deeds, and things, and to execute all such
documents, instruments and writings as may be required to give effect to these resolutions.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the copies of the foregoing resolutions certified to be true copies by any
director or the Company Secretary of the Company be furnished to such persons as may be deemed
necessary."

For and on behalf of the Board,
Protium Finance Limited

sk Motta

Name: Anshu Mohta
Designation: Company Secretary
Membership No.: A18287
Address: 7th Floor, Block B-2, Phase -1, Nirlon Knowledge Park (NKP),
Pahadi Village, Off Western Express Highway, Cama Industrial Estate,
Goregaon (East), Mumbai 400 063.

Date: August 22, 2025
Place: Mumbai
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NOTES:

1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO
APPOINT ONE OR MORE PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF AND SUCH
PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. THE PROXIES, DULY SIGNED AND
COMPLETED, TO BE EFFECTIVE SHOULD BE DEPOSITED AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE
OF THE COMPANY NOT LESS THAN FORTY-EIGHT HOURS BEFORE COMMENCEMENT OF
THE MEETING.

"Pursuant to the provisions of Section 105 of the Act, a person can act as a proxy on behalf of members
not exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate not more than ten percent of the total share capital of the
company carrying voting rights. A member holding more than ten percent of the total share capital of the
company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as a
proxy for any other person or shareholder. Proxies submitted on behalf of limited companies, societies,
etc. must be supported by an appropriate resolution / authorisation, as applicable."

2. During the period beginning 24 hours before the time fixed for the commencement of Meeting and
ending with the conclusion of the Meeting, a member would be entitled to inspect the proxies lodged at
any time during the business hours of the company provided not less than three days’ notice in writing
of the intention so to inspect is given to the company.

3. Members / Proxies / Authorised Representative are requested to fill in the attendance slip for attending
the Meeting. Proxies form as prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 is enclosed herewith. Members
who hold shares in dematerialized form are requested to write their Client ID and DP ID numbers in the
Attendance Slip for attending meeting.

4. Corporate member intending to send its authorized representative to attend the meeting is requested to
send to the Company a certified true copy of the Board Resolution and/or Authority Letter as per the
provisions of Section 113 of Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder authorizing its
representative together with their specimen signature to attend and vote on its behalf at the meeting.

5. The relevant records and documents connected with the businesses, including Memorandum and Articles
of Association and other documents as referred to in the Notice will be available for inspection by the
Members at the Registered Office of the Company during working hours except holidays.

6. The Register of Directors & KMP and their Shareholding maintained under Section 170 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the Register of Contract or Arrangements in which the Directors are interested maintained
under Section 189 and all other Statutory Registers and other documents required to be kept open for
inspection under the Act read with rules made there under at AGM of the Company, will be available for
inspection by the members at the AGM.

7. The Directors’ Report, Auditors’ Report and Audited Financial Statement for the year ended March 31,
2025, are enclosed with this Notice. Members / Proxies / Authorised Representatives are requested to
bring the Attendance slips duly filled for attending the Annual General Meeting and hand it over at the
entrance of the venue.
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8. Landmark for location of meeting is near Nirlon Knowledge Park. The Route map is enclosed with the
notice.

9. Members are requested to notify any change in their address to the Company immediately.
10. Attendance Slip and Proxy Form are annexed hereto the Notice.

11. The relevant explanatory statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of
special business as set out above is annexed hereto.

12. The Registrar and Share Transfer Agents of the Company are MUFG Intime India Private Limited
(formerly known as Link Intime India Private Limited) having their office at C-101, 247 Park, LBS
Marg,  Vikhroli ~ (West), =~ Mumbai —  400083; Tel :022  49186000;  Email:
bonds.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in; Website: https://in.mpms.mufg.com/

13. The Notice of AGM along with Annual Report 2025 is available on the website of the Company at
https://protium.co.in/

14. Additional information of a director seeking appointment / re-appointment at the ensuing AGM as
required under the Secretarial Standards on General Meeting issued by ICSI (SS-2) is annexed to the
Notice.

15. Manner of voting during the AGM shall be through show of hands, unless a poll is demanded.

16. Members are requested to update with their respective DPs, their bank account details, e-mail address
and mobile number.

17. Updation of Nomination Details

As per the provisions of section 72 of the Act, the facility for registration of nomination is available for
the members in respect of the securities held by them. All existing members are encouraged, in their own
interest, to provide ‘choice of nomination’ for ensuring smooth transmission of securities held by them
as well as to prevent accumulation of unclaimed assets in securities market. Further, members are
requested to submit choice of nomination, PAN and other details to their DPs.

18. Online Dispute Resolution (ODR) Mechanism:

a. SEBI vide Circular Nos. SEBI/HO/OIAE/OIAE IAD-1/P/ CIR/2023/131 dated July 31, 2023, and
SEBI/HO/OIAE/OIAE IAD-1/P/CIR/2023/135 dated August 4, 2023, read with Master Circular
No. SEBI/HO/ OIAE/OIAE _1AD-1/P/ CIR/2023/145 dated July 31, 2023 (updated as on August 11,
2023 and December 20, 2023), has established a common Online Dispute Resolution Portal (‘ODR
Portal’) for resolution of disputes arising in the Indian Securities Market.

b. Pursuant to above circulars, a securityholder shall first take up his/her/their grievance with the
Company by lodging a complaint directly with the Company/ RTA and if the grievance is not
redressed satisfactorily, the securityholder may escalate the same through existing SCORES Portal.
Post exhausting all available/ aforesaid options for resolution of the grievance, if the securityholder
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is still not satisfied with the outcome, he/she/they can initiate dispute resolution through the Online
Dispute Resolution (“ODR”) Portal at https://smartodr.in/login.

c. In compliance with the SEBI circulars, securityholders may access the ODR portal along with
relevant SEBI circulars at the website of the Company at https://protium.co.in/regulatory-disclosure/.

For and on behalf of the Board,
Protium Finance Limited

Prshu  IMotta

&
.5 N
L
Name: Anshu Mohta \%Y\JQ/;/:/'
Designation: Company Secretary Q_?/
Membership No.: A18287
Address: 7th Floor, Block B-2, Phase -1, Nirlon Knowledge Park (NKP),
Pahadi Village, Off Western Express Highway, Cama Industrial Estate,
Goregaon (East), Mumbai 400 063.

Date: August 22, 2025
Place: Mumbai
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Explanatory Statement

The following explanatory statement in terms of section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 is annexed to and forms
part of the Notice convening the 7" Annual General Meeting.

Item No. 3

In pursuance to the various discussions held among Board members, the need to expand the Board of the Company
was deliberated. In view of the said, based upon the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee (‘NRC"), the Board of Directors of the Company at their Meeting held on June 26, 2025, subject to
approval of the Shareholders, appointed Mr. Pravin Raghavendra (DIN: 09686944) as an Additional Director
(Non-executive and Independent) of the Company with immediate effect, not liable to retire by rotation, for a
term of 5 consecutive years commencing from June 26, 2025. In accordance with the provisions of Section 161
of Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act'), Mr. Pravin Raghavendra holds office up to the date of ensuing General
Meeting. Being eligible, Mr. Raghavendra has offered himself and consented for appointment as an Independent
Director on the Board of Directors of the Company.

The Members of the Company are further informed that the NRC has evaluated the ‘Fit & Proper Criteria’
prescribed by the RBI in accordance with the RBI Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking
Financial Company — Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 and has recommended the said appointment.

The Company has also received a notice in writing pursuant to section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013, from a
member signifying his intention to propose the candidature of him as an Independent Director. Further, this notice
may be treated as information to the members about his candidature to the office of Directorship of the Company
under section 160(2) of the Act read with Rule 13 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualifications of
Directors) Rules, 2014.

The Members are further informed that the Company has received all statutory disclosures/ declarations from Mr.
Raghavendra including,

(1) Pursuant to Rule 8 of the Companies (Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (“the
Appointment Rules”), consent in writing to act as Director in Form DIR-2;

(i1) Intimation in Form DIR-8 in terms of the Appointment Rules to the effect that he is not disqualified under
subsection
(2) of Section 164 of the Act; and

(ii1) A declaration to the effect that he meets the criteria of independence prescribed under sub-section (6) of
Section 149 of the Act and other disclosures as per SEBI (Prevention of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 and
RBI. A confirmation that he is not an Independent Director on the board of more than three NBFCs (NBFC -ML
or NBFCUL).

(iv) A confirmation that he has registered himself with the Independent Directors’ databank and satisfied the
requirement regarding the online proficiency self assessment test in terms of the Companies (Appointment and
Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014.

The NRC and the Board are of the opinion that Mr. Raghavendra is a person of integrity and possesses relevant
expertise and experience and is independent of management which duly fulfils the conditions specified in the Act
and the rules made there under for appointment as an Independent Director.
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The Board, therefore, seeks the approval of Members for the appointment of Mr. Pravin Raghavendra as an
Independent Director, not liable to retire by rotation, for a period of five (5) consecutive years commencing from
June 26, 2025, to June 25, 2030 pursuant to Sections 149, 152 and other applicable provisions of the Act and the
Rules made thereunder. The Brief profile of Mr. Raghavendra is provided under Annexure I.

A copy of letter for the appointment of Mr. Pravin Raghavendra as an Independent Director setting out the terms
and conditions is available for electronic inspection to the members. The members may follow the process for
inspection of document as mentioned in ‘Notes’ section forming part of the Notice.

Mr. Pravin Raghavendra will also be entitled to remuneration of 24,00,000/- (Rupees Twenty Four Lakh only)
per annum as profit related commission or any other remuneration as may be approved by members of the
Company from time to time on the recommendation of Board.

Further, Mr. Raghavendra will also be entitled to sitting fees for attending meeting(s) of the Board or any
Committee and reimbursement of the expenses for attending meetings of the Board and Committees thereof, as
permissible under the Act. The aforesaid remuneration and sitting fees are in line with the existing remuneration
and sitting fees being paid to all other Independent Directors.

Except, Mr. Pravin Raghavendra, none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their
respective relatives are concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution mentioned at Item No.

3 of the accompanying Notice of the AGM.

The Board of Directors of the Company recommends the Ordinary Resolution as set out at Item No. 3 of the
accompanying Notice for the approval of the Members.

Item Nos. 4 & 5

The shareholders of the Company at their General Meeting held on August 31, 2024, had accorded consent to the
Board of Directors by way of Special Resolution for borrowing any sum or sums of money not exceeding at any
time the sum of Rs. 8,000 crores (Rupees Eight Thousand Crores only). The Bankers mandate the annual renewal
of the limits. No changes in the limit are proposed for this year .

The approval of the Members is, therefore, being sought by way of a special resolution, pursuant to Section
180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, for borrowing any sum or sums of money not exceeding at any time the
sum of Rs. 8,000 crores(Limit includes the specific limit of Commercial Paper of Rs. 500 crores).

The said borrowings may be secured by way of charge / mortgage / pledge / hypothecation/ security on the
Company’s assets in favour of financial institutions, investment institutions and their subsidiaries, banks, mutual
funds, trusts, other bodies corporate, etc. Pursuant to Section 180(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of
Directors cannot create charge on the assets or whole or part of the undertaking of the Company or assign, transfer
and sell its portfolio of outstanding loan exposures in whole or in part, together with all of the Company’s rights,
titles and interests thereto, whether under equity, law or in contract (collectively, the “Loan Exposure’) without
the consent of the members of the Company in a general meeting. Therefore, it is necessary for the Company to
pass a special resolution under Section 180(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013, consenting to the creation of the
said mortgage or charge or hypothecation for outstanding amount not exceeding Rs. 8,000 crores (Limit includes
the specific limit of Commercial Paper of Rs. 500 crores).
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None of the Directors and key managerial personnel of the Company or their respective relatives are concerned
or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolutions mentioned at Item Nos. 4 & 5 of the accompanying
Notice of AGM.

The Board of Directors of the Company recommend the Special Resolution(s) as set out at [tem Nos. 4 & 5 of
the accompanying Notice for the approval of the Members.

Item No. 6

The members are requested to note that Section 180(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 mandates that the Board
of Directors of a Company shall exercise the power to sell, lease or otherwise dispose of the whole or substantially
the whole of any undertaking(s) of the company, only with the approval of the members of the Company by way
of a special resolution.

In view of the said, the Company may enter into the transactions with different parties for transfer by the way of
Direct Assignment or Co-lending together with all of the Company's rights, titles and interests thereto along with
third party on such terms and conditions as mutually agreed among the parties which may constitute a
substantially the whole of the undertaking of the Company in terms of section 180(1)(a) of the Companies Act,
2013.

The shareholders of the Company at their General Meeting held on August 31, 2024, had accorded consent to the
Board of Directors by way of Special Resolution for the transfer by the way of Direct Assignment or Co-lending
together with all of the Company's rights, titles and interests thereto, whether under equity, law or in contract to
the extent as decided by the board from time to time within the overall limits of Rs. 5,000,00,00,000/- (Rupees
Five Thousand Crores Only) on an outstanding basis. The Bankers mandate the annual renewal of the limits. No
changes in the limit are proposed for this year.

Therefore, the approval of the members is sought under section 180(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013, by passing
special resolution for transfer by the way of Direct Assignment or Co-lending together with all of the Company's
rights, titles and interests thereto, whether under equity, law or in contract to the extent as decided by the board
from time to time within the overall limits of Rs. 5,000,00,00,000/- (Rupees Five Thousand Crores Only) on an
outstanding basis.

None of the Directors and key managerial personnel of the Company or their respective relatives are concerned
or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution mentioned at Item No. 6 of the accompanying Notice of
the AGM.

The Board of Directors of the Company recommends the Special Resolution as set out at Item No. 6 of the
accompanying Notice for the approval of the Members.

Item No. 7

Given the responsibilities and obligations imposed on the independent directors have been increased in the recent
years on account of number of factors, including growth in the activities of the Company and the rapid evolution
arising out of legal and regulatory provisions and requirements. Looking at the competitive business environment,
stringent accounting standards, corporate governance norms and consequent increase in the responsibilities of the
directors, the Board has recommended the proposal to members of the Company to pay remuneration of Rs.
24,00,000 (Rupees Twenty-Four Lakhs only) per annum (payable on quarterly basis) as profit-related commission
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to each of the Non-executive Independent Directors of the Company subject to the limits prescribed under Section
197 of the Act.

In addition to the aforesaid remuneration, all Non-executive Independent Directors of the Company shall also be
entitled to sitting fees for attending meeting(s) of the Board or any Committee, and reimbursement of the expenses
for attending meetings of the Board and its Committee thereof, as permissible under the Act.

Members are further informed that pursuant to the provisions of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with rules

made thereunder, the Company shall not pay its Non-Executive Directors remuneration exceeding 1% of the Net
Profits of the Company for that financial year computed in the manner prescribed under Section 198 of the
Companies, Act, 2013 excluding the sitting fees paid under Section 197 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013. However,
pursuant to Section 149(9) of the Companies Act, 2013 payment of profit related commission to Independent
Directors shall not be made unless approved by the Members.

Except Independent Directors of the Company and/or their relatives, to the extent of their shareholding in the
Company, if any, none of the directors or key managerial personnel or their relatives are in any way concerned
or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution mentioned at Item No. 7 of the accompanying Notice of
the AGM.

Accordingly, the Board recommends the resolution as set out at Item No. 7 of the accompanying Notice for the
approval of the Members as an Ordinary Resolution.

Item No. 8

Section 42 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 14 of the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of
Securities) Rules, 2014 ("Prospectus and Allotment Rules") deals with private placement of securities by a
company. Rule 14(1) of the Prospectus and Allotment Rules prescribes that in case of an offer or invitation to
subscribe to securities, the Company shall obtain previous approval of its shareholders/members ("Members")
by means of a special resolution.

Rule 14(1) of the Prospectus and Allotment Rules further prescribes that in case of the issue of non-convertible
debentures ("NCDs") exceeding the limits prescribed therein, it shall be sufficient to obtain such previous
approval only once in a year for all the offers or invitations for such NCDs issued during a period of 1 (one) year
from the date of passing of the aforementioned special resolution.

In order to augment resources for on-lending by the Company, repayment/refinance of existing debt, working
capital requirement, purchase of assets, investments, general corporate purposes, and/or such other purposes as
may be determined by the Company, the Company may invite subscription for non-convertible debentures ((a)
listed or unlisted (to the extent permitted under applicable law), (b) senior secured, (¢) senior unsecured, (d)
unsecured, (e) subordinated, (f) market linked, (g) perpetual, (h) rated or unrated (to the extent permitted under
applicable law), and/or (i) any others, as may be agreed) to be issued by the Company, in one or more
series/tranches on private placement basis. The NCDs proposed to be issued, may be issued either at par or at
premium or at a discount to face value and the issue price (including premium, if any) shall be decided by the
board of directors of the Company ("Board") on the basis of various factors including the interest rate/effective
yield determined, based on market conditions prevailing at the time of the issue(s).

Pursuant to Rule 14(1) of the Prospectus and Allotment Rules, the following disclosures are being made by the
Company to the Members:
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PARTICULARS OF THE
OFFER INCLUDING DATE
OF PASSING BOARD
RESOLUTION

Rule 14(1) of the Prospectus and Allotment Rules prescribes that where the
amount to be raised through offer or invitation of NCDs (as defined above)
exceeds the limit prescribed, it shall be sufficient if the company passes a
previous special resolution only once in a year for all the offers or invitations for
such NCDs during the year.

In view of this, pursuant to this resolution under Section 42 of the Companies
Act, 2013, the specific terms of each offer/issue of NCDs ((a) listed or unlisted
(to the extent permitted under applicable law), (b) senior secured, (c) senior
unsecured, (d) unsecured, (e) subordinated, (f) market linked, (g) perpetual, (h)
rated or unrated (to the extent permitted under applicable law), and/or (i) any
others, as may be agreed) shall be decided from time to time, within the period
of 1 (one) year from the date of the aforementioned resolution. In line with Rule
14(1) of the Prospectus and Allotment Rules, the date of the relevant board
resolution shall be mentioned/disclosed in the private placement offer and
application letter for each offer/issue of NCDs.

KINDS OF SECURITIES
OFFERED AND THE PRICE
AT WHICH THE SECURITY

Non-convertible debt securities/NCDs.

The NCDs will be offered/issued either at par or at premium or at a discount to

IS BEING OFFERED face value, which will be decided by the Board for each specific issue, on the
basis of the interest rate/effective yield determined, based on market conditions
prevailing at the time of the respective issue.

BASIS OR JUSTIFICATION | Not applicable, as the securities proposed to be issued (in multiple

FOR THE PRICE | issues/tranches) are non-convertible debt instruments which will be issued either

(INCLUDING PREMIUM, IF | atpar or at premium or at a discount to face value in accordance with terms to be

ANY) AT WHICH THE OFFER | decided by the Board, in discussions with the relevant investor(s).

OR INVITATION IS BEING

MADE

NAME AND ADDRESS OF
VALUER WHO PERFORMED
VALUATION

Not applicable as the securities proposed to be issued (in multiple
issues/tranches) are non-convertible debt instruments.

The specific terms of each offer/issue of NCDs shall be decided from time to
time, within the period of 1 (one) year from the date of the aforementioned
resolution, provided that the amounts of all such NCDs at any time issued within
the period of 1 (one) year from the date of passing of the aforementioned
shareholders resolution shall not exceed the limit specified in the resolution under
Section 42 of the Companies Act, 2013.

AMOUNT WHICH THE
COMPANY INTENDS TO
RAISE BY WAY OF
SECURITIES

MATERIAL TERMS OF

RAISING OF SECURITIES,
PROPOSED TIME
SCHEDULE, PURPOSES OR
OBJECTS OF  OFFER,
CONTRIBUTION BEING
MADE BY THE PROMOTERS

The specific terms of each offer/issue of NCDs shall be decided from time to
time, within the period of 1 (one) year from the date of the aforementioned
resolution, in discussions with the respective investor(s). These disclosures will
be specifically made in each private placement offer and application letter for
each offer/issue of NCDs.
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OR DIRECTORS EITHER AS
PART OF THE OFFER OR
SEPARATELY IN
FURTHERANCE OF
OBJECTS; PRINCIPLE
TERMS OF ASSETS
CHARGED AS SECURITIES

Accordingly, consent of the Members is sought in connection with the aforesaid issue of NCDs and they are
requested to authorize the Board to issue such NCDs during the year on a private placement basis subject to the
outstanding principal amounts of all such NCDs at any time during the period shall not exceeding INR 1000
crores (Indian Rupees One Thousand Crores) as stipulated above, in one or more tranches.

None of the directors and key managerial personnel of the Company and their relatives are concerned or
interested, financially or otherwise, in this resolution except to the extent of their shareholding (if any) in the
Company.

The Board recommends the passing of the resolution as set out at Item No. 8 of the accompanying Notice for the
approval of the Members as a Special Resolution.

For and on behalf of the Board,
Protium Finance Limited

Prshu  IMotta

Name: Anshu Mohta
Designation: Company Secretary
Membership No.: A18287
Address: 7th Floor, Block B-2, Phase -1, Nirlon Knowledge Park (NKP),
Pahadi Village, Off Western Express Highway, Cama Industrial Estate,
Goregaon (East), Mumbai 400 063.

Date: August 22, 2025
Place: Mumbai
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Annexure I

Additional information of a director in pursuance of Secretarial Standard-2

Name of a Director

Mr. Peeyush Misra

Mr. Pravin Raghavendra

MBA, IIM Ahmedabad

Director Identification Number (DIN) 08422699 09686944

Age 52 years 60 + years

Date of first appointment on the Board April 15,2019 June 26, 2025

Qualification PhD MIT [Incomplete], JAIIB - Indian Institute of

Banking and Finance

Bachelor of Laws - LLB - Patna
Law College

B.Sc. (Hons), Mathematics -
Patna Science College
Certification on listed in
Independent Director's Databank
Certification on IT and Cyber
Security for Board Members

Certification on Strategy

Experience / Brief Profile / nature of
expertise in specific functional areas /
justification for appointment

Mr. Peeyush Misra is the MD &
CEO of Protium Finance Limited.
He was Ex-Partner in Goldman
Sachs, US ran some of the largest
and most complex businesses for
Goldman including Mortgages /
ABS / Rates etc.

Serves on boards of:

1. Sam Waxman Cancer Research
Foundation New

York

2.IIM Ahmedabad Endowment
3.Misra Centre for Financial
Markets and the Economy at IMA
20+ years of expertise in risk
management and running global
businesses

Mr. Raghavendra is an
accomplished and experienced
banking professional with a 35
years experience at State Bank of
India under various strategic and
leadership position. In his last
role at SBI he was designated as
Deputy Managing Director &

COO. He holds extensive
knowledge about  market,
compliance, and risk

management. He had played a
pivotal role in developing and
implementing strategies to drive
the SBI’s growth while ensuring
compliance with regulations and
minimizing risks. He has been
recognized for his team
leadership and driving
innovations in banking
operations. He ensured the
extensive use of analytics &
technology for Business
Acquisition, Fraud Management
and Enhanced Customer
Experience. He also spearheaded
the successful automation of
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critical processes, enhancing
operational  efficiency  and
ensuring resilience

Directorships held in other companies | Nil Nil

(excluding Foreign Companies and

Section 8 companies)

Chairmanships/ Memberships of | Nil Nil

Committees in other companies

Shareholding in the Company Nil Nil

Number of Board Meetings attended | Five (5) Nil

during the year

Relationship with other Directors / None None

Manager / Managerial Personnel

Remuneration last drawn Nil Nil

Details of remuneration sought to be paid | Nil Sitting fees for attending Board

and Committee meetings of the

Company, reimbursement of
expenses for attending Board and
Committee meetings as
applicable and remuneration
including commission as
determined within the limits as
permitted by law

Terms and conditions of appointment/re-
appointment

As per terms
mentioned  in

and conditions
shareholders’

resolution dated June 26, 2023

As per appointment letter setting
out terms and conditions of his
appointment is available for
inspection
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Proxy Form

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies(Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014/

CIN: U65999MH2019PLC323293
Name of the Company: Protium Finance Limited

Registered Office: INirlon Knowledge Park, B2, 7th Floor, Pahadi Village, Off,
'Western Express Highway, Goregaon (East), Mumbai - 400063

Name of the member (s):
Registered address:
E-mail Id:

Folio No/ Client Id:

DP ID:

I/We, being the member (s) of the above named company, and having ..... shares hereby appoint
1. Name
IAddress

E-mail Id

SINATUTE....ouveveeeieierieeteeet e , or failing him
2. Name
Address

E-mail Id
SINATUTE....oveeveeeieierieeieeet e , or failing him

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 7" AnnualGeneral Meeting of the
Company, to be held on Monday, September 15, 2025 at 11.00 A.M. IST at 7% Floor, Block B-2, Phase -1, Nirlon
Knowledge Park (NKP), Pahadi Village, Off Western Express Highway, Cama Industrial Estate, Goregaon (East),
Mumbai — 400063 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:

S. No. | Resolutions Options
Matter of Resolution For Against
1 To receive, consider and Adopt the Annual Financial

Statements (Standalone and Consolidated) for the Financial
Year 2024-25

2 To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Peeyush Misra (DIN:
08422699), who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers
himself for re-appointment

3 To appoint Mr. Pravin Raghavendra (DIN: 09686944) as the
Independent Director of the Company

4 To Approve Borrowing under section 180(1)(c) of the
Companies Act, 2013.

Protium Finance Limited

(Erstwhile Growth Source Financial Technologies Limited)

(Erstwhile Growth Source Financial Technologies Private Limited)

Registered & Corporate Office Address: 7th Floor, Block B2, Phase — | Nirlon Knowledge Park, Pahadi Village, Off. Western Express Highway,
Cama Industrial Estate, Goregaon(E), Mumbai- 400063, Maharashtra.

CIN: U65999MH2019PLC323293 Telephone No.: 8828820004 Website: www.protium.co.in E-mail ID:customerservice@protium.co.in



mailto:customerservice@protium.co.in

Protium

5 Transfer of Loan exposure and / or Creation of charge on the
Company’s assets, both present and future, to / in favour of
lenders.

6 To approve limits under Section 180(1)(a) for Direct
Assignment and Co-lending

7 Commission to Non-Executive Independent Directors of the
Company

8 Issue and allotment of Non-convertible Debentures (NCDs) on
a Private Placement basis

Signed this ............... dayof.......... 2025
. Affix Re.
Signature of Shareholder 1/-
Revenue

Signature of Proxy holder(s)

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at theRegistered Office of
the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting.

Notes:

1. The Proxy form in order to be effective should be duly stamped, completed and deposited at the Registered Office
of the company not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting.

2. A Proxy need not be a member of the Company.

3. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 105 of Companies Act, 2013, a person can act as a proxy on behalf of members
not exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate not more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company
carrying voting rights. A member holding more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting
rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other person or
shareholder.

4. This is only optional. Please put a 'X' in the appropriate column against the resolutions indicated in the Box. If you
leave the 'For' or 'Against' column blank against any or all the resolutions, your Proxy will be entitled to vote in the
manner as he/she thinks appropriate.

5. Appointing a proxy does not prevent a member from attending the meeting in person if he so wishes.

6. In the case of joint holders, the signature of any one holder will be sufficient, but names of all the joint holders
should be stated.

7. In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the order of the names will
be entitled to vote.

8. Please complete all details including details of member (s) in above box before submission.

Protium Finance Limited

(Erstwhile Growth Source Financial Technologies Limited)

(Erstwhile Growth Source Financial Technologies Private Limited)

Registered & Corporate Office Address: 7th Floor, Block B2, Phase — | Nirlon Knowledge Park, Pahadi Village, Off. Western Express Highway,
Cama Industrial Estate, Goregaon(E), Mumbai- 400063, Maharashtra.
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ATTENDANCE SLIP

7™ Annual General Meeting dated September 15, 2025
(Please fill attendance slip and hand it over at the entrance of the meeting hall)

Name and address of the shareholder / Proxy / Authorised Representative:

Name of Joint shareholders, if any:

Folio No.:

DP ID & Client ID*: No. of Shares held:

I/We certify that I/'We am/are member(s)/ proxy for the member(s) of the Company.

I/We hereby record my/our presence at the 7% Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be held on Monday,
September 15,2025, at 11.00 A.M. IST at 7" Floor, Block B-2, Phase -1, Nirlon Knowledge Park (NKP), Pahadi Village,
Off Western Express Highway, Cama Industrial Estate, Goregaon (East), Mumbai - 400063.

Signature of the Shareholder or Proxy or Representative

Signature of 1*' Joint Holder Signature of 2"! Joint Holder

Note:

Only shareholders of the company and / or their Proxy will be allowed to attend the Meeting

Protium Finance Limited

(Erstwhile Growth Source Financial Technologies Limited)

(Erstwhile Growth Source Financial Technologies Private Limited)

Registered & Corporate Office Address: 7th Floor, Block B2, Phase — | Nirlon Knowledge Park, Pahadi Village, Off. Western Express Highway,
Cama Industrial Estate, Goregaon(E), Mumbai- 400063, Maharashtra.

CIN: U65999MH2019PLC323293 Telephone No.: 8828820004 Website: www.protium.co.in E-mail ID:customerservice@protium.co.in
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Route Map of the Venue of the Annual General Meeting

[Location: Nirlon Knowledge Park, B2.7" Floor ]
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Board of Directors

Sr. No. | Mame of Director Designation . DIN
I Mr. Peevush Mism Managln;a Dllt':'l..-lLl'I & CEO 08422699
2, Ms. Anuradha Rao Iﬂ:iependen: Diirector 075971954
3. M. Drakshita Das |||l.ll.‘;]:-&||v;lu:[ Director N76ea2a%]
4, M. Parveen Kumar Gupla Independent Director 02895143
B | Mr. 5r|.-ﬂri.°||1] F.lu:l[c Independent Director 02670899
6. | Mr. Pravin Rugh&u eadra Independent Drirector I:H;Iﬁ-EﬁEIM*_

¢ Resigned with effect from Julv 8, 2023
* Appointed with effect from June 26, 2025

Ke erial

MName of KMP Designation ]
Mr. Peeyush Misra Managing Director & CEQ
Mr. Amit kumar Crupta Chief Fi nanc:al fou‘.:cr

Mis. Anshu Mohia C-a:nmpnmf Ecuemry
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Kegistrar & Transfer Apenis
MUFG Infime India Private Limited
C-101. 247 Park, LBS Mare, Vikhrob (West), Mumbai - 400083

Website: hitps: Y inmpmsmule.com)




D Memibers,

BOARD'S REPORT

Your Directors take pleasure in presenting 1he Seventh Annual Report on the business and fnancial cyperations
al your Company together with the aondited Onanceal statements for the nancial vear ended March 3 1, 2025

1, Finuncial Resulis

A summary of the financial performance of the Company, bath on 8 consolidated and standalone hasis in
comparison to the previous FY s given below;

 Consolidated Standalone |
Fo l'.ll'l'-l:-]:f-kl]-' For the year For the vear | For ithe _ﬂ-::tr_
Particalars ended ended enpched crmnded
March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
2025 2024 2025 2024
Kevenue from Operations 104,701.13 72,762.57 09,049 15 69,233 93
Other Income 2,859.79 2,988.97 4.264.60 3,661 .83
Total Income 10756092 |  75,751.54 103,313.75 7189576
Less: Total expenses 84,966.30 50,900.93 81,765.09 57 199,15
Profit before Tax 12,594.62 15,850.61 22,548.66 15,696.61
Less: Tax Expenses 5,470,74 4,175 48 544800 4,169.48
Profit after Tax 17,123.88 11,675.13 17,100.66 11,527.13
Add: Other Comprehensive Income | (930.89) (53.29) (953.09) (62.50)
Total Comprehensive Income 1592.99 [1,621.84 16,147.57 Il,diﬁrl.ﬁil
Earnings Per Share (EPS) '
Basic 11.78 1066 11.77 10.52
| Diluted - 11,74 10.66 1.73 10,52
Less: Transfer to Reserves as per 3420013 3,420.13
Section 45-1C of the RBI Acts LN 05
Balance carried to Balance Sheet 12,772.85 331641 12,727.43 9.159.21

The above Nigures are eximcled from the financial statements prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (“Ind AS™) as notified under Sections 129 and 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 {“the Act™) read with
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and other relevant provisions of the Act. The detailed Financial
statements as stated above are available on the Compamy's website hitps:/Yprotivm.co.in/,

Financial Performance

Consolidated

Your Company posted total income and net profit of INR 107 56042 lakhs and INR (712388 lakhs,
respectively Tor the financial vear ended March 31, 2025, a5 agamst IMNKE 75,751 .54 lakhs and INE 11.675.13
lakhs respectively. in the previous financial year.




Standalone

Your Company posted lotal income and nel profit of INE T03.313.73 lakhs and INR 17,100, 66 Bakhs,
tespectively tur the financial yer ended March 31, 2025, as against INR 72,895 76 lakhs and INR 11.527.13
Inkhs respectively, in the previous financial year

2. Drividend

Considering the capital-inténsive nature of the business, the business plan of the Company and with a view 1o
plough back the profits, the Board of Directors have not recommended any dividend for the financial vear to
build a strong base for its long-term growth.

3. Transfer to Reserves

Your Company has transterred INR 3,420.13 [akhs to the Statutory Reserve as required under Section 45-1C of
the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (previous yvear INR 2,305 43 lakhs)

4, State of Company’s AFairs

The information on the affairs of the Company has been given as part of the Management Discussion and
Analysis section of the Report.

Your Company is Mon-Banking Financial Company without accepting or holding public deposits, as defined
under Section 43-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 as applicable and is categorized as middle layer
(MBFC-ML)

The portfalio of the total loan eutstanding of vour Company stood at INR 380,187.57 lakhs as on March 31,
2025, Your Company confinued fo fo¢us on ils existing products by deepening and expanding its distribution
while augmenting its infrastructure and offerings to effectively deliver credit solutions to its market, Your
Company proposes o continue the same in FY 2026,

Your Company offers a comprehensive bouguet of products and services to the underserved, which is tailor-
made 1o suit the customers’ requirements. Your Company is engaged in providing lending to the business of
b icro, Small & Mediom Enterprizes (MSME) and offers both secured and unsecured loans.

2, Change in naiure of business, il any

Your Company carried oul Lhe business as mentioned in the Memorandum of Association of the Company
during the year under review and there was no change in the nature of business of the Company.

6. Human Resources

Your Company firmly believes that people are its greatest asset which embodies & dynamic blend of youthiul
energy and seasoned experience, driving the organization forward with capability, passion, and imtegrity. As of
March 31, 20235, ot employved 2.03% mdividuals, with women representing | 1% of our team, The average age of
employees stands a1 33 yvears, reflecting a vibrant and agile work force commilled to excellence



7. Details of Subsidiary, Joint Ventures, Associate Companies

During the year under review, vour Company has no associate companies within the meaning of Section 26)
of the Act and has ot entered inta any joint venture. However, your Company has following two Whol Iy (wned
Subsidiaries (“WOS™)

Name of the WOS CIN
LIT2900MHZ02 | PTCISA123

| Protium Business Services Private Limited

Shibui Technologies Private Limited

LI620O9K AZGZIPTCITIATS

There has been no material change in business of subsidiary companies during the financial year 2024-25.
Further, pursuant o Section |293) of the Act read with Rule 5(1} of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014,
the statement containing the salient features of the Mnancial statements of your Company®s Subsidiaries in Form
ADC = | 15 annexed as Annexure L.

Highlights of performance of Subsidiary Company(ies)

The total revenue from the operation of Protium Business Services Private Limited during the year under
review 15 INR 5,556.58 lakhs (previous year INR 4, 72028 lakhs) and the Net profit is Rs, INR 31,54 lakhs
(previous vear INR 6,86 lakhs),

Further, the tofal revenue from the operation of Shibui Technologies Private Limited during the vear under
review is INR 135.94 lakhs (previous year INR 33.70 lakhs) and the Net profit is [INR 35.89 lakhs { previous
year Rz 4.37 lakhs).

The andited financial statements, including the consolidated financial statements of your Company are available
on the website. The Annual Report and audited financial statements of each of its subsidiaries are also available
on the website of the Company at hiftpsYprotium.coan'reru latorv-disclosure!,

8. Matercial ehinges and commitments, if any, affecting the fina nv which have

pccurred between the end of the financial vear of the Company to which the financial statements relate
and the date of the report

The details of changes in the Board of Directors from the end of the financial year up 1o the due ol this report
have been duly included herein, Apart from these changes, there have been no material developments or
comimitments that have significantly impacted the financial position of the Company during this period

49, Borrowings

During the year under review, vour Company met its funding requirements through a diversified mix of
barrowvings, Wcleding Commercial Papers, External Commercial Borrowings (ECBs), securitisation
transactions, and borrowings from hanks and financial institutions. As of March 31, 2025, the wial outstanding
borrowings stood at T3B0, 18757 lukhs.



Your Company s overall borrowings remain well within the regulatory ceiling and the aggregaie Bormowing
Innits-as approved by the Board of Directors and Members from time to time. In view of the Compan y's future
business plans, growth potential, and the anlicipated expansion of its loan portfolio. and 1o meet the reqquirement
ol additional funds Tor the coming years, your Company would continue with the existing borrowing limit 1o 2
B0 crore. Accordingly, necessary resolutions seeking approval of Members to continue the existing Borrowing
limit farms part of the notice canvening the ™ Annual General Meeting (“AGM™).

10 Credil Bating

During the vear under review, there has been no change to the credit ratings assigned in FY24 which ~was again
reviewed and reaflfirmed by the Acuile Ratings & Kesearch Limited as stated below

Instruments ?:::1” <l Rating granted

Bank Loan Ratings Long term ACUITE AA-/ Stable

Mon — Convertible Debeniures Long Term ACUITE AA- Stable

Mon Convertible  Debentures | Long Term ACUITE PP-MLI} AA-/ Stable withdrawn on March
{MLID) 10, 2025

Commercial Paper Short Term ACUITE A1+ withdrawn on March 10, 2025

11. Capital Adequacy

The Capital Adeguacy Ratio (CAR) of yvour Company as on March 31, 2025, was 45.68%, which is well above
the mmimum required to be maintained under RBI SBR Directions 2023

13. Public Deposits

Your Company is a Non-Deposit taking NBFC and has not accepted any public deposits during the yvear under
ey e,

13. Capital Structure
a. i il Share Capital

As on March 31, 2025, the Authonized Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 1,56,00,93,000/- divided into
| 5,60,09 300 Equity Shares of Rs, 104 each.

As on March 31, 2025, the Isseed, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital of your Company stands atf INR
1456921410 comprising of 14.56,92,141 Equity Shares of INR 10/ gach. The said equity shares of the
Company are held in dematerialized mode.

During the year under review, your Company has issued Equity Shares as per details given below:

u




Mo, of Tully Paid-up - Date of allotment Mature of Issue

Equity Shares issued

and subscribed
549811 11.12.2024 | Employee Stock Options

. Protinm Finance Emplovee Stock Option Plan |

In order to develop and implement a long - term incentive program Lo effectively attract, motivate and retain the
hest takent from the industry in a competitive environment, your Company has implemented the Protiom Finance
Emplayee Stock Option Plan 1 Scheme. A statement providing the information as required under Rule 12 of the
Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014, is furnished in Annexure I1.

14, Mon-Convertible Debenlures

The Market Linked Debentures (ISIN INEOO3507016) were fully redeemed during the vear and have been
delisted from the Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE Limited). Further Mon-Convertible Debentures with 15N
INEQCH 507024 were partially redeemed on April 25, 2024, and were fully redeemed on April 25, 2025,

As on date of report, there are no outstanding NCDs of the Company .

15, Debeniure Trusiees

The details of the debenture trustees for the debenture holders of the Company are provided hereunder:

Axis Trustec Services Limited

Address; Axis House, Bombay Dyeing Mills Compound,

Pandurang Budhkar Marg, Worli, Mumbai — 400 025 Tel: +91 22 6226 0054,
Email: debenturetrusiesi@axistrustee.in , Website: www axistrustee, in

16. Registrar and Share Transfer Asent

The details of registrar and share transfer agent of the Company are provided hereunder:
MUFG Intime India Private Limited (formerly known as Link Intime India Private Limited)
C-101, 247 Park, LBS Marg, Vikhroli (West), Mumbai — 400083

Tel :022 491 86000, Email: bonds helpdesk@linkintime.co.in

Website: hitps: hitps:¥in.mpms. mutg.com/’

17. Board and Committee Composition
. Board Composition

The Company has a professional Board with Executive & Non-Executive Independent Directors who bring the
right mix of knowledge, skills, and expertise and help the Company in implementing the best Comporate
Governance practices. As on March 31, 2025, the Board of Directors of the Company comprises of following

CHrecions:




Sr. No. | Name of Director - | Capacity (i.e. Executive’ Non- DIN
Executive/ Chairman’ Promoler
nomince Independent)
L Mr. Peeyush Mism Managing Director & CEQ 08422600 |
{ Executive Director)
2 | Ms. Anuradha Rao Independent Directod .| 07597195
E Ms. Dakshita Das Independent Director = 07662681
4 | Mr.Parveen Kumar Gupa | Independent Director 02895343 |
5 Mr. Sitaram Kunte Independent Director (2670809

b. Key Managerial Personnel

As om March 31, 2025, pursuant to the provisions of Section 203 of the Companies Aci, 2013, the Key
Managenal Personnel (KMP) of your Company comprizes of the following:

Sr. Name of KMP Designation

No. -

I Mr. Peevush Misra Managing Director & CEO
3 Mr. Amit Kumar Gupta Chief Financial Officer

3 Mrs. Anshu Mohta Company Secretary

€. Changes in Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

During the pericd under review, there were no changes in the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company,

However, on June 26, 2025, Mr. Pravin Raghavendra was appointed as an Additional Director in the category
of Independent Director, not liable to retire by rodation. His appointment is for a term of five (3) consecutive
years commencing from June 26, 20235, subject to the approval of the Members at the ensuing Annual General
Meeting (“AGM™).

Further, Ms. Anuradha Rao resigned from her position as Independent Direetor with effect from July 8, 2025,
The Board places on record its sincere appreciation for the valuable contributions made by her during her tenure
with the Company,

As on the date of this report, the composition of Board of the Company comprises of following Directors:

| 8r. No. | Name of Director Capacity {i.¢. Executive/ Non- DIN
Executive! Chairman/ Promoter
nominee [ndependent)
i Mr, Peeyush Misra Managing Dhrector & CED (8422690
(Executive Dhirector)
2 Ms. Dakshita Das Independent Directar 07662681
3 Mr. Parveen Kumar Gupta Iim:l-e]ﬁndun: Direcior 02895343
4 Mr. Sitaram Kunie Independent Director (2670809
5 | Mr. Pravin Raghavendra | Independent Directar (9686944

¥ Appointed with eMect from June 26, 2025




il Board Commitices

Your Board has constituied following commitiees which supports the Board in fulfilling its  fiduciary
responsibilities aml ensures that the Company adheres 10 regulatory standards while pursuing sustainable
growith:

Audit Committes

Momination and Kemuneration Commilites
Rizk Managemen! Commities

I Strategy Committes

Corporate Social Responsibility Commitiee
stakeholders Relationship Commitiee
Asset & Liability Committee

Customer Service Commilise

Share Allatment Comimittee

Review Committee of Wilful Delauliers
Information Security Commitles

12, IT Steering Comm ittos

13, ldentification Committee for Wilful Defaulter
14, Fraud Risk Management Committee

e oDt e B B —

— =

The details of the Commitiee composition along with the details of the Meetings held during the Financial Year
2024-25 are disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report forming part of this report as Annexure TTL

e Director liable to retire by rotation

In terms of Section 152 of the Act and the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Peeyush Misra, retires
by rotation at the ensuing AGM and being eligible offers himself for reappointment. Your Directors” and the
Momination and Remuneration Commities have evaluated the eligibility criteria under BB guidelines and the
Act and have recommended his reappointment in the ensuing AGM.

L Declaration by Direclors

Based on the declarations and confirmations received in terms of the Act, circulars)! notification(sydirection(s)
issued by RBI/SEBI and such ather applicable laws, none of the Directors of the Board of your Company are
disqualified from being appointed as Directors.

All the Directers of the Company have confirmed that they satisfy the ‘Fit and Proper” Criteria as prescribed
under Chapter X1 of Master Direction - Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company —Scale Based
Regulation} Directions, 2023, as amended, and that they are not disqualified from being appointed/continuing
as Directors in terms of Section 164(2) of the AcL

Pursuant to Scction 14HT) of the Acl, vour Company has received declarations From all the [ndependent
Directors of the Company allirming compliance with criteria ol independence as specilied under Section |49%6)
of the Act. The Independem Direclors have also confirmed that they have complied with the Company s Code
of Conduet.




The Independent Directors have also conlimmed compliance with rule & of the Companies { Appointment and
Crialifications of Directors) Rules, 2004, as amended, relating (o inclusion of their names in the databank of
independent dircetors and compliance of the online proficiency seli- assessment test (unless exempted ) with the
Indian Institute of Corporate AfTairs.

The Roard is of opinion and confinn, in terms of Rule § of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 that the
Independent Derectors are persons of high repute, integrity and possess the relevant expertise and experience in
their respective Nields.

g Meetings of the Board of Dircctors of the Company

Five () Board Meetings were held during the Financial Year 2024-25. The details of the number of” meetings
of the Board of Directors of the Company are disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report which is forming
part of this report as Annexure ITL The intervening gap between the meetings was within the period prescribed
under the Act.

h. Performance Evaluation

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act. your Board underiook a comprehensive annual
evaluation of its own performance, as well as that of its Committees, individual Directors, and the Chaimnan of
the Company. A structured questionnaire was developed, focusing on key aspects such as Board composition,
effectivencss, governance practices, and sirategic oversight. This questionnaire was circulated among all Board
members to gather feedback on the functioning and performance of the Board, its Commitiees, individual
Directors, and the Chairman. The responses were compiled and presented to the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and subsequently o the Board for review and discussion.

The Board is pleased fo report its satisfaction with the evaluation process. The contributions of individual
Directors were duly acknowledged and appreciated, The overall assessment reflected positively on the Board™s
performance, reaflirming its commitment to strong governance, transparency, accountability, and continuous
improvement

i. Independent Directors Meeting

During the year, a meeting of Independent Directors was held as required under the Act and in compliance with
the requirements under Schedule I'V of the Act

All the Independent Directors were present at the meeting held on January 10, 2025, In the meeting, the
Independent Directors reviewed performance of the Board 2s a whole and the Non-Independent
Director/Chairman of the Board They assessed the qualily, quantity and timeliness of Mow of information
between the Company Management and the Board

The Independent Directors expressed satisfaction over the performance and effectiveness of the Board and the
Chairman, They also expressed satisfaction regarding the Aow of information between the Management of the
Company and the Board.



18. Policy on_Appointment and Remunerstion of Dircetors. Kev Managerial Personnel and Senior
Manspement

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 1781} of the Act and Master Dircetion on RBI Scale Based Regulation,
your Company has lformulated Compensation Policy which inter alia includes criteria for determining
qualifications, positive atiributes and independence of Directors, identilication of persons who are qualified o
become Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management. The Compensation Policy is available
on the website of the Company at hips:/protivwm couipwp-content’uploads 20250241 7 -Com pensation-

Policy.pdf.

14. Corporate Governance

Your Company is commitied o mamtaining the highest standards of Corporate Governance and adheres 1o the
Corporate Governance requirements. The reporl on Corporale Governance of the Company forms part of the
Annual Beport and is anneéxed as Annexure 11

20, RBI Guidelines

Your Company has complied with all the applicable regulations prescribed by the Reserve Bank of India from
time to time, The disclosures required under RBI Guidelines applicable to the Company are stated in the Motes
forming part of Financial Statemcnts.

21. Secretarial Standards

Your Company has complied with the applicable Secretarial Standards, relating to Meeting of the Board of
Drirectors (55-1) and General Meeting (55-2), issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

21, Compliance

The Company has implemented a comprehensive and robust legal compliance management system designed 1o
ensure adherence to all applicable laws relevant to its business operations, This system includes automated alerts
e designated compliance owners, helping them meer regulatory desdlines and avoid potential penalties or legal
risks arising from non-compliance. A consolidated compliance dashboard is presented o the respective
functicnal heads and the Compliance Officer for oversight. Additionally, a quarterly cenificate confirming
compliance with all applicable laws and regulations along with details of any corrective or preventive actions
taken is circulated 10 the Awdit Committee and the Board of Directors for their review,

23, Auditors and Auditors Report

a. Aunditors Report

M/s. 5.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants {ICAIL FRN: 010M9W/EI00004) has issued an
Audit Report dated May 12, 2025, forming part of the Annual Report, There are no gualifications, reservation,

adverse remark or disclaimer given by the Statuory Auditor in their Report for the vear under review,

Mo frauds in terms of the provisions of section 143{12) ol the Act have been reported by the Siatutory Auditoss
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b. Statutory Auditors

Pursuant 1o the provisions of Sections 139 and 142 of the Act and Rules made thescunder and in line with
guidelines issued by the RBI on appointment of statutory Auditors ol NBFCs, the Members appointed  M/s. 5K
Batlibid & Associates LLP, a5 the statutory auditors of the Company from 6th AGM held on August 317, 2024
to the @th AGM, 10 be held in the year 2027

Mis. 8.1 Batliboi & Associates LLP have given confirmation 1o the effect that they are eligible and have not
heen disqualified in any manner from continuing their appeiniment as Stautory Auditors of the Com pany.

Cosi records and Auditors

Under the provision of Section 148 of the Act, your Company i5 not required 1o maintain the Cost records for
the services rendered. Hence, the disclosure required under Rule § of the Companies (Accounts) Rules. 2014 is
not applicable,

i Secretarial Andit

Under the provision of Section 204 of the Act read with Rule 9 of Companies { Appoiniment and Remuneration
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, M/s. MAKS & CO, Company Secretaries (Registration Number No:
P201BUPOG6TTO0) wers appointed as Secretarial Auditors for the Financial Year 2024-23. The Secretarial Andit
Report issued by the Secretarial Auditor in Form MR-3 is annexed as Annexure IV.

There are no qualification, reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer given by the Secretarial Auditor in their
Report for the year under review,

e Internal Control Systems and their adequacy

The Company has an internal control system, commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of its
operations. Testing of such systems forms a part of review by the [nternal Audit (“IA7) function. The scope and
authority of the 1A function is defined in the TA Charter in line with the Board approved Risk Based Internal
Audit Policy.

The 1A function of the Company monitors and evaluates the efficacy and adequacy of the mternal eontrol svstem
in the Company to ensure that financial reports are reliable, operations are effective and efficient and activities
comply with applicable laws and reguiations. Based on the report of the [A function, process owners undertake
corrective action, if any, in their respective arcas and thereby strengthen the controls. Significant audit
observations and corrective actions thereon are presented to the Audit Committes of the Company from time to
time.

Internal Financial Control

Your Company has a sulficiently staffed finance team working under robust processes, mdependent internal
audit team and quarterly statulory andits. Hence, the Board belicves that the Company has established sound
IFC commensurale with the nature and size of its business




24. Particulars of contracts or arrangements with related partics

Your Company has a Board approved policy for Related Party Transactions (RPTs) which is available on the
withsile of the Company at https:i/protium.co.infwp-content/uploads/202 5/02/5 -Related - Party-Tra nsaction-
Policy. pdf.

Bruring the year under review, there were no matenally significant related party transactions made by the
Company which may have & potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large. Omnibus approval wis
oblained for related party transactions which are of repetitive nature and entered in the ordinary course of
business and afl amm’s length. All related parly transactions were placed before the Audit Commitiee Tor review
and approval on a quarterly basis,

The disclosure of related party transactions as required under Section 134(3) (h) of the Act in Form AQC 2 i3
altached 1o this report a5 Annexore V.

The details of related party transactions with the related parties entered into during the financial year are
disclosed in Note MNo. 46 and Mote Mo 50(d) of the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the
vear ended March 31, 2025

25, Corpor i .

In accordance with the requirements of the provisions of Section 133 of the Act, the Company has constituted
a Corporate Social Responsibility ("CSR™) Committee. The composition and terms of reference of the CSR
Committee is disclosed in the report on Corporate Governance of the Company forms part of the Annual Report
and 1 annexed as Annexure TTL

The Company has also formutated a CSR. policy (“CSR Pelicy™) in sccordence with the requirements of the Act
containing details specified therein. The CSR Policy along with details of the projects approved by the Board
arc available on the website of the Company at hitps://protium co.in/wp-contentuploads/202 302/Corporate-
social-Responsibility-Policy.pdf.

The Company has a strong commitment towards promoting social transformation through education and health
care. During the vear, the overall CSR spend was [NR 183.54 lakhs. The Company has spent INR, 8.92 lakhs in
excess of its CSR obligations and the excess amount will be set off against the required 2% CSR budget over
the next immediate succeading Mnancial years,

The Company’s C5R efforts are well-aligned with its business objectives, regulatory requiremenis, and social
responsibility principles.

The Annual report on activities as required under Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Ruleas,
2014 is enclosed as Annexure V1 and forms part of this report,

10, Particulars of Loans, Guarantee, Security or Investments

In terms of section 186(11}of the Act read with the Companies {Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014,
as amended, the Company being an NBFC registered with RBLand whose main abjects as per its Memorandum
of Association is to carry on business ol financing industrial enterprises. the Company s exempt from
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complying with provisions ol section 186 of the Act in respect ol loans made, guarantees given, sccurities
provided, or investments imade by the Company.

The details of the Investments made by the Company are furnished under Mote Mo 9 of MNotes forming part of
the Standalene Financial Statemients of the Company [or the year ended March 31, 2025,

27. Details of significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals j mpacting
the going concern status amd company's operations in fufure

Dwuring the period under review, there were no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or counts
or irihugals that would impact the going concern siatus of the Company and its future operations,

28. Annual Return

The Annual Retwm of the Company as on March 31, 2025 in Foarm MGT-7 as required under Section 92(3) of
the Companies Aet, 2013 {(“the Act™) read with Section 134(3} of the Act, shall be hosted on the website of the
Compaity thitps:protivm co.in‘regulatory-disclosure’.

Absorption and Fo

The provisions of Section 134(3m) of the Act, the rules made there under relating to conservation of energy
and technology absorption do not apply to your Company as the Company is engaged in providing financial
services. Your Company is taking every necessary step to reduce its consumption of energy, Further, your
Company has been increasingly using information technology in its operations and promoles conservation of
energy and resources. The details of fareign exchange earnings and foreign exchange cxpenditures are as below:

7 in Lakhs

Particulars FY 202425 _ FY 2023-24
Forcign exchange camings - -
| Foreign exchange expenditures | 195.15 16.53

30. Hisk Management

Your Company follows various straiegies in its operational function for mitigating various risks, It
acknowledges and identifies that it is prane to certain inherent rizks while operating as NBFC-ML. The Risk
Management Committee {RMC) of the Board has approved a policy which clearly lays down the process of risk
management in the Company, with a view to create an enterprise-wide risk framework. In addition, the policies
are periodically reviewed by the Board members.

The established framework is designed 10 achieve the following objectives across key risk categories:
Effective nsk identification, measurement, monioring, reporting and control.

A well constituted arganizational structure clearly defines robes and responsibilities of individuals
involved in rsk-taking as well az managing i




11 Effective management informaticn sysiem that ensures flow of information [om operational level
o manggement and a syvsiem o address any exceptions observed.

4. I'he framework to ensure ongoing wraining of risk professional and overall PFL employees, review of
systems, pohcies and procedures [or risk management and procedure to adopt changes.

Your Company is exposed (o the following types of major risks categories:

- Credit Risk

- Liquidiy Bisk, Interest Rate Risk and Markei Rizk
L Diperational Risk

. IT Security Kisk

In addrtion to the Risk Management Committee, Asset Liability Committee, IT Strategy Committee and Awdit
Commitles are sub-committees constituled by the Board to oversee and control risk related to Liquidity and 1T
security. We have policies in place to address these nisks, which are reviewed annually by senior management
and approved by the Board of Directors

Credit Risk

Credit risk arises from the potential that an obligor is either unwilling to perform on an obligation or its ability
to perform such obligation is impaired resulting in economic loss to the organization. The objective of credit
risk management is to ensure credit quality of portfolio through an evaluation of the credit process,
creditworthiness of customers, new or existing, asscssment of the risks mvolved and ensuring a measured
approach to address the risks. Credit risk management includes identification, measuring and monitoring of
credit quality of portfolio periodically and taking appropriate action to mitigate excessive buildup of risk.

Dperational Risk

Operational risk arises due to the failure of controls or a combined failure of people, systems, and processes.
Operaticnal risk incidents can also be triggered due to external events. The activities which the Company
undertakes exposes it to various types of operational risks. Yoor Company has established a robust framewark
to identily key sources of operational rizk, eliminate risk using a combination of robust process design and use
of technology, establish control frameworks to ensure adherence to processes and monitor deviations via system
checks and exceptions.

Your Company has set up Fraud risk management framewark as part of broader operational risk management
framework based on recent guidance from regulators

Ligquidity Risk, Interest Rate Risk and Market Risk

In order toensure a sound and robust liquidity risk management system, the Board has framed a liquidity risk
management structure ! framework which ensures that it maintains sufficient liquidity, including a cushion of
unencumbered, gh qualmy liguid assels 1o withstand a range of stress events, including those involving the
loss or impairment of funding sources.  Your Company has sel up a comprehensive as well as dynamic
framewark for measuring, monitoring and managing liquidity and interest rate risks of major operators in the
financial system. that need to be closely inlegrated with the Company’s business stralegy.

A structured Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (“ICAAP™ Y is in place to enhance Board and Senioi
Management™s ability 10 understand the existence of capital flexibility in line with the defined risk appetite. The

ICAAP cvaluates capital reguirements under difTerent stress scenanios,
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IT Risk

The IT Strategy Committee of the Board has framed a framework far managing risk associated with Information
Technology, Cyber threats, and Business Continuity. Your Company has a dedicated technology team to build
the core system used for origination, underwriting and loan servicing. The technology platform s periodically
tested by both internal and external secwrity experts fo [dentify security vulnerzbilities and evolving security
threats.

2. Buzginess Continuity

Your Company has further strengthened business resilience by enhancing Business Continuity Program and
optimizing Disaster Recovery framework to ensure seamiess operations. The stratepic focus on cybersecurity
remained unwavering, Cyvber Defense capabilities were advanced to protect digital assets and customer mterests.

Vi nism and Whistle Blower Poli

In compliznee with the provisions of Section 177(9) of the Act read with Rule 7 of the Companies (M eetings
of Boord and it Powers) Rules, 2014, your Company hes formulated an affective Vigil Mechanism and Whistle
Blower Policy for Directors and employees 1o report their penoine concerns, The Vigil Mechanism and Whistle
Blower Policy” is available on the website of the Company al hiips:/profium co jn'wp-
contentwploads 20250277 - Whistle-Blower-Policy. pdf.

The vigll mechanistn of the Company is overseen by the Audit Committee and provides adequate safeguard
against victimization of employess. Duning the year under review, two cases under vigil mechanizm ware
reported to the Company and were disposed of with the timeline.

33, Particalars of Em Filated Information

As per the Companies (Specification of Definitions details) Rules, 2014, &s amended, the Company doesn't fall
under the category of listed company, Hence, provisions of Section 197(12) of the Act and Rule 5(1) & 5(2) of
the Companies {Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, are not applicable to
the Company.

34. Director’s Respensibility Statement

Pursuant to the reguirements under Section 134{5) of the Act, the Board of Directors, to the best of their
knowledge and ability, confirm that:

a.  inthe preparation of the annual sccoums for the fnancial year ended on March 31, 2025, the applicable
accounting standards had been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures.

the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Company as at March 31, 2022, and of the profit of the Company for the financial year ended on
that date,




the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenence of adegquate accounting records
in wccordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

. the Directors had prepared the annual accounts for the financial vear ended on March 31, 2023, on a
‘going concern' basis.

the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems were adequaie and operating effectively.

35, Code for Prohibition of Insider Trading

Pursuant to SEBL {Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulation 2015, as emended, your Compeny has a Board
approved Insider Trading Code ie. Code of Intemmal Procedures and conduct for prevention of insider trading
for its listed Non-Convertible Debentures of the Company. The said code is available on the website of the

Company ar hips:protium,.co.in'wi-gontent'uploads' 202505 Insides-Trading-Code- 1. pdf.
filan iscussi nd Analvsi

The report on Mamagement Discussion and Analysis of the Company s per Master Direction on RBI Scale
Based Regulation forms part of the Board Report and is annexed a5 Annexure V1L

37. Fraud

The Company confirms its adhevence to the RBI regulations regarding frand, For the financial year 2024-25,
the Company reports that there were no instances of fraud detected or reported.

3 isclosn der the ol nt of women at w e i ibition and

redressal) Act, 20013

Your Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment st workplace and has adopted a policy on Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal of Sexual Harassynent at workplace as per the requiremerit of the Sexual Harassment
of Women at workplace (Prevention, Prohibifion & Redressal) Act, 2013 ("POSH Act’) and Rules made
therewnder,

With the objective of providing a safe enviromment, your Company has constituted Internal Commities under
POSH Act to redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment. All employess — permanent, contractual,
temporary and irainees are covered under this poficy. The policy on Prevention of Sexual Harassment at
Waorkplace is uploaded on the website of the Company which can be accessed at https2Uprotivm. co.inwp-
content/uploads 2023/ 12/ POSH-Polipy Final DecZd V) 4.pdf

The summary of complaints recelved and disposed off during year undar review:

. | Particulars Mo, of cases
Number of complaints of sexual harassment received in
the vegar




2 Mumber Df?m‘piﬂ.‘iiﬂs disposed off during the vear i
3 Mumber of cages pending for move than ninety davs ; il

The Company i in compliance with the provisions relating to the Matemnity Benefit Act, 1961 including all
applicable amendments and rules framed thereunder

Your Company has raised forgign investments and it i5 owned and controlled by persons resident outside Indin
("FOQCC™) as defined under the Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999, Rules and Regulations [ssued
thereunder including under Forsign Exchangs Mansgement {MNon-Debt Instruments) Bules, 2019 ("NDI Rules™).
Dwuring twe financial year FY2024-23, your Company didn’t make any downstream investment,

41. Transler af Unelaimed Dividend and Unclaimed Secarilies

[Druring FY 2024-25, no amount was required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund,
Further, pursuant 1o the nvestor Education and Prowection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and
Refind) Rules, 2016 (“Rules) and Reguletion 61A of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 20135, Mr. Amit Kumar Gupta is the Nodal Officer of the Company, for the purpose
of verification of claims and co-ordination with the IEPF Authority, The contact details of Persons handling
Investor Grievance are available on the website of the Company at hetps-protium.co.infregulatory-diselosuse),

42, G

Your directors state that oo disclosure or reporting s réquired in respect of the following items as there were no
transactions on these items during the year under review:

p. [ssue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise

b, lssue of bonus shates or preferential issue of shares or rights issue ete,

¢ dransfer of unpaid or unclaimed amount 10 Investor Education and Profection Fund.

d,. Scheme for provision of money for the purchase of its own share by employees or by trustees for the
benelit of employees,

g The Managing Director of the Company doesn't receive any remuneration or commission from ifs
subsidiary.

f. Details of difference between amount of the valuation done at the time of oneé time setilement and the
valuation done while taking loan from the Banks or Financial Instingions.

g- no proceeding for Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process initiated Under the Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Code, 2016,
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Your Directors would like to take this opportunity 1o extend their gratitude to the Company’s custorners for
thelr trust. They also express their sincerc appreciation to the regulatory authorifies, bankers, Financial
institutions, rating agencies, debenture trustees, and other stakcholders for their unwavering support
Additionally, the Directors commend the employees for their dedication and commitment throughout the

fimancial year.

O bathalf of the Board of Directors
For Protium Finance Limited

W

Peeyaish Misra
Chairperson of Board
DIN: 08422609

Date: August 14, 2025
Place: Lonavala




ANNEXURE — 1 TQO BOARD'S REPORT

FORM- AGC-1

( Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with Rule § of Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 20104

Statement containing salient features of the Minancial statement of subsidiaries or associate

companies or jeint venlures

Particilars

% in Lakhs

- Subsidiary 1

of
subsidiary company

CIN/ any other registration number

UT2900MH202 | PTC356128

Subsidiary 2

U62099KA2023PTCI71573

Mame of the sul:nsuimrues

Protium Business Services
Private Limited

Date since when sobsidiary was
aoquired

March 2, 2021

Shibui Technalogies Private
L:mlm:l

“March 24, 2023

Provisions pursuant to which the
company has become a subsidiary
(Section 2(87)(i)/Section 2(87)(ii)

Section 2{B7)(ii)

Section 2(87W i)

Reporting penod for the subsidiary
concermed, if  different from  the
holding company®s reporting period.

From April [, 2024

From April 1, 2024

rate as on the last date of the relevant
financial vear in the case of foreign
subsidinries,

Reporting cumrency and Exchange |

To March 31, 2025

To March 31, 2025

NA

Share Capital

Tad.00

Reserves and Surplus

£4.81

Total Assets

| Total Liabilities

Investments

42818

MNA

563.57

000

Turmaowver

FProdit h-:lmL 'I'1=-:..L1|4:m

5,556.58

4218

I"mwsmn T-l:lr Iaualuuu

AL BTl

10.65

[ Profit afier 'F:u Kalion

31.54

| Proposed Dividend

Extent  af shareholding

pereentage)

P00




I Number of subsidiaries which are yel to commence operations - Mone
2 Mumber of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or ar have ceased 10 be a subsidiary during the

year: Mot applicahle.

Part “B": Aszociates and Joint Ventures

Simtement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related 1o Associste Compani es and
Jaoint Ventures- Not Applicable

I. Mumber of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commeénce operations — None

2. Mumber of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or have ceased o be associate or
joint venture during the vear: Nol applicable

Notes: The following information shall be furnizhed at the end of the statement as on March 31, 2025:

On behalf of the Board of Directors
For Protium Finance Limited

=

%

Peey Misra
Managing Director & CEQ
DIN: 08422699

Amit Ku Anshu Mohia
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Membership Mo.; A18287

)ﬁf} Prsky Fohte
rr Grupeta

Date: August 14, 2025
Place: Lonavala
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ANNEXLURE 11 TQ BOARD'S REFORT

DETAILS OF EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTIONS

As per Rule 12(9) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 following are the particulars
of ESOP requited tothe following information isbe disclosed for the financial year 2024-25 in respect of Protium
Finance Employes Stock Option Plan 1.

(Sr. | Particulars Grant 2023 Grant 2025
Hu — —
FL Options granted - 3033718 9.,97.623
S T T S 1. L
3. | Options exercised ) 549811 0
4| Total no. of shares Arising as a resull of exercise 5459 811 0
of options
5. | Options lapsed | 386252 0 i
6. | Exercise price INR 166 per option INR 480 per option and |
i INR. 166 per option
7. | Variaton of terms of options During the vear under DuFEng the year under
review, no varibion | review, no variation in
in the terms of options | the terms of options was
_ was made. madi
E. Moncy realized by exercise of npﬂiﬁﬁs 91168 626 i}
g TUEHE:;.-CI{UFH ions in force i Total no. of options in | Total no. of options in
force as on March 31, | force as on March 31,
! 2025, are 20,97,655 2025, are 9.97 623
10. | Employee wise details of options granted to: N
(i) | Key managerial personnel During the y:i'ﬂ;-hhd-:r During the wvear under
review, options | review, oplions granted
granted
Mz,  Anshu Mohta | Ms. Anshu Mahia (CS) -
{CS)- 15,060 5,208
Mr.  Amit  Kumar | Mr, Amil Komar Gupis
Cupta  {(CFY - | {(CFOY - 31,250
210,843
{ii) | Any other employvee who receives a grant of T'-.I|| . Mil =
oplions i any ome yvear of ophons gmounting o 5%
o |an_nFE|_t_:ﬂ_iq:'m§ granted L‘Ill.l"iﬂg that e




(i Identified :&:npll.:-:.-';:.r-& who were granted Option,
} during any one year, equal 1o or exceeding 1% al
the issued capital (excluding outstanding warrants
and conversions) of the Company al the time of

grant.

Ml

T wil

Oy behalf of the Board of Directors

For Protium Finapee Limited

Poeyush Misra
Chairperson of Board
DIN: 08422699

Date: August 14, 2025
Place: Lomnavala
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1. Board of DNrectors

ANNEXLIR

- TO BOARD'S REFPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REFORT

The Board of the Company 5 an apex body, which oversees overall functioning, provides strategic direction,
guidance, leadership and owns the fiduciary responsibility 1o ensure that your Company's actions and ohjectives
are aligned in ereating long term value for its stakeholders. The Board helps the Company in adhering to high
Corporate Govemance practices.

The Board of Directors has a mix of Executive and Non-Executive Independent Directors. As on March 31,
2025, the Board comprised of Tive (3) members including one (1) Managing Dircctor & CEC and four {4)
Independent Directors. The Independent Directors include two women directors,

1.1 Com fthe Board
[ Sr. | Name of | Dircctor | Capacity (Le. | DIN | No.  of | Remunerntion {in Rs.) Mo, of
Mo, | Director | siee Executive oiher sharcs
Miam- Directar hebd in
| Execotive! ships il
|| Chairman’ Salary Hitling comvertibibe
Promoter and olher | Fee instruments
T mee compensn | (In Hs.) Commissin hield in
i I Independent) tiom i the NBFC
|| Mr 15.04.2019 | Managing 08422699 | Ml Nil Mil Wil o
Peeyush | Director &
Misga CEGD
{Executive
DITF':-TU‘T] DT o
2 | Mr, 23,12.2021 | Independent | 02895343 7 Nil 2400000 | 18,00,000 18,564
Parvesn Dhirecior
Kumar
Ciupia
3| Ms. 20.08.2023 | Independent | 07597195 2 Nl 16,00,000 | 15.00,000 0
Anuradha [Hrector
Fao W
e M= PO 2034 | Independen) (IT6H6GE 3 Mil 1 &, 00 (K] | &, CMb, D00 i
Dakshita Diirestor
[has
T | M. |6.02.2024 | Independent | 026 10899 3 il 21.00,000 | |8,00,000 i
Lilaram [Directo
Kunte
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# Ms. Anuradha Rao resigned as an Independent Director of the Com pany with efTect from July . 2025, due
i0 personal reason — family commitment.

ihie curerent

1.2 Dretails of change in the composition of your Board of Directors duarin
financial vear

Current Financial Year- (2024-15)
There is no change in the composition of the Board during the financial vear ended March 31, 2025

Previous Financial Year (2023-24)

Sr. | Name of Director KM | Capacity Nature of change Effective date
Nao. (i.e., Executived Non | (resignation,
Executive! appointment)
Chairman/
Promoter nominee!
Independent)
1 M. Peeyush Misra Managing Director | Redesignated as by 9, 2023
& CEO (Executive) | Managing Director &
2 Ms. Anuradha Rao | Independent Appointment August 29, 2023
_ Director
3 | M Peruvemba | [ndependent Resignation * Seﬁﬂnbﬁ 13,2023
Ramachandran Seshadri | Director
4 | Ms. Dakshita Das™ [ndependent Appointment February 16, 2024
_ [Mrector
"5 | Mr. Siteram Kunte” Independent Appointment | February 16, 2024
Director

* Resigned due to eppointment as a Managing Director and CEO in a Bank

“ Ms. Dakshita Das and Mr. Sitaram Kunte were appointed as independent directors for the frst tenmn of five
years w.e.f. February 16, 2024, by the Board of Directors and the Shareholders of the Company approved their
appointments on the Board at the Annial General Meeting of the Company held on August 31, 2024,

The Board of Directors of the Company met five times during the year, The Board Meetings were held on April
a0, 2024, July 11, 2024, October 18, 2024, December 31, 2024, and January 25, 2025, The intervening gap
between the two consecutive Board Meetings was within the prescnbed period of 120 days as specified under
the provisions of Section 173 of the Companies Act. 2013.

The Mon-executive Independent directors receive remuneration by way of siting Fees ol Ba. 100,000/ { One
Lakh) for attending each meeting of the Board andior Committees thereof and commission as decided by the
Board from time o time subject to the limits specified under the Act.

Buring the financial year under review, there were no pecuniary relationship/ransactions of any of the Non-
Executive Directors with the Company apart from sitting fees Tor attending various Board/Committee Meetings
and commission paid 10 [ndependent Directors.
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The deaails of atendance of the Directors in the Board Meetings tor the vear ended March 31, 2025, are as

folborws:
Sr, | Mame of the Director Mo, of mwiiﬁﬁ; h:'ir;ciingﬁ attended
M . eligilile to attend )
| Mr. Peeyush Misra | 5 5
2 | Mr. Parveen Kumar Gupta 3 5 B
3_ I (SES _-"‘ulllilad-!]ﬂ Ran 5 4
bz, Dhakshita Das 5 5
Mr. Sitaram Kunie 5 I
Sr.Ne. | Date ﬂl'mm:ting Total Number of | Attendance
directors as on
the  date  of | Nymber of 2 ol
- meeting directors attended | antendance
I | 30042024 5 5 [0l
2 31.07.2024 5 ' 5 T
3 18.10.2024 5 E 4 80 |
4 31122024 5 3 100
5 25.01.2025 5 5 we |

3 Inter-se He nship amonest Directors

Mone of the Director is related to any other Director on the Board of the Company in terms of the provisions of
the Act and the Rules framed theraunder,

1. Committees of the Board and their composition

In accordance with the applicable provisions of the Act and the circular(s), notification{s) and directions issued
by the Reserve Bank of India and the Company's internal corporate governance requirements, the Board has
constituted following Commitiees to focus on specific terms of reference and ensure expedient resolution on
diverse matters. All the recommendations of the committees were accepted by the Board.

- The Board has currently constituted the following Commitiees pursuant to the provisions of the Act and RBI
regulations.

' Sr. Mature of the Committee | Summarized Terms of Reference .

1. Audit Commitiee The Commitice is constituted as required under Section 177 of the Act
and Paragraph 94, 1 of Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India (Non-
Banking Financial Company — Seale Based Regulation) Directions,
2023 as amended and undertakes all matters prescribed fon its working
therein.




The major terms of reference of Audit Commitlee include chl'slghi of
the Company’s financial reporting process and  disclosure of its
Fimancial information, review of Onancial statements, recommendation
lor appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditons,
review ol compliances, systems and coatrols and approval or any
subsequent modification of transactions with related parties.

Mo ination and
Remuneration Commitiee

The Committée is constituted as rq::;.urud under Section [ TEof a_I'i;: _Jul,;?
and Paragraph 94.2 of Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India (Non-
Banking Financial Company — Scale Based Regulation) Directions,
2023 as amended and undertakes all matters prescribed for its working
theren.

The major terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration
Commitiee inter alia, includes formulation of criteria for determining
gualifications, positive attributes and ii:dupt:n-:icn:;r. of o direcior,
recomimendation of persons to be appointed to.the Board and Senior
Management and specifying the manner for effective cvaluation of
performance of Board, its Commitiees, Chairperson -and individual
directors, recommendation of remuncration policy for directors, key

| managenal personnel and mhn.,r emplc-:mea.

Risk Management
Commitiee

The Cammittee is constituted as required under Paragraph 39 of Master
Drirection - Reserve Bank of India (Mon- HH!T]-[II'I.E Financial Company
— Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 as amended and undertakes
all matters prescribed for its working therzin,

The major terms- of reference of the Committes, inter alia, include,
design and implement the risk management and intemal control
Syslems in conjunction with existing business processes and systems,
to manage the Company’s material business risk, establishing policies
for the monitoring and evaluation of risk management systems to assess

| the effectiveness of those systems in minimizing risks that may impact

adversely on the business objectives of the Company, monitor the loan
portfolio along with risks associated with it and ‘reviewing the
appointment, remaval and terms of remuneration’ of the Chief Risk
Oficer,

IT Strategy Committee

The Committes is constituted as required. under Paragraph 6 of Master
Direction on Information Technology Governance, Risk, Contrals and
Assurance Practices dated November 7, 2023, as amended and
undertakes all matters preseribed lor its working therein.

The major terms of reference of IT Strategy Commuittee, mier alia,
includes approving IT strategy and policy documents, to ensure thai
management has an effective strategic planning process. (o ensure that
IT strategy is aligned with business stralegy, oversight of Information
Security Commitiee and [T Steerng Commattee, assessing and
managing |1 and cybersecurity risks and review adequacy and

it




effectiveness of the Business Continuity Planning and  Disaster
Recovery Management eic

Asset Liabili i}' Commiltee

The Committee is constituted as required under Annex Y1 o f Master
Direction — Reserve Bank ol India (Mon-Banking Financial Company
—5ecale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 as wmended and underiakes
all matters prescribed for its working therein.

The major terms of reference of Asset Lighility Committee, iner alia,
mcludes responsible for ensuring adherence o the imits s by Board
as well as for deciding the Business strategy of the Compans, on the
assefs and liabilities side, in Ime with the Company's budget and
decided risk management objectives. Monitoring of rolling forecasts of
the Company lquidity position, maturities of the financial assss and
cash / cash equivalents, managing market risks, funding and capital
planming, profit planning and growth projection forecasting and to
analyse "What 1f scenaric’ and preparation of contingency plans,
behavioural analysis of the pre-payments of loan assets, formulating
Interest rate policy and its framework and maintaining Tguidity
mAanagement.

Cur[:u:sra:.e Soeial
Responsibility Committee

The Commitiee is constituled as required under Section 135 of the Act
and undertakes all matters prescribed for its working therein.

The major terms of reference of Corporate Social Responsibility
Committée includes reviewing the TSR Policy and associated
frameworks and make appropriate recommendations to the Board,
identification of the areas of CSR activities and recommend the amount
of expenditure to be incurred, monitoring and ensuring implementation
of the projects [ programs ( activities proposed to be undertaken by the
Company, collaborate with such other agency for implementing
programs and executing initiatives as per CSR Policy and shall review
the performance of such other agency periodically.

———

Stakeholders Relationship
Committes

The Comimitiee is constituted as required under Section 178 of the Act
and undertakes all matiers prescribed for its working therein.

| The major terms of reference of Stakeholders Relationship Committes
includes resolving the grievances of the security holders, review of
adherence 1o the service standards adopted by the Company in respect
of vanious services being rendered by the Repistrar & Share Transfer
Agent, review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the
Company for reducing the quantum of unclaimed dividends, timely
payment of dividend’ annual repons/statuiory  notices 1o the
sharcholders, ensuring tlimely  payment  of  mberest Zannual |
reporsfstatutory notices to the debenture holder and to ensure timely
redemption of Bonds/debentures of the Company.

'E; ustomer Service
Comiminee

The Commitice is constituled as required under Mastor Direction -
| Reserve Bank of India (Mon-Banking Financial Comipany — Scale
Based Regulation) Drirections, 2023 read with Master Direction -




Share Allotment
Codrmiles

10,

Beview  Committee
Wikful Diefauliers

af

“Reserve Bank of India {Internal Ombudsman for H{eéul'm:-;:i ‘Entities)
Lirections, 2023 as amended and undertakes all matters prescicibed for
its working therein.

The major wrms of reference include functioning of the Customer
Cirevances redressal mechansm under the Fair Practice Code | review
of the customer service policies, procedures and standands, grievance
redressal including customer complaints and the nature of their
resolution, review of awards wnder Ombudsman scherme  and

I1!1.|.'|-|l21l1-E:||h1tmn of internal ombudsman policy.

The Committee is constituted with the purpose o allod shares offered
by the Company including allocation of shares under the Employes
Stock Option Plan of the Company

The major terms of reference of Share Allotment Committee includes
approving allotment of shares offered by the Company including
allocztion of shares under Protium Fimanee Employee Stock Option
Plans (ESOP) of the Company, authorizing individuals to take
necessary steps for allotment of shares including allotment on exercise
of E50Ps and other allied activities, and to take on record the valuation
Teports issued for the allotment.

The Cﬂmmlucc 15 constituted as required under RBI Master Direction
on Treatment of Willful Defaulters and Large Defaulters, dated Tuly
30, 2024, and undertakes sl matters prescribed for its working therein,

The major terms of reference include reviewing the order passed by
Identification Committee after considering written representation, if
any forwarded by non-cooperative borrower(s) { Wilful Defaullers) and
pass necessary orders upholding'rejecting the order passed by ERG
Committee and to carry out such other duties or functions as may be
delegated by the Board from time o time or required by the authority.

.

Information Security
Committee

The Committee is constituted as required under Paragraph 24(b) of RBI
Master Direction on Information Technology Govermance, Risk,
Controls and Assurance Practices dated November 7, 20231, as
amended and undertakes all matters prescrbed for its working therein,

| The major terms of reference of Information Security Committes
include  developing  information’  cyber  security  policies,
implementation of policies, standards and procedures to ensure that all
ientified risks are managed within the Company’s risk appetite,
approving and menitoring information security prajects and security
Awareness initiatives and reviewing cyber incidents, information
systems audit observations, monilorng, and mitigation activities,

T Sleering Commitiee

The Committes is constituled as required under Paragraph 7 of Master
Direction on Information Technobogy Governance, Risk, Controls and
Agsurance Practices dated November 7, 2023, for the MBFC Sector and
undertakes all matters prescribed for its working therein.
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Identification Committee
for Willul Defaulier

The ma:i‘-:ar tenns of reference of 1T Steering Commitice  include
assistmg the ITSC in strmegic 1T planning, oversight of [T
performance. and aligning IT activities with business needs, overseeing
the processes put in place for business confinuity and disaster recovery
and ensuring implementation of a mbust IT architecture  meeting
slatutory and regulatory comphiance.

The Committee is constituied as required under as per RET Master |
Direction on Treatment of Willful Defaulices and Large Defauliers,
dated July 30, 2024, and undertakes all matiers prescribed for s
wirking thercin.

The major terms of reference of ldentification Committee for Wilful
Defaulter include examining the evidence of willful default and 1o
make a proposal o the Review Commitice for classification as & wilful
detaubter.

Fraud Risk Management
Cammitice

| The major terms of reference of Frand Risk Management Committee

The Committee is constituted as requined under RBI Master Directions
on Fraud Risk Management in Mon-Banking Financial Companies
(MBFCs) {including Housing Finance Companies), dated July 15, 2024
and undertakes all matters prescribed for ils working therein.

include oversceing the effectiveness of fraud risk management,
reviewing and monitor cases of frauds, root cause analysis of the frawd
amnd suggesting mitigating measures for strengthening the internal
controls and risk management framework to minimize the incidence of
frauds.

2.1 Audit Committes

The Audit Committes met Four {4) times during the Financial Year under review on Aprl 30, 2024, July 31,
2024, Oretober 18, 2024, and Januwary 23, 2023,

| Sr

Mame ol

Member of

Number of Meetings of | No. af

Capacity

M,

Direciorddember

Cominitice
since

{i.e., Executive/

| Commiites

Mon-
Executive/
Chairman/
Promoter
nimines
Independent)

Held

Avtended

shares held
in the
MBFC

Mr. Pareeen Kumar
Cupta®

23.12.2021

Independent
[hrector &
Chairperson of
Commities

Mr. F'efq'u*sla'l;;ﬂsirzn

TX.122021

Managing
Director & CEQ |




‘

[ 3 Ms. Anuradha Rao 22092023 [nde|:l-!;'.1||:|-t'.|-1i. . 4 k| 0

| | Darcctor

‘ 4 ‘ Mr. Sitaram Kunted | [4.06.2024 | Independent 3 3 il

L Director |

* Appointed as the Chairperson of the Audit Committee weel June 14, 2024
# Appointed as a member of the Audit Commitiee wee.f June 14, 2024

2.2 Nomination and Remuneration Commiliee

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee met twice (2) times during the Financial Year under review on
April 30, 2024, and January 8, 2025

Sr. Nam of | Member of | Capacity Number of Meetings of No. of
Nao. Directoriember | Committee | (i.e, Execative/ | Commitlee shares held
since Non- Held Attended | in the NRFC
Executive’
Chairman/
Promuoler
nomines!
Independent)
I |Ms.  Anuradha | 22.09.2023 | Independent 2 2 0
Rao® Director &
| Chairperson  of
Committee
2 | Mr. Peeyush Misea | 23.122021 | Managing 2 3 0
Director & CEQ
3 M, Parveen | 23.12.2021 | Independent I 1 18,564
F.umar Gupta# Dhirector
4 Msz. Dakshita Das™ | 14.06.2024 | Independent 1 1 i
| Director
5 | Mr. Sitaram | 14.06.2024 | Independent 1 N 0
| Kunte™ Director

* Appointed as the Chairperson of the Committee w.e.ll June 14, 2024
# Resigned as the member of the Commiltee we . June 14, 2024
*Appointed as a member of the Committee w.ef, June 14, 2024

2.3 Risk Management Commilies

The Risk Management Committee met four (4) times during the Financial Year under review on June 27, 2024,
September 24, 2024, October 18, 2024, and January 25, 2025

Sr. -|E-"1‘um1: of | Member -nI_:' Capacity Number of .‘I-']l}l-'.‘:l'il'qﬂ' of | No. of |
M. Director™ember | Committee | (Le., Execotive) | Commilles shares held
shnee Mom- Held Adtended

&1




bir Sitaram

| Kunge®

[4.00. 2024

“Mr. Peeyush Misr

[ 04102027

Executive/
Cleademsin)
Promater
noninec
Independent)

!Fl-ljl:pl‘."-ll-dt—-lll
[Virectnd &
Chairperson  of

Caminities

-."'«'Iﬂnaging
Director & CEQ

H-r. Parveen Kumar
Litj¥a

23.12.2021

Independent
Director

M, .-‘l. nurad e
Rand

22.09.2023

Independent
[hrector

* Appointed as 4 member and Chairperson of the Committee w.e.f. Junc 14, 2024

# Resigned as a member of the Committee w.e.l. June 14, 2024

2.4 IT Stratery Commitice

The IT Strategy Committee met four (4 times during the Financial Year under review on June 28, 2024,
September 25, 2024, December | 7, 2024, and January 17, 20235,

Sr.

Mame nﬂ

DirectonMombes

Member of
Committes
since

Capacity

Mumber nl:_-fll:tﬁngi of
(i.e.; Committee

Exccutive
Moo=
Execative/
Chairman/
Promoter
mm e
luq_c?euden!}

Attended

M. af
shares held
in the

NBFC

I Fu'ls Anuradha

Ran*

30.04.2024

[ﬂdepé;i-dcnl
Director &
Chairperson of
Comimities

Pr. lﬁeyush Misca

—_——

M. Parveen Kumar
Ciupla

23122021

Managing
Diirector &
CEO

27092023

bir.  Padmanabhan
Balasubramanians

2312202

[ Wir. Trhrumil Shah#

23.12.2021

Im:I_-:pEn-:h:nl.
Direcior

Employee

Emplovee




|'-.,-1 I. Wivek

Chhikarad

23.12.2021 ‘

.M-r. Sitaram Kunie™

4062024 |

.EIII]'.IILF_';":.'-I: 0 i 0
Indeg:end;.m[ 4 4 ]
Direcior

* Appointed as 3 member of Commitiee we I April 30, 2024, and Chairperson w.e.l June 14, 2024
# Resigned as the member of Committee we.f, April 30, 2024
* Appointed a3 4 member of the Committee w.e.f. Junc 14, 2024

2.5 Asset Liability Committes

The Assel Liability Convmittee met Six (6) times during the Financial Year under review on April 246, 2024,
May 25, 2024, July 29, 2024, October 16, 2024, January 22, 2025, and February (4, 2025,

Hr.

M.

Name ol
BirectorM™Moember

Member of |
Commities
simce

Capacity

{i.e, Execulive/
Non-

Executive/
Chaivman/
Fromober
noninee’
Independent)

 Number of Meetings of |

Commitier

Mo, of
shares held

 Held

Attended

11 the
NBFC

Mr. Peeyush Misra

23122021

Managing
Drivector &
CEO&
Chairperson of
Committes

Mr. Yatin Paliwal

23.12.202]

Emploves

12,982

Mr. Padmanabhan
Ba Ia_sul:lrumanl,an

23,12.2021

Employes

3,66,156

Mr. Aamil Garg

23.12.2021

Employee

| 366,156 |

M. Amit Gupta

20072023

Chief  Financial
Officer

32,711

Asset Linbility Management (ALM) Support Group:

The ALM Support Group comprizes of the following

* Mr. Yatin Paliwal — Deputy CFO
« Mr. Anand Agarwal = Director Treasury
« Mr_ Jimit Shethwala — Director Treasury

1.6 Corporate Social Responsibility Committec

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee met twice (2) during the Financial Year under review on
Movember 20, 2024, and December 19, 2024

iz




Sr. | Name of | Member of | Capacity Mumber uf":hr'l-ml_ings of | Mo of |
No. | Director/Member | Cominitice {i.e, Ezecutive' | Committes shares held
since Non- . Held Attended | in the
Executive! NBFC
Chairman/
Fromuoicr
nomnyines
Independent)
| Ms. Anuradha Rao | 28.10.2023 Independent 2
Director

2 ﬂ:ﬁi‘ﬁ'}u‘ﬁﬁ Misra | 28.10.2023 Milnaéiﬁ.g .
Director & CEQ
3 | M. Parveen | 28.10.2023 | Independent 0 0 18,564
Kaimar Gupta® Director

4 | Ms. Dakshita Das# | 14.06.2024 | Independent
Drirector &
Chairperson of
| Commities

b
L

-
=

]
]
=

* Resigned as the member of the Committee w.e.F. June 14, 2024
# Appointed as a member and Chairperson of the Committee w.e.F. June |4, 2024

kehnlid ipnship Committes

Py

The Stakeholders Relationship Commitiee met once (1) during the Financial Year under review on April 30,
2024,

i — i

Sr. Name of | Member of Cnp;:'il}- Number of Meetings of | No. il
M. Director/Member | Commitiee | (le., Execufive/ | Commitice shares held
since Nom- Held Attended | in the
Executive NBFC
Chairman/ '
Fromofer
nominee/
- Independent)
|| Ms. Anuradha Rac | 20.01.2024 | Independent i | 0
' Director
tr. Peayush Misra | 20,01 2024 Managing i | 0
| Director & CEO
3| M. Parveen Kumar | 2001.2024 | Independent I | 18.564
Gupta* Crirector
4 | Ms. Dakshita Das# | 14.06.2024 | Independent 0 0 - 0
Mhrector &
Chairparson of
Commitiee

T

¥ Resigned as the member of the Commitmee woe.f, Jene 14, 20024




# Appainted as a member and Chairperson of the Commitice w.ef, June 14, 7024

2.8 Customer Service Committee

Mr. S. Kalvanram was appointed as luternal Ombudsman of the Company in terms of Master Direction issued
by Reserve Bank of India. The Customer Service Commiftee met thrice {3) during the Financial Y ear under
review on June 28, 2024, October 10, 2024, and lanuary B, 2025,

of |
shares held

Number of Meetings of | No.
Commiltoe

. E-n[liltﬂ]'
(i.e, Execatives

| Name of | Member of
DirectorMlember  Commitltes

Sr.
M

M5, Dakshita Das®

Rince

Non-
Execulive
Chairman/
Fromuoter
nom e

Independent)

Held

Attended

in the
MNBFC

30042024

Independent
Dhrector &
Chairperson of
Committes

Mr. Pecyush Misra

30.04.2024

Managing
Divector & CED

M. Sitaram Kunte

Mlr, Parveen Kumar
Cuplad

30,00, 2074

Independent
Durector

[4.06.2024

Independent

Director

I8, 564

* Appointed as Chairpersan of the Committee w.e f. June 14, 2024
# Appointed as a member of the Committee w.e. £ Junc [4, 2024

2.9 Share Allotment Committes

The Share Allatment Committee met once { 1) during the Financial ¥ear under review on December | |, 2024

Sr.

Ma.

MName ol
Director™ember

Member of
Commiites
sinoe

Capacity

(L, Executive
Mon-

Exccutive/
Chairman/
Promofer
nomines/
Independent)

Committes

H:lﬁ .

Mr. Peeyush Misra

|5 102024

Managzing
Director & CEO
| & Chairperson of
Commitice

Number :Jf--l'i-'[nl:l:'nl,:a of

 Attended

. af
shares held
in the
MNBFC




I.] . | Mr. Purveen Kumar | 18.10.2024 |Ii(|E'|'II".'.I'|d_I..‘.||l 1 1 18,564
| t Gupia Dnrecior l
'3 | Mr. Suaram Kunte | 18102024 | Independent 1 I 0 '
[Mirecior |
211 Review Commitice of Willul Defaulters
Me Review Commitlee of Wilful Defaulters did not meet during the Financial Year under review.
5r. Name of | Member of Capacity Mumber of Meetings of Na. ol
| No. | Director/Member | Commitiee | (i.e, Executive/ | Committes shares held
sinee Non- Held Aftended | in the
Exccutive/ NBFC
Chairman/
Fromoter
nomines!
Independent)
1 Mr. Peeyush Misrn | 18.10.2024 | Managing 0 0 0
Director & CEOQ
2 Ms. Dakshita Das | 18.10.2024 | Independent | 0 0 0
Director
! :
3 Ms. Anuradha Rao | 18.10.2024 | Independent 0 1] 1]
| Dhirector

211 Information Security Commitiee

The lufermation Secunty Committee met four (4) times during the Financial Year under review an April 16,
2024, August 30, 2024, Movember 14, 2024, and January 13, 2025,

Sr. Name of | Member  of | Capacity Number of Meetings of
M. Director/Member Committees (i.ew Executive! | Committes
since Non- Held Attended
Executive/
Chairman/
Promoler nomines'
Independent)
I Mr.  Padmanabhan | 31.03 2024 Employee 4 4
Balasubramanian
2 Mr. Dhrumil Shah 31032024 Employes 4 4
3 Mr. Pranay Pingle 31032024 Employee 4 2
4 Mr. Ravi Bharti 31.032024 | Employee 4 ]
5 ar. Vivek Chhikara 31.03.2024 Employes 4 1
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212 IT Steeping Conimitiee

| 8r.

| M.

The IT Steering Committee met four (4) times during the Financial Year under review on April 17, 2024, Augusi
29, 2024, November 15, 2024, and January 13, 2025.

Mame of | Member  of | Eup;n:il_'y Number of M&lings of
DirectorMember Committee (i, Exceutivie’ | Commitice
simee Mon- | Held Attepded
Executive
Chairman/
Promoter nomines/
Independent)
| Mr. Amit Crarg 11032024 Employee 4 4
1T 'l"-l:lgt.ndm Singh 30032024 Emplovee 4 4 5
Mr. Vivek Chhikara | 31.03.2024 Employee 4 4

2.13 ldentification Committes for Wilful Defaulter

The Tdentification Committee for Wilful Defaulter met twice (2) during the Financial Year under review an
January 22, 2025, and February 14, 2025

1.14 Fraud Risk Management Commitiee

Sr. Name of | Member  of | Capacity  Number of Meetings - of
Mo, Director/fMember Commities [ T Executive/ | Committee
since Non- Held Alttended
Executive/
Chairman/
Promoter nomines
| Independient)
| Mr. Amit Garg 18.10.2024 Employee 2 3
2 Mr. Yogendra Singh | 18.10.2024 Employee 2 3
3 Mr. Vivek Chhikara | 18.102024 | Employee 2 2

The Fraud Risk Management Committee met once { | ) during the Financial Year under review an January 21,

2025.

ar.
M,

Mame of | Member of  Capacity Number of Meetings of
DireciorM™Member Committes (i.e., Executive/ | Committee
sinee Mon- Held Attended
Executive!
Chairman/
Promoter nomines/
_ lndnpr:ndcnl.h
Mr, Peeyush Misra 8102024 Managing Director ]

& CEO




M Yogewdea Singh | 18 10,2024 Employee | I |
3 I'Mr. Padmanabban | 18.10.2024 | Employee ‘ | N
Balasubramanian |
q Mr_Amit Garg 18102024 | Employee i
5 Mr. Amit Gupla 18102024 | Chief  Financial Q
Officer [

4. Details of General Board Meetings

During the Financial year under review, the Company held 1{one) Annual General Meeting, The details are as

Resolutions passed I

under:
| Sr. | Type of Meeting | Date and Place
no | (Annual’ Extra
Ordinary)
1 Annual General Meeting | August 31, 2024, a

the Registered Office
at ™ Floor, Block
B2, Phiaze 1 Wirlon

Knowledze  Park,
Pahadi Village, OfF,

Western Express
Highway, Cama
[ndustrial Estate,
Croregand East,
bumbai - 00063 Mo,

Ordinary resolution was passed for the |
following:

1. Adoption of Annoal Financial Statements
(Standalone  and  Consolidated) Tor  the
Financial Year 2023-24 and the Reports of the
Board of Directors and Auditors

I Appointment of M. SR Batliboi &
Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants, [FRN

[OT049WVES00004] as the Statutory
Auvditors of the Company

3. To Appoint a Director in place of M.
Peevush Misra {DIM: 08422699%, who retires
by rotation in terms of Section 152(6) of the
Companies Act, 2013, and beirig eligible, has
offered himself for re-appointment.

Special Hesolution was passed for  the
fnllowing:

4. Appointment of Ms. Dakshita Das (DIN:
DT062681) as an Independent Director of the
Company

5. Appointment of Mr, Sitarem Koante ([¥:
0267089Y}) as an Independent Direcior of the
Campany

il



[ 6. To Approve Borrowing under secition

B IMe) of the Companies Acl. 24013
7. Transfer of Loan exposure and / or Creation
ol charge on the Company’s assels, both
present and future, o / in favour ol benders

8. To approve limits under Section [B0(] 1a)
for Dhirect Assignment and Co-lending

9. Commission to Mon-Executive Independent
Directors of the Company

4. Details of Non- compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013

The Company has complied with the requirements of Companies Act, 2013, including with respect to
compliance with accounting and applicable secretarial standards and there being no default in this conpection.

L Details of Penaliies and Strictures

There were no penalties or stricture imposed on the Company by the Reserve Bank or any other stanutory
authority or régulator,

6. Breach of covenant

The details of breach of covenant during the financial vear for the loans are availed or debt securities issued are
disclosed in Note No 50{g) of the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company.

7. Divergence im Asset Classification and Provisioning

The details of divergence in asset classification and provisioning during the financial yvear are disclosed n Note
Mo 5k} of the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company.

B, Disclosure pursaant to Master Direction — Rese

Sca s ulation) Directions, 2023
Your Company does nol lend against collateral of bullion/primary gold/gold coins or for purchase of gold in

any form during the financial yesr 2024-25,

Cin behalfl of the Board of DNreciors
For Pratinm Fin Limited

Peevies i
Chairperson ol Board
VI MEA2 269

Date: August 14, 2025
Place: Lonavala
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ANNEXURE - IV TO BOARD'S REPORT

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

O 316, Wave Sibver Tower, Secter 15, Noide — 801 50
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MR-3
Secretarial Audit Report

For the Financial Period Ended March 31, 2025
[Pursuant to Section 204{1} of the Companies Act, 201 3 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies
{Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel} Rules, 2014)

To,

The Members,

Protivm Finance Limited

Regd. Office: Tth Floor, Block BZ, Phase-1 Nirlon Knowledge Park,
Pahadi Village, Off. Westem Express Highway, Cama Industrial Estate,
Goregaon East, Maharashira — 400 063

[CIN: U63999MH2019PLC323293)

We, M/s. MAKS & CO., Company Secretaries [FRN: P2013UP06770{] have conducted secretarial
audil of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and adherence 1o corporate governance
practices by Protium Finance Limited [hereinafter referred as “the Com pany'] for financial vear ended
March 31, 2025 (“Audit Period™). The secretarial audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a
teasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conductls’ statutory compliances and expressing our
apinion thereon,

Limitation of the Audiiors

(1) Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed
and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company,
its officers and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report
that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period, complied with the statutory
pravisions listed hereunder; and

Based on the confirmation and explanation wherever required by us, the Company has proper
Beard-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to
the reporting made hereinafier,




Aunditors Responsibility

(i) Our responsibility is 1o express the apinion on the compliance with the applicable laws, as per preseribed
format. and maintenance of records based on audit. We conducted our audit in accordance  with the
Guidance Mdte on Secretarial Audit {“Guidance Note™) and Auditing Standards issued by the Institute of
Company Secretaties of India (*LCSE™). The Guidance Note and Audiling Standards require that we
comphy with statutory and regulatory requirements and also that we plan and perform the audit so as o
ohtain reasonable assurance about compliance with applicable lows and maintenance of records,

Due 1o the inherent limitations of an audit including internal, financial and operating controls, there is an
unavoidable risk that some misstalements or material non-compliances may not be detected, even though
the audit 15 properly planned and performed in accordance with the Standards.

{iii) We believe that the audit evidence we have abained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s Board processes and compliance-mechanism,

The Members are requested to read Secretarial Audit Repont ("Report™) along with our leiter dated
Tuly 23, 2025 enclosed herewith to this Report as Annexure — A,

I. We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained
by the Company for the financial period ended on March 31, 2025 sccording to the applicable provisions
of:

The Companies Act, 2013 {the “Act") and the Rules made thereunder read with notification issved
by Ministry of Corparate Affairs ("MCA™),

The Securities Contracts {Regulation) Act, 1956 ("SCRA") and the Rules made thereunder;

The Depositories Act, 1996 and the regulations and byelaws framed thereunder,

Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made thercunder fo the
extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct [nvestment and External Commercial
Bomrowings, as applicable;

The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of
India Act, 1992:

a)  The Securitics and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 201 | {Not applicable to the Company during the audit period);

by The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulatons,
25,

¢} The Securities and Exchange Board of India (1ssue of Capital and Disclosure Requiremenis)
Regulations, 2018 {Not applicable 1o the Company during the audit period};

The Securities and Exchange Board of Inda (Share Based Employvee Beneflits and Sweat
Equity) Regubstions, 202 [ {Not applicable to the Company during the audit period ),




Vi)

e} TheSecurities and Exchomge Board of India (Fisue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities)
Begulations 20217,

I The Secunties and Exchange Board of India (Registrars 1o an issue and share transfer agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with clients {Not applic able since
the Company is nod registered as Regisirar to Issue and Share Transfer Agent during (he awdii
pernod);

g1 The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Delisting of Equity Shares) Rerulations, 202
{Not applicable 1o the Company during the audit peried);

h)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buvback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 (Not
applicable to the Company during the audit period): and

1)  The Securities and Exchange Board of Indis (Listing Obligations and [Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015

Based upon the Management Representation wherever required from the Company, its officers, and
compliance reports from the management for systems and mechanism framed by the Com pany and
on examination of the relevant documents and records in pursuance thereof on test-check basis, we
further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the
size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with the following pertinent
laws, rules, regulations and guidelines as specifically applicable to the Company: -

a) The Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934; and

b}  Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company— Scale Based
Regulation) Directions, 2023,

We have also examined compliance with the applicable cluuses of the following:

i) Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, with respect 1o
Board and General Meetings (hereinafier relerred as *Secretarial Standards™); and

iy The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the Listing Agreements entered by the Company with
BSE Limited.

During the period under review, to the best of owr knowledge and beliel and according fo the
information and explanations given 10 us, the Company has been regular in compliance with the
provisions of the Acts, Rules, Regulations and Secretarial Standards and other applicable laws
mcluding labour and environmental laws, as applicable to iL

We further report that compliance of applicable financial laws including direct and indirect tax Taws
and maintenance of financial records and books of accounts by the Company has not been reviewed
in this sudit since the same has been subject to review by the Stanntory Auditors and other designaied

professionals
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i)

i)

w)

We further repont that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with Executive Directors, Non—Executive
Directors and Independent Dircctors including Women Direclors. Further, the changes in the
composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the perind under review was carried out
in compliance with the provisions of the Act

Adequate notice is given to all directors 1o schedule the Board and Commitiee Meetings. Motice and
Agenda with notes to Agenda of Board and Committee Meetings was senl at least seven days in
advance of the meeting except in certain cases where meeting was held at shorter notice and a system
exists for directors to seck and obtam further information and clarifications on the agenda iters before
the meetings and for their meaningful participation at the meetings.

Decisions of Board/Commitlee were carried through majority. We have been informed that there were
no dissenting members” views on any of the matters during the year that were required 10 be captured
and recorded as part of the minutes.

There are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations
of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and
guidelines.

We further report that during the period covered under the Audit, the Company has no specific actions
having bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, re gulations,
eutdelines oo,

For M/fs. MAKS & C0O.,
Company Secretaries
[FRN P2018UP06TT00]
Peer View Mo.: 1064/2024

S

Ankush Aparwal
Partner

Membership Mo F9719
COF Mo, 14486

LIDIN:

Dte:

Place:

FOO97 1 9GODOE44993

23-07-2025
Moida, U.P.




Lo,

Anpexure —A 1o S

The Mem bers,

Profium Finance Limited

Regd. Office: Mirlon Knowledge Park (MNKP) B6,

Ind Floor, Pahadi Village, O, Western Express Highway,
Goregaon (E), Mumbai, Maharashtea = 400 0a3

[CIN: Ue3999MH2019PLCI23295 |

The Secretarial Audit Report dated July 23, 2025 is 1w be read with this Letter.

[}

Lad

The compliance of provisions of all laws, rules, regulations and standards applicable to Protivm Finance
Limited (Erstwhile CGrowth Souwrce Financial Techoologies Limited) [hereinafter referred as “the
Company’] is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our examination was limited to the
verification of records and procedures on test check basis for the purpose of issue of the Secretarial Audit
Repor

Maintenance of secretarial and other recerds of applicable laws is the responsibility of the management of
the Company, Our responsibility is to 1ssue Secretarial Auwdit Report, based on the audit of the relevant

records maintained and furnished to us by the Company, along with explanations where so required,

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance

‘about the correctnesy of the contents of the secretarial records. The venification was done on est hasis o

ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices
followed provide a reasonable basis for the purpose of issue of the Secretanial Audit Report.

4. We have not verified the correctness and appropristeness of financial records and books of accounts of the
Company as it is taken care in the statutory audit process,

5. We have obtained the management’s representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and
happening of events, wherever required.

6. This Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the
efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For M/fs. MAKS & CO.,

Company Secretaries

[FRM P20OISLIPOSTH]

Peer Wiew Mo 20042024
Sl

Ankush Agarwal

Partner

PMembership Mo FE7 19

COP Mo, 144846

LD FMW T 1900008 44993
Date:  23=07-2025

Place: MNosda, £1.1P,
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ANNEXURE - V TO BOARD'S REFORT

FORM- AQC-2

{Pursuant 1o clause (h) of sub-section {3 of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8{2) of the Companies { Accounts)
Rules, 201 4)

Form For disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties
referred to in sub-section (1) of seciion 188 of the Companies Act. 2013 including certain arms length
transactions under fourth proviso thereto.

Mame of the Company: Protivm Fingnce Limited

1. Details of

Number of contracts or armangements or transactions not at arm’s length basiz: NIL

Elock-1
Corporate identity number (CIN) or foreign
company registration number {FCRN) or Limited
Laability Partnership number (LLPIN) or Foreign
Limited Liability Partnership number (FLLPIN)
or Permanent Account Mumber (PAN)Passport
for individuals or any other registration number
Name(s) of the related party =
Mature of relationship
MNature of contracts’ arrangements/ Eransm:t_i_n:_rr':'s' i
Duration of the contracts | arrangements’
transactions
“Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or Wil
transactions  incliding  actual [ expected
contraciusl amount
Justification for entering into such contracts or
| arrangements or lransactions
Date of approval by the Board (DDIMM/YYYY)
Arnoani '|-:.:lid as advances, if any
Date on which the resolution was passed in
general meeting as required under first proviso to
section | B8 (DDYMMYY'Y'Y)
SRN of MGT-14

. Dhetail i arrangement or transactions af arm"s lenzih b

Number of material contracts or arrangements or transactions al arm's length basis: 5

A4



[ Black - |

L.'nl'Fratn:- identiy number [CIM] or Foreign
compeny registration number (FORN) or
Limited  Liability  Parnership  nomber
fLLPIMNY or Foreign Limited Eiabslity
Fartnership number (FLLPING or Permanent
. Accoiunt  Mumber  (PAM ) Passpor

ndividuals or any other registration nunibe

for

UTI900MH2021 PTCI56128

| Name(s) of the related party and nature of
relationship:

| U72900MH202 1 PTC 356128

Private imited — Subsidiary
Company

Protiom  Business
Private limited — Subsidiary
Company

Services

MNature of
contracts/amangemenisiransactions:

Sourcing Service Provider

cost  of all
operation and maimtenance of
coommon  amenities  end
common services  includimg
the infrmsiruciure and
IARPOWET Cosl

Sharing of

Duration of the

| arrangementziransaclions:

the contracts or
Errangements ransactions  including
actual / expected confractual amaoinl

Salient  terms of

or

contracts i

- October 1B, 2024

Since 2021 and renewed on

Effective from Apal 1, 2024

"'l;c-:nml' valve of ransactions

during FY23 is [INR 2646.21
lakhs

_l]ah:rlsj of approval by the Board, if any:

April 28,2021

Amaount paid as advances, if any:

M.A.

Block -2

Total value of iransactions
during FY25 is INR 1413.33
lakhs

e

July 31, 2024

| NLA

_C-D:lpl.:rale ideillil:g' number (CIM} or foreign
company regisiration number (FCEM) or
1 Limited Liability Partnership

UT2900MH202 | PTCI56128

Ua209KAZ02IPTCIT15T3

Mame(s) of the related party and nature of
relationship:

Protium Business Services
Private limited — Subsidiary
Company

P ature of

contracts’amangements/ransactions:

Shibwi Techmologies Prvate

Loan cum Fau:ﬁil}' Agreement

Limited —  Subsidiary
| Company
Soffware License

Distribution Agreement

actual / expected contractual amount

Cruration of the conlragts i1 Répﬂ.}'-u.lz-r.t.: on demand  with
mng:m:nlﬁ"[l’ﬂ.ﬂﬁﬂﬂl](]l‘.lﬁ.: renowal E'r'ltl.’_',.' }'Eﬁl’

Salientl lerms of  the contracts o | Loan of INE 3 cromes
arrangements  or  Iransactions  inclwding

Total Loan outstanding
INR 351.64 lakhs

[nierest Income on alc of

Loan — IMB 781 lakhs

[ As per

Cnzoing

the ”:lgm-:mﬂT
between the partics




| Date(s) of approval .h-'_'r the Board, if any:

[recember 29, 2024

July 20, 2023

| M- et T L

| Amount paed as advances, if anve

M.A

LA,

Block 3

Corporate identity number (CIN) or foreizn
company regisiration aumber (FCREM) or
Limited Liability Partnership

U629k AZ023PTCI 71573

- Mame(s) of the related party and nature of
relationship:

Mt ol

COnCFacisarrangemen s/ lansacions:

| Shibui 'I'eclfunl}:rgms Private

Limited — Subsidiary

anmn}

Loan cum Facility Agreement

RKepavable on demand with
renewal every year

sctual / expected contractual amount

[Duration of ihe cOnlracs /
| arrangements/iransactions:

Salient terms of the coniracts  or
| arrangements or  transactions  including |

LL'EIII]HE. | erore

| Total Loan outstanding —

IMR 10,30 lakhs

Interest Income on o' of
Loan — [ME 1,10 lakhs

July 31,2024

Amount paid a5 advances, il any;

N.A.

O behalf of the Board of Directors
Far Protivm Fina Limited

Pecy
Chairperson of Board
D™ 08421699

Date: August 14, 2025
Place: Lonavala




ANNEXURE - VI TO BOARD'S REPORT

Annual Report on Corporate Sociul Responsibility (CSR) activities
Tor the financial vear Z024-25:

The ooy in thiv arrexare i in ndioen Rupees

I. Brief outling on C5R Policy of the Company

The Company through its corpomle social responsibility (“C5 R} activities intends 1o participate in the overall
development of the society and encourage alignment with Social Development Cioals (SDCis) related 1o sender
sensitivity. skill enhancement, entrepreneurship development, résearch in education, Hygiene & Waler etc. The
policy lays down the guidelines and mechanism for undenaking socially vseful programs lor welfare and
sustainable development of the community at large. The Company’s CSE palicy has been framed in accordance
with Section 135 ofthe Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed thereunder, This Policy covers all the internal
dimensions of the C5R structure and further captures and sets out the process of implementation of the CSR
related activities.

The Company shall undertake specific CSR projects and programmes, as approved from (ime to lime by the
Board in its capscity as the CER Committee of the Company, within the objects set out under Schedule VII of
the Companies Act, 23,

1. Compasition of CSR Committee

Sl No. | Name of the Director | Designation /| Number of Number of
MNature of [ Meetings of | meetings of CSR
I¥irectorship CSR Commitice

Committer held | attended during
during the year | the year

I Ms. Dakshita Das _ Chairperson ' 2 2
.4 M5 Anuradha Rao Memiber 2 2 |
3. Ms. Peeyush Misra Member 2 1 A

3. Web-link where Composition of CSR committes, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the |
Board are disclosed on the website of the Company

® Composition of TSR commities: hitps:#profium_co.an/resulatory-disc losu

= C5R Policy: https:/protium.co.infwp-content’uploads202 302 'Corporate-Social- Responsibility-
Policy, pdf

- CSE projects: htps: X protium_co.in/csr!

4. Executive summary along with web-link(s) of Tmpact Assessment of CSR Projecits carvied out in
pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8, il applicable

Mot Applicable

a7y



5. (a) Avernge Ned profit of the Company as per Section 135(5): IMR §73,048 772

(b} Two percent of average net profif of the company as per Section 135(5): INR 17,460,976

(¢} Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years:
Mil

(d) Amount required to be sel off for the lnancial year, iCany: [NRE 592000

{¢) Total CSR obligation for the financial year [(b)H{c)-(d)]: INR | 7,460,976

6. {(u) Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongeing Project); [NRE
| 83,54, 342/

(b) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: MNil

(c) Amount speat on Impact Assessment, il applicable: Not Applicable

(d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year {a+b+c): INKE 183,54, 3477

{e) CSR amounnt spent or unspent for the financial year:

' Total Amonnt | Amount Unspent (in Rs.)

Spent for the
; Total Amount transferred | Amount iransferred to any fund specificd
Financial Year : z
(in Rs.) to Unspent CSE Aceount under Schedule VII as per second proviso (o
as per Section 135(6) Section 135(5)
Amount Date of Name of the Fund Amount | Date of
transfer transter
. L
MR Mil Ml Mot Applicable
183,54,342/-

() Excess amount foi set-off, il any

7. Details of Unspent CSK amount for the preceding three financial years: Mot Applicable

8. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility

amount spent in the Financial Year: No

51 No. Particular Amount {in Rs.)
(1 () (3)
(i Twao percent of average net profit of the company as | INR 17,460,976/
per sub-section {5) of section 135 )
(it} Total amount spent for the Financial Year INR 183,54,342/-
{iii} Excess amount spent for the Financial Year [(ii)-(1)] INR £.93 366/
{iv) Surplus  ansing out  of the CSR projects o | Nil
programmes or activities of the previous Financial
Years, ifany :
(v} Amount available for set off in suceeeding Financial | INR 8,92, (HI(/-
| Years [(i1)-{iv}]
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9. Specify the reason(s), if the company has filed (o spend two per cent of the avernge ned profit as per

seetinn 135(3): Mot Applicable

O behall of the Board of [Meeciors
For Protinm Finauce Limited

Peeyush Misca
Chairperson of Board
Muatnaping Director & CEOQ
DN IE4Z 25699

f I-,.'_.i,-'__.-'i.:-f. = =

Dakshita Das
Chairperson of the CSE Committes
DMIN: 07662681

Date: August 14, 2025
Place: Lonavala
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ANNEXURE VII - TO BOARID'S H[;I‘!-EET

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Protium Finance Limited (PFL) is registered as a Mon-Banking Financial Company without accepting or holding
public deposits, as defined under Section 45-1A of the Keserve Bank of India Act, 1934 as applicabile and is
classificd as middle laver NBFC based on scale-based regulation. The Company has a diversified lending
portfalio acrass various seclors including MSME Business Loans, Educational Institutional Finance, Machinery
and Equipment Finance.

Protiuim has two wholly owned subsidiaries:

i, Protivm Business Services Private Limited
il Shibui Technologics Private Limited

I Evomonnie Ohverview

World Economic Overview:

The International Monetary Fund's January 20035 update paints a picture of a global economy that is steady but
underwhelming Cilobal growth is projected to remamin at 3.3 percent in both 2025 and 2026—below the
historical average of 3.7 percent. While the overall forecast is larpely unchanged from October 2024, this
stability masks significant divergence across countries. Inflation is expected to decline 1o 4.2 percent in 2025
and 3.5 percent in 2024, with advanced economies returning to target levels faster than emerging and developing
naf s,

Rizks to the giobal outlook are varied and complex. In the short term. Most of the economies face downside
risks due to elevated policy uncertainty, trade tensions, and geopolitical instability. Over the medium term, risks
are tilted to the downside globally, Disruptions in the disinflation process, fiscal imbalances, and financial
instability could derail progress, especially if policy responses are misaligned or delayed. '

The forces shaping this outlook are multifaceted. The U.S. economy continues to outperform, with growth
projected at 2.7 percent in 2025, driven by strong consumption and investmenl. China's growth, revised slightly
upward to 4.6 percent, remains below expectations due to weak consumer confidence and a slugpish property
market. India stands out with solid growth of 6.5 percent, consistent with its potential. Meanwhile, the euro area
and Japan are grappling with weak manufacturing and exports, although consemption is beginning to recover.
Emerging markets show mixed performance, with some regions improving and others slowing down,

Looking ahead, the global economy faces a precarious path. Protectionist policies, such as new tariffs, could
disrupt trade flows and investment, hurting growth scross regions. The reciprocal tariff regime announced by
the US and the levy of retaliatory tanffs announced by China and some other countries is likely to have a
dampening effect on the volume of global trade and output. Imports into the US may be lower. Any increase in
US pwiput may take much longer and the volume of exports in the export-dependent counlries may go down,
These changes may lead to a slowdown in global growth.

The IMF (April 2025) has projected a significant global growth slowdown with the projected growth for 2025
revised downwards to 2 8% from its January 2025 forecast of 3.3%. This 15 attributed by the IMF primarily 1o
the direct effects of the new trade measures and their indirect efTects through trade linkage spillovers, heightened
urcertainty, and deteriorating sentiment.




India's Leonomic Performanco:

India’s robust econemic growth in the first quaner of FY 25 has propelled it 1o becomme the Nth-largest cconomy,
surpassing the LIK. Despine global stagnation, rising geopolitical uncertainties, and the looming threat of a tarifT
war driven by growing prodectionism. the Indian cconomy has successfully maintained its positian as the
workd s [astest growing major coonomy.

According o the provisional estimates released by the Mational Statistical Office (NS0, Ministry of” Statistics
& Programme Implementation (MoSPL), India’s real Gross Domestic Product (GDP) growth for FY25 is
projected al 6.5%. Real GOP is estimaled to attain a level of 2187.97 lakh crore in FY 2024-25, registering a
growth rate af 6.3%. NMominal GDP is estimated to attain a level of 233068 lakh crore in the FY 2024-25,
against 300123 lakh crore in FY 2023-24, showing a growth mte of 9.8%. Private Final Consumption
Expenditwre (PFCE) has reported 7.2% growth rste during FY 2024-25 ag compared to 5.6% growth rate in the
previous Tinancial year, supported by a rebound in rural demand.

A global cconomic slowdown may negatively impact India's overall exports of goods and services, which
account for 22% of its GIDP. However, a decrease in goods imports to [ndia may mitigate this impact. The
elfects may be mitigated by improved private investment with lower interest rates and continued prioritization
of infrastructure investment by the government. During its monetary policy review on April 2025, the RBI
lowered the repo rate by 25 basis points, to 6%, for the second consecutive time, Further, the RB] lowered the
repo rale by 50 basis peints © 5.5% in June 2025, Additionally, the RBI has shifted from a neutral 10 an
accommodating position in April 2023 and again shifted back to nevtral in June 2025, CP@ inflation is predicted
to stay at 4% or lower in FY 26 alter dropping to a 67-month low of 3.3% in March 2025, CPI inflation may be
kept within the parameters of the monetary policy target thanks 1o the decline in global crude prices.

Role of MBFCs in India’s Financial Ecosystem:

NBFCs have emerged as a crucial component of India’s financial ecosystem over the past two decades, With
exposure to both bunking and capital markets, they have become an imporiant source of eredit for low-income
households and businesses that lack collateral or sufTicient credit profiles for bank credit. Through a vast
network of branches, digitalization, and innovative solutions, NBFCs have expanded their presence among
M3MEs and consumers, particularly in financing businesses, vehicles, housing, and gold. The transformative
shift in India’s financial services landscape over recent years, driven by digital innovations such as nea banking,
digital authentication, the proliferation of the Unified Payments Interface {LIPI), and rising mobile internet
usage, has redefined the dynamics of financial services, particularly credit. This modularization of financial
services has empowered NBFCs to design and deliver specialized, accessible financial products to a broader
custoamer base, improving both reach and relevance. Owverall, NBFC credit stood at about Rs. 32 trillion in
December 2024 and it is set to exceed Rs. 60 trillion in FY2026. Within this, the retail assets, which accounted
for 38% of the overall MBFC credit in December 2024, have been the key growth drivers, while other wholesale
and infrastructure credit expanded at a stable rate of 10-12% during FY2023-FY2025.

Regulatory evolution has been another defining factor for the NBFC sector, The RBI1's introduction of a scale
based regulatory framawork has brought @ more nuanced oversight approach, categorizing NBFCs based on
their size, complexity, and systemic importance. This framework aims o strengthen financial stability by
ensuring thal maore prominent and interconnected NBFCs are subject to enhanced regulatory scrutiny, In
addition, the Bl has sharpened its focus on customer protection, transparency in pricing, and govemance
standards, raising the bar for operational complinnee across the sector.

51



According to a CRISIL report, infrastructure financing accounts for the largest share of NBFC cred i ar 24%;,
followed by MSME loans, which hold a 21% share of overall NBFC credit, Housing finance répresents the third
largest share of total outstanding NBFC credit, with a [6% share.

MSME Sector: Backboene of India’s Development Story:

The M5SME sector has been a major driver of [ndia's development, contributing significantly 1o the country's
rise as the world's ffth-largest economy. These enterprises employ millions of people and export billions of
Make in India products, elevating their role in the Indian economy over the years. With the current
transformation m global supply chain networks, MSMEs are set to play a pivotal role in achieving India's goal
of becoming an economically self-reliant country under the ‘Aatmanirbhar Bharat' initiative. M SME are
comributing -30% 1o India’s GDP. responsible for approximately 50% of countries exports and employing 63%
employment in India. Hence, it is crucial to improve MSMEs" access to finance and explore innovative salutions
to unlock sources of capital.

Formalization of the MSMFE Sector:

Regulatory policies and the creation of a public digital infrastructure are pivotal in increasing the farmalization
of the MSME sector in India. Reforms such as UDYAM registration, GST, e-invoicing, and GeM, along with
schemes like ECLGS, PMMY, and CGTMSE, have been undertaken by the Government of India and the RE|
to enhance formalization and improve the health of MSMEs. Additionally, the development of a digital stack
for MSMEs, comprising Ldyog Aadhaar Memorandum {UAM), Account Aggregator (AA), and Open Credit
Enablement Metwork (OCEN), is expected to reduce sourcing costs and improve loan sanction turnaround time.
India's Micro, Small, and Medium Enterprises (MSME) sector grew significantly in FY 25, with 6.60 crore
MSMEs registered on the Udyvam Registration Portal and Udvam Assist Platform, employing 28,64 crore
people. The industry contributed 6.1 1% of India's manufactuning GDP and 24.63% of the GDP from services.

NBFCs: Driving Credit to Unbanked Pockets:

MNBFCs have been instrumental in channeling credit to the MSME sector, especially in the vast unbanked regions
of the country. With an extensive distribution network and adoption of digital processes, technology-driven data
analytics, and unconventional credit underwriting practices, NBFCs have effectively catered 1o the needs of
small businesses. They have introduced personalized products based on the risk profiles and demands of
different MSME segments and have forged parinerships with fintech players, banks, and alternative lenders 1o
extend credit and bundled products for businesses, While banks continue to dominate term loan provisians,
MBFCs have taken the lead in providing unsecured loans to the sector. NBFCs have emerged as key MSME
lenders, outpacing private banks (20.9%) and public banks (10.4%) in growth, according to CareEdge Ratings.
MSME AUM for NBFCs is expected to cross 5.3 lakh erore by FY26.

s Comprany Overview

We have witnessed significant growth in recent years, not only in numbers but also in our product offerings.
Chur tailor-made and flexible financial products cater o the right people at the right time, Protium, born during
the COVID-19 peried. enjoys the advantage of an insignificant pre-COVID portfolio. Demonstrating our
commitment to operational excellence, engineering principles are ingrained extensively across all facets and
processes of lending within Pratiem. Furthermore, our strength is further fortified by 2 seasoned and
accomplished leadership team, possessing profound expertise in the specific segments we serve

Currently, the Company’s physical presence spans over |04 branches in 82 cities scross 19 states and UT. The
Company focuses broadly on fellowing categonies:




(il aME Lending.
Loan against property
b Unsecured business loan
(nh Muachinery and Equipment Finance,
{iit} Educational lnstiutional Finamce,
tivi  Consumer Lending

The Company has continued to focus on diversifying its products and expanded its distribution while
augmenting 115 digial mfrastruciure and offerings 1o effectively deliver credit solutions o its market.

The Company recorded 30.98% of growth in Loans and Advances, Whereas loan disbursement showed 10.44%
growth during the vear. The Company posted total income and net profit of INR 1,075.61 Crores and INR
171,24 Crores, respectively, for the financial year ended March 31, 2025, as against INR 727.63 Crores and
INR 116.75 Crores respectively, in the previous financial year The total income and profit before tax has
mereased by 41.99% and 42 55% respectively for the Financial Year ended as on March 31_ 2025, compared to
previous financials

The Company’s business model continues 1o generate healthy pre-impairment aperating profits enabling it 10
withstand higher credit costs in umes of stress. The capital-1o-risk weighted asset ratio (CRAR) is 45 68% as
on 31 March 2025,

The Company also undertakes lendimg under co-lending model with banks. Further, the Company has also
assigned the pool of certain loans by way of direct assignment transaction during the year. The total principal
outstanding of the loans transferved through assignment during the year was 866.46 Crores in FY2024-25
against 389.17 Crores in previous year. During the vear ended March 31, 2025, the Company transferred loans
amounting to Bs. 1401.15 Crores through co-lending arrangements to the respective participating hanks.

The performance highlights for FY2025 are given below:

The Company has maintained a healthy capital adequacy ratio over the years, well above the levels directed by
the RBI. As of 315t March 2025, the overall capital adequacy ratio of the Company was 45,68%. The Company
had total borrowings of INR 3,801.88 Crores as on 31 March 2025. All the Company’s bormowings are
collateralized borrowings (secured against a pool of loan assets) except FINOD facilities.

Key Parameters:

L Customers base was at 536 Lakhs as on 31 March 2025

- Total income mcreased by 41.99%

. Profit belore tax increased by 42.55%

. Profit after fax increased by 46.67%

. Total Assets increased by 25.64%

. Gross WP A was at 2.41% as on 31 March 2025

. Met NPA was at 1.51% as on 3| March 2025

. Provision coverage rtio on NPA accounts was at 37.99% and the Total provisions as a % of Gross
MPA was 91.53% as on 3 | March 2025

. Leverage of the company is al 1.54 as on 31 March 2025

- 65.09% of the Company’s loan and advances ane secuned




Gross loans and advances
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Technology

Protium's steadfast dedication to technological innovation has enabled improved flexibility and process
effectiveness. Technological innovation has always been a key part of Protium’s journey, consistently leading
to faster customer growth, enhanced customer satisfaction, and simplified back-office processes. The
Company's digital capabilities have been erucial in ensuring smooth operations, supporting its people, ful filling
customer needs, and providing uninterrupted business continuity.

Risk Management

To cope with competitive business scenarios involving assets and liabilities, the Company, Protium, maintains
a healthy balance between spreads, profitability, and long-term sustainability, Struciured actions are taken
manage risks related to asset and liabilities maturity, including credit risk, interest rate risk, liquidity risk, and
operational risk. Protium's clear risk governance structure facilitates regular reviews and close supervision,
ensuring & responsible business approach. Advanced risk management capabilities are strategically developed,
covering nsk management principles, policies, strategies, processes, and controls, The Company remains well-
prepared for contineed growth while complying with RBI's scale-based regulation for NBFCs.

Credit risk: Credit rigk is reduced by accurately evaluating horrowers' creditworthiness, using data science and
technology capabilities Lo assess repayment ability, credit history. and relevant factors. Collateral is used to
reduce credit risk for financial assets with longer durations.

Ligquidity risk: Liqudity risk is carefully monitored, ensuring timely payment obligations and cost-effective
management. Protium's strong liquidity management framework ensures adequate liquidity to meet debr service
obligations and balance sheet expansion

Interest rate risk: Interest rate risk is managed with sensitivity analvams on lixed and floating rate assets and
liabilities with different maturity profiles. Various factors, such as maurities profile, pricing of borrowings, and
macro-economic developmenits, affect changes in interest rates,

Operational risle Operational risk, inherent in business activities, is efficiently managed through identification
and definition of Key Risk Indicators (KRIVKey Performance Indicators (KP1). Action plans are formulated
based on observed trends, and roof cause analysis guides corrective actions for internal processes, systems, and
external events.




3 Auvver Liahitity Managenens (ALM)

The Company employs a highly effective risk management system that comprebensively addresses the issues
inter-alia, related to interest ate and ligusdity risks. Business decisions are governed by a dymamic and
integrated risk mansgement process aligned with corporale strategy.

Asset Liability Management { ALM) is seamlessly integrated into the Company's financial management process.,
This stralegic balance sheel management encompasses rishs stemming from Nuctuations in interest rates,
exchange mates. and liquidity positions. Risks are assessed and the asset-liability portfolio is dymamically
adjusted to effectively manage potential expaosures.

The scope of ALM function can be described as follows:
I, Liguidily sk management

Interest Rate risk management

Funding and Capital Planning

Forecasting and analyzing "What if scenaric and preparution of contingency plans

4, Internal Control System

Internal financial control over financial reporting refers to the policies and procedures of a company that:

Ensure that the records are maintained in a reasonable manner, reflecting the transactions and dispositions
of the company's assets accurately and fairly.

Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as required to allow preparation of finencial
statement in accordance with accounting principles, and that the company’s receipts and expenditures are
authorized by the management and director of the company

Provide reasonable assurance about preventing or detecting unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of the
company’s assets that could affect the financial statement significantly.,

The Company has a strong policy framework for enforcing sirici control over business processes and protecting
all assets. The Company enhanced controls, revised policies, and improved technology systems to address
identified control deficiencies. These actions ensure full compliance with laws and regulations, reliability in
financial reporting, and effective management information.

The intemnal audit function audits key areas based on audit plans, approved by the Aundit Commitiee after risk
evaluation. Findings are reviewed by the Committee, leading to remedial actions across functional areas 1o
improve the internal control framework. Our policies follow industry best practices and are periadically
reviewed and strengthened 1o deal with emerging risks.




i Hunwarne Resonirces

The Company values its people as its greatest assels, With a perfect blend of youth and experience, the
arganization’s success is rooted in the capability. passion, and integrity of its people. As of March 31, 2025, the
compeny emploved 1189 individuals, a significant increase from 1,774 on March 31, 2024, Notably, 73 female
employess were onboarded through employee referrals in the past vear. Women now constitute |1 % of the
people.

O behalf of the Board of Directors
For Protfiom Finance Limiied

Peeyush Misra
Chairperson of Board
DN: 03422699

Date: Augusi 14, 2025
Place: Lonavala
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Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Protium Finance Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the consolidaied financial statements of Protium Finance Limited (hereinafter referred to as
“the Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (the Holding Cornpany and its subsidiaries together referred to as
“the Group") comprising of the consolidated Balance sheet as at March 31, 2025, the consolidated Statement of
Profit and Loss, including other comprehensive income, the consoclidated Cash Flow Statement and the
consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the consoclidated financial
statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter
referred to as “the consolidated financial statements*).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
cansolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the
Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2025, their
consolidated profit including other comprehensive income, their consolidated cash flows and the consolidated
statement of changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Cpinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financlal statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the ‘Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements’ section of our
report. We are Independent of the Group in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics' issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Indla together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
consolidated financial statements

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment. were of most significance in our audit of
the consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2025, These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
cpinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our
description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our repart.
We have fulfilied the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financlal statements sectton of our report, Including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included
the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements. The results of audit procedures performed by us, including those
procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
consolidated financial statements

A, Key audit matters of the Holding Company

Key audit matters | How our audit addressed the key audit matter

(a) Impairment of loans (expected credit losses) (refer note 7 and note 42 ta the consolidated financial
statements) B

Indian Accounting Standard {Ind AS) 109 Financial | Our audit pracedures included the following:

Instruments requires the Holding Company to . \ . .
provide for impairment of its loans using the ! . Cor:ns_ndered t_he Ifloldlng Company's accounting
policies for impairment of loans and assessed

expected credit loss (ECL) approach. ECL involves | compliance with Ind AS 109 and lhe governance

an estimation of probability weighted loss on - . . -
financial _assets over their life, considering framewotk approved by the Boafg _of Directors

M

- K Batllbos & Associates LLP, » Unulad Labllivy Paripersilp werh LLF donlity No Al 4295
Royd Office 27 Camas Strael Block B 3rd Floor Kolketa 700 016
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Key audit matters

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

reasonable and supportable information about past
events, current conditions, and forecasts of future
economic conditions and other factors which could
impact the credit quality of the Holding Company's
loans.

In the process, a significant degree of judgement
and estimates have been applied by the
managernent for:

s Grouping of borrowers {retail loan portfolio)
based on homogeneilty for estimating
probakility of default (PD), loss given default
(LGD) and exposure at default (EAD);

» Staging of loans (i.e. Cclassification as
“significant increase in credit risk* (SICR) or
*credit impaired” categories) based on overdue
status and/or qualitative assessment;

» Application of an appropriate statistical/
quantitative model for determining the PD, LGD
and EAD estimates;

« Determining relevant macro-economic and
other factors impacting credit quality of loans.

The Holding Company has also recorded a
management averlay as part of its ECL, to reflect
among other things an increased risk of
deterioration In relevant macro-economic factors

In view of the high degree of management’s
judgement involved in estimation of ECL and the
overall significance of the Impairment loss
allowance to the consclidated financial statements,
it is considered as a key audit matter.

pursuant to applicable Reserve Bank of India
guidelines (“the RBI Guidelines”).

Evaluated the reasonableness of the management
estimates by understanding the process of ECL
estimation and related assumptions. Tested the
internal controls around extraction, validation and
computation of the input data used in such
estimation.

Assessed the criteria for staging of loans based on
their overdue status to check compliance with
requirement of Ind AS 109. Tested a sample of
performing (stage 1) loans to assess whether any
SICR or impairment indicators were present
requiring them to be classified under stage 2 or
stage 3.

involved internal specialist for testing of the ECL
estimates, including factors that affect the PD, LGD
and EAD considering various forward looking
miacra-economic and other factors.

Tested assumptions used by the management in in
respect of post-model adjustments.

Tested the arithmetical accuracy of computation of
ECL provision performed by the Holding Company.

Assessed adequacy of disclosures included in the
consolidated financial statements In respect of
expected credit losses.

{b) IT systems and controls

The financial accounting and reporting systems of
the Holding Company are fundamentally reliant on
IT systems and IT controls to process significant
transaction velumes. Automated accounting
procedures and IT environment controls, which
include IT governance, general IT controls over
program development and changes, access to
programs and data and IT operations, are required
to be designed and to operate effectively to ensure
accurate financial reporting.

Any gaps in the IT control environment could resutt
in a material misstatement of the financial
accounting and reporting records.

Therefore, in view of the pervasive nature and
complexity of the IT environment, the assessment
of the general IT controls and the application
controls specific to the accounting and preparation
of the financlal information Is considered to be a key
audit matter

Our audit procedures, assisted by our internal IT
experts, on the IT infrastructure and applications
relevant to financial reporting included the following:

The aspects covered in the assessment of IT
general controls comprised: () User Access
Management; (ii) Program Change Management;
(iii) Other related ITGCs - to understand the design
and test the operating effectiveness of such
controls in respect of information systems that are
important to financial reporting ("in-scope
applications™)

Tested the changes that were made to the in-scope
applications during the audit period to assess
changes that have impact on financial reporting.

Tested the Holding Company’s periodic review of
access rights. We also inspected requests of
changes to systems for appropriate approval and
authoerization,

Tested the configuration of the audit trail feature
In the accounting software and maintenance of
back-up as per extant regulatory requirements.

.



Chartered Accountants

Protium Finance Limited Page 3of 10

Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter

o Performed tests of controls (inciuding other
compensatory contrals, wherever applicable) on
the IT application controls and IT dependent
manual controls in the system.

¢ Tested the design and operating effectiveness of
compensating controls in case deficiencies were
identified and, where necessary, extended the
scope of our substantive audit procedures.

Other Information

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. When we read the Annual report, if we conclude that there is a materlal misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance including other comprehensive income,
consolidated cash flows and consolidated statement of changes in equity of the Group In accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified
under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards} Rules, 2015, as amended.
The respective Board of Directors of the companies inciuded in the Group are responsible for maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of their
respective company(ies) and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant 1o the preparation
and presentation of the consolidated financiat statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financlal statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies included
in the Group are responslble for assessing the abllity of their respective company(ies) to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the golng concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those respective Board of Directors of the companles included in the Group are also responsible for overseeing
the financial reporting process of their respective company(ies)

/Q/l
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinicn. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We aiso:

« ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control

«  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

+  Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group tae continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence cobtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

»  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial stataments represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

+  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group of which we are the independent auditors, to express an opinion on the
consolidated financlal statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which
we are the independent auditors.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities Included
in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the Independent auditors regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during cur audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
reguirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships ang other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended March 31,
2025 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

e
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Other Matters

The consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company for the year ended March 31, 2024, included in
these consolidated financial statements, have been audited by the predecessor auditor who expressed an
unmodified opinion on those statermnents on April 30, 2024,

Repert on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of tndia in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the "Annexure 1" a
statement on the matters specified in paragraph 3(xxi) of the Crder.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a)

(b)

{©)

(d)

(e)

()

)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consalidated financial
statements;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those
books except that, for the accounting software used by the Holding Company and its subsidiaries for
payroll and vendor record maintenance and processing {operated by third-party software service
providers), we have not been able to obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence that the backup
of books maintained in electronic mode was maintained on servers physically located in India on a daily
basis, as explained in note 57 to the consolidated financial statements, and the matters stated in the
paragraph 2(D(vi} below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014, as amended;

The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including the
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Cash Flow $tatement and Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account
maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements;

in our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended:;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on
March 31, 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of
the statutory auditors who are appointed under Section 139 of the Act, of its subsidiary companies,
none of the directors of the Group’s companies, incorporated in India, is disqualified as on
March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Sectlon 164 (2} of the Act;

The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are
as stated in paragraph (b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b} of the Act and paragraph 2 () {(vi)
below on reperting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls, with reference ta the consolidated
financial statements, to the extent applicable to the Holding Company and the operating effectiveness
of such controls, refer to our separate Report In “Annexure 2* to this report. In our opinion and
according to the Information and explanation given to us, the said report on internal financial controls
is not applicable to the subsidiary companies, which are incorpeorated in India, basis the exemption
avallable to the subsidiaries under MCA notification no. G.$.R. 583{E} dated June 13, 2017, read with
corrigendum dated July 13, 2017 on reporting on internal financial controls with reference to the
financial statements:;

In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 3%, 2025 has been paid /
provided by the Holding Company and its subsidiaries Incorporated in India to their directors in
accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act;
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(i) Withrespect to the gther matters to be included in the Audltor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us, as noted in the ‘Other matter’ paragraph:

iit.

vi.

The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on its
consolidated financial position of the Group, in its consolidated financial statements - Refer Note
36 to the consolidated financial statements;

Provision has been made in the consolidated financial statements, as required under the
applicable law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, If any, on long-term
contracts including derivative contracts - Refer Note 13 to the consolidated financial statements

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company and its subsidiarles, incorporated in India, during the
year ended March 31, 2025.

a) The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries which are companies
incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have
represented to us that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the note 50 to the
consolidated financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Holding
Company or any of such subsidiaries to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), Including foreign
entities (*Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the Intermediary shali, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the respective Holding Company
or any of such subsidiaries (*Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries which are
companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act
have represented to us that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the note 50
to the consolidated financlal statements, no funds have been received by the respective Holding
Company or any of such from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities {“Funding
Parties*), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding
Company or any of such subsidiaries, associate and joint ventures/ joint operations shall,
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (*Ultimate Beneficiaries”} or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

¢) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances performed by us, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to belleve
that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material mis-statement,

No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Holding Company and its
subsldlaries, incorporated in India.

Based on our examination which included test checks, the Holding Company and its subsidiaries
have used accounting software for maintaining its books of account which have a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility, and the same has operated throughout the year for all
relevant transactions recorded in the software except that, in respect of a software used for loan
origination, the audit trail was not enabled, and for other software used for general ledger and
loan management, the audit trail feature was not enabled for direct changes to database when
using certain access rights, and in respect of certain software for payroll and vendor record
maintenance and processing {operated by third-party software service providers), in the absence
of an appropriate Service Qrganization Controls report, we are unable to comment on whether
the audit trail feature was enabled and operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions
recorded in such software or whether there were any instances of the audit trail feature belng
tampered with, as described in note 57 to the consolidated financial statements. Further, during
the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered
with, where the audlt trail was enabled. Additionally, the audit trail of relevant prior years has
been preserved by the Holding Company and its subsidiaries as per the statutory requirements
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for record retention, to the extent it was enabled and recorded in those respective years, as
stated in note 57 to the consolidated financial statements

For S5.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

per Amit Lahoti
Partner
Membership Number: 132990

UDIN: 25132990BMORTNG374

Mumbai
May 12, 2025
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements” of our independent Auditor's Report of even date on the Consolidated Financial Statements
of Protium Finance Limited

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Halding Company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief,
we state that the gualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in their reports on Companies
(Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 of the companies included in the Consolidated Financial Statements are:

Sr. | Name CIN Holding Clause number of
No. company/ the CARO report
Subsidiary/ | which is unfavorable
assoclate or adverse

1 Protium Finance Limited U65999MHZ019PLC323293 | Holding 3

Company 3{vii)(a)

2 | Protium Business Services | U72900MH202TPTC356128 | Substdiary 3{vil}(a)

Private Limited Company

For 5.R, Batliboi & Assoclates LLP

Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

/

'per Amit Lahofi

Partner

Membership Number: 132990

UDIN: 257132990BMORTNG374

Mumbai

May 12, 2025
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Annexure 2 referred to in paragraph 2(g) under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements” of our Independent Auditors’ Report of even date on the Consolidated Financial Statements
of Pratium Finance Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 ("the Act*)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of Protium Finance Limited (hereinafter
referred to as the *Holding Company*) as of and for the year ended March 371, 2025, we have audited the internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements to the extent applicable to the Holding
Company. Pursuant to Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA} notification no. G.5.R. 583(E) dated June 13, 2017,
read with corrigendum dated July 13, 2017 on reperting on internal financial controls, clause (i) of section
143(3) of the Act is not applicable to the subsidlaries, which are companies incorporated in India.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Holding Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controts
Over Financial Reporting issued by the institute of Chartered Accountants of India (*ICAI*). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Holding
Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding Company's internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting {the "Guidance Note*) and the Standards
on Auditing, as specified under section 14 3(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both, issued by ICAlL. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financlal statements was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to consclidated financial statements included cbtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements, assessing the
risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtalned Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Consolldated Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financlal statements is a process designed
to provide reascnable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal financlal controls with reference to consolidated financial statements includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, In reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositlons of the assets of the company; (2} provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company: and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

/%
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Consolidated Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to consclidated financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate

Opinion

In our opinion, the Holding Company has maintained in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls
with reference to consolidated financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI.

For S.R Batliboi & Associates LLFP
Chartered Accountants
ICAIl Firm Registration Number- 101049W/E300004

h

—
per Amit Lahoti
Partner
Membership Number: 132990

UDIN: 25732890BMORTNQ374

Mumbai
May 12, 2025
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Consolfidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025

i {® inlakhs)
Partleulars Note No. Asat Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2029
Assets
Financial assets
(Cash and cash equivalents. q 84,680.62 90,023,190
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 5 41,955 82 42,454 10
Derivative financial instrument 13 41.52 -
Trade receivables [ 1,026.95 992.23
toans 7 4,23,566.92 3,23,371.37
Investments 8 51,666 76 26,149.98
Qther financial assets 9 35,857 12 23,898.32
6,38,795.61 5,06,889.10 |
Non-financial assets
Current tax assets (net] 65B.67 141858
Property plant and equipment 1e 230792 3,141.59
1 ible assets under development 11 87.55 111.06
Intanglble assets 11 3,207.53 3,271.26
Other non-financial assets 12 4,311.54 2,004.41
10,573.11 9,946.90
Tatal assots 6,49,368.72 5$.16,836.00
Liabilities
Financial liabilities
Derivative financial instrument 13 33504
Trade payables 14
{i} total autstanding dues of micro enterprises and smali enterprises 347 32 916,66
{ii) totat out ding dues of ereditors other than micro enterprises and small enterpnses 473.96 1,481.49
Debt securities 1% 251754 10,592.30
Borrawings {other than debt securities} 16 3,77,669.69 2,53,717.86
Other financialtiabllites 17 30.824.81 14,208.43
Total financial liabilities 3,91,839.72 2,80,952.78
Non-financial labilities
Provisions 18 547,99 333 59
Deferred kax liabilities [net) 19 6,609.68 3,912.4%
Other nan-financial liabilities 20 4,034,14 3.231.21
11,191.81 147720 |
Equity
Equity share capital 21 14,569.21 14,514.23
Other equity 22 2,31,767.98 2,13.851.78
Total labilities and equity 6,49,368.72 5,16,836.00
Mataria! accounting policias 13
See ac panying aotes forming part of the Consotldated fi | stat t 451

As per our report of even date attached

For 5.R. Batlibol & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration Number  101049W/E300004

sembership No 132990

Plice Mumbal
Date 12 May 2025

Managing Director & CEO

DiN: 08422699 /

mit Bup!
£hief Finaficial Clfssr

Place: Mumba
Date: 12 May 2025

pendent Director
DIN: 02895343

s b Mohfa

Anshu Mohta
Company Seeretary
Memhbership No : A18287

Place: Mumbai
Date- 12 May 2025
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Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the vear ended March 31, 2025

As per aur repart of even date attached
Faor 5.R. Batlibal & Assoclates LLP
Chartered Account:

KAl Firm i b

/€300004

Membaership No 132950

Place: Mumbai
Date. 11 May 2025

Far and an hahall of the Baard of Dire!

b
yush Migea

Managing Director & CEQ
OIM: 08422659

Protium Financ:

imited

Chief Finandfal OHicer

Flace: Mumbai

Date: 12 May 2025

(% in lakhs)
{Particulars Nate No. For the year ended | For the year ended March
March 31, 2025 31, 2024
fram
Interest income 23 69,346.55 5§),012.54
Fees and commission income 25 9,420.15 5,15048
et pain/{loss) on fi value changes 25 3.885.75 64.14
Net gain on derecagnition of financial instruments under amortised Cost gategory n% 22.038.68 16,535.41
Total ravenue from opeeailons 1,04,701.13 72,762.57
Other income 27 2,85979 2,988.97
Total income 1,07,560.92 75,251.54
Expenses
Finance cost 2B 30,444.24 18,597.70
i on financial inst 29 15.200.23 6,791 42
Employee banefits expenses 30 24,851.88 .834.74
Depraciation and isati 3 3,176.78 2,332.83
Cther expenses 3z 11,253 17 10,304.24
Total expenses 84,%66.30 59,900.93
Profit befare tax 22,594.62 15,850.61
Tox enpenses:
Prior periad tax (329.78) -
Current tax 79018 1,493 64
Deferred tax 3,010.37 2,681.84
Profit for the year 17,123.88 11,675.13
Otkher Comprehensive income (OC)
{i] hems that will not be reclassified ta profit or (oss
- Rameasurament galn / {loss] on defined benafit plans 152.10) {36.18]
{ii) Incame Tax impacl thereon 13.11 o111
Subtotal {a) {38.99) {27.07)
{i) ltems that will be rectassifiad 10 profit or loss
- The effective portion af gain / {loss) on hedging [nstruments {968.76) (35 04)
- The effective portion of gain / {loss) on loans - OCI {223.15) -
i} Incame Tax impact thereon 300.00 3.62
Subtetal b) (891.91) 126.22)
Other comprehansive income (a+ b) 930.89] 53.
Tatal comprehansive income for the year 16,192.99 11621.84
Prelit {or the periedfyear attributable to
Owner of the company 17,123.88 11,67513
Non-controlling Interest - -
Other Comprehensive Income {O€) attributable to:
Owner of the company {930.29) {53 29)
Non-controlling interest - -
Total Comprehensiva Income for the year attributable ta:
Owner of the company 15,192.93 11,621.84
Non-controlilng interest - -
Earnings per equity share [nominal value of share, 510 (Previous year. 10
Basic (1) 34 1178 10.66
Dilurad (%) 34 1174 10.66
Malerial accounting policies 13
See accompanying aotes forming par of the Consolidated financial statement 461

Anshu Mohta
Company Secrelary
Membership No : A18287

Place’ Mumbai
Date 12 May 2025
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2025

(% in lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit bafore tax 22,594.62 15,850.61
Adjustments:
Depreciation and amortization 3,176.78 2,392.83
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 1711 46.50
Impairment on financial instrument 15,200 23 6,791.42
Net gain on fair value changes (3.551.34) (156.74)
Share based payment expense 81546 439.66
Operating cash flows before working capital changes 38,262.86 25,364.27
Changes In working capital
{Increase]/Decrease in loans (1,15,399.54} {93,174.52)
{Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables {57.84) [688.75)
{Increase}/Decrease in other financial assets (12,146.91) {14,531.35)
(Increase)}/Decrease In other non-financial assets (2,306.18) {669.63)
(Decrease)fincrease In provision 6.22 110.23
[Decrease)/Increase in lease liability (1,387.49) {812.44)
[Decrease)/Increase in Trade payables (1,570.87) 2,005.78
[Decrease)fincrease in Other financial liabilities [2,952.23) (17,699.53)
[Decrease)/Increase in Other non-financial liabilities 959.01 {5,531.08)
Cash generated from operations {96,592.97} {1,05,627.02)
Income taxes paid (Met of Refund) {1,700.46} [1,569.15)
Net cash flow {used in) / generated from operating activities (A) {98,293.43) (1,07,136.17)
[Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment {340.89) [1,024.08)
Disposal of property, plant and equipment 134.27 78.56
Additien of intangible assets including intangihle under devel [1,122.21)} (756.94)
Purchase of investments® {21,978.58) (22,439.61)
Praceeds from redempticn of fixed deposits with banks 97,348.62 59,871.67
Placement of fixed deposits with banks {96,835.31) {1,00,560.99)
Net cash (used in) / generated from investing activities (B) [22,793.91) (64,831.39)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from debt securities - 69,585.29
Repayment of debt securities (7,475.00) (32,382.57)
Proceeds from borrowings [other than debt securities) 2.61,542.09 1,73,226.26
Repayment of borrowings {other than debt securities) (1,39,234.93} {63,045.16)
Froceeds from 1ssuance of equity share capital 912.70 B3,771.12
Share issuance expenses - (4.85)
Net cash [used in) / generated from financing activities {C) 1,15,744.86 2,30,150.09
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + ) (5,342.48]) 58,122.53
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of tha year 90,023.10 31,900.57
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 84,680,62 90,023.10
Reconciliation of Cash and cash equivalents with the balance sheet
Cash on hand - o
Balances with banks
-In current accounts 28,897 67 31,316.85
Deposits with original maturity of less than three manthg 55,782.95 58,706.25
Cash and cash equivalents in cash flow statement 84,680.62 a0,023.10
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flaws for the year ended March 31, 2025

1) Net cashg d from aperating activity is determined after adjusting the following {Xin lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Interest recewved 57,456.31 43,483.60
Interest paid 28,893 45 18,536 66

2) Purchase of investment is after adjustment of proceeds from sale/

ion of inv 3

3) Changes in liability arising from financing activities .-

{A) Changes in capital and asset structure arising from financing activities and investing activities
The Company does not have any finanang activities and investing activities which affect the capital and asset structure of the Company without the use of cash and cash

equivalents.

{B) Changes in liability arising from financing activities {¥in lakhs)
Particulars As at 01-04-2024 Cash flows Change in fair value Other As at 31-03-2025
Debt securities 10,592.30 18,074.36) - 2,517 94
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 2,53,717.86 1,22,906.46 1,04531 3,77,669.63
Total 2,64,310.16 1,14,832.10 1,045,351 3.80,187.57
{%1n lakhs)
Particulars As at 01-04-2023 Cash flows Change in fair value Other As at 31-03-2024
Debt securities 5,024 26 5,568.04 10,592 30
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 1,12,901.76 1,40,816.10 2,53,717.86
Tatal 1,17,926 02 1,46,384.14 2,64,310.16

As per our report of even date attached

For 8.R. Batlibol & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration Number : 101049W/E300004

/ per Amitiahoti o
Partner
Membership No. 132990

Place: Mumbai
Date 12 May 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Direct
Protium Fi

Managing Director & CEQ

nee Limited

eyush Misra

DiN. 08422699

Amil

upta

Chief Financial Officer

Place: Mumbai
Date: 12 May 2025

Y

Anshu Mohta
Company Secretary
Membership No: A18287

Place: Mumbai
Date: 12 May 2025




Pratium Finance Limited
statement of changes (n equity for the year ended March 31, 2025

A. Equity share capital

(3 1n lakhs)
|Particulars As at Asat
March 31,2025 | March 31,2024
Balance as at the teginning of the year 14,514.23 946778
Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior pariod errars - -
i bal atthe b of the current reperting 14,514.23 946778
perlod
[Chvanges In equity share capltal during the year 54.98 5,046 45
Bal a5 st the end of the year 14,569 21 14,514.23
8. Other equity
(R in lakhs)
Partlculars Reserves and Surplus Other Comprehensive Income
Securlties Statutary Share based Retained Genenal Fair value of Cash flow Total
g Reserve loans carried at | hedgereserve
FITGL
Balance as at April 1, 2024 1,97,780.10 3,855.49 439.66 11,842.75 - - (26 22) 2,132,89178
Prafit for the yaar . 3 - 17,123.88 . - 17,123.88
Other camprehensive income{ret of 1ax} {38.99) {165 98) (724.92) (930.89)
Total Comprehensiva Income . - 17,084.83 - {166.98) {2a,92) 16,182.99
Issue of equity instruments 1.14%.01 - - - - - 1,143.01
Share issue expenses - ] . - - - -
Transfer to statutory reserve 342013 . {3,420 13) - - -
Transter on aotount of vested aptions lapsed - - (3817 . 3817
Transfer on acceunt of stock options exercised 042 042 . - .
|5hare based payment during the year 534.1§ - - $34.15
Balance as at March 31, 2025 198,929 53 7,275.62 435.22 25,502.57 i-l£ (155.5l| {751 14} 31,767.98
{%in fakhs)
Particufars Reserves and Surplus Other Comprehensiva Incame
Securities Statutory Shara based Retained General Falr value of Cash flow Total
Premium Reserve payment earnings Reserve toans carrled at hedge reserve
VYOG
|Balanca as ai April 1, 2023 1,19,060.29 1,550.06 2,500.04 - 1,23,110.4¢
Profit for the year - - - 11,675.13 - - 11,675.13
Other cemprehensive income(net af tax) - - {27.07) (26.22} (53.29)
Tatal Comprehensive Income - - - 11.648.13 - {26.22) 11,611,84
Issue of aquity instruments. 78,724.66 - - - 78,724.66
Share issue expanses (4.85) - - - {4.85)
Transfar to statutory raserve . 230543 - (2,305.43) -
sShare based payment during the yoar - - 439.66 - - - = 439.66
Balance a3 ot Maech 31. 2029 1,897,730 10 3.855.49 jgés 11,882 75 {26.22} 2,13,891.78

For and on Bchalf ol the Board of Biregtars .[!

Pratium Fi;jljcy“

For 5.R. Batliiol & Assaciales LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration Number  101049W/C304004

. L)
‘\\
Lr Amit Lahatl o goyush Misca
Partner anaging Directar & CEQ
Membership Ne 132990 DIN: 08422699

=

Amit a
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Mumbal
Date: 12 May 2825

Place Mumbai
Date 12 May 2025

Pnshas fMobde

Anshu Mohta
Company Secretary
Merbership No : 418287

Plage; Mumbai
Date: 12 May 2025



Protium Firance Limited

Hotes ty the C lidated A tal §

1. Corporate information:

Protium Finance Limited {the "Company”™) was incorporated on March 29, 2019 vide COIN no U65999MH2019PLC323292 as Growth Source Financral Technologies Prisvate Limited .
The T Was regi i as Non- king Financial C without ing or holding public d its, as defined under Section 45-1A of tha Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934, The Company together with its subsidiary - Protium Business Services Private Limited and Shibui Technologies Private Limited (collectively, the Group) s primarity engaged in
lending activities. The Group is primarily engaged in the business of lending secured and unsacured loans in SME, MSAME and € Finance The registered office of
the parent Company is located at Nirlon Knowledge Park (NKP} B2, 7th Floor, Pahadi, Village, Off. Western Express Highway, Goregaon (E}, Mumbai, Mumbai City, Maharashtra,
India, 4D0063. Under the scale based regulation the company is categorized as middle layer (NBFC-ML).

The audited C: hdated fi | staterments were approved by Board of Directors on May 12, 2025, The Group has its debt listed on 8SE Limited

2. Matenral accounting policy information

2.1 Basis of preparatlon :

.;

The finangial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as p ibed in the Companies (Indizn A ing ds) Rules, 2015 as
amended from time to time and notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) along with other relevant provisicns of the Act, the updated Master Direction —
Reserve Bank of India (Noa-Banking Financial Company — Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 as amended from time te time and other spplicable RBI circulars/ notifications.
The Group uses accrual basis of ing In p ion of financi |othar than Statement of Cash Flows) except in case of significant uncertainties, Accounting
policies have been consistently applied to all periods presented, unless otherwise stated.

The fi ial have baen prepared on a going concern basls, 33 the Management s satisfied that group shall be able te continue its business for future and no materlal
uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the gaing concern geing concern assumptlan . In making this t, the g t has idered a wide range of
wformatien relating o present and future conditians, i Jing the future p { cash flows, and capital resources,

The lidated fi lal are pri } in Indlan Rupee (INR), which Is also the functional currency of the Group, in denomination of lakhs with raunding off to two
decimals as permitted by Schedule ifl 1o the Act except where otherwise indi d. The ¢ lidated fi I have been prepared on a histerical cost basis, except for
certain financial instruments that sre measured at fair value

2.2. of fi cial

The Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss are prepared and presented in the armat prescribed in the Division Il to Schedule Il ta the Act applicable for Non Banking
Finance Companies ("NBFC"). The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared and pr d as per the requir of Ind AS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows”. The disclasure
requirements with respect to items in the Sheet and 5t of Profit and Loss, as prescribed in the Division Hll to Schedule ill to the Act, are presanted by way of notes
forming part of the financial statements along with the other notes required w be disclosed under the notfied ing Standards Any guid / clarifications / notifications

issued by the Reserve Bank of india {R81) are implemented as and when ixsued / made applicabla

Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally reported gross in the balance sheet. They are only oHset and reported net when, in addition to having an unconditional legally

oL h

enforceable right 1o offset the recogni 5 Wi being gent on a future event, the parties also intend to settle on a net basis in all of the following ereumstances

+ the normal ourse of business
+ the event of default
 the avent of insolvency of bankruptcy of the group/ or its counterparties

2.3. Basis of consolidation

The Group cansolidates an entity when it controls &, Control 15 achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its Invol with the and
has the abllity to affect those returns through its power over the investee. Consolidation of the entity begins when the Group obtains control over the entity and ceases when the
Graup lases cantrol of the entity.

Generally, there Is a presumption that @ majonity of voting nghts results in control To support this presumption and when the Group has less than a majerity of the voting or
simllar rights of an i tee, the Group all rel facts and cirgur n hether It has power gver an investee, including

+The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee

- Rights arising from other contractual arrangements

+ The Group's voting rights and potential voting nghts

- The size of the Group’s hoiding of votung rights relative to the size and disparsion of the holdings of the othar votng rights holders

G lidated financial are prepared using uniform ing policies for like i and other events in similar circumstances. If a member of the Group uses
accounting policies other than those adopted in the lidated financial for like transactions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments are made
to that Group bear's fi ial in preparing the idated fi | to ensure conformity with the Group's accounting policies

Profit or loss and each component of OC are attributed to the equity holders of the parent of the Group and to the non-contrelling Interests, even if this results 1n the non-
cantrelling interests having a deficit balance

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiary to bring their accounting policies in line with the Group's accounting pohicies All intra-graup
o

assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to r of the Group are d in fullon

These licated [ are pi 1 1n Indian Rupees ['INR' er ‘%) which is also the Group's functional currency,

(This space has bean left blank intentionally}




Protlum Finance Limited

Notes to the Cansclidated Fi 15t

2.8 Interest Income:

The group calculates interest income by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of financial assets other than credit-impaired assets. When a financlal asset becomes credit-
impaired and is, therafare, regarded as “Stage 2°, the Group calculates interest income by applying the EIR ta the amaortised cost {net of expected ¢redit loss) of the fina ncial asset If

the financial assets cures and is no longer credit-lmpaired, the Group reverts to calculating nterest income on a gross basis

The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash flows of the financial Instrument through the expected life of the financial instrument or, where appropnate, a

shorter peried, to the net carnying amount, The future cash fiows are esti d taking into all the contractual terms of the instrument
The v of the EIR Includes all fees paid or received between pames to the contract that are incremental and directly attributable to the specific lending arrangement,
transaction costs, and all other premi or di For fi | assets 1 at fair valug through profit and loss ["FYTPL"}, transaction costs are recognized in the

statement of profit and loss at initial recogmition

Inerest income 15 calculated by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of non-credit impaired financial assets/liabilities (1 &. at the amortised cost of the financial asset
before adjusting for any d credit loss all ). For credit-impaired fi ial assets, i income 1= calculated by applying the EIR to the amortised cost of the credit-
impaired financial assets {i e the gross carrying less the 2l ce for exp d credit losses)

Qverdue interest and other ancillary charges in respect of lpans are recognized upon realisation,

2.5 Recognition of nther Income:

Revenue generated from the buslness transactions [other than for those items to which Ind AS 109 Fi I Instr are licable) is d at farr walue of the
1 to be lvad or receivable by the Group. Ind AS 115 R from with s outlines a single comprehensive model of accounting for revenue

arising from contracts with customners,

The Group recognlses revenue from contracts with sustomers based on a five step moderl as set aut in Ind 115;
Step 1! Identify contract(s) with & customer;

Step 2: Identify performance obligations in the ¢ontract(s),

Step 3: Determine the transaction price,

Step 4; Allocate the transaction price 1o the performance obligations in the contract|s),

Step 5° Recognise revenue when (or as) the Group satisfies a performance obligation

2.6 Fees and commission mcome :
Fees and commission Income tncludes Fees and commission charges other than those that are an integral part of EIR - The group recognises the other fee and commission income
under the terms and cond| of the rel: FLT

27 on derec d d) loans :

Galas arising out of direct assignment transactions comprises of the difference between interest on the [oan portiolio and the applicable rate at which the direct assignment is
entered intc with the assignee, also known as the right of excess Interest spread (£15). The future EIS basis the scheduled cash flow on ion of the i d d at
the applicable rate entered into with the assignee |s recorded upfront in the statement of profit and loss

2.8 Net gain on fair value changes :

The Group designates certaln financlal assets for subsequent measurement at falr value through profit or loss (FVTPL) or fair value through other comprehensive i (FvOCI).
The Group recognises gains/loss on fair value change of financial assets measured at FVTPL and realised gains on derecognition of financlal asset measured at FVTPL and FYOC on
net basls

2.9 Expenditures .
(i} Finance costs
Borrowing costs on fi
{ii) Fees and commission expanse

Fees and commission expenses wiich are not divectly linked to the sourcing of financial assets, such as commussion/incentive incurred on value added services and products
distribution, racavery charges, fees paid under guarantee sch and (ees ble for mar t of portloho etc, are recognized in the Statement of Prefit and Lass on an
accrual basis.

{iii} Other expenses

Expenses are recognized on acerual basis net of the goads and services tax, except where credit for the input tax is not statutordy permitted

aal Ll

arer ized using the EIR [refer note no 2.3).

2,10 Financialinstruments :

2.10.1 Date of recognition

A financial instrument is dafined as any contract that gives rise 1o a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability er equity instrument of her entity. Fi iat instrs

are measured at amortised cost, unless otherwise specified. All financial instruments are recognized on the date when the Group b party to the | provisi of the
financial instruments along with the certainty of ultimate collection in case of financial assets. For tradable securities, the Group recognises the Hinancial instruments on settlement
date

2 10 2initial at of fi 13l in
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at f3lr value. Transaction ¢osts that are directly attributable to the acguisition or issue af financlal assets and linanclal
llabilities {other than financial assets and financial liabilitles at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted fram the lair value of the financial assets or financial

liabilities, as appropriate, on Initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable te the acquisition of fi ial assets or fi | liabrlities at fair value through profit or loss
are recognized immediately in profit or loss.
2.10.3 Day 1 profit and loss

When the transaction price of the financial instrument differs from the fair valve at origination and the fair value is based on a valuation technique using only inputs observable in
market transactions, the Group recognises the difference between the transaction price and fair vatue in net gain / loss on fair value changes. In those cases where fair value 1s
based on models for which some of the inputs are not observable, the difference between the transaction price and the fair value is defersed and 1s only recognized in profit ar loss
when the inputs become observable, or when the instrument is deracognized,

{This space has been left blank intentienally)
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2.10.4 Classification & measurement categories of financial assets and Kabilities

The Group determines its business model at the level that best reflects how it manages groups of financial assets to achi its b b j The Group's business model
determines whether the cash flaws will be generated by callecting contzactual cash flows, seling finanaal assets or by both.

The Group's business model 1s assetsed at portfolio level and not atinstrument level, and 1s based on observable faclors such as:
{1) How the performance of the business model and the financial assets hefd within that business model are evaluated and reported to the entity’s key management personnel,

{i) The risks that affect the performance of the business model and, in particular, the way those nsks are managed;
{iii) The expected frequency, value and timing of sales are also important aspects of the Group's assessmenl The business model assessment 15 based on reasonably expectad
scenanos without taking ‘worst case’ or “stress case” scenarios inta account,

Solely payment of principal and interest (SPP#) test to the t ta the rel model of the financial assets, the Group assesses the cantractual tarms

of financial assets to identify whether the cash flow realised are towards sclely payment of principal and interest,

Principzl far the purpose of this test is defined as the fair value of the financial asset at initial recognition and may change over the hife of the financial asset The most significant

! of i within a lending ar are typically the ideration for the time value of money and credit risk
Initial t of ial inste The ¢l of izl instruments at initial g depends an thair ctual terms and the busine<ss model for
the instr F linstruments are initially measured at their fair value.

The Group classifies all of its financial agsets based on the business modeal for managing the assets and the asset’s eontractual terms, measured at either,

Financial assets carrled at amortlsed cost (AC)

A financial assat ic measured at amartised cost if it is held within a business medel whase ohjective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the ¢ontractual
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal ding The changes in
carrying value of financial 3ssets is recognized in profit and loss acoount.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensi {FvTOCI)

A financial asset is measured st FVTOC if 1t is held within a business model whose objective is iaved by both collectii <cash flows and selling financial assets and the
contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates 1o cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding The
changes in farr value of Tal assets is recegnized in Other Comprahensive |

Financial assets at fair value theough profit or loss {FVYTPL)
Afinancial asset which 15 not classified in any of the above categories are measured at FYTPL The Group measures all financial assets classified as FYTPL at far value ateach
raporting data. The changes n fair value of financial assets is recognized in Profit and loss account.

2.11 Financial assets and habilities :

2.11.1 Amortized cost and atfective interast method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest ncome over the relevant period

For financial instruments ather than purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets, the effective interest rate 15 the rate that exactly discounts estimated fyture cash
receipts {including all fees and points paid or received that form an Integral part of the effective i rate, ion costs and other premiums or discounts) excluding
expected credit losses, through the expected life of the debt Instrument, or, where apprapriate, a shorter period, to the gross carrying amount of the debt instrument on initial
recognitien.

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the ameunt at which the fi ial asset is d at initial recognition miaus the principal repay , plus the lative amor
using tha effective interest methed of any difference b that initial t and the ity t, adjusted for any lass allowance. Cn the ather hand, the gross carrying
amaunt of a financial asset is the amortised cost of a fi 13l asset befare adjusting for any loss allowance.

2.11.2 Financlal liabilitias
A firanclal habilities are measured at amarnised cost except loar commitments, hnanaial guarantees, and decivatve financeal habilites

Z 11.3 Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets and financhal fabulities ia this category are those that are not held for trading and have been either designated by management upon initial recagnition or are
mandatanly required 10 be measured at fair value under tnd A% 10%. Manag only desig an mstrument at FYTPL upon intial recognition when one of the following
criteria are met. Such designation 1z determined on an Instrument-by-instrument basls.

- The designation eliminates, or significantly reduces, the inconsistent treatment that would otherwise anse from measuring the assets or habilities or recognising gains or losses on
them on a diffarent basis; or

The fiabilities are part of a group of financial llabil which are ged and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with 3 documented risk
management or invastrment strategy; or

The liabilities containing one or more embedded derivatives, unless they do not significantty modify the cash flows that would otherwise be required by the contract, or it is clear

b add

with little or no analysls when a similar instrument s first considered that separatian of the der (s) Is pr

Financial assets and financial lisbilities at FVTPL are recorded in the balance sheet at fair value. Changes in fair value are recorded in profit and loss with the exception of
movemeants In fair value of liabillities designated at FVTPL due ta changes in the Group's own credit risk. Such changes In falr value are recorded In the credit reserve through OCI
and do not get recycled to the profit or loss, Interest earned or incurred on instruments designated at FYTPL 15 aceryed in interest incame or finance cost, respectively, using the
£IR, taking into any d / premium and qualifying transaction costs being an integral part of instrumant. Interest earned on assats mandatorily required to be

measured at FYTPLis recorded using contractualinterest rate

2.11.4 Loan commitment
Undrawn [oan commitments are commitments under which ovar the Juration of the t, the Group 15 required to prowvide a loan with pre-specified terms to the
custemer. Undrawn loar commitments are in the scope of the ECL requirements

2.11.5 Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Financial instruments issued by the Group are dassified 2s erther financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definiticns of 3 finarcial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual n the assets of an entity after deducting alt of its habik Equity instr issued by the Group are
recognized at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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2.12 ReclassiHication of financial assets

The Group changes classification of its financial assets only on of ch n i b model for managing those financial assets. Such reclassifications are glven

prospective impact as per the principles laid down in Ind AS 109 ‘Financial Instruments’.

2.13 Derivative finandal instruments :

The Group enters into derivative fi ial to ge its exp 1o rate risk and foreign exchange rate risk. Derivatives held by the Group are Cross Currency
Interest Rate Swaps (CCIRS). Darivative contracts are initially racognized at fair value on the date of entering inta and are sub d ta their f3ir value at
each reporting date. The resulting gains/iosses are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss immediately unless the derivative is designated and 15 effective as a hedging
Instrument. For hedging instrument, the timing of the r ion in the of Profit and Loss depends on the nature of the hedge relationship. The Group designates its
CCIRS derlvatives as cash flow hedges of a recognized liability. The Group recognises derivatives with a pasitive fair value as a fi | asset and derivatives with a ive fair
value ag a financial lability.

Hedge accounting

The Group makes use of derivative i o ge exp #s 10 rate risk and foregn currency risk. In order to manage particular 1isks, the Group applies hedge
accounting far transactions that meet specified criteria

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Group formally desi and d the hedge relationship to which the Group wishes to apply hedge accounting and the nisk

management abjen:tlve and strategy for undertaking the hedge. The docymentation Includes the Group's risk management objective and strategy for undertaking hedge, the

[ationship, the hedgad item ar tr the nature of the ritk belng hedged, hedge ratio and how the Group would assess the effectiveness of changes in

1he hedgmg Instrument’s lair value in offsetting the exposure to changes in the hedged item’s cash flows attributable to the hedged risk Sugh hedges are expected 10 be highly

in act g offsetting ct in cash flows and are assessed on an on-going basis to determine that they actually have been highly effective throug the fi |

reporting periods for which they were designated

Cash flow hedge

Hedges that meet the criteria for hedge accounting and qualify as cash flow hedges are accounted as follaws:

A cash flow hedge is a hedge of the exposure to variability In cash flows that is attributable to & particular risk associsted with a recognized asset or lfability and could affect profix

or loss,

For designated and qualifying cash flow hedges, the effective portion of the cumulativa gain or loss on the hedging instrument is nittally recognized directly in OCl within aquity

{cash Mow hedge reserve), The ineffective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging ins! tis recogmized i diately a5 inance ¢ost in the Stalement of Profit and Loss

When the hedged cash flow affects the Statement of Profit and Loss, the effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is ded In the cor ding or
5 line of the § of Profitand Loss

When a hedging instrument expires, is sold, terminated, exercised, or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss recognised in
00 is subsequently transferred to the Statement of Profit and Lass an vltimate recognition of the underlying hed fi When a ion i1s no Tanger
expected to oocur, the cumulative gain or loss that was reported in OC] 15 immediately transferred to the Statement of Profit and Loss

2.14 Derecognition of financial Instrumants ;

2.14.1 Derecagnition of finandal asset

A financial asset {or, where applicable 3 part of 3 financial asset or 2 part of a graup of simllar fi lal 3s5ets) 15 gnized when the rights to receive cash flows from the
financial asset have expired. The Group also derecognises the financial asset if it has both transferred the financial asset and the i lifies for der

The Group has transterred the financial asset if, and only If, elther

The Group has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financisl asset or

it retains the contractual rights to recelve the cash flows of the financlal asset, but assumed a contractual obligation ta pay the cash flows in full without materlal delay to thisd
party under pass through arrangerment
A transter only qualifies for derecognition If either|

The Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset or
The Group has neither transfarred nor retalned substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset but has transfarred contraf af the assat.

The Group considers cantral to be mnsferred if and only If, the transferes has the practical ability ta sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party and i3 able to exercise
that ability unilaterally and with d 1 restrictions an the transfer.

2.14.2 Derecognition of financial liabilities

A fi | liability (s der d when the cbligatian under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expiras. Whare an existing financlal liability is raplaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially maodified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original lizbility and the recognition of a new liability. The difference between tha carrying value cf the criginal financial liability 2nd the paid, including modified
contractual cash flow r ited as new fi | habality, is r din of profit and loss
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2.15 Impairment of financial assets : "
The Group recerds allowance for expected credit losses lor all financlal assets, othar than financial assets held at FUTPL, together with loan commitment and financial guarantee

cantracts. Equity instruments are not subject to impairment
General approach

for all other financial instruments, the Group recognises lifetime ECL when there has been a significant increase in eredit risk (SICR) since initial recognition (f, on the other hand,
the credit risk on the financlal instrument has not increased significantly since Inital recognition, the Group m the loss all; far that fi ial atan

equal to 12-menth expected credit losses (12m ECL). The of whether lifetime ECL should be r ized is based on signifi intreases in the likelihood or nsk of a
default occurring since initial recognition instead of an evidence of a financial asser belng credit-impaired at the reporting date or an actual default accurring.

Lifetime ECL repi the } credit losses that will result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial mstrument. In contrast, 12m ECL represents
1he partion of lifetime ECL that is expected ta result from default events on a financial Instrument that are possible within 42 months after the reporting date

The measurement of ECL Is a function of the probability of defaylt (PD), loss given default {LGD) {i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there Is a default) and the exposiire at default
(EAD). The assessment of the PD and LGD is based on historical data ad|usted by forward-fooking Information. As for the EAD, for financial assets, this is represented by the sssats’
gross carrying amount at the reporting date; for loan i ts and fi ial g tee contracts, the exp includes the t drawn down as at the reporting date,

together with any additional amounts expected to be drawn down in the future by default date determined based on historical trend, the Group’s und. ding of tha fi
future financing needs of the customer, and other refevant forward-looking Information

Group ies its assets as

Stage 1 assets

Stage 1 assets includ ial instri ts that have not had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition or that have low credit risk at the reporting date. For these
assets, 12-month ECL {resulting from default events possible within 12 months from reporting date) are recognized.

Stage 2 assets

Stage 2 Assels includes fi fal instr that have had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, For these assets hifetime ECL {resulting from default evants

possible within 32 months from reperting date) are recognized
Stage 3 assals:

Stage 3 Assets are considered credit-impaired and the Group recognises the ifetime ECL for these loans. The method is similar to that for Stage 2 assets, with the PD set at 100%.

Purchased or Originated Credit Impaired {POCI) assets
Assets are considered credit-impaired and the Graup recognises the lifetime ECL for these loans The methed 1s similar to that for Stage 2 assets, with the PD set at 100%.

For financial assets, ECL s a5 the diff; all | cash flows that are due to the Group In accardance with the contract and sll the cash flows that the
Group exp: 10 receive, di d at the original effective interest rate, The Group recognises an impairment loss or reversal of impairment loss in the profit and [oss statement

a loss €

with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying

The Groyp does not lImit Its exposyre to credlt losses to the contractual notice periad, but, instead calculates ECL cver 2 period that reflects the Group's expectations of the
bet , Its lIkellhood of default and the Group’s future risk mitigation procedures, which could Include reducing or Ihng the facllit

2.16 Coltateral valuation:

To mitigate its credit risks on financial assets, the Group seeks to use collatersl, where possible. The collateral comes in vanious forms, such as cash, secunties, power of attarnay,
credit enhancements such as netung agreements, Collateral, unless repossessed, is not recorded on the Group's balance sheet, However, the fair value of collateral affects the
catculation of ECLs. It is generally assessed, at a mmimum, at inception and re-assessed on a quarterly basisfannual basis

To the extent passible, the group uses agtive market data for valuing financlal assets held as collateral

2.17 Wrlite-offs:

Loans and debt securities are written off when the Group has ao reasonable expectations of recovering the financial asset (elther in its entirety or a portion of it}. In such cases, the
Group determings that the borrower dags not have assets ar saurces of income that could generate sufficent cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-gff, A write-off
constitutes a derecognition event. The Group may apply enforcement activities to financial assets written off Recoveries resulting from the Group’s enforcement activities result in
impairment gains and are credited to staternent of profit and loss

2.18 Forborre and modified loan ;

The Group { makes i or deficati 10 the orlginal terms of loans as a respanse 1o the borrower's financial difficulties, rather than taking possession or to
otherwise enforce coll of coll |. The Group iders a loan forborne when such ar modificati are provided as a result of the borrower’s present or
expected financtal difficulties and the Group would not have agreed t¢ them if the berrower had been fi lally healthy, Indi s of fi lal difficulties include defaults on
covenants, or significant concerns raised by the Credit Risk Department. Forbearance may involve ding the pay arrar and the agr of new loan canditlons.
Qnce the terms have been renegotiated, any impairment is d using the original €iR as ¢ before the madification of terms, it is the Group's policy to moniter
ferborne loans to help ensure that future payments continue to be likely to occur. Derecognition decisions and classification between Stage 2 and Stage 3 are determined on a case
by-case basis. If these procedures identity a loss in relation o a loan, it is disclosed and ged as an impaired Stage 3 forborne asset, until it is collected or written off,
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2,19 Determination of fair value :

The Graup fi ial instr such as, derivatives at falr value at each reporting date, Falr value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid 1o transfer a
liabitity in an orderly tear market particl at the measurement date The fair value measurement 15 based on the p ion that the tri on to sell the
asset or wansfer the liability takes place elther;

- In the principal market for the asset or fiability, or

- In the absence of 2 principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liabtlity

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assurning that market participants

act in their economic best interest, A fair value of & fi ial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate acanomic banefits by using the
asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appraopriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are lable to fair valua, imizing the use ol relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs in order to show how fair values have been derived, i ial instr are classified based on a hierarchy of valuati + as isedbelow:

Fair value measurement under Ind 45 113 are categorised into level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree 1o which the inputs to the far value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety ,which are 25 follows

Level 1 Ipputs

Those where the inputs used in the valuation are unadjusted quated prices from active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Group has access ta at the measurement
date. The Group considers markets as active only if there are sufficient trading activities with regards to the volume and fiquidity of the identical assets er liabilities and when there
are binding and exercisable price quotes available on the balance shest date.

tevel 2 Inputs

Those where the inputs that are used for and are are derived from directly or :ndirectly observable market data for substanually the full term of the asset or
liability

Lavel 3 Inputs

Those that include one or more unobservable input thatis signifi 10 the aswhale

For assets and liabilities that are ized in the fi | gtat ts an a recurring basis, the Graup determines whether transfers have occurred ievels in the hi hy
by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whaole) at the end of =ach reporting period. The Group
periodically reviews Its ' luding the adopted methodologies and meodel calibrations

Therefore, the Group applies various techniques 1o estimate the credit risk associated with its financial nstruments measured at fair value, which include a portfolio-based
approach that esti the d net per counterparty over the full ifetime of the indiidual assets, In order to reflact the credit nisk of the individual counterparties

for nos-collateralised finanelal instruments.

The Group evaluates the levelling at each reporting periad on an by basis and reclassifies instr when y based on the facts at the end of the
reporting period,

2.20 Retitement and other employee benefits ¢

2.20.1 Shart term employee benefit

All emgloyee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are tlassified as short-terrn empleyee benefits. These benefits include short term compensated
absences such as paid annual leave. The undiscounted amount of short-term | benefits d to be pald In exchange for the services rendarad by employeaes is
recognized as an expense during the period, Benefits such as salares and wages, etc and the expected cost of the bonus/ ex-gratia are recogmized in the period in which the
employee renders the related service

2.20.2 Post-employ playee benefits :

{i) Defined benefit plans

The Group provides for the gratuity, a defined benefit retiremeant plan g all employees. The plan provides for lump sum payments to employees upan death while in
employment or en sep 1 fram employ aiter serving for the stipulated years mentioned under ‘The Payment of Gratuity Aet, 1972 The present value of the obligation
under such defined benefit plan 1s determinad based on actuarial valuation, carried out by an independent actuary at each Balance Sheet date, using the Projected Unit Credit
tethed, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to an additional unit of employee benefit entitl and measures eath unit separately to build up the finat
obligation

The cbligation 1s measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows The discount rates uzed for determining the present value of the obligation under defined
benafit plan are based on the market vields on Goverament Securities as at the Balance Sheet date

Met interest recognized n profit or loss s calculated by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation to the net defined benefit liability ar asset. The

actual return on tha plan assets abave or below the discount rata is d as part of ri of nat defi liability or asset thraugh other comprehensive income. An

actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual devalopments in the future These include the determination of the discount rate, attrition

rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the lexities involved ia the val and its long-term nature, these fabilities are highly sensitive to changes in these
pli all PLions are revi d at each reporting date

Defined benefit plans may be unfunded, or they may be wholly or partly funded by contributions by the Group, into an entity, or fund from which the employee benefits are paid
The Group is liable to make differential payment for any shortfall b defined banefit pay and the made by the Group

(i3} Defined contributian plans :
Defined contributien plans are post-employment benefit plans under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a separate entity and will have na legal or constructive obligation
o pay further contributions if the fund dees not hold sufficient assets te pay all employee benefits relating 10 emplayee serviee in the current and prior periods. The Group

contnt into following sch under plans

definad
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Superannuation

Cefined contribution to superannuation fund is made as per the scheme of the Group

Provident fund

Each eligible employee and the Greup make contribution at a percentage of the basic salary specified under the Employee Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952
The Group recagalses contributians payable to the Pravident fund scheme as an axpanditure when the

employees render the related service The Group has no further obligateons under the plan beyond its periodic contrit

Emplayees state Insurance

The Group contributes to Employ State | e Sct and ¢ such cantributron as an expense n the Statemeal of Profit and Loss in the period when services are
rendered by the employees

{lli} Compensated absences

Privilege leave entith aren d as 2 liability as per the rules of the Group. The llability for accumutated leaves which can be availed and/or encashed at any time during
the tenure of empl is gnized using the prajected unlt credit haod at the actuarlally determined value by an appeinted aciuary. The liability for accumulated leaves
which is eligible for encashment within the same calendar year is provided for at prevailing salary rate far the entire led leave bal a5 at the Bal. Sheet date.

I 1od,

Rer an 1 benefit plans, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, 1 in net on the net defined
benefit liability and the return on plan assets, are ized i diately in the Bal Sheet with a ¢orrespanding debit or credit to retained earnings through OC1 in the peried

wn which they occur, Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods

2,21 Share based payments
The Growp carries out fair value cost of emplayee stock options on the grant date using Black Scholes model. The cost towards employees of the Group is recogaized as
ployee benefi p and that pertaining 1o emgployees of subsidiaries are recovered from subsidiaries, over the period in which the service conditions are fulfilled, The
lat fr ized for equity settled transactions at each reparting date until the vesting date refiects the extent ta which the vesting period has not expired
and the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instr that will ulti y vest. No exp is recognized for grants that do not ultimately vest because of non
fulfilment of service canditions. Service conditions ara not taken into account while determining the grant date farr value of options, but the likelihaod of the conditions being met

is assessed as part of the Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest

2.22 Leases :

The Group's leases primarily consists of leases for Building and office premises .The group hether a contract a lease , at the inception of a contract. A contract
contains a lease if the contract canveys the right o cantrol the use of an identified asset for a paricd of time in exchange for a consideration. Te assass whether a contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset, the group hether (i} the lves the use of an identified asset |n) the group has substantially all of the

economic banefits from the usa of the asset thraugh out the paricd of lease and {iii) the group has the qight ta direct the uze of asset.

ement and
At lease commencement date, the Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability on the balance sheet. The right-of-use asset is measured at cost, which is made up of
the initial measurement of the lease liability, any initial direct costs incurred by the Group, an estimate of any costs to dismantle and remove the asset at the end of the lease, and
any lease payments made in advance of the lease commencement date (net of any Incentlves received)
The Group depreciates the right-of-use assets on a straight-hne basis from the lease commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the
end of the lease term. The Group also assesses the right-of-use asset for impalrment when such indicators exist At the commencement date, the Group measures the lease liabllity

at the present value of the lease payments unpaid at that date, di d using the i rate implicit in the lease if that rate Is readily avai ar at the incr I berrowing
rate,

Sut to inlnhal t, the lability will ba reduced For payments made and increased for interest. 1t is remeasured ta reflect any reassessment ar modification, or if
there are changes ini L fixed pay when the lease habilty is remeasured, the corsesponding adjustment is reflected in the right-ofsuse asset, or profit and loss if

the right-of-use asset iz afready reducad to zero

Short term lease

The Group has efected not to recogmise right of use asset and tease habilities for short tarm leases of property that has lease lerm of 12 months or less The Group cecognises lease
paymaent assogiated with these leases as an expense on a straight line basts over lease term.

Graup a5 7 lessee:
For any new ¢ontracts enterad into on or after April ), 20189, the Group id hather a is, or ins a lease. A lease is defined as “a contract, or part of 2 contract,
that conveys the right to use an asset {the underlying asset) for a period of time in exchange for consideration” To apply this definition the Group assesses whether the contract is
or contains lease.

2,23 Earnings per share :
Basie earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax attributable to the equity shareholders far the year by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding for the year.

Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts ta Issue equity shares were exercised or converted during the year. Diluted
earnings per share is compoted by dividing the net profit atter tax attributable 10 the equity shareholders for the year by weighted aversge number of equity shares considered for
deriving basic earnings per share and weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all potential equity shares.

2.24 Impairment of non-financial assets :
The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired based on internalfexternal factors. If any such indication exists, the

Group estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. If such recoverable amount of the asset ar the of cash ing unit which the asset belongs to is less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its rec bl The reduction is d as an impairment loss and is recognized in the statement of profit and
loss. If at the balance sheet date there is an indication that a previously d i i loss no longer exists, the ¢ 15T 3 and the impai t is

reversed subject to a maximum carrying value of the asset before impairment

2,25 and other ingent liabilities:

Provisions are recognized when the Group has 2 present obhgation {legal or constructive] as 3 result of a past event, it is prabable that the Graup will be required to settle the
g and 3 reli i can be made of the amoynt of the obligatian. if the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the

expected future cash flows to net present value using an approp pre-tax di rate that reflects currenl market assessments of the time vafue of maney and, where

approptlate, the risks specfic to the liability

A present obligation that anses from past events, where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a relrable estimate of the amount cannot
be made, is Gi dasa I Tlabllity. Contingent [labilities are also disclosed when there is a possible obllgation arising from past events, the existence of which will be

confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not whally within the control of the Group Claims against the Group, where the
possibility of any outflow of resources in settlement Is remote, are not disclased as ingent liabiliti

Leamd H

Contingent assets are not recognized in the fi ial since this may result in the recognition of incey aever be , when the real of

ally certain, then the related asset is not a contingent asset and is recagnized
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2.26 Income tax expenses ;
tax P ts the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax

2.26.% Current tax
The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before tax’ as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of
incame or expense that are taxable ar deductible in ather years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's currant tax Is calculated using tax rates that have been

d or sut ively d by the end of the reporting period. The group has opted for lower rate of tax under section 115BAA @ 22% plus surcharge of 10% and cess of 4%
, Effective tax rate being 25.17%
2.26.2 Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recag on 3] y diff b the carrying amaunts of assats and liabilities in the | stat: ts and the corr ing tax bases ysed in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are g Iy ized for all ded
temporary differences ta the extent that it is prabable that taxahle profits will be avallable against which those d ) p vy diffe can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewad at the end of each reporting pencd and reduced to the axtant that it +s no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered

Defarred tax liabilities and assets are measurad at the tax rates that are expected ta apply in the pertod in which the hability 15 settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates {and
rax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporung period.

The measurement of deferred tax habilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would fallow from the manner in which the Group sxpects, at the end of the reporting
period, to recover or settle the carnying amount of its assets and liabilities

2.26.3 Current and deferred tax for the year
Current and deferred tax are recognized in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognized in other comp ive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also r ized in other compret i or directly in equity respectively

2.27 Goods and Service tax input credit
Gaods and Services tax input credit is accounted for in the books for the period in which the supply of goods ar service recewed 15 accounted and when there 15 no uncertainty in
availing/utilising the credits.

2.28 Cash and cash equivalents :

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and shart-term depesits with an oniginal maturity of three months or less

2.29 Proparty, plant and Equipment =

Recognition and measurement
Property, plant and i {PPE} 15 1 when it is p that the future ic benefits d with it will Now ta the group and the cast can be measured

reliably

PPE are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment lossas, If any. Cost comprises the purchase price and any attributable cast of bringing the asset to its working
condition for its intended use. Borrowing costs relating to acquisition of assets which takes substantial period ol time 10 get ready for its intended use are also included to the
extent they relate to the year till such assets are ready to be put to use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted In arriving at the purchase ptice. Gains or losses arising fram
derecognition of such assets are measured as the differance b the net di 1 pi ds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the Statement of Prefit
and Loss when the asset s derecognized.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amaunt or recognized as a separate asset, 3s appropriate only If it is probable that the future ic benefits d
with the item will flow to the Group and that the cost of the item can be reliably measured. The carrying amount of any component accaunted for as a separate asset is
derpcogmzed whea replaced. All other repair and maintenanee expenses are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred

Depreclation
Depreciation is provided on Straight Line Method {*SLM'), which reflects the management’s estimate of the usetul life of the respective assets The estimated useful life used to

provide depreciation are as foliows:

Particutars d useful hfe by the Company Useful Iife a5 per schedule |l of the Companies Act, 2013
Computers 3years 3 years

Gffice Equipment S years S years

Furniture and Flxtures S years 10 years

Servers and networks 5 vears & years

The usefd hves and the method of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate, Changes in the

expected vseful hife are  for by changing the amortisation period or hodology, as appropriate, and J as ct n E

2.30 Intangible assets :

Recogaltion and measurement

An ible asset is r ized anly when its cost can be measurad reliably and it s probable that the expected future economic benefits that are attributabla to it wil flow to the
Group. Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial gnition at cost. Following initial recognition, Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation. The cost of ible assets acquired in a business combinaticn is their fair value as at the date of acquisition

Amortisation

Intangible assets are amortised using the straight line method over a period of 5 years, which 15 the management's estimate of its vseful life The amortisation period and the
amorgisati hod are reviewed at least as at each financial year end, It the expected useful life of the asset is significantly different from previous estimates, the amortisatian
period is changed accordingly. Gains or losses ansing from the retirement or disposal of an intangible asset are determined as the difference ¢ the net di Ip d:

{This space has been left blank intentionally]
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2.31 fareign currency translation :

Initial recognition

Farelgn currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the loreign currency amount the ekchange rate between the reporting currency and the
foreign currency at the date of the transaction

Converslon

Fareign currency monetary items are re-translated using the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date Non-monetary items, which are measured in terms of histoncal cost
denominated in a foreign currency. are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction

Exchange ditferences

All exchange differences are accounted in the Statement of Profit and Loss or Other Comprehensive Income as permitted under the relevant Ind A5

3. Critical accounting judgement and key source of estimate uncenainties

The pr of fi ial ts in ity with the Ind AS req the to make § its, and ions that affect the reported amoynts
of ravenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosure and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reperting year. Estimates amd underlying

i are ravi d on an ing basis isions to i & are ized in the year in which the astimates are revised. Although thase estimates are based
on the s best | ledge of current events and 3ctions, uncertainty aboul these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes frequining a material

adjustment to the carsying amounts of assets or liabilities in future years.

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and entical judgments w apglying accounting poliies that have the most sigmficant effect on the
r in the & Tal isincluded in the ing notes

3.1 Business model assessment :-

The Group determines its business model at the level that best reflects how it groups of fi ial assets to achiave its busi jective. The Group determines its
business mode! at a level that reflects how finaneial assets as a whole and not an individual instrument performs; therefore the busi model i5s developed Basis a higher level of
assessment at portfolic level rather than on granular instrument-level informatian and is based on abservable {actors such as

{i) How the parformance of the business model and the financial assets held within that business model are evaluated and reported to the entity’s key management personnel

{ii) The risks that affect the performance of the businass model and, in particular, the way those risks are managad.

{ii1) The expected frequency, value and timing of sales are also essential aspects of the Group's assessment

b oth

At initial recognition of a financlal asset, the Group determines newly r ized fi {al assets are part of an existing business mode! or whether they reflect a new
buslness model. The Group reassesses it's business model at each reporting period ta determine whether the b model has changed since the p period.

Based on this assessment and future business plans of the Group, the management has measured its financial assets at amortised cost as the asset is held within a business modal
whose ablective is to collect contractual cash flows, and the I terms of the asset Qive rise to cash Mlows that are solely payments of princlpal and interest

3.2 Effactive Interaest rate (EIR) methad :

The Groups EIR methodology recogni i income / exp using 2 rate of ceturn that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected
behavioral life of loans given / taken and recognises the effect of potentially different interest rates at various stages and cther characteristics of the preduct hfe cycle Including
prepayments and peralty interest and charges

This estimation, by nature requires an element of judgement regarding the expected behavior and life cycle of the instrument, as well expected changes Indiz's base rate and other
fee income, expenses that are integral part of the instrument

3.3 impairment of financial assets

The measurement of impairment losses across all categories of financial assets requires judgement, In particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows and
collateral values when determining impairment losses and the of & sii in credit nisk These estimatas are driven by a2 numbar of factors, changas in
which can resultin different levels of allowances.

The Graup's ECL calculations are outputs of models with  number of underlying assumptions regarding the choice of vaniable inputs and thelr interdependencies Elements of the
ECL models that are idered ing judg and include;

= PD caleulation includes historical data, assumptions and lons of future

+ The Group’s eritena for assessing If there has been a sigmificant inceease in credit risk and 50 allawances for financial assets should be measured on 8 hfe-ume expected credit loss
and the qualitative assessment

+ The segmentalion of financial assets when their ECL 15 a35es5ed on a collective basls

« Development of ECL models, including the various lormulas and the choice of inputs

+ Retermination of correlation betwean macroecongmic scenarios and, economic inputs, such as GOP levels and ¢allateral values, and the effect on PRs, EAD and LGD

e Selaction of forward-locking macroaconamic scenarios and their probability weightings, to derive the economicinputs into the ECL models

{t1s Graup’s poliey to regularly review its models in the context of actual loss expenence and adjust when necessary

3.4 impairment of non-financial assets:

The Group assesses at #ach reporting date whethar there is an tndi that an asset may be impairad. If any indication exist, the group astimatas the asset’s recoverable amoynt
An asset’s recoverable amount is higher of an asset’s fair value less cost of disposal and its value n use Where the carrying amount exceeds its recaverable amount, the asset is
considered impaired and is written down to its recovarable amount

3.5 Fairvalue of finandal instruments:

The far value of financial instruments is the price that would be received 1o sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability \n an orderly transaction in the principal {or most
sdvantageous) market at the measurament date under current market conditions {i.a,, an exit price} ragardiess of whather that price is directly ohservable or estimated using
anather valuation technigue When the fair values of finandial assets angd financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be derived from active markets, they are
determined using a variety of valuation techniques that include the use of vatuation models. The inputs to these medels are taken from observable markets where possible, but
where this is not feasible, estimation is required in establishing fair values Judgements and estimates include considerations of hquidity and model inputs related to items such as
credit nsk {both own and party), funding value adj and volatility.

0t

{This space has been left blank intenticnally}
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3.6 Provisions, contingent Liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognized when

i. Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event; and

ii. itis probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and

in. areliable estimate can be made of the amaunt of the obligation.

These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates

Long term provisions are determined by discaunting the expected future cash flows specific to the hability. The unawinding of the discaunt 15 recognized as a fimance cost. A
provision for onerous contraets 15 measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continumg with the
contract, efare 3 pi 15 blished, the Graup ises any impairment lass on the assets associated with that cantract.

G gent liability is di ingase of

1 a present obligation arising from past events, when it 1s not probable that an autflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and
i, 3 present obligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimate 15 possible.

Cantingent liabilities are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

Contingent assets :
Contingent assets are not « dinthefi I < gent asset are disclosed where an inflow of

3.7 Provisians for income taxes :
significant judgments are invalved in determining the provision far income taxes ding judg on whether tax are prob of being rustained in tax A
tax assessment can involve complexissues, which can only be resolved over extended time perlods.

and judg are d They are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectation of future events that may hawe a financial
impact on the groug and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

{This space has been left blank intenucnally)
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Note "a"
cash and cash equivalents {® s lakhs}
Particulars As at Asat

March 31,2025 | Morch3l, 2023
Cash onhand o .
Balance with banks
Cyrrent Hccounts 28,897 57 31.316.8%
Rank deposits with ariginal maturity of less than or equal 1o three 55,342 95 £6,706,15
months
Yotal $4,680.62 40,003 10
Nate 75"
Bank batances other than cash and cash {€in lakhs)
Particulars Asat As st

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Bank deposrs with origmal malurity of mare than three months 41,955 82 42.454.10
Tigual 41,9558 41,454 10
Note: Bank includes dep under lien aggregating 10 Rs. 4,091.10 lakhs (33 at March 31, 2024 Rs. 4,492 98 lakhs} for

3t March 31, 2024 Rs. 10,306.08 lakhs} lor kabilaies ansing out of overdraft fagility

amsng out af

2nd amount mcludes Rs 2,001 13 lakhs {as

Note "6"
Trade recelvables {Xin lakhs)

Particulars Asat As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Receivables cantidered good - Seoyred o -
tvabh idered good -\ d Loz22.34 1,007.80

Recelvables which have significant increase mn credit risk 43.30 -

Recewables ~ cradit impaired .
Total 106554 1007.3

Loss- | Loss. {38.69) [15.57)

Totat 1,026.95 99223
Trade reccivables Ageing
Az 3l March 21, 2025 {2 in lakhs)
Partiulars Curgnt but not Outstanding for following periods (rom due date of payment

due tetsthan s emonths - § pear 1-2 years 2-3years Maore than 3 years Total
months

Receivables cansidered gaod - Securad 573.01 408 83 .67 - 99152
Receivablas which have significant increase In credit ask - 30.82 431.30 7412
Tolat $73.02 439.65 .67 4130 1,065.69
Less' Imparment Loss Allawance {38.69)
Toial 1 0:!&9__5_
As at March 31, 2024 {X1n lakhs)
Particulars Current but not [ For perods from due date af

due Lessthan 6 6 months - 1 year 1-2 years 2-3years More than 3 years Tatal
months

Receivables considered good « Secured 93962 7.07 1111 1,007.80
Recelvables which have signifi¢cant Inceedse in credit risk - - -
Total » 989,62 7.07 1L.11 1,007 .80
Less: Imparment Loss Allowance [15.57}
s 20223 |

G 1{i] Ha trade czceivables ace due froin Girectors or other efficers of the Company cithar severally of jamntly with any athar perien o debis due by firms including lmied habibty pannecstops (LLPs], private Zompanacs
respectively in which any direcior is a parner or a direcior or amember

6 1 |w) Notrade receivables are due from selated partres
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Nate "1
Loans [% In |akhs}
Particulars Asat Asat
March 31, 2025 Moarch 31, 2024
{A) Loan portfelio
at amen Ised cost
{1} Term leans 3,43,458.22 3,328,638 03
at falr value through OC1
§i) Term loans 89,628 05 -
Total gross loans 4,33,126.27 3,23,638.09
Eess : Impairment [035 slowance
# amortised €ost {9,058.98) {5,266 66)
31 falr vahue through OCI {500.47) -
Total Impairment locs allowance {2,555.45) {5,266.66)
Tetal et foans 4,23.566.82 3,23,371.37
(B} Of tha above
{i} Secured against fand, burtding & machinery 2,81,943 35 2,12,238.8%
il) Unsecured 1,51,182.91 1,16,393.12
Total gross {oans 4,33,126.27 3,26,638.03
Lees ¢ Impalrmant kst allowance
{1} $ecuted ageinst land, building & machinery (3,537 86) {1,671.72)
[#) Wnsecured {6,021 59) {3.594.94)
Tatal Impairment loss allowance (9.559.45) (5,266.65)
Total Net Loans 4,23,566.82 35159371.37
Loan portfolic
1) Of the above
Loans in India
{i] Public Sectar - -
{ii} Dthers 4,33,126 27 3,28,638.03
Totel gross loans 4,33,126 27 3,20,638.03
L2435 : Impalrment [ess allowanee
{lpPublic Secrer . -
{ii) Cihers 19.559 45] (5,266.66}
Tatal i loss (9.559.95} (5.265.56).
Total Net Loans a&a.sss.sz 113‘371 37
Total net loans [a} 4,23,566.82 3,23,37137
Loans outside India (b]
Total net loans Sal ¢|b| 4£,_SGG 82 3|2!,JJI 37

7.1 Collateral

Loans granted by the Group are secured by any or all of the following as applicable. based on ther categorisation
a} EquitabTe / registered morigage of propernty.
b) Undertaking to creare a security,

7.2 The Group has pravaded ne loanz in current year ta promotors, dirgelors, KMPs and the ralated parties olher than as mentiened In APT {refer - Note no. 45 |

7.31 d Loans unsecured Ieans which is d by Credit Guarantee Fund Trust for Micra and Small €nterprises (CGTMSE) and Credit Guarantee Fund for Micro Units (CGFMUJ amounting to
Re, 59,794.64 Lakhs (March 31, 2024 Rs. 34,813 38 Lakhs)

7 4There were ne loans given agains the collateral of gold jewellery & hence the percentage of such laans ta the 1atal autstanding assets {as at March 31, 2024 15 Nil)

7.5 Jarice with s ing policy for & model the Group has designated cenaln ioans orlginated from Cctober 1, 2024 at fair value thraugh other comprehensive income (*FVOCH), which
will be he'd within a model whose will be by both holding these |leans 1o collect cantractual cashflows and te sell,

{This space has Leen left blank intentionally) __\
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Note *8"
Investinents
[%in lakhs}
Particulars A3 at March 31, 2025
Amortised Cost At Falr value Total
Through Other Through Profitar | Designated threugh Subtotal
Comprehensive Loss Profit or Loss
Income
Invastrent in Cebentures 11,5338 1153738
Investmaent in Commercial Papears 19,342.62 1347 62
Investment in Pass Through Cenificates 8,132.08 - . 8132 0%
tin 12,920 12 - S 4 12,520.22
Investmeia in Mutual Funds - - 8,643 81 364391 §,643.51
inuup - - 9926 93.26 99.26
m:j {A) 42,937.31 8,743.17 Bl'hﬂ.l? it,ﬁ!ﬂ. L]
Investment outside India - - - -
Investment in india 42,937.31 8,743 17 8,743.17 51,680.48
Total !ll 42,937,31 EI'MS.I? §,743.17 5&‘ 680.48
Less: Impairment loss Allawanee {€] {13.73) = 113.73)
Tatal IDI A-Cl %358 - 83,7437 BITIS.IT 51Iﬁﬁ6.75
{1 Lkhs)
Particulars As a1 March 31, 2024
Amartised Cost At Falr Value Total
Through Other Through Prafit or | Designated thraugh Subtatal
Comprehensive Loss Profit or Lots
{ncome
lnvestment in Government Securitles 35,809 76 - o = o 25,899.76
in Mytual Funds . 203.19 203.19 203.19
Investment in ULIF 42.62 4151 47.62
Total {4) ZSIIMJS - M 250.81 ISI 150.57
Investment culsde ndia - - 5 5
Investment in India 45,899.76 = 25081 250.81 26,150.57
Total sB) 25 853.76 - M. w_l zslxso.sa'
Less: impairment loss altowance (€] (053] £0.59]]
Total (D 4-C) 25,899.17 25051 25081 26,149.98 |
8.1 Investmenis measured ut amortised cost
{%in akhs}
Parliculars As at Masch 31, 2025 A< at March 31, 2024
Stage-1 Stage - 2 Stage- 3 Total Staga- 1 Stage -2 Stage - 3 Total
Invesiment in Debentures 1.,537.38 . - 11,537.18 -
Invesiment in Commerdal Papers 10,3472.62 - 10,347,562 S
Investment in Pass Through Cerificales 8,132.09 - 8,132.08 - o
|Investment in Government Securities 12,920 22 - 12,920.22 25,499 76 25,899.76
‘lo_ul EZIS 37.3L 42,937.31 25,899.76 - ZSEBBB. 76
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8.2 an enalysls of changes in the gross carrying amount and the corcespanding ECLS 14, 83 Tellows

1% 11 fakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Stage - 1 Stage -2 Stage -3 Total Stage-1 Stage -2 Stage-3 Total
Gross carrying amount - opening balance 25,899.76 25,899.74 3,553,99 = 3,553.9%
dvew assets originated ar purchased 43,93731 42,937.3% 1589976 - 25,899.76
Assels derecognised or matured {excluding write: (25.599.75]| IZS,!QQ.JG!I (3,553.99] - {3,553.99)
Total 42,937.31 42,937 31 ZSEBH.TE 25, 898,76
{® inlakhs)
Partlculars As at March 31, 2025 Asat March 31, 2024
Stage-1 Sege -2 Stage-3 Total Stage-1 Stage - 2 Stage-3 Total
Gpening balente In ECL 053 059 10.36) {0.35)
New atscls eniginated o purchased 13.73 13.73 0.59 0.59
Recoveries 0 59) {0.59, 0.36 9,36
Total 13.73 15,73 955 0.53
Note "9™
Qher tinancial assets
{%on lakhs)
Partlculars as at As al
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Securily depesits 73214 67333
Receivable from assigned and colent portioho® 33,927.46 18.304.31
Other Recewable 152496 5.050.07
Tozal 36,184.56 24,022.71
Legs: Imparment Loss Allowance {327.44) (128.39}
Fatal Financlsl Assets ZSET 12 23,8983

“With respect ta assignment and co-lending deals, \he Group has created an Excess interest Spread {E15) receivable with carrespanding ¢redit ta Profit and loss for the year, which has been computed by discounting Excess Interest
Spread {EIS) 10 preseni value with necessary estimate and assumptians

{Thrs space has been left biank intentianally)




Protium Finance Limited

Notes to the C lidates Financial Stat.

Mate “10"
Property, plant and equipment

As at March 31, 202§ {2 in lakhs)
Description Gross Block Depreciatlen Net block
Asat Additlons Disposalf As at Asat Depreciation durlngl Bisposalf As at Asat As at
April 01, 2024 Adjustments March 31, 2025 Aprll 01, 2024 the year Ad)us March 31, 2025 Aprll 01, 2024 Marceh 31, 2025
[Right of Use Assets 2,930.41 945,52 (10.57) 386536 1,015.16 1,438.94 {10.21) 2,443.89 1,915.26 1,421.47
Leaseho!d Improvements 58295 41.50 {1.00) 62345 148.33 146.30 {0.50) 334.13 434,62 285,32
Furniture and fixtures 247,05 40.77 [0.88) 286.94 36.36 31.51 {0.47) 67.40 210.69 219.54
Office equipment 248163 69.56 {10.60) 300.59 119.44 38.97 {9.53) 148.88 12219 15171
Camputers 1,146.48 188.86 {339.75) 995.59 682.65 272.51 {190.35) 769,81 458.83 225.78
Total 5,148.51 1,286.21 1362.80) 6.071.93 2,006.94 1,968.25 {211.08) 3,764.11 3,141.59 2,307.82
As at March 31, 2029 {2 in lakhs)
Deseription Gross Block Depreciation Net block
Asat Additions Disposal/ Asat As at Depreclatien durlng Disposal/ As at As at Asat
April 01, 2023 Adj ts March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023 the year Ad] ts March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023 tMarch 31, 2024

Right of Use Assets 1.221.82 2,322,77 (614,18) 2,93041 509.15 831.80 (325.79} 1,015.06 712,67 1,915.26
Leasenold Improvements 129.56 553.79 1100.40) 582.95 48,70 164.22 {64.59) 148.33 B0.86 434.62
Furniture and fixcures 103.03 235.35 {91.33) 247.05 14.73 29.51 (7.889) 36.36 £8.30 210.69
Office equipment 176.60 66,98 [1.95) 241.63 63.97 56.61 [1,14) 119.44 112.63 122.19
Computers 972.55 182.87 {18.94) 1,146.48 406.38 295.25 {13.96) £87.65 566.19 45883
Total 2,603.55 3,371.76 {B26.80) 5,148.52 1,042,91 1,377.38 [413.35) 2,006.94 1,560,65 3,141.59

Note: None of the above assets have been pledged.

(This space has baen left blank intentionally)




Pratium Finance Limited

Notes to the Cc {idated Financlal

MNote "11"

Intangible assets and imtangible assets under development

A} Other intanglible assets

As at March 31, 2025 {® in lakhs)
Deseription Gross Block Amortlzation Met block
As at Additlons Clsposal/ As at As at Amortization during Dlsposalf Asat Asat Asat

Aprll 01, 2022 Adjustments March 31, 2025 April 01, 2023 the year March 31, 2025 April 01, 2024 March 31, 2025
Softwaras 5,615 47 1,145.72 {7.55) 6,753.64 2,344.21 1,208.54 16.64) 3,546.11 3,271.26 3,207.53
Intang:bie Others - - - - - . . .
Total 5,615.48 1,145.72 {7.55) 6,753.64 2,344.21 1,208.55 {6.64) 3,546.11 3,271.26 3,207.53
As at March 31, 2024 {X in lakhs)
Description Gross Block Amortlration Net block

As at Additions Hsposal/ As at As at Amortization during| Disposal/ As at As at As at

April 01, 2023 Ad] March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023 the year Adjustrs March 31, 2024 Aprll 01, 2023 March 31, 2024
Softwares 430030 1,315.17 B 5,615.47 1,329.72 1,014.49 - 2,344.21 2,970.58 3,271.26
Intangible Others 504 - {5.04) - 2.31 0.86 13.27) - 2.73
Total 4,305.35 1,315.17 {5.04) 5,615.47 1,332.03 1,015.46 {3.27) 12&4‘!.21 2,973.31 3,271.26
8) Intangible under d, (X 1n lakhs)

Cescription As at Asat
March 31, 2025 April 01, 2024
Intangible under develeopment 87.55 111.06

Total 47.55 111.06
Schedule of ageing of compietlon of intangible assets under development :
As at March 31, 2025 (% in lakhs)
(i} Particulars Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
|Projects in progress 87.55 = = £ 47.55
Agat March 31, 2024 (% In lakhs)
Daseription Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
Prgjects in prograss 111.06 111.06

Note: There are no projects whose completlon 15 averdue or has

ded its cost comp

d to its ariglnal ptan.




Protlum Finance Limited

Notes 1o the C lidated Financial
Note 12"
Other non-financlal assets {Tin lakhsl
Particulars Asat Asax
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

GSTinput credit 2542.14 684.17
Prepaid expensas 805.71 768.17
Salary Advance 18.56 215
Advances with others 374.70 22860
Gihets 465.43 314.32
Total 4,311.54 2,004.41
Note "33"
Dedivative financiat instrements
A3 3t March 31, 2025 (% in Igkhs)
; Notional Fair value assets Fair value llabities
Cath flow hedge

- Cross curtency and Intetest rate swap® 17.091 90 4152
As 21 March 31, 2024 (% in takhs)
Partioulars Notional amounts Fair value assets Fair value labilities
Cath flow hedge

- Cross cutrency and Interest rate swap® 27,464 40 3504

Nate : The Group has board approved policy for entering into derivative transactions
*Derivatives comprises of cross currency interest rate swap entersd by the Company 1o hedge foretgn turrency borrowings. Refer matenal accounting policy for dervative financial instruments

Note “1a%
Trade payables (T in lakhs)
Particutars As at Asat

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Yrade payabkes
Dye to micro 3nd small enterpnses 3a7 32 916.66
(o others 479,96 1.481.4%
Total 82128 2,398.15

Cetalls of dues 10 mierd, medium and small enterprises
The amounts due to Micre and Small Enterprises as defined in the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2008, has been determined to the extent of inf i lable and led by the
Group. This has been relied upon by the auditors

{This space ks Leen left blank intentianally)




Protium Finance Limited

Notes 1o the G Fimanaial

Disclasure pertalning to Micra and Small are asunder (Wi lakhs)
Particulars Asat Asat
March 31, 2025 March 33, 2024
{i} The principal amount and the interest due theseon remaning unpaid to any supplier at the end of each 3eeoynting year, 3ar.32 91666
{ii} The amount af interest paid by the buyer interms of secucn 16 of the Micsa, Small and tMed) E Devel Act, 2005, along with the ameunt of the
|payment macde to the supplier beyond the appointed day duning cach accounting year
{iil) The amaunt of interest due and payable for the period of delay in inaking payment (which has been paid but beyond the appointed day during the yearjbut withoul
adding the interest specifled under the Micro, Small and D Act, 2006
{Iv] The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end af each accounting year, and
{v} The amount of further interest remaining due and payable evenin the wweceeding years, until such date when the interast dues abave are actually paid ta Ihe small
lemterprise, lor the of di ofa P under saction 23 of the Micro, Small and Entesp: D Act, 2006
Tatal 347,32 216 66
e ——
Trade payables agelng schedule ;
As at March 31, 2025 {Tin lakhs)
[Pacviculars [+] ding for perfads from due date of
Current but not due Less than 1year 1-2years 2-3years More than 3 years Total
(i) MSME 40 3% 697 34712
i} Others arsa 129 80 2162 479 86
ifi) Drsputed dues ~ MSME .
[iv} Disputed dues « Others - B
[Total_ 7 33 736.77 262 - 82718
—
Asat March 31, 2024 {Xin lakhe)
Particulars [+ for following perlads from due date of payment
Current but not due tessthan 1year -2 years 2-3years More than 3 years Total
(§) MSME 916.66 . . 416 66
{H) Othars 1478.89 207 052 1,481.48
(Wi} Disguted dues — MSME -
{iv] Di d dues - Others 1
Total - 2,395.55 207 052 2,398.14
{Thie space has been left blank intentionally)
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Protium Flnance Limited

Notes to the C Fi fal

Note "15"

Debt securitles {%inlakhs)

Panticulars Asat As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

At amortized cost

Secured

(1) Secured

Listed redeemable non convertible debentures 251794 10,592 30

(1) Unsecured - -

Total 2,517.94 10,592.30

B) Out of above

Debt securities in India 2,517.54 10,592 30

Debt securities outside India - -

Total 2,517.94 10,552.30|

Terms of repayment of Non Convertible Debentures [NCDs}

As at March 31, 2025

Serles detafls Face value per Date of all t *Bal asat rate % per | Dateof redemption | Redeemable terms

debenture March 33, 2025 annum
{in lakhs] (Rs In Lakhs)

|8 79%p.2_p m.Protiurn Finance Limited 1.00] 17-04-2023 251794 9.79% 25-04-2025 Annual
As at March 31, 2024

Series detalls Face value per Date of allotment *Balance as at Interest rate % per | Date of redemption | Redeemabla terms

debenture March 31, 2024 annum
[Inlakhs) Rs in Lakhs]

Protium22:23-A-PPMLD-Sep2024 10.00| 22-12-2022 5,564 41 8.93% 22-09-2024 Butlet
9 79%p.a.p.m.rotium Finanea Limited 1.80] 17-04-2023 5,027 89 979% 25-04-2025 Annual

*Balances as at March 31, 2025 is after considering the Impact of unamortised processing fees Rs. 0.65 Lakhs (March 31, 2024 Rs, 46.18 Lakhs)

Nature of i Dek are by hy of specifiad term loan receivablas
Nate “16"
Barrewings [other than debt securities) (X in lakhs}
Particulars Asat As at

March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
At amortised cost
[a} Term loans
{1} From banks 2,43,384.03 1,55,376 55
[} From othar parties 82,409,086 §9,625 32
(b} External commer<ial borrowings 49,976 57 27,665 66
{¢) Loans repayable on demand
Bank overdraft 1,900.03 11,150.33
Total{a+b+c} 3,77,668.69 2.53,717.35
Borsrowings in India 3,27,693.12, 2,265,052 20
Borrowings outside Indea 43,976.57 27,658 66
Total 3,77,669.69 2.53,717.86
Sacurad barrowings 3,77.669.69 2,53,717.86
Unsecured borrowings - -
Total 3.77,669.69 2,53,717.86)

Disclosure pertaining ta stock statement filed with banks or

3. The group has availed of the facilities [secured borrowings) frem the lenders and these loans are secured by an exclusive first charge by way of hypothecation of dentifiad books debts and recewvables
b. Quarterly returns or statements of book debts and receivables filad by tha group with banks, financial Institutions and trustee are In agreement with the boak of accounts,

{This space has been left blank intentronaily)




Protium Finance Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 16(a){i) Secured term loan fram bank :

As at March 31, 2025 {® in lakhs)
Repayment Term Interest range Residual tenure on balance sheet date As at
March 31, 2025
Manthly 9.14%-11% Upte 1 Year 5,373.48
1 to 3 Years 34,081.95
3to 5 Years 21,904.99
ate 7 Years 23,511.93
Upto 1 Year 5,080.16
1to3Years 55,745.57
Quarterly 809% - 11% Jto5Years 79,728.87
Ste 7 Years 19,584.00
Add: Intesest acerued 332,75
Less: EIR impact {1,959.67)
Total 2,43,384.03
As at March 31, 2024 {% in Jakhs)
Repayment Term Interest range Residual tenure on balance sheet date As at
March 31, 2024
Manthly 8.34%-11% Upta 1 Year 7,585.44
1to 3 Years 48,653.23
3to 5 Years 35,585.22
5to 7 Years 12,389.50
Quarterly B8.58%- 10 75% 1to 3 Years 30,645.05
3105 Years 21,761.58
Add: Interest accrued 202 31
Less: EfR impact {1.445.78)
Total 1,55,376.55 |

Nature of security
Term loan fraom bank i1s secured by hypathecation of specified term loan recevables

Note 16{a){il} Secured term loan from other parties

As at March 31, 2025 (X in lakhs)

Repayment Term Interest range Residual tenure on balance sheet date Asat
March 31, 2025

Monthly 9.50% - 10.40% Upto 1 Year 2,720.91

1 to 3 Years 14,375.00

Quarterly 5,60% - 9 90% 110 3 Years 14,249.54

3t 5 Years 33,498.78

Monthly B.50% - 9,25%* Lpto 1 Year 237.87

1 1o 3 Years 4,676.60

3 to 5 Years 1,063.10

5 ta 7 Years =

7 10 10 Years 7.4¥2.16

10 to 12 Years 4,143.47

Add: Interest acerued 179.26

Lass: EIR impact (157.74)

Yatal 82,409.06

As at March 31, 2024 (% in lakhs)
Repayment Term Interest range Residual tenure on balance sheet date As at

March 31, 2024

Monthly 9.50% - 10.40% Upto 1 Year 503.26

1 to 3 Years 23,012.87

Monthly 8.50% - 9.40%* 1te 3 Years 13,758.38

5 to 7 Years 3,245.59

7 to 10 Years 3,455.26

10 to 12 Years 15,600.88

Add._ Interest accrued 130.01

Less: EIR impact (240.92)

Total 59,525.32

* Pertains to liabilities arising out of Securitizations




Protium Finance Limited

Nates te the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 16(b) Secured external commercial borrowings

As at March 31, 2025 {% in lakhs)
Repayment Term Interest range Reskiual tenure on balance sheet date Asat
March 31, 2025
Bullet Annually 952%- 10 14% 1to 3 Years 28,241 88
3to 5 Years 21,395.35
Add: Interest acerued 733.80
Less: EIR impact {394.44)
Total 49,576.57
As at March 31, 2024 (% in lakhs)
Repayment Term | (Interest range Residual tenure on balance sheet date As at
March 31, 2024
Buliet 9 62% - 10.14% 1103 Years 27,464.40
Interest accrued 531.98
EIR impact (330.72)
Total 27,665.66
Note 16(c) Secured bank averdraft -
As at March 31, 2025 % 1n lakhs)
Repayment Term Interest range Resldual tenure on balance sheet date As at
March 31, 2025
Bullet 6 25% Upto 1 Year 1,900.03
Add: interest accrued
Less: EIR impact
Total 1,900.03
As at March 31, 2024 {2.in lakhs)
Repayment Term Interest range Residual tenure on balance sheet date As at
March 31, 2024
Bullet 8.05%-8.31% Upto 1 Year 11,150.33
Interest accrued
EIR impact
Total 11,150.33

Nature of secunity

Term loan fram bank 15 secured by specifiad bank FD
Note ; Average cost of all above borrowing |5 at March 31, 2025, 9.36% p a (tarch 31, 2024, 9 56% p.a)

(This space has been left blank intentionally)
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Notes to the Cc lidated Financial
Note "17"
Other financial liabilities {in lakhs)
Partlculars Asat Asat
Maech 31, 2025 | March31, 2024
Lease habilities (refer note nc 44) 1,514.41 1,946.80
Accrued expenses 4,153.58 1,488 49
Payable towards assigned and colent portfalio 4,840.28 2,511.00
Cther payables 316.54 §,263.14
Total 10,824.81 14,209.43
Note "18"
Provisions {®in lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
Gratuity 490.56 282.39
Compensated absences 57.43 51.20
Total 547.99 333,59
Note “19"
Deferred tax liabitities {net) (% in [akhs)
Partieulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
Deferred tax habilities (refer note no 33) 5,609.68 3.512.41
Nate 20"
Other non-finandal labilitles {% in lakhs)
|Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
Statutory liabilities 1,271.93 522.47
Advanee from customers 1,782.21 2,703.74
Total 4,034.14 3,233.22

({This space has been left blank intentionally)




Protium Finance Limited

Notes to the Ce d Fil

Note “217
Equity share capltal

(3} Retails of authorised, issued and subscribed share caplial

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 34, 2024

No. af Shares Xinlakhs Np. of Shares Xin lakhs
Autharlied share capital
Equity shares of % 10 cach 15,60,09,300 15.600.93 15.60.09,300 1560053
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up
Equity shares of X 10 cach 14,56,92,141 14,569.21 14,51,82,330 14.514.23
Total 14,55, 24.569.21 14,51.,42,330 14,514.21 |
{al(§} Recoacliiation of equlty sharas autstanding at the beginning and 2t the end of the reporting vear
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 34, 2024

No. of Shares € in lakhs No. of Shares % In lakhs
Equity shares
AL the commencement of the year 14,51,42,330 14.514.23 9.46,77,800 9467.78
Issued during the year 549 811 54.93 504 54 530 5 046.45
Wit the end of the yea 12.56.92.141 1456921 3451,42.3301 1451423 |
{b) Rights, pr andr. ttached to equity shares
The Holding Company has single ¢lass equity shares having a par value of T 10 per equity share. Accordingly, all equity shares rank equallv with regard to di ds and Halding C share in the Group's residual

assets. The equity shares are entitied to receive dividend as declared from time to time subject to pay

.

shares will be entitled to receive the

ir £

ol d dtzpi

present in person and holding any equity share capital thareln, shall have one vote, In respect of such capitat, on every resolution placed belore the Halding Company

{c] Equity shares held by halding Company

s.n the event of fiquidation of the Helding Camparvy, the hoMers of equity
| assets of the Holding Company, remaining after distribution of all preferential amounts in prapartion ta the numbar of equity shares held. Upan show of hands, every member

Particulars

As at Maich 31, 2025

No. of Shares | & In lakhs

As at March 31, 2024
No.ofshares | X In lakhs

Consillence Capital Management and It's nominee 14,41,44,753( 14414 48 14,421,244 755] 1443448
fd) Details af shareholderis) holding mare than 5% of equity shares In the group
Particulars AS at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

No. of Shares % Holding Na. of Shares % Holdin,
Consllience Capital Management and it's naminea 14.a1.44 759] 9B.94% I 14,41,43,159] 99.31% I

(e] There are no bonus shares Issued or shares lssued for consideralion other than cash or shares baught back during the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 1024,

and

(1) There are ne shares reserved for lssue under apti

{2) Equity shares held by Promaters

for 1he sale of shares or disinvestment during the year ended March 3%, 2025 and March 31, 2024,

As at March 31, 2025
Na. of Sharas I % of tatal shares

As at March 31, 2024

No.ofSharcs | % oftotal shares |

% Change during

Shares held by promaters at the end of the year
S. No. |Promoter Name the vear
1 [Consilience Capital Manapement and it’s nominee 14,41,44,759 | 98.94% 14,4144 339 | 9931% 0.37%
{h) For Group's abjectives, polticles and processes for managing capital, refer note -41
i} Shares reserved for isive under emplovee stock option olan
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 202¢
N4, of Shares No. of Shares
fquay shares of Rs 10 each 30,95,278 29,406,346

(This space has been left blank intentionally)
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Notesta the C lidated Fi lal 5

Hota "22"

Dhar ¢quit % i lakhs)
Particuters As at March 31, 2025 | As at March 31, 2024
Sequrilies premium accaunt’ 1.98,929.53 1.97.780 10
Share based payment reserve’ 93522 438 66
Statutery reserve (created under Secuan 45-1C of the RBI Act, 1934} 7.27562 385549
Retained carnings* 25,507.56 11,842.75
[General reserve® 38.17

Cash How hedge reserve® {918.13) (26 22)
Tu_ul 221 761_”' 213,891 78

1) Securities premivm:
Share prenium is credited when shares are ssued a1 premlum and with the lair value of the stock oplions which are treated as expense, if any, in respect of shares allotied pursuani to Employee Siock Options $cheme
Share premium can be utilised only for limiled purposes such as issuance of bonus shares or ad] of share issue nelaftax, as issible under the Ce ies act, 2013,

2)share based payment reserve
Share aptions autstanding actount rs orealed as required by INDAS 102 ‘Share Based Payments on the Employee Stock Option Scheme d by the Ce far ! af the Group

3} Statutory reserve {created under Sectlon 45-1C of the RBI A2, 1934)
Satutory reserve is created as per the terms of section 45 1C{1) of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 by the Holding Company.

4] Retained earnings

Relained garnings represents the surplut in profit and loss account and ncl amaunt of appropristions made toffrom i ings. The Group change on account of remeasurement of the net defined
benefit liability {asset) as part of retained earnings with separate , which ises of fal gains and losses: (b} return an plan assets, excluding amounts included o net interest on the net defined
benetit tiability {2sset}, {c] any change in the effect of the asset ceilmg, excluding amounts included In net Interest an the net defined benefit hability {assel)

£} General reserve
The reserve can be distnibuted/ utlized by Lhe Company, in accordance with The Compantes Act, 2015

6) Cash flow hedge ceserve
I represents the cumulative gains/{losses) arising on revaluation of the dervative instruments designated as cash flow hedges through OC1 and underlying hedged nems

(This space has beea left blank intentionally)
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Notas to the C Id. 1 F | 5¢ 1

Note “23"

Reveaue from aperations % in lakhs)
|Particulars For the year ended | For the year anded

March 31, 2025

On financlal assets measured at amaortized cost

March 31, 2024

interest Income on Loans 55.890 30 46,680.29
Interest Income from (nvestments 2,367,06 1,114 60
Interest on fixed deposits with banks 7.,184.67 2,217 65
On financial assets measured at fair value theough OC1
Interest income gn loans 3,904, 52
Total 69,346 .55 51,012.54
Note 24"
Fees and i3 sii (% 1n lakhs}
Particulars For the year ended | Farthe year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
fees and commission Income 7,020.58 307514
Facilitation Fees 2,409.59 2,071.34
Total 9,430.15 5,150.48
241 hical markets {%in lakhs)
EParticulars Far the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Within India 9,430.15 5,150.48
Qutside india -
Tatal 9,430.15 5.150.48
24.2 Timing of revenue recagnition {Z in lakhs)
Particufars For the year ended | For the year ended
Services transferred at a point in time 9,274 21 5,116.78
Services transferred over time 155 94 33.70
To_lal 9,430.15 5,150.48
Note "25"
Net gain/{loss) on fair value changes {% in lakhs}
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Net gain/ {loss} on financial instruments at fair value through profit of loss
- Investmants 533.11 6414
-Loans 3,352.64
Total 3,485.75 6414
Falr value changes:
« Realised 326.08 58,77
- Unrealised 3,499.67 5,37
Total 3,885.75 54,14
Note “26"
Net gain on der ition of fi ial instr under amortised cost category (% in lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
'Gain on deracognition of fi al i under amortised cost category 22,03B.58 16,535.41
Total 22,038.58 16,535 41
HNote "27"
Other income {¥in lakhs)
|Particulars For theyearended | Forthe year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Recovery against writtan-off financial assets 219801 567.92
Others* 661.78 2,421 05
Total 2,859.7% 2,988.97
*Includes interast on incame tax refund, marketing income etc
Note "28
Flnance Cost {Xin lakhs)
Partlculars For the yeas ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Measured at amortized cost on financial liabilities
Interest on borrowings other than debt securities 29,602 7% 17,714.98
Interast on debt securities 550 14 1,024.25
Interest on fease liabihties 203 48 181.25
Other finance cost 9783 77,22
Tatal 30,444,24 18,997.70




Protium Finance Limited

Naotes to the C lidated Fi lal S
Note "29"

pail on fi fal instr 1% in lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
On fi tal Inst ] at ] cost
Impairment an financial instruments 4,496 55 2,006,53
Loans written off 9,192 83 4,566.22
Loss on Foreetosure of Loans 1,510.85 218.67
Total 15.200.23 6,791.42
Note "30"
Employee benefits expense (% 1n lakhs}
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Employee benefits expense
Salaries and wages 22,363.75 19,593 15
Contribution to and prewvision for

Provident and other funds 81099 70169

Gratuity fund [refer note no 37) 143.23 11009
Share based paymant (rafer note no. 38) B25.46 439.66
Stafl welfare expenses 748 45 57015
Total 24,891.88 21,414.74
Note “31"
Dep ion and amor {%in lakhs)
|Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended

March 31, 2025

| Maich 31,2024 |

Depreciatlon on property, plant and equipmant 1,968.24 1,377.38
Amor ion on i ible assats 1,208 54 1,01545
Total 3,176,78 2_.{_392.83
Note "32"

Other expenses (% nfakhs)
particulars For the year ended for the year ended

March 31, 2025

tiarch 31, 2024

Loan Ongination and Servicing Costs 3,332.09 4,000.6%
IT axpanszes 1,674.44 134273
Insyrance 1,33208 87.81
Traveliiag and conveyance 119671 851.90
Legal and professional charges 875.64 1,182.52
Collection Charges 743.04 644.25
Offlee Expenses 50t 53 s2211
B pr i {7 22743 108.83
Rent, rates and taxes 207.13 600.05
|Dicector’s fees, allowanees, and expenses 186 57 11894
Electritity charges 185.13 187.45
Corporate Sccial Responsibility 18354 67.80
(Auditor fees and expenses 162 14 o155
Printing and statlonery 127.01 151,83
Pastage and courler 77.44 96,83
Bank Charges 63.24 47.99
Communication Costs 59.70 23.37
Repairs and maintenance 47.88 47.01
Iviembership & Subscription 4273 102,57
Loss on Sale / Scrap of Fixed Assets 17.11 46.50
Other axpensas 17 15.27
Brakerage & Commission 242 618
Total 11,253.17 10,304.23
Payment to auditors includes: {in lakhs)
Particulars Far the year ended For the year ended
htarch 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

a) For Statytary aydit 96.85 48,08
B} For limited review 32.70 16 35
¢] For takation matters 654 719
d) For other services (certificates) 21380 1993
¢) For reimbursement of expenses 4.25 -
Total 162.14 91 55
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Ceferred tax Nabifities (net)

33.1 Reconciliation of total tax charge

(R in lakhs}

|Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Current tax 2,790.15 149364
Adjustment to tax relating to earlier penods (329.78) -
Deferred tax 3,010.37 2,681.84
Total tax exp recognised in the current year 5470.74 4,175.48
Income tax expense recognised In other comprehensive 31312 17.92
income
Income tax expense for the year reconciled to the
accounting profit
Profit before tax 22,594.62 15,850.61
Income tax rate 25.17%! 25.17%
Income tax expense 5,687.07 3,989 60
Tax efHect o
Effect of Ind AS adjustments {net} (4,231.45) (3,264 53)
limpairment of Loans 1,131.64 505.04
Expanses allowed under Income Tax Act, 1961 (1,508.51) {389.74)
Disall under Income Tax Act, 1961 4,392.99 3,335.11
Income tax expense recognised in profit and loss 5470.74 4,13548

33.2 The followlng table shows deferred 1ax recorded in the balance sheet and changes recorded In the Income tax expense:

As at March 31, 2025 (R in lakhs)
Particulars Opening balances as | Recognlsed in profit | Recognised in nther | Closing balances as
on April 01, 2024 or loss (Exy 3V compr | on March 31, 202%
Income income
Deferred tax asset
Impairment of financial instruments 1,365.95 1,131.74 - 2,501.68
Disallowances under section 436 of the Income Tax Act, 1961 71.10 {62.65) 13.11 2155
Fair valuation of derwative financials instrument 882 (8.82) 300.00 300.00
Total Deferred tax asset 1,449 B6 1,060 26 31312 2,823.24
Deferred tax liabilities
Ind AS adjustment (effective interest rate on fee income and {5,113 91} [4,318.95) - (9,432.87)
7 EIS an assig t)
Difference between bocks and tax written down value of {248.36) 248 31 {005}
fixed assets
Total deferred tax liabilities (5,362.27) (4,070.65) {9,432.91)
Total 3,912.41 (3,010.39} 31312 [6,609.68)
As at March 31, 2024 [%in lakhs)
Particulars Opening balances as | Recognised in profit | Recognised in other | Closing balances as
on April 01, 2023 or loss {Expense) / compr i on March 31, 2024
Income Income
Delerred tax asset
Impairment of financlal Instruments 864,90 505 04 . 1,369.95
Disallowances under section 438 of the lncome Tax Act, 1961 4478 1721 9.10 7110
Fair valuation of derivative financials instrument - - 8.82 3.82
Total Deferred tax asset 909.69 52225 1r.92 1,449.86
Deferred tax liabilities
Ind AS adjustment (effective interest rate on fee income and {1,761.34) (3,352.58} - (5,113.91)
P EIS on assi ]
Difference between books and tax wnitten down value of (396 85) 148.50 + (248 36)
fixed assets
Total deferred tax liabilities {2,158.19) {3,204.08) - {5,362.27)
Total (1,248.50)] {2.681.82) 17.92 53!912 41!
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Note "34"
Earnings per share {'EPS’)

Basic earnings per share Is calculatea by dividing the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Group by the

weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to eguity shareholders of the Group with the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year adjusted for assumed conversion of all dilutive

potential equity shares.,

i. Profit attributable to equity shareholders:

{Xin lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Profit/ (loss) after tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss 17,123.88 11,675.13
Net profit attributable to equity shareholders for caleulation of Basic EPS 17,123.88 11,675.13
Met profit adjusted for the effects of dilutive potential equity shares for| 17,123.83 11,67513
calculation of Diluted EPS
ii. Weighted average number of Shares and earnings per share (EPS)
Particulars For the yearended | For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Weighted average number of equity shares used as the denomirator in 14,53,08,026 10,95,68,973
calculating basic earnings per share
Adjustments for calculation of diluted earnings per share:
Weighted average number of equity shares and potential equity shares 14,57,63,753 10,95,68,973
used as the denominator in caleulating diluted earnings per share
Effact of dilution:
Employes stock options 4,55,727
Basic 2arnings per share () 11,78 10.56
Diluted earnings per share (%) 1174 10.66

(This space has been left blank intentionally)
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Segment reporting

The Group operates in a single reportable oparating segment of providing laans. All other activities revolve around the main business Further, zll activities are carried aut within india. As

such, there are no sep reportabla as per Ind AS 108 on “Segment Reporting’.
< hability &

13 m bakhs)
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Contingent lability -
Commitments
Estimated of contracts ing 1o be an - 4245
capital account
Undsk d Loan 19,321 13 10,498 21
Note:

1. There are na pending litigations against the Group

2. The Group has a process whereby periodically all Jong-term contracts are assessed for matarial fareseeable losses. At the year end, the Group has
ble lasses an such long-term contracts kias been made in the books of account.

provisions (if any) required under any law /

i / RBI

for materlal &

Employee benefit

§19°E

In accordance terms of the Indian Accounting

i} Defined cantribution plans:

| the

disclosures are as fallows

The Company recegnized charges of INR 781 85 lakhs {March 31, 2024: INR 672.02 lakh) for Provident fund contributions

il) Compensated absences

The actuarially detarmined liahillty for ¢ of lated leaves of the employees of the Group 1s given below
Particulars As at March 31,2025 | AsatMarch 31, 2024
Assumptions:

Discount rate 6 54% - 6.59% 7.17%

Salary escalation rate 5.00% 5.00%

Rate of employee turnover

For service 4 years and
below 25.00% (61.00% for
subsidiary) p.a. & For

For sarvice 4 yaars< and
betow 25.00% p.3. & For
service 5years and

service 5 years and above above 8.00% p.a
8.00%p.2
Actual :
Present value of unfunded abiigatlons (R< in lakhs) 57.43 5120
E ised in PEL (Rs iniakhs) 10.40 17.07

Discount rate* The discount rate is based on the prevalling market yields of Indlan Government Securities as at the balance shaet date for the estimated term of tha obligations

1ii} Defined benefit gratuity plans:

Evary amployee who will complete five years ar more of service gats » gratuity an departure at 15 days salary |last drawn) for each completed year of service. The Group recognized charges of

d and

INR 162 46 lakhs {March 31, 2024" INR 110.09 lakh) for Gratuity Fund. The same is payable at the time of nfrom the C v or retl , which
Assumptions As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Discount rate 654% - 6 59% 717%
Salary escalation rate S.00% 5.00%
Rate of return on plan assets NA Na
Rate of Employee Turnaver For servica 4 yearsand | For service 4 years and
below 25,00% (61.00% for| below 25.00% p.a. & For

Mortality Rate During Employment

subsidiary)p.a. & For
service § years and above
8.00%pa

Indian Assured Lives
Mortality

2012-14 {Urban)

service 5 years and
above 800% pa

Indian Assured Lives
Mortality

2012-14 {Urban)

15 sarlier
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37. € vpiayee henefit {cuntinued]

Table showlig change in the present value of projected herefit abligation

(0 lakhs}
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Presant value of Banefit obligation at the begihning of the year {Unfunded) 282.40 136.13
Intarest cost 20.25 5.94
Current service cost 14221 160 15
Liabllity transferrad out/ Divestmant .
Actuarial {Gains) an Obligations « Due to Change in Demographic Assumptions {14.28) -
Actuarial {Gains) on Chligations - Due ta Change in Financial Assumptions 23.42 3.19
Artuarial Losses on Obligations - Due to Experience 42,95 32.9%
Benefits paid {6.33)
Present value of oblEEalion 35 at the end of the year {unfunded) 450,56 282.40

T d in the Bal Sheet

(X in lakhs)
|Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Prasent value of benefit obligation at the end of the year {a5¢.52} {282.40]
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year - .
Funded Status {Deficit) PEE (420.57} {282.50
Net !Itahilig!hsset recognized in the Balance Sheet 1490.57) {282.40]
Exp recognized inthe 5 of Profit and Loss

(X in lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As atMarch 31, 2024
Current service 6ast 14221 10015
Net Interest cost 20.25 294
Amount included in zmgla!u benefit expenses 152 46 110.09
Expenses recagnized in the Other comprehensive Tncome {Q41)

{%in lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at Miarch 31, 2024
Actuarizl Losses on obligation for the year 52,10 36.18
Net Expense for the year recognized in GCI 52.10 36.18
The estimates of futura salary , iderad In | ion, take of infl pr and other ral factars
Balance sheet racancdillation

{¥inlakhs}
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Qpening net llabllity 282.40 136,13
Exp recognizad in § of Profit and Loss 162.36 110.09
Expenses recognized In OC! 5210 36.18
Net {Liability]) Transfer Out |6.39]
Net liabllity recognized in the Balance Sheet 490 56 282.40
Cash flow projection
Maturity analysis of the benefit pay frem the employ

{%in takhs)
Particulars As st March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Projected benelizs payable in future years from the date of reporting
1st Fallawing Year 17.64 .07
2nd Fallawing Year 2491 1142
3rd Following Year 39,01 19.42
ath Following Year 44,51 26.03
Sth Following Year 46,18 3011
Sum of Yeasrs 6 to 10 219.83 138.35
Sumn of Years L1 and above 587 90 40145
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37. Emplayze genefit (contrved)

Sensitivity analysiz

L (% in lakhs)
|Particulars As at Mareh 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Projected bencfit obligation on current 490.56 282.40
Deita effect of +1% change in rate of discounting {39.20) {2482}
Delta effect of -1% change ' rate of discaunting 4523 22.83
Dalta affact of +1% changa in rate of salary increase 39380 2599
Delia effact of -1% change in rate of salary incroase {3 28} (2287)
Deha effect of +1% change in rate of employee turnover {2.65} {359)
| Delta oot of -1% =hange in rate of emplovee turnover . 1.97 301

Qualitative disclosures

Gratuity i5 a defined benefit plan and group is exposed to Lhe following risks

Interest rate risk: A fall inthe discount rate which is finked to the G Sec. Rate will increase the present value of the Lability requiring higher provision

Salary risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan Hability is Lalculoted by refarence to the future salanes of mambers. As such, an increase in the salary of the members mere than

assumed level will increase the plan’s liability,

Asset Liabllity Matchung Risk: The plan faces the ALM risk as to the matching cash flow, Group has to manage pay out based on pay as you ga basis from own funds

Martality risk: Since the ber.efits under the plan is not payable for Iffe time and payable vl retirement age only, plan doas not hava any Iongeviby risk,

(This spaca as been =1 bla=k intent.onally)
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38, Employec stack optian plan
In accordance with the resalution appravad by the Sharehalders on lanuary 24, 2023, the Group has reserved share, for issue to

oy through Proti

m Finance Emp

ESQP Plan 1). Under the terms of ESQP Plan | Company may issue stock option 1o the employees of the Company each of which is sonvertible into one eguity share

As on March 31, 2025
Grant date Exerdise price | Opening ESOP | Options granted | )ptions expired Options Options far{eited DOptions Exercisable at
{Rs) during the year | during the year | exercised during| during the year | outstanding at the | the end of the
the year end of the year year
15:Apr-23 166 20,18,072 1,20,482 5,00,255 15,97,335 3,08815
15-May-23 166 9,22,274 1,72,398 49,556 700,320 1,49,955
1-Jan-25 166 - B1,324 - - 81,324 .
1-Jan-25 48D B,74,632 8,74,632
31-Mar-25 480 - 41,667 - - 41,667 -|
Total 28,40.346 9,87.623 2,392,880 549,811 = 95,278 4,58,77%
As on Mavch 31, 2629
Grant date Exercise price | Opening ESOP §Options granted | Options expired Options Options forfeited Options Exerclsable at
[Rs} during the year | during the year |exercised during| duringthe yaar | cutstanding at the | the end of the
the year end of the year year
15-Apr-23 166 20,18,072 a 20,18,072
15:May-22 166 10,15,646 93,372 9,22,274
Tatal 30,33,718 $3,372 29,40,346

tethod used for accounting for share based payment plan
The Group bas used the fair value method to aceount for the compensation cost of stock oplions 16 employees. The fair value of options used are estimated on the date of grant using the Black —
$chales Madel The key assumptions used In Black — Scholes Model for valculating fair value as on the date of respective grants are:

yee Stock Option Plan I

Grant date Employee Type Risk free d life {(in d Dividend yield Price of the Options granted | Falr value of Weighted Vesting
Interest rate years) wvalatility underlying share options (Rs.) |average residual| perlod {in
inthe market at life in years years)
the time of the
option grant {Rs.}*

15-Apr-23 Al 7.05%| 17 25.00% 0% 166 12,04,820/ 51.35 179 300

15-Apr-23 AZ 7.05%) 4.25 25.00% 0% 166 481,927 55.58 21 3.00

15-Apr-23 A3 7.07%| 5.00 24.00% % 165 3,31,325 60.64 3.04 4.00

15-tay-23 51 specified 6.96% 4.10 25.00% o 166 66,264 54.04 2.22 3.00
employee

15-May-23 52 specified 6.96% 470 25.00% 0% 166 1,50,600 5891 282 4.00
amployes

15-May-23 $3 specified 6 96% 5.50 24 00% 0% 166 1,23,516 63.95 3.62 5.00
employee

15-May-23 51 0thers 6.96% 4.50 15.00% 0% 1686 3,08,429 56.33 262 400

15-May-23 52 Others 6.96%) 5.00 24.00% 0% 166/ 2,657,225 60.22 3.12 4.00|

15-May-23 53 Others 6.96% 550 24.00% 0% 166 1,03,612 6395 3.62 5.00|

01-Jan-25 2025/51/166 6.63% 4.33 42.83% 0% 166 81,324 101.49 4.09 275

0lJands 2025/52/480 6.65% 4.81 44.85% 0% 480 2,45,466 29,51 4.57 375

01-Jan-25% 2025/A1/480 6.65% 461 44.85% 0% 480 €,29,166 29.51 4.57 35

31-Mar-25 2025/A2/430 6.37% 4.63 43.83%| 0% 480 41,667 2590 4,62 3.50

1,The weighted average fair value of options granted during the yaar was Rs 35,23 (31 March 2024: Rs 55.70).
2. For the yaar ended March 31, 2025, the Graup has accounted axpense of Rs 825.46 Lakhs 2s emplayee benefit expentes on the aforesaid emplayee stack optian plan (Previous year As. 439.66

lakhs}.

* Method of settlement - Equity settled ESOPs

{This space has been left blank intentionally)
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a, Gross amount required to be spent by the Group during the year = Rs 174 51 akhs [Previous Year Rs 67 48 lakhs)

b_The details af amount spent in respeciive year toward: CSR an Ioliows,

IParticulars

Ibility as par section 135 of the companies Act, 2013 {r2ad with schedule Vil thereof)

Construction/ acquisition of asset:
Amaunt required ta be spant by the Group during the yea
Shortiall of earlier year brought farward

AMount spent

Amount unoaid / provision/ Shortfall * carried forward

On purpose other than above:

Amounl required o be spent by the Group during the year
Shortfall of eatlier year braught forward

Amount paid

ﬂAmounl_ﬂu i / provislon Shortfallf [Excess) carred forward

Notes:

== ~ ryk £ {Rin lakhs)
For the Year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
17461 8748
183 54 6780
— 852} o
1.The Group has contribuied to various CSR initiatives in accordance wilh the provisions of Section 135 of the G Act, 2033. Contrit were made to CSR partners such as Cuddles

q .

; Akshaca Suryoday F Swadhs Fi

, Indian Oream Foundation, and Youth for Seva These partnerships focus an key areas such as healthcare, education,

skill development and linancial literacy. ihe Group has fully utilized the allocsted CSR funds for the year There 15 excess amount of fls 8 92 Lakhs to ba carried farward 1a succeeding years

2. In respect of other than angoing projects, there are no [
second praviso to sub sectlon 5 of sectlon 135 of the Act.

that are teq

ired to be transferred to a fund specified in Schedute Vil of the Companies Act (the Act), in complance with

3. There are no unspent amounts In respect of ongoing projects, that are required ta be transfarred ta a sprcial account in compliance of provision of sub section (6] of section 135 of Companies

Act

40 Discipsure pursuant to Ind AS 207 “Financial instruments: Disclosures”

{a) Current and non-current maturity: {% in lekhs}
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Within 12 months After 12 manths Total Within 12 manths After 12 months Total
ASSETS
IFinancial assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 84,680.62 84,680.62 90,023.10 - 90,023.10
Bank balances othar than cash and cash equivalents 41,555.82 41,955.82 42,185 73 268 37 42,454,10
Derivati ialinst: t - 4152 q41.52 - - -
Trade Receivablos 854.99 17156 1,026.95 992 23 5 99222
Laans 1,09,020.20 3,14,546.62 4,23 566.82 97,380.21 2,25,991.16 3,23,371.37
Investments 4867796 2,988.80 51,666.76 26,102.45% 4752 26,149.98
Cther Financial agsnts 12,921.76 22,935.36 35,857.12 12 756.01 11,142.31 131,898.32
Sub total 2,98,111 34 3,340,684 25 6,38,795.61 2,69,429.73 2,37, 44938 5,06,889.09
Non-financial assets
Currant tax essets {Net) 6£58.67 658 67 - 141958 141358
Property Plant and Equipment - 2,307.02 2,307 B2 4843 2,093.16 3,141.59
ble Assels under develop - 8755 8758 11106 - 111.06
Intangible Assets = 3,200.53 3,207.53 - 327126 3,271.26
Qther Non Finanglal assets 3,405 B5 905.69 4,311 54 200441 - 2,004.41
Sub tatal 3,405.85 7,167.26 10,573.12 2,153.90 7,783.00 9,946.90
Total aszats 3,01517.20 3,47.351.51 SIIQISSBJZ 2‘1! 603.63 2.&.232.35 3 16&55.99
LIABILSTIES
Financial liabilities
Derivative linancial mstrument = - - 3504 3504
Trade Payables 82724 82728 2,396 15 = 1,398.15
Debt Securities 2,517.94 2.517.34 2032383 3,559.47 10,592.30
Borrowings {Qther than Dabt Securitles) 1,20,828.36 2,56,840.82 3,77,669.69 44,283.10 1,69,434.76 2,53,717 86
Other financiai liabilities 10,288.40 52641 10,624.81 13.071,60 1,137.83 14,209.43
Subiatal 1,34.472.49 2,57,367.23 3,91,839.72 1,06,785.69 1,74,132.05 2,80,917.74
{Mon-financial habililies
Provisians 3193 516.06 54793 54 97 278.52 333.59
Deferred Tax Liabilities (net) a 6,602.68 6,609.68 - 3,81241 3.91241
Cther nen-financlal lrablities 3,B43.12 191.02 4,034.14 1,256.98 1,574.23 3,231.21
Sub tatal 3,475.05 7,316.76 11,191.81 11.95 6,165.26 7.477.21
 Total labililes 134, 2 62 684,00 4,03,031.53 1,08, 097.64 180,397,131 2,895,194 96
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{b) Financding arrangement

The Group iad access Lo the lollowing undrawn borrowmg lacibties at the end of reporting penicd {% in lakhs}
| Particutaes For the Year ended | For the Year ended
| March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
L Undrawn backup lines o 39,300 00 11,000.00
(€} _€arrying t of ghven {2 in lakhs)
Farticufars Far the Year ended | For the Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 21, 2024
Bank balances other than cash equwalent 6,092.23 =
Loan and advances 4,18,245.96 2,5),728.07

intereslL d and

Tiabilities against which was paid in the month of March’ 2025 while lien was dischasged in the month of Apr' 2625

accrued inlerest of Rs 457.97 lakhs. Further, cul of Rs 457,97 lakhs, Rs 191 97 lakhs pertains to the Ifen marked fixed deposits,

(d} Financial assets are t ferred but not d gnised in their ‘

{i] Securitisation

[% in lakhs)
Particulars For the Year ended | For the Year ended

March 31, 2025 March 34, 2024

Carrying amount of atsets 23,745.64 38,743 02
Caryying amount of associted Labilities 17.512.50 36,02117
(ih Assignment and Colending
The Group has told loans {measured a1 amortised cost and FYOCH} by way of direct bil | and colending, 25 3 source of finance.

As per the terms of these deals, since substantial risk and rewards related ta these assets were transfarrad to the buyer, the assets have been de recognised fram the

Group’s balance sheet,

1§

The table below summarises the carrying amount of the der | assets 1 at emortised cost and the gain/ {loss) on derecogmition, per type of asset
{%n lakhs)
Particulars For the Year ended For the Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Carrylng amount of de-recognised financial asset 2.719,172,01 171,104 85
Carrylng amount of retained asset at amortised cost 52411.66 48,835.99
Net gain on sale of the de-recognised financial asset 21 amortised cpst* 22,033.68 16,535.41
Net gain an sale of the de-racognised financial asser at FVOQ® 3,352.64 -

Ery N

rey ks net gainon d of fi

| aszet for the yoar ended March 11, 2025 and March 31, 2024

[e] During the year, the Group has acquired loan portiolio from another NBFC, for 3 consideration of R5 35,101 40 lakbs, recognised in the following stages / asset classilicabon
as pertnd AS 109:

[ in lakhs)

Amount

34.009.78

$49.15

3243

35,101 40

{This space has been teft blank intentionally)
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41. Capital

The Group actively manages its capital base to cover nsks inherent to its business and meets the capital adequacy requiremients of the regulator -
Reserve Bank of India. The adequacy of the Group's capital 1s monitored using, among other measures, the regulations issued by RBI,

(i) Capital management
Objective
The Group's objective is Lo maintain appropriate levels of capital to support its business strategy taking into account the regulatory, economic and
commercial environment. The Group aims to maintain a strong capital base to support the risks inherent to its business and its growth strategy. The
Group endeavors to maintain a higher capital base than the mandated regulatory capital at all times.
Planning
The Group's assessment of capital requirement is aligned to its planned growth which forms part of an annual operating pfan which is appraved by the
Board and zlso a long range strategy. Thesa growth plans are aligned to assessment of risks- which include credit, iquidity and interest rate.

The Group monitors its capital adeguacy ratio {CRAR) on a monthly basis through its assets liability management committee (ALCO)

The Group maintains its capital structure in line with the econemic conditions and the nsk charactenstics of 1ts activities and the board reviews the
capital positicn on a regular basis

Gearing ratio: (% in lakhs)
Particulars Asat Asat

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2029
Debt 3,80,187.63 2,64,310 16
Total Equity 2,46,337.1% 2,28,406.01
Debt to Equity Ratio {in times) 1.54 1.16

{i} Regulatory Capital (X in lakhs}

Particulars As at Asat

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Tier | Capital 2,07,495.37 2,03,899.44
Tier Il Capital 1,261.10 .
Total Capital 2,08,756.47 2,03,899.44
Total Risk weighted assets 4,56,931.07 3,52,404.18
Tier | CRAR 45.41% 57.86%
Tier I CRAR 0.28% 0.00%
Total capital 45.68% 57.86%

(This space has been left blank intentionally)
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Risk management framewark

While risk is inherent in the Group’s actnaties, it is managed Lhrough an inlegrated ¢isk management h, ongong and monitoring, subject te

risk kmits and other controls

The Board of Directors are respansible for the avesall risk and Tor g the nisk gees and

The ritk cormmittee has the overall dlity Tor 1he of the risk stiategy and principl pelicees and imns. The nisk commitiee 1s responsible fer
risk decisions and itering risk lewals and reports Yo ihe Board

¥he Group's rsks bre inthe ing risk types

a) Creditrsk

b} tiquidity risk

€} Markel risk

d) Operatianal fish

&) Fareign <urrency risk

&) Credit ritk

Crédil visk is Ihe risk of fingncizl ioss to the Group if a ar 1y te 4 financial i fails 10 meet its ¢ igatians, and Arites pri from the Group’s rade
e¢deivables and Loans. The Group has adopied a policy of dealing with cred, v ies and obtains suffici whete 45 3 means of mitigating the nisk of
financial loss from defaults In case the loans are ta be restructured, similar credit assessment process is follawed by Lhe Geoup

The Gipup'y to credit risk is i malnly by the |ndivi of each Al he faclors that may illuence the aedit rsk of
s customer base. mncluding the default nisk of the industey and country in which customers operala

The Group manages and controls credit risk by sotuing limits on the amouat of risk it is willing 1o aceept for ;i ps [Sangle (1] P Umit) and
for industry andby P inrelation te such limits.

Credit quality of 3 custamer is asséssed based on its aredit worthiness and historical dealings with 1he Group and market iniell; s di lvables are

The credit qualily review pracess aims 19 allow the group to assess the potentlal loss as » result of the risks to which it is cxposed and taka corrective actions

asiats d on a collective basis
The group splits its into smaller 1 , based on shared credin rick characterstics. as deseribed helow 1n thé faltewing arder
Securedfunsequred i g, baded on whether the ioans are secured
Nature of secutity e the nature of the securily if the loans are determinad to be secured
Malure of [6an ¢ based on the nature of loan

Significant ingeeaye in credit risk

The group i an to have ¥ in credit 1k when the borrower crosses 30 OPD but i€ withih 30 OPD,
Impalrment assessment
The group idess a financial i . and 4l Stage 3 [credil-impaived) for ECL calculations in all cases when the borrower crosses 90 days past due on i1s contractual

payments. Further, Ihe borcowar is retained in Stage 3 [¢redit-impaited] 1l 3l the averdue amounts are repaid | e barrower becomes O days past due on its contraciwal pagments

Expasure at defauke

The exposure at default (EAD) represents the gross carnyang amaunt of the financial irstruments sublet 1o the impairment caleulatron

Lois given defaul

The credit sk isbased ona [[cie] hat thep y af default and subsequent recoveries, discounted,

Current economic data and forward-looking econamic ferecasts and scanarias are used in arder 10 determine the Ind AS 109 LGO rate The Gioup uses own histoncal data and combines such data
withlnpuls ta the Growp s ECL modals i ing g Lhe welghts o the multiple scenarlos

Credit qualnty of asiets

i) The tabte below shaws tredil guality and mamum exposure to oredit risk Lased on year ¢nd stage The amaunts d are gross af I lorss
[3 in faklis}
St Ho |Parlkutars loss Lass Al d at life time
iz ECL
month ECL Financlal Assets | Financial Ascets
{stoge 1} for which crediy for which credit
risk has Increased | risk has Increased
slgnificantly and significantly and
credit not [mpaired | <radit impaired
{5tage2) (Srage )
L] A% on March 31, 2025
Estimated pross carrying amount al defaylt 4,14.065.80 8,625 45 10,435.03
Expecled credit Loss (BMiEu (2,243.64) 13,366.55)
Calgig amount et of Impairment Provision 4,10,716 53 5,341.81 5,A68.48
L) A on March 31, 2024
Estimated gross casrying amount at default 3,19,724.13 351118 5,402 31
Expected credit toss 11,901.42] |ll120" (3.278.03}
Carrying #mount net of Impafrmeant Provislon 317,822 71 2,623,939 2,914,658
L] As on March 31, 2025
4,14,065 80 £,625.45 1943502
{3.349.26) (2,242.60) (s.sss.s_l
4,16,716.53 6,381 B1 5,359.43
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a2 isk
1] An analysis of changes in the gross zarrying amaunt and corresponding LCL allowa=ies in relalions to laans i as undar
{¢in fakhs}
Srio _|Particulars _Stegel Stage2 Stage 3 PoQl® Total
J Gross Carrying amount halsnce as at March 31, 2023 2,36,782.23 1.898.04 L576 70 2.,40,261.97
Few Loans originated during the year 1.72,950.48 2,136.68 2,518.10 - 3,77,605.26
~Transfers 1o Stage 1 27454 {205.49) (69.05) -
-Transfers to Stage 2 {2.915.26) 291523 (0.03) . -
-Transfers o Stage 3 {?,362.30) {1,043.65) 8,410.96 -
-Loans thal have been de recognised during the periad (1,60,042 61] - - {1,60,042.61)|
Wrimen effs - {4,566.22} 14,566.22)
Marured or repoid during the vear [l,Jﬂ,Bsz.M]l 2.189.67) {2,467.75) 1,24,620.37]
0 |Gross Carrslmg ameount balance 35 at March 33, 2024 3aevaans ) 3s1iaeld 540071 3 g 634.03
New Loans enginated ducing the year 507,178 42 14346 - 4243 5,07,370.21
~Transfers to Stage 1 535.37 {96.68) (538.70} {0.00)
“Transfars to Stage 2 17,362.97) 7,409.96 {21.99) 8.00
~Transfers te Stage 3 {12,003.07) {2,489.18) 14,4922 - -
-Loans that have been de recagmised during the pariad {2,26,760.35) - - - (2,26,760.35)|
Written atfs o {16,701.68) (a3.43} (16,746.12)
Matured or repaid during Lhe year {l,‘?,!lﬂ.?Z'l 140.69 1,504.94 - (1,865,375 SBEI
11} Grods urﬂn‘ amount balance as at March 31, 2025 4,19 065.80 B,Eds 12 435 03 433125 27
Na. of loan accounts with principal and / ar interest ovardus {i ing Joans ified 35 $(gnifl Ingrease in Gredil Aagk (SICR) and ¢rédit impalred] as at Morch 31, 202545 LEL]
(Srage 1), 2,120 (Stage 2) and 3,387 ‘Stage 3)
{%m takhsh
SrNa I Particuiars Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 PoQ1® agal
(] ECL 3 llowance 3mount batance 45 4t Marsh 31, 2029 7,115.74 43585 80535 335695
Hew Laans orighnated during the year porRz . . 391222
|-Vranstars o Stage 1 §3.33 (az.26) 3107
-Yeansters to Stage 2 {582.86) 583,86 .
SYeansfars to Stage 3 {1L.325,58) {299.07) L625 65 -
sLoans that have been de recognised duning the period {943 25) . . (944.25)
writien ofts o {2.968.04) 12.965.09)
Impact on pear end ECL of exposures wansferred between (105 27) 256 a0 3.453.38 3.684.491
Ftages during the year
Matured or repaid during the jear 11,329.81) (97,58, [447.75) |L774.53)
1l EQL allowanes amounl batance as at March 3}, 2024 1,501.41 BIT.I_OI.I 2.473.93 5.265.5%
New Laans odiglnated durlng the year 5,510.25 42,42 6,583 87
Translers ta Stage 1 144.38 (137,951 .
Transfers to Slage 2 11,135.86] (5,501
Transfers 1o Stage 3 11,838.92] 549.59
Loant that have béen de recognised during the ysar f1,612.80} - - (1,811.88}
Writter oifs o 19,003.46) {42.49] 19,045.90}
Impact on year end ECL of expesures transferred between 2869 11.566.53 - 14,042.72
stages during the year
(Matured or 1epald during the vear {1,308 04) |3.41_%9_! - |5.-|81.05]
1ECL allpwance amaunt balance as at March 31, 2025 3,342 26 2,965.55 = £,559.44
* Burchasad or originatad Cradit impaired Loans
Analysis ol risk concentration
The 1ablc thows risk of the Group's igans bayii 1k enpozuse mt= smalies homogeneous pori (ol s, baxrd oa shared credil nsk charactenstics as under.

Particulars Ag at Asat
March 31, 2028 March 212024
Carrying value of Loans
10an against praperty (LAP) 2,40,359.81 1,83,112.48
Business Loan 147,710.68 91,132.81
Laas against machinery 22971292 17,840.72
Corpazale lending 13,605 45 11,285.19
Conmumes foan 3476.91 25,266.53
[Yotal 43313627
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Risk 4 K (¢ d1

5 \ 1

b) Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk arises because of the possibility that the Group might be unable to meet its payment obligations when they fall due as a resuit of mismatches in the timing of the cash flows under both normal
and stress circumstances, To limit this nisk, management has arranged for diversified funding sources, and adopted 2 policy of managing assets with liquidity in mind and monitering future cash flows and

lquidity on a daily basis

Maturity analysis of assets and llabilities

As at March 31, 2025 (% in lakhs}
Particulars Carrying Amount Not later than ona | Later than one month Later than three Later than ore year and | Eater than five years
month and not later than | months and not later [not later than five years
three manths than one year
ASSETS
Financlal assets
Cash and cash equivalents 84,680.62 67,613.03 12,067.59 -
8ank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 41,555.82 3134 22,770 53 19,153.95 -
Derlvative financial instrurnent 4152 - - 4152 -
Trade receivables 1,026.95 833.34 2165 17136 -
Loans 4,23,566.82 15.128.32 15.489.57 74.402.31 1.98.808 78 115.737.84
fnvestments 51.666.76 8.159.59 1%.424.31 22.094.05 2.88954 99.26
Other financial assets 35,857.12 732351 2,674.46 9,514.79 19,703 34 3,232.02
Sub total 6,38,795.61 92,498.14 81,426.45 1,24,186.76 2,21,615.14 1,19,069.12
Non-financial assets
Current tax assets {net) 658.67 658 65 0.02
Property plant and equipment 2,307.82 - 2,307.82
Intangible assets under development B87.5% - 82.5%
intangible assets 3,207.53 - 3,207.53
Other non-financial assets 4,311.54 1,227 61 76345 1,414.80 : 905.69
Sub total 10,573.12 1,227.61 763.45 1,454.80 658.65 §,508.61
Total assets 6,49,368.72 93,715.75 82,189.90 1,25,601.56 22227379 1,25,527.73
LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities
Trade payables B27.28 B27.28 - -
Debt securities 2,517.94 2,517.94 - - - -
Borrowings {other than debt securities) 3,77,669.69 10,593.04 22,475.78 87,760.05 2,48,155.68 8,685,14
Gther financial Irabilities 10,624.81 582898 1,514.57 1,954.85 526.41 -
Sub totat 3,91,835.72 20,767.24 23,996.35 89,715.90 2,48,682.09 8,685.14
Non-financial liabilities
Pravisions 547.29 3103 124.00 392,08
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 6,609.68 - - - 6,609.68
Ather non-financial fabilities 4,034.14 384312 - - 191.02
Sub tatal 11,191.81 3,843.12 - 31.93 124.00 7,192.75
Total lizbilities 4,03,031.53 24,610.36 23,990.36 §9,746.83 2,48,806.09 15,877.B9

IThis space has bean lett hlank intentlonally}
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As at NMarch 31, 2024 {R in lakhs)
|Particulars Carrying Amount Not later than ane |Later than one month Later than three Later than one year and| Later than flve years
month and notlaterthan | months and not later |not later than five years
three manths than one year
ASSETS
Financial assets
Cash and Cash Egquivalents 90.023.10 77.290.36 12,732.74 - -
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents q2.454.10 405.27 2227548 19,404 o8 26837 -
Trade Receivables 992.23 992,23 o o = -
Loans 2,23,371.37 14,060.39 18,389.90 64,920.92 1,38,23097 87.760.19
Investments 26,149.98 17.953.35 7.945.91 0319 - 47,52
Other Financial assets 23.898.92 1,564.52 3,939.6. 2,251.387 10.014.86 1,127.45
Sub total 5,06,889.10 1,12,266.12 55,383.65 91,789.96 1.48,514.19 88,935.17
Non-financial assets
Current tax assets {Net) 1,413.58 1,418 58 -
Property Plant and Equioment 3,141.59 4343 & - 3,093 16
Intangible Assets under develooment 111,06 . o 11146 -
Intangible Assets 3,271.26 - G - 3.271.26
Other Non Financial assets 2,004.41 £95.G4 340.67 768,73 -
Sub total 9,946.90 943.46 340.57 879.77 1,418.58 6,3564.42
Total asaets g.l6,335,01 1.13.209.58 65.724.32 92.669.73 110932 77 95.299.59 |
LIABILITIES
Financiai lfabilities
Derivative financial instrument 35.04 - = = 35.04
Trade Pavables 2,398.15 2,39B.15 - - - -
Debt Securitles 10,592.30 3,988.4D 2,905.51 138.82 1,535.54 2,023.93
Borrowings {Other than Debt Secunties) 2,53,717.36 15,274.42 14,212.37 54,786.31 1,66,37B.82 3.055.94
Other firancial liabilities 14,209.43 575221 £,027.30 1,292.10 1,137.83 -
Sub total 2,80,952.78 27,413.18 23,145.17 56,227.33 1.69,087.23 5,079.87
Non-financial llabilities
Provisions 333.59 - 5497 22498 53.64
Deferred Tax Liabilities {nat} 3,012.41 - = S 391241
Other non-finarcial liabilites 3,231.23 560 38 153 &4 543 46 1,154.87 B13.36
Sub totzl 7.477.20 560.88 153 F1 597.43 1379.85 4,785.41
Total liabilities 2,88,429.93 27974.06 23,298 82 56,824 77 1,70,367.07 9,865.28
The table below summarises the maturity profile of the undiscaunted contractual cashflow af the Group's financial liabilities
{Xin lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, 2825 As ar March 31, 2024
Within 12 months After 12 manths Total Within 12 menths After 12 months Tatal
Debt securlties 2,535.36 . 2,535.36 8,624 .50 2,535.36 11,159.86
Borrowings [other than debt securities) 1,50,147 4% 2,99,584. 14 4,49,731.63 1,21,325.76 1,78,684.32 3,00,011.09
Trade payakle 217.28 - 827,28 2,338.15 - 2,398.15
Cther financial liabilitres 10,298.40 52641 10.824.81 13,071.60 1.137.83 14,209.43
1,63,808.53 3,04,110.55 4,63,919.08 1,45,421.02 1,82.357.51 3,27,778.53

(This space has been (eft blank intentionally}
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Risk mnagement frainework {continued)

] Market risk

Market Risk is the passibility af loss arising from changes in the value of a financial nstrument as a result of changes in market variobles such as interest rates, exchange rates and other asset prices 1he
Group's exposure 1o market risk is a function of asset llability management and interest rate seasitivity assessmant. The Group is #xposed to interest rate risk and liquidity risk, if the same is not managed

preperly. The Group continucusly menitors these risks and manages them through appiopriate risk limits. The Asset Liability N

adapts various strategies related 1o assets and liabilities, in ne with the Group’s nsk management iramewark
! {1

Exposure to interest rate risk

Committee {*ALCO")

If interest rates had been 100 basis points higher or lower and all other vanables ware canstant, the Graup's profit before tax would have changed by the following

The group's exposures to nterest rates on financial assets and § | liaknk are detailed in the lig tisk 2 section of this note.
{1n Iakhs)
Portlculars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Financial assets

Fixed-rate instruments 1,90,126.54 1,32,24591

Floating-rate instruments 2,35,475.30 1.91.020 68
Sub- Total 4,25,601.84 323,267.59
Add: Accrued / Ovardue Interest 7.524 43 5,370.449
Less: Unamovrtized ¢ost f Impairment (o1 allowance _ {9.559.45) (5.266.66)
Total 4!23!555 82 3%3!371.37
| Financial Liabilities

Fingd-rate instruments 97,494.41 78,399,78

Flpating-rate ins: t 2,83,516 27 1,66,361.20
Suh- Total 381 410 58 2.64,760.98
Add: Acerued Interest 1,289.40 1.612.78
Less; Unamortized cast {2,512.51) {2,063.60)
Total 3,80,187.57 26431016
Faw value Y ysls for Floating-rat
The senswivity analysls below have been d based on to the rates for fi ial i
of the Tinancial year and held constant throughout the reporting peried in case of instr that have fieating rates.

market related trands and risks and

a.the end of the reporting period and the stipulated change taking place at the beginning

Partieulars For the year ended March 31, 2025 For the year ended March 31, 2024
100 bps higher 100 bps lower 100 bps higher 300 bps lower
Floating rate loans 2,366.04 {2.356.04) 2,481.72 {2.432.72)|
Floating rate borrowings {2,839 .16) 2,839,156 {1,361.38) 1,361.38
Total {473 12) 473.12 1,120.34 {1,120.34)
d) Operational risk
Operatianal risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadeguate or failed internal processes, people or systems, or from external events. The operationzal risks of the Group are ged thraugh compi h
internal eontrol systems ana procedures Fadure of managing operationat risk might lead to legal / regulatory imp due to pli and lead to financial loss due to control failures While 1t 15 not

all the op:

practical to

cantrol fi

i 1isk, the Group has put in place ad

k by way of segregation of duties, well defi

staff

authonsation and clear reporung structure. The effectiveness of contrel framework 15 assessed by internal by Risk Management committee an a periedic basls,

¢] Foreign currency flisk

g, maker and checker progess,

In the nermal course of business, the Group does nat deal in foreign exchange in tha significant way Any significant foreign exchanga borrowings is fully hedged to safeguard against exchange rate risk,

The Group's exposure of foreign currency nisk at the end of the reporting period as follow

Particulars

As at March 31, 2025

As at March 31, 2024

Hedged

Foreign currency borrowings

USD 916,72 Lakhs

USD 330.00 Lakhs

Derlvative financlal instrument

Rs. 77,091.90 Lakhs

Rs. 27,464.40 Lakhs

{This space has hean left clank intentionally)
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43. Far value measurement

43.1 Valuation principles
Fair value is the prnice that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a habthty in an orderly transaction in the princigal {or most advantageous) markel at the measurement ¢gate under
curren? market conditions {1, an exit price), regardless of whether that price is directly chservable or estimated using a valuation technique, In order to show how fair values have been denved,
financial instruments are classified based on a hierarchy of valuation techniques:
leval 1 - val technique using i price- fi { instr ts with d prices for identical instruments in active markets that group ¢an access at the measurement date
Level 2 — valuation technique using observable inputs: Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are significant, are derwved from directly or iadirectly observable market data avalable
over the entire period of the instrument’s life
Level 3 — valuation technique with significant unebservable inputs Those that include one or more unobservable input that s significant to the measurement as whola

43,2 Valuation governance framework

The Group's fair valuve methodology and the governance over its models includes 3 number of cantrels and other procedures to ensure appropriate safeguards are in place ko ensure its quality and
adequacy. All new product initiatives {including their valyation methodelogies) are subject to approvals by various functions of the Group including the risk and finance functians.

Where fair values are determined by reference to externally quoted prices or observable pricing inputs to models, independent price determination or validation 15 used. For inactive markets, Graup
sources alternative market information, with greater weight given to information that is considered to be more relevant and reliable

The responsibility of ongoing measurement resides with the business and product line divisions However finance department 15 also responsible for estabhshing procedures governing valuation and
ensuring fair values are in compliance with accounting standards

43.3 There have been no transfers between levels duning the period ended March 31, 2025 and year ended March 31, 2024

43.4 Valyation methodologies adopted Fair values of financial assets, ¢ther than those which are subsequently measured at amortised cost, have been arrived at as under

* Fair values of investments held under FVTPL have baen determined under level 1 using quoted market prices of the underlying Instrizments;
+ Fair values of financial instruments designated under amortised cost/FVOC| have been measured under level 3 at fair value based on a discounted cash flow model.

43 S Fair value of financal instruments measured at amortised cost :

The table below 15 8 companson, by class, of the carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's financial instruments that are not carned at fair value in the financial statements This table does not

include the fair values of non—financial assets and agn--financial iabilities

As at March 31, 2025 {% in lakhs)
Particulars Carrying Value Fair value ement using Total
{Amortised Cost) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3*
Flnancial Assets
 Trade recelvables 1.026.95 1,026.95 1.026.95
Loans 3,34.439.24 3,37.288.82 3,37.288.82
Other financial assets 35,124.38 35,124.98 35,124,938
Investment and finandal recelvables N
Investment 42.937.31 34,805.22 8,132.09 42,937.31
Total financial assets 4,13,528.48 314,805.22 2,81,572.84 4,16,378.06
Financlal Nabilities
Trade payables 827.28 827.28 827.28
Debt securities 2,517.94 2.517.94 2,517.94
Borrawings 3,77.669.69 3.77.669.69 3,77,669.69
Other financial liabilities 10,824.31 10,824 81 10,824.81
Total financial liabilities 3,91,839.72 3,91,839.72 3,91,820.72
As at March 31, 2024 {Tin lakhs)
Particulars Carrying Value Fair value measurement using Total
{Amartised Cost) Level1 Level 2 Level 3*
Financlzl Assets
Trade receivables 992.23 . 992.23 992.23
Loans 3,23,371.37 3,23,371.37 3,23,371.37
QOther financial assets 23,22499 23,224.99 23,224.99
Investment and finan<ial recelvables o
Investment l 25,839 76 25,899.76 = 25,899.76
Total financlal assets 3,73,488.35 25,899.76 . 3.47,583 59 3,73,488.35
FAnanclal liabilities
Trade payables 2,398.15 2,398.15 2,393.15
Debt securities 10,592.30 * 10,592.30 10,592.30
Borrowings 2,53,717.86 2,53,717.86 2,33,717.86
Other financea! liabilities 14,209.43 14,209.43 14,209.43
Total financial lfabilitles 2,80,917.74 . 2,30,917.74 2.80,917.74
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44,

44.4

Lease accounting

The Group has entered into leasing arrangements for premises Right of Use Assets ("ROU") has been included under ‘Property,
Plant and Equipment’ and Lease Lizblity has been included under *Other financial liabilities’ in the Balance Sheet.

Following are the changes in the carrying value of right of use assets (ROU):

{Tin lakhs}
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balance at the beginning of the period 1,915.26 639.32
Addition during the period 945.52 1,396.13
Dispasals during the period (0.36) {248 39)
Depreciation for the period (1,438.54) (831.80)
Balance as at the end of the period 1,421.47 1,915.26
The following is the movement in lease liabilities:
(%Z1n lakhs)
Particulars Asat As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balance at the beginning of the period 1,946.80 673.19
Addition during the period 922.35 2,347.68
Finance cost sccrued during the pericd 203.48 181.25
Payment of Lease liabilities made during the period {1,557.98) (952.28)
Disposal during the period (0.23} (203.04)
Balance as at the end of the period 1,514.41 1,946.80

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as of march, 2025 on an undiscounted

basis:
{Zinlakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Less than one year 1,075.51 1,036 94
Between gne and five years $39.63 1,214.06
More than five years o o
Total 1,615.13 2,251.00
Expenses recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss:
(T in lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Depreciation expense on night-of-use assets (Refer Note 10) 1,438.94 831.80
Interest expense on lease liabilities (Refer Note 25) 203.48 181.25
Expense relating to short-term jeases 270.50 388.03

Expense relating 1o ieases of low value assets

The Group does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the current assets are sufficient to megt the

obligations related to lease liabilities a5 and when they fall due.

Amount recognised in the statement of Cash flow:

(% in lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Total cash outflow for leases 1,557.98 952.28
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45. Bitclosure of transactions with related parties as required by Ind 45 24

a. List af related partias 2nd relallonship

Mamg of vefatud parties by wiam (amirol is exircisar

LMumate Halding Company Co- shence Capital Maragement

Key Management Personnel {KMP} Mr. Pacyush Mista - (Managing Direstor & CEQ)

Mr. Peruvernba Ramachandean Seshadri - independen. Director (resigned we 13 09-2023)
#r. Parveen Kumar Gupta - Independent Diractor

Ms dha Raa - Ind dant Direcior 1 weef 29-08.2003)

s, Dakshita fras - dent Direetor (appoi wek 16.02.2024]

#r, Sitaram Kunte - independent Direglar (appadnied wef 16,02 2024)

®ey Management Personnel (KMP) in Protlum Business Services Private Limited

Subsidiary Companles Mr, Aroit Gupta (appointed w.e.f 29.02 2024) - Normnac Director
Mr. Yogendra Singh - Directar

Mr. Amit Garg - Disector

Mt Amil Gupta {appointed w e F 23 02.2024] - Nominae Clrector

Mr Amn Garg [appolnted w.e.f 27.06.2024) - Nominee Diretior

Mr. Yogendra Singh (appeinted w.e  27.06.2024) - Nominee (hregtor
M1 Oheumil Shah (appolnted w.e.l $5.09.2024) - Additional Diractor

|Mr_Manish Arvind Dabir !ceased w.e f 29.06.2024} - Directar

b. Transactions with Related Parties:
(% i [akhs)
Nature of Lransactions For the year ended Faor the year ended
March 31, 2025 | _March 31, 2025
from ulti Hakding Ce
Lonsil Capital 831,224.97
Director’s fzes, allowances. and enpenses
Mr, Parveen Kumar Gupta 42.00 6540
Me, Anuradha Raa 34.00 1199
Ms Dakshita Das 33.00 .
Mr, Sitaram Kunte 39.00 -
| bir. Perivemba Ramachandran Seshadrl - 2616
¢ Aclated parties balance autrtanding .
As at March 31, 2025 (X in lakhs)
Partieulars Holding Company Subsidiary KMP of the Graup Entities contralled by
Campanies KM of the Group
Invastment mada by ullimate holding Company in aquity
shares of the Company
Conslitence Capital Management 2,085,763 00 - .
As at March 31, 2024 [REE ]
Particulars Halding Company Subsidiary KMP of the Group Entities controlied by
Comp KMP of the Sroyp
tavestmenl made by ultimate halding Company in equity
shares of the Company
Congilience Capital Managemeant 2 08 763 00| - -
Note:

1. Mame ef tha related parties and nature of their relationships where ¢ontrol exists have been disdosed respective of whether or not there have been transactions wath the Graup. In other cases, disclosure has been
made only when there have bean transactions with those partjes.

2 Related parties 35 delined under 9 ol the Indian A ing Standard 24 "Aclated Party Discl " have bigen id ! based on rep made by key fal | and information available
wills the Company. Al above transactions are in the ordinary caurse of business and on 3rms fength basis
3. The amounts distoced in the table sre ¢he smounts recopmsed as an expense during the financlal year related to KMP_ The amounts do not include expénie, If any, ised toward post ¥ benefits and

ather fong-tesm benefivs of key managesial personnel Such axpenses sre measwred based on an aciusrial valuaiion dene for ea¢ch Company in the Group as @ whole Hence, amounts attributable to KMPs are not separately
determirable. Direcior sitting and commission Ingluding ineligible GST input

{This space has haen lefl blank intenlienally)
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46. Additlonal Information as required by Paragraph 2 of the general instructian of preparation of €. lidated fi ial

ent to Schedule Il to the companies Act 2013

For the period ended March 31,2025

{%n lakhs)

Name of the entity In the geoup Net Assets {Total assets - Total Share In proflt or loss Share in other comprehensive income | Share In Total comprehensive Income
labllities)
As % of Amount As % of Amount As % of Consolldated Amount As % of Consolldated Amount
Consclldated net Consolidated other comprahensive Total comprehensive

assets profit ar loss Income Income
Parent
Protium Finance Limitea 100.07% 2,46,507.95 99.86% 17,100.656 102.39% (353.09) 99.72% 16,147.57
Subsidiarles
Protium Business Services Private Limited 0.34% 244.81 0.1B% 31.54 -2.39% 22.20 0.33% 53.75
Shibui technologies Private Limited 0.02% 40.95 0.21% 35.89 0,22% 3589
a) Adjustments arising out of intercompany -0.43% (1,056.53) -0.25% (a4.21) -0,27% {94.21)
efiminatron
b) Nop-contealling interests - - - -
Toral 100.00% 2,46,337.19 100.00% 17,123.88 100.00% (930.89) 100.00% 16,192.99
For the period ended March 31,2024 {% 1 lakhs)

Name of the ent!ty in the group

Net Assets (Total assets - Total

Share In profit or loss

Share in other comprehensive Income

Share In Total comprehensive Incame

liabllities)
As % of Amaount As % af Amount As % of Consolidated Amount As % of Consolidated Amount
Consalidated net Consolidated other comprehensive Total comprehensive|

assets profit or loss Income Inceme
Parent
Protium Finance Limited 100.09% 2,28,622.2% 98.73% 11,527.13 117.27% {62.50) 98.65% 11,464.63

diarles

Protium Business Services Private Limited 0.35% 791.07 0.06% 6.B6 <17.27% 9.20 0.14% 16.06
Shibui technologies #rivate Limited 0.01% 5.07 0.03% 4,17 - - 0.03% 4.37
a) Adjustments arising out of intercompany -0.45% {1,012.35) 1.18% 136.78 - - 1.189% 136.78
ellmination
b) Non-contralling interests
Total 100.00% 2,28,406.01 100.00% 11,675.13 {53.29) 100.00% 11,621.84
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47,

48.

49,

50.

51,
52.

53,

55.

56.
57.

58.

There are no prior pened sems which are impacting Group's current year Profit and Loss
Expenditure In foreign currency (X In lakhs
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended March
March 31, 2025 31,2023

Processing fees on borrowings 184.21 .

Membership & subscription charges 10.94 16.53

Total 195.15 16.53
There is no amount due and payable to micro and small suppliers registered under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 at the end of the

year other than as disclosed. No nterest has been paid/ is payable by the Group during/for the period to these “Suppliers’ other than as disclosed. The above information
takes into account only those suppliers who have submitted their registration details or has respanded to the inquiries made by the Group for this purpose

Utilisation of Borrowed funds and share premium ;

As a part of normal lending business, the Group grants loans and advances on the basis of security) guarantee provided by the Borrower/ co-borrower and makes
investments. These transactions are part of Group’s normal non-banking finance business, which s conducted ensuring adherance to all regulatory requirernents.

The Group has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either borrowed funds ar any other sources or kind of funds) to any other persons or entities (lntermediaries)
with the understanding that the Intermediary shall-

(i} directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Group (Ulimate Beneficiarias) or

[ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Group has not received any fund from any persons or entities (Funding Party) with the understanding that the group shall

[i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in ather persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

[ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Group has not traded or invested in Crypte cucrency or Vsrtual Currency during the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024

1+ -

Compliance with of layers of P
The Group has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause {87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules,

2017.

Events occuraing after halance sheet date - There have been no events after the reporting date that require adjustment in these financial statements.

. Willful Defaulter:

The Group is not a declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or other lender, in accordance with the guidelines on willful defaulters issued by the
Reserve Bank of india, during the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024,

Title Deeds of Immovable Properties not held in the name of the Group

The Group does not hold any immovable property as on March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024. All the lease agreements are duly executed in favar of the Group for
properties where the Group 15 the lessee

The Group has no pending charges or satisfaction of charges, which are required to be registered with Registrar of Companies {ROC)

Daily back up: Proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Group. Back-up of the books of account and papers maintained in electronic mode is
maintained on servers physically located in India on a daily basis, except in case of two applicatiens {used for vendar and payroll recerd maintenance and processing)
which are operated by third party service providers, the J{ it is not in pe ion of an appropnate Service Organization Controls report to determine whether
the back-up of books was maintained on servers physically located In India on a dally basls

Audit traul: The Group uses accounting sofiware which are the General ledger system, Loan origination system, Loan management system, Human resource management
system, Payroll processing system, Vendor management and Expense pracessing system for maintaining its books of account which have a feature of recording audit trail
{edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recarded In the software, except that for;

Loan origination system — audit trail feature has oot been enabled,

. General ledger system and Loan management system - audit trail has not been enabled at database level;

[ Human resource management system, Payrall processing system (operated by third party service providers) - appropnate Service Orgamizatton Contrals report not
available to detarmine whether audit trail feature has been enabled and has operated throughout the year, and

& o

d Vendor management and Expense processing system (operated by third party secrvice provider) — audit trail has not been enabled at database level and relevant
evidence not available in the Service Organization Controls report to determine whether the audit trail feature enabled at the application (front-end) layer was
tampered with.

Further, there has been no instance of audit trail feature being tampered with wherever it has been enabled. Additionally, the Group has preserved audit trail in respect

of the financial years ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2025 to the extent it was enabled and recorded in respect of those years

No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Group for helding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988B)
and rules made thereunder
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Notes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements

§9. The Group has not entered into any scheme of arrangement

60. There are no transactions which are not recorded in the books of aceount which have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments
under the Income Tax Act, 1961

B1. Previous year figures have been ragrouped/re-classified wherever necessary to confirm to current year's classification The impact of such regrouping/ re-classification are
not material to the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached
For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of,
Chartered Atcountants Protiumn Finance Limited
ICAI Firm Registration Number : 101045W/E300004
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Partner Managing Director & CEQ
Membership No 132990 DIN: 0B422699
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Amit Gu Anshu Mohta
Chief Financial g Company Secretary
Membership No.: A18287

Place: Mumbal
Date: 12 May 2025
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S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP 25 SenapaliBapat Maro
Chartered Accountants adar (!Nest)
Mumbai - 400 028, India

Tel: +91 22 6819 8000

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Protium Finance Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements of Protium Finance Limited (“the Company"), which
comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss, including the statement of
Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year
then ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements, including a summary of material accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended ("the
Act™) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, its profit including other
comprehensive loss, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the 'Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements' section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone
financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the standalone financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2025. These matters were addressed
in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our
audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.
We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the standalone
financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included
the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the standalone financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to
address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying standalone financial
statements.

Key audit matters | How our audit addressed the key audit matter

(a) Impairment of loans (expected credit losses) (refer note 8 and note 43 to the financial statements)
Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 109 | Our audit procedures included the following:
Financial Instruments requires the Company to
provide for impairment of its loans using the
expected credit loss (ECL) approach. ECL
involves an estimation of probability weighted
loss on financial assets over their life,
considering reasonable and supportable
information about past events, current |« Evaluated the reasonableness of the management

e Considered the Company's accounting policies for
impairment of loans and assessed compliance with Ind
AS 109 and the governance framework approved by
the Board of Directors pursuant to applicable Reserve
Bank of India guidelines (“the RBI Guidelines").

conditions, and forecasts of future economic estimates by understanding the process of ECL
conditions and other factors which could impact estimation and related assumptions. Tested the
the credit quality of the Company’s loans. internal controls around extraction, validation and

computation of the input data used in such estimation.

4
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Key audit matters

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

In the process, a significant degree of judgement
and estimates have been applied by the
management for:

»  Grouping of borrowers (retail loan portfolio)
based on homoageneity for estimating
probability of default (PD), loss given
default (LGD) and exposure at default
(EAD);

s Staging of loans (i.e. classification as
“significant increase in credit risk" (SICR) or

“credit impaired” categories) based on
overdue status and/or gualitative
assessment;

e Application of an appropriate statistical/
quantitative model for determining the PD,
LGD and EAD estimates;

e Determining relevant macro-economic and
other factors impacting credit quality of
loans; and

¢ The Company has also recorded a
management overlay as part of its ECL, to
reflect among other things an increased risk
of deterioration in relevant macro-
economic factors.

In view of the high degree of management's
judgement involved in estimation of ECL and the
overall significance of the impairment loss
allowance to the standalone financial
statements, it is considered as a key audit
matter.

Assessed the criteria for staging of loans based on
their overdue status to check compliance with
requirement of Ind AS 109. Tested a sample of
performing (stage 1) loans to assess whether any SICR
or impairment indicators were present requiring them
to be classified under stage 2 or stage 3.

Involved internal specialist for testing of the ECL
estimates, including factors that affect the PD, LGD
and EAD considering various forward looking macro-
economic and other factors.

Tested assumptions used by the management in in
respect of post-model adjustments.

Tested the arithmetical accuracy of computation of
ECL provision performed by the Company.

Assessed adequacy of disclosures included in the
standalone financial statements in respect of
expected credit losses.

(b) IT systems and controls

The financial accounting and reporting systems
of the Company are fundamentally reliant on IT
systems and IT controls to process significant
transaction volumes. Automated accounting
procedures and IT environment controls, which
include IT governance, general IT controls over
program development and changes, access to
programs and data and IT operations, are
required to be designed and to operate
effectively to ensure accurate financial
reporting.

Any gaps in the IT control environment could
result in a material misstatement of the financial
accounting and reporting records.

Therefore, in view of the pervasive nature and
complexity of the IT environment, the
assessment of the general IT controls and the
application controls specific to the accounting
and preparation of the financial information is
considered to be a key audit matter.

Our audit procedures, assisted by our internal IT experts,
on the IT infrastructure and applications relevant to
financial reporting included the following:

The aspects covered in the assessment of IT general
controls comprised: (i) User Access Management; (ii)
Program Change Management; (iii) Other related
ITGCs - to understand the design and test the
operating effectiveness of such controls in respect of
information systems that are important to financial
reporting ("in-scope applications").

Tested the changes that were made to the in-scope
applications during the audit period to assess changes
that have impact on financial reporting.

Tested the Company's periodic review of access rights.
We also inspected requests of changes to systems for
appropriate approval and authorization.

Tested the configuration of the audit trail feature in
the accounting software and maintenance of back-up
as per extant regulatory requirements.

Performed tests of controls (including other
compensatory controls, wherever applicable) on the IT
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Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter
application controls and IT dependent manual controls
in the system.

o Tested the design and operating effectiveness of
compensating controls in case deficiencies were
identified and, where necessary, extended the scope
of our substantive audit procedures.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Annual report, but does not include the standalone financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. When we
read the Annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to
communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect
to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company
in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

~
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

»  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

»  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

»  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2025
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matters

The standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2024, included in these
standalone financial statements, have been audited by the predecessor auditor who expressed an unmodified
opinion on those financial statements on April 30, 2024.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order"), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure 1" a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it

appears from our examination of those books except that, for the accounting software used by the
Company for payroll and vendor record maintenance and processing (operated by third-party software

/%
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service providers), we have not been able to obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence that the
backup of books maintained in electronic mode was maintained on servers physically located in India on
a daily basis, as explained in note 67 to the standalone financial statements, and the matters stated in
the paragraph 2(i)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014, as amended;

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive
Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are as
stated in paragraph (b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) of the Act and paragraph 2Gi)(vi)
below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these standalone
financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure 2" to this report;

In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2025 has been paid /
provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with
Schedule V to the Act;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
standalone financial statements - Refer note 37 to the standalone financial statements;

ii. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards,
for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative contracts. Refer
note 14 to the standalone financial statements;

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company;

iv. a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
the note 60 to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by
the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
the note 60 to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company
from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly
or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and
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¢) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that
the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company; and

Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used accounting software
for maintaining its books of account which have a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility,
and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the
software except that, in respect of a software used for loan origination, the audit trail was not
enabled, and for other software used for general ledger and loan management, the audit trail
feature was not enabled for direct changes to database when using certain access rights, and in
respect of certain software for payroll and vendor record maintenance and processing (operated
by third-party software service providers), in the absence of an appropriate Service Organization
Controls report, we are unable to comment on whether the audit trail feature was enabled and
operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in such software or whether
there were any instances of the audit trail feature being tampered with, as described in note 67 to
the standalone financial statements. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across
any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with, where the audit trail was enabled.
Additionally, the audit trail of relevant prior years has been preserved by the Company as per the
statutory requirements for record retention, to the extent it was enabled and recorded in those
respective years, as stated in note 67 to the financial statements.

For S. R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No:101049W/E300004

per Amit Lahoti

Partner

Membership No.: 132990

UDIN: 25132990BMORTM9626

Mumbai

May 12, 2025
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements" of our Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Standalone Financial Statements of
Protium Finance Limited (“the Company")

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of account
and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state
that:

(i) (a) (A)The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of property, plant and equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of the intangible assets
recognized in the standalone financial statements.

(b) Property, plant and equipment have been physically verified by the management during the year and
no material discrepancies were identified on such verification.

(c) There is no immovable property (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease
agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), held by the Company and accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including Right of use assets) or
intangible assets during the year ended March 31, 2025.

(e) There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami
property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made
thereunder.

(i) (@ The Company's nature of business does not require maintenance of inventories and, accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(iiXa) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) As disclosed in note 17 to the standalone financial statements, the Company has been sanctioned
working capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in aggregate from banks and financial institutions
during the year on the basis of security of current assets of the Company. Based on the records
examined by us in the normal course of audit of the standalone financial statements, the quarterly
returns/statements filed by the Company with such banks and financial institutions are in agreement
with the books of accounts of the Company.

(i) (a) The Company's principal business is to give loans and is a registered non-banking financial company
(‘NBFC"). Accordingly, reporting under clause (iii)(a) is not applicable to the Company.

(b) During the year the investments made, guarantees provided, security given and the terms and
conditions of the grant of all loans and advances in the nature of loans, investments and guarantees
to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties are not prejudicial to the
Company's interest.

(c) Inrespect of loans and advances in the nature of loans, granted by the Company as part of its business
of providing business and other loans to individual and corporate customers, the schedule of
repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated by the Company. Having regard
to the voluminous nature of loan transactions, it is not practicable to furnish borrower-wise details of
amount, due date for repayment or receipt and the extent of delay in this report (as suggested in the
Guidance Note on CARO 2020, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India for reporting
under this clause), in respect of loans and advances which were not repaid / paid when they were due
or were repaid / paid with a delay, in the normal course of lending business.

Further, except for 3,387 loans classified as credit impaired ('stage 3') with aggregate exposure of
principal and interest of Rs.10,442 lakhs, 2,120 loans where credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition (‘stage 2') with aggregate exposure of principal and interest of Rs.8,631 lakhs
and 1,811 loans where the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition but have
some overdue of up to 30 days ('stage 1') with aggregate exposure of principal and interest of
Rs.9,311 lakhs as at March 31, 2025, in respect of which the Company has disclosed staging in note
43 to the standalone financial statements in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
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and the guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India, the parties in respect of 55,880 loans with
aggregate exposure of principal and interest of Rs.405,399 lakhs are repaying the principal amounts,
as stipulated, and are also regular in payment of interest, as applicable.

In respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans, as disclosed in note 43 to the standalone
financial statements, the total amount outstanding of loans classified as credit impaired ('stage 3")
(including loans overdue for more than ninety days) as at March 31, 2025 is Rs.10,442 lakhs (3,387
loans). In such instances, in our opinion, reasonable steps have been taken by the Company for
recovery of the overdue amount of principal and interest.

The Company's principal business is to give loans and is a registered NBFC. Accordingly, reporting
under clause (iii)(e) is not applicable.

As disclosed in note 50 to the standalone financial statements, the Company has granted loans or
advances in the nature of loans, either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period
of repayment to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties. Of these following
are the details of the aggregate amount of loans or advances in the nature of loans granted to
promoters or related parties as defined in clause (76) of section 2 of the Act:

Particulars All Parties Related Parties
(Rs. in lakhs) (Rs. in lakhs)

Aggregate amount of loans/ advances in nature of loans 361.95 361.95

- Repayable on demand

Percentage of loans/ advances in nature of loans to the 0.08% 0.08%

total loans

Investments in respect of which provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the Act are applicable have
been complied with by the Company. There are no loans, guarantees, and security in respect of which
provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the Act are applicable.

The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts which are
deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the rules made
thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(v) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not in the business of sale of any goods or provision of such services as prescribed.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees' state
insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, cess
and other statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities
though there has been a slight delay in a few cases. According to the information and explanations
given to us and based on audit procedures performed by us, undisputed dues in respect of goods and
services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, service tax, sales-tax, duty of
custom, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other statutory dues which were outstanding, at the
year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable, are as follows:

Name of the | Nature of Amount | Period to which | Due Remarks, if any
Statute the Dues (Rs.) | the amount Date
relates
Professional | Professional | 14,775 | Apr 2023 to Sep 30, As represented by the Company, the
Tax Tax Sep 2023 2023 delay in the deposit of professional
20,405 | Oct 2023 to Mar 31, tax within the stipulated time is due
Mar 2024 2024 to non-availability of mandatory
7,815 | Apr2024to Sep 30, | documents to submit the details on
Sep 2024 2024 the portal. The Company is making
1,801 | Nov 2023 Dec 15, efforts to pay the amount and
2023 resolve the matter.

There are no dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income tax,
sales-tax, service tax, customs duty, excise duty, value added tax, cess, and other statutory dues, as
applicable to the Company, which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.
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The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the books
of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of
interest thereon to any lender.

The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government
or any government authority.

Term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

On an overall examination of the standalone financial statements of the Company, no funds raised on
short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes during the year by the Company.

On an overall examination of the standalone financial statements of the Company, the Company has
not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures during the year.

The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries.
The Company does not have any associate or joint venture, Accordingly, the requirement to report on
Clause 3(ixX(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer / further public
offer (including debt instruments). Hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares/ fully or partially
or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and hence, the requirement to report
on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

No fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Act has been filed by us in
Form ADT - 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the
Central Government.

We have taken into consideration the whistle blower complaints received by the Company during the
year while determining the nature, timing and extent of audit procedures.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Act. Therefore, the requirements to
report on clause 3(xii)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where
applicable and the details of such transactions have been disclosed in the notes to the standalone
financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.

The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for the period under
audit have been considered by us.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected
with its directors and hence the requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

The Company has registered as required, under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934
(2 of 1934).

The Company has not conducted any non-banking financial activities without a valid Certificate of
Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.
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The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by Reserve Bank
of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi)c) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

There is no Core Investment Company as a part of the Group, hence, the requirement to report on
clause 3(xvi)Xd) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current or the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly requirement
to report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 48 to the standalone financial statements, ageing
and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the standalone financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year
from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability
of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they
fall due.

In respect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are required to be
transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VIl of the Act, in compliance with second proviso to sub
section 5 of section 135 of the Act. This matter has been disclosed in note 40 to the standalone
financial statements.

There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects, that are required to be transferred to a
special account in compliance of provision of sub section (6) of section 135 of the Act. This matter has
been disclosed in note 40 to the standalone financial statements.

For S. R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No:101049W/E300004

/_‘_,...:--

per Amit Lahoti

Partner

Membership No.: 132990

UDIN: 25132990BMORTM9626

Mumbai

May 12, 2025
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Annexure 2 referred to in paragraph 2(g) under the heading "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements" of our Independent Auditor's Report of even date on the Standalone Financial Statements of
Protium Finance Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements of Protium
Finance Limited ("the Company") as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI"). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to these
standalone financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note") and the Standards
on Auditing, as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both issued by ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls with reference to these standalone financial statements was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to these standalone financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls with reference to these standalone financial statements, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to these standalone financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to these Standalone Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

ha
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Standalone Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements to future periods are subject to the
risk that the internal financial control with reference to standalone financial statements may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI.

For S. R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration No:101049W/E300004

2

per Amit Lahoti
Partner
Membership No.: 132990

UDIN: 25132990BMORTM9626

Mumbai
May 12, 2025



Protium Finance Limited

Standalone Balance Sheet as at Ma-cl 3¢, 2025

Rin lakhs)
|Particutars Note No. Asat As at
i March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
|Assets
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 5 84,033.23 89,687.38
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 1 41,95583 42,454.10
Derivative financial instrument 14 41.52 -
Trade receivables i 415.06 527.16
Loans 8 424,224.21 32362254
|Investments 9 52,427.75 26,910.98
Other financial assets 10 35,857.15 23,898.32
Total financial asset 638,954.75 507,100.48
|Non-financial assets
Current tax assets (net] 432.23 1,284.31
Property, plant and equipment 11 2,307.82 3,141.56
Intangible assets under development 12 8755 111.06
Intangible assets 12 3,207.15 3,270.54
Other non-financial assets 13 4,311.56 2,004.48
Total non-financial assets 9,811.95
Total Assets 64! !1212.45
Liabilities
Financial liabilities
Derivative fi ial i 14 - 35.04
Trade payables 15
{i) total ding dues of micro prises and small enterprises 347.32 916.66
{ii) rotal ding dues of creditors ather than micro prises and small 474.41 1,463.78
Debt securities 16 2,517.94 10,592.30
Borrowings {other than debt securities) 17 377,669.63 253,717.86
Other financial liabilities 18 10,788.22 14,150.78
Total financial liabilities 797.52 gg,mn
Non-financial liabilities
|Provisions 19 541.79 312.84
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 0 6,610.68 3,915.89
Other non-financial liabilities n 3,843.12 3,145.05
Total non-financial liabilities 995.59 7.373.78
Equity
Equity share capital 2 14,569.21 14,514.23
Other equity 3 231,938.74 214,108.00
.95 228,622.23
Total liabilities and equity 649 06 51&912.43
[P polici 24
See accompanying notes forming part of the jalone financial 571
As per our repart of even date attached
For 5.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board ol of
Chartered Accountants Protium Finance Limited

ICAI Firm Registration Number : 101049W/E300004

/zérnmummr s
artner ~ A 4

* Membership No. 132920

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 12, 2025

o

Managing Director & CEQ
DIN: 08422659

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 12, 2025

Anshu Mohta
Company Secretary
Membership No.: A18287

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 12, 2025



Protium Finance Limited

Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2025

= ) (% in lakhs)
Revenue from operations
|interest income 24 69,145.52 50,454.41
Fees and commission income 25 3,975.19 2,179.97
Net gain/(loss) on fair value changes 26 3,885.76 64.14
Net gain on der gnit of fi ial instr ts under amortised cost category 27 22,038.68 16,535.41
Total revenue from operations 99,049.15 69,233.93
Other income 28 4,264.60 3.661.83
Total income 103&]3.?5 72,895.76
Finance costs 29 30,443.14 18,997 70
Impairment on financial instruments 30 15,199.67 6,791.42
Empl benefits exp 31 20,901.55 17.598.18
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 32 3,176.44 2,392.49
Other expenses 33 11,044.29 11,419.36
Total expenses B80,765.09 57,199.15
Profit before tax 22,548.66 15,696.61
Tax expenses: 34
Adjustment to tax relating to earlier periods (329.78) -
Current tax 2,762.41 1,483.57
Deferred tax 3,01537 2,685.91
Profit after tax 1?&55 &SZ?AH
Other comprehensive income (0C1)
(i) tems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Remeasurement gain / (loss) on defined benefit plans (81.77) (48.48)
{ii) Income tax impact thereon 2058 12.20
Erab 1 (a) (61.19) (36.28)
(i) Iltems that will be reciassified to profit or loss 1
- The effective portion of gain / (loss) on hedging instruments (968.76) (35.04)
- The effective portion of gain / (loss) on loans (223.15)
{ii) Income Tax impact thereon 30000 8.82
Subtotal {b) (891.91) (26.22)
Other comprehensive income net of tax (a + b) 09 50|
Total comprehensive income for the year uél?.s‘! 11,464.63
Earnings per equity share [i inal value of share: 210 (Previous year: X10)]
Basic a5 11.77 10.52
Diluted 35 1173 10.52
fal ace g poli 24
[Seeac ing notes forming part of the dalt fi ial 5-71
As per our report of even date attached
For 5.R. Batlibol & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the
Chartered Accountants Protium Finance Uimited
ICAIl Firm Registration Number : L01049W/E300004 P
/./
- »
per Amit Lahotl - - 5 Misra
Partner =F Managing Director & CEO Jepe
Membership No. 132990 » DiN: 08422699 OIN: 02895343
Place: Mumbai J i y ]5 ,70 M z
Amit G Anshu Mohta
Chiefl Financial Officer Company Secretary
Membership No.: A18287
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date: May 12, 2025

Date: May 12, 2025 Date: May 12, 2025




Protium Finance Limited

Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2025

(X in lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended| For the year ended
March31,2025 | March 31,2024

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax 22,548.66 15,696.61
Adjustments:
Depreciation and amortization 3,176.44 2,392.49
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 17.11 46.50
Impairment on financial instrument 15,195.67 6,791.42
Net gain on fair value changes (3,551.35) (156.74)
Share based payment expense 825.46 439.66
Operating cash flows before working capital changes 38,215.99 25,209.94
Changes in working capital
(Decrease)/Increase provision 147.18 107.78
(Decrease)/Increase lease liability (1,388.20) (812.47)
(Increase)/Decrease in loans (115,805.77) (93,037.44)
(Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables 89.54 (231.69)
(Increase)/Decrease in other financial assets (12,146.76) (14,531.38)
{Increase)/Decrease in other non-financial assets (2,307.08) (678.68)
(Decrease)/Increase in trade payables (1,558.71) 1,545.89
(Decrease)/Increase in other financial liabilities (2,970.17) (17,715.07)
(Decrease)/Increase in other non-financial liabilities 698.07 {5,513.27)
Cash generated from operations (97,025.91) (105,656.39)
Income taxes paid (1,580.54) {1,480.66)
Net cash flow (used in) / generated from operating activities (A) (98,606.46) (107,137.05)
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (340.69) (1,048.99)
Disposal of property, plant and equipment 134.27 78.56
Addition of intangible assets including intangible under (1,121.30) (756.95)
Purchase of investments® (21,978.56) (22,439.61)
Proceeds on redemption of fixed deposits with banks 97,349.11 59,871.67
Placement of fixed deposits with banks (96,835.31) (100,560.99)
Net cash (used in) / generated from investing activities (B) (22,792.48) (64,856.31)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from debt securities - 69,585.36
Repayment of debt securities (7,475.00) (23,382.57)
Proceeds from borrowings (other than debt securities) 261,542.03 173,226.32
Repayment of borrowings (other than debt securities) (139,234.93) (63,045.15)
Proceeds from issuance of Equity share capital 912.68 83,771.11
Share issuance expenses - (4.85)
Net cash (used in) / generated from financing activities (C) 115,744.78 230,150.22
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C) (5,654.16) 58,156.84
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 89,687.38 31,530.54
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 84,033.23 89,687.38
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents with the balance sheet
Cash on hand = -
Balances with banks
- in current accounts 28,250.28 30,981.13
Deposits with original maturity of less than three months 55,782.95 58,706.25
Cash and cash equivalents in cash flow statement 84,033.23 89,687.38

«




Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2025 -

1) Net cash generated from operating activity is determined after adjusting the following
Partict itars T e e , " o 74 Rrr " th” -
s B Tk - . € Id-.a.{. ...
- March 31, 2025 1,
Interest received 57,456.31 43,483.60
Dividend received = i
Interest paid 28,893.45 18,536.66

2) Purchase of investment is after adjustment of proceeds from sale/redemption of investment.
3) Changes in liability arising from financing activities :-

(A) Changes in capital and asset structure

The Company does nat have any financing activities and investing activities which affect the capital and asset structure of the Company without

the use of cash and cash equivalents.

(B) Changes in liability arising from financing activities (% in lakhs)
Particls | Assthp Changeinfair | Other | AsstMarchy,
= e S o m - m
Debt securities (8,074.36) - 2,517.94
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 253,717.86 122,906.46 1,045.31 377,669.63
Total 264,310.16 114,832.10 1,045.31 - 380,187.57
(R in lakhs)

Debt securities - 10,592.30
|Borrowings (other than debt securities) 112,901.76 140,816.10 - - 253,717.86
[Total 117,926.02 146,384.14 - - 264,310.16
As per our report of even date attached /-\

For 5.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Dirgctorsiof

Chartered Accountants Protium Finance Limited

ICAl Firm Registration Number : 101049W/E300004
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per Amit Lahoti Pa Kumar Gupta
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Membership No. 132990 DiN: 08422699 DIN: 02895343
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Amit Gupta Anshu Mohta
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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Date: May 12, 2025
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Protium Finance Limited

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2025

A. Equity share capital

(Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period errors

Restated balance at the b of the current reporting 14,5143
period
|Changes in equity share capital during the year | 54.98
|Balance as at the end of the year
Tin la
K
e
__197,780.30 -
= = - 17,100.66 =
3 - - (61.19) $
= - - 17,039.47 *
1,149.01 . £ = =
= 3,420.13 - 3420 -
“ (38.17) - 38.17
.
- - - 11,527.13 L
& - - (36.23)
78,724.66 - & - »
2,305.43 (2,305.43) %
e | 1205857] -
As per our repart of even date altached
For 5.R. Batlibol & Associates LLP For and on oard of
Protium
N
Misra Gupta
Managing Director & CEQ Director
DIN; 08422693 - - 02895343
X Prshu Mo hfe
Amil Gupta Anshu Mohta
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Membership No.: A18287
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date: May 12, 2025 Date: May 12, 2025

Date: May 12, 2025




PROTIUM FINANCE LIMITED
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

1. Corporate information:

Protium Finance Limited (the "Company”) was incorporated on March 29, 2019 vide CIN U65999MH2019PLC323293 as Growth Source Financial Technologies Private Limited . The
Company was registered as Non- Banking Financial Company without accepting or holding public deposits, as defined under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,
The Company is primarily engaged in the business of lending secured and unsecured loans in SME, MSME and C Finance Segments. The C y has its registered office

at Nirlon Knowledge Park (NKP) B2, 7th Floor, Pahadi, Village, Dff. Western Express Highway, Goregaon (E), Mumbai, Mumbai City, Maharashtra, India, 400063. Under the scale
based regulation ("SBR") the Company is categorized as middle layer (NBFC-ML).

The audited standalone financial statements were approved by Board of Directors on May 12, 2025. The Company has its debt listed on BSE Limited.
2. Material accounting policy information
2.1 Basis of preparation :

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as prescribed in the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015
as amended from time to time and notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) along with other relevant provisions of the Act, the updated Master Direction
- Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company — Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 as amended from time to time and other applicable RBI
circulars/notifications. The Company uses accrual basis of accounting in preparation of financial statements (other than Statement of Cash Flows) except in case of significant
uncertainties. Accounting policies have been consistently applied to all periods presented, unless otherwise stated.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, as the Management is satisfied that company shall be able to continue its business for future and no
material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the going concern going concern assumption . In making this , the mar has considered a wide
range of information relating to present and future conditions, including the future projections, cash flows, and capital resources.

The 1alone financial stat ts are presented in Indian Rupee (INR), which is also the functional currency of the Company, in d ination of lakhs with rounding off to two
decimals as permitted by Schedule 1Il to the Act except where otherwise indicated. The standalone financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for
certain financial instruments that are measured at fair value.

2.2 Presentation of financial statements

The Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss are prepared and presented in the format prescribed in the Division IIl to Schedule Il to the Act applicable for Non
Banking Finance Companies (“NBFC"). The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared and presented as per the requirements of Ind AS 7 "Statement of Cash Flows". The
disclosure requirements with respect to items in the Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss, as prescribed in the Division Ill to Schedule 11l to the Act, are presented by
way of notes forming part of the financial statements along with the other notes required to be disclosed under the notified accounting Standards. Any guidance / clarifications /
notifications issued by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) are implemented as and when issued / made applicable.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally reported gross in the balance sheet. They are only offset and reported net when, in addition to having an unconditional legally
enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts without being contingent on a future event, the parties also intend to settle on a net basis in all of the following circumstances:

= the normal course of business
= the event of default
= the event of insolvency of bankruptcy of the Company/ or its counterparties

3. Revenue recognition

3.1 Interest income :

The company calculates interest income by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of financial assets other than credit-impaired assets. When a financial asset becomes
credit-impaired and Is, therefore, regarded as "Stage 3', the Company calculates interest income by applying the EIR to the amortised cost {net of expected credit loss) of the
financial asset. If the financial assets cures and is no longer credit-impaired, the Company reverts to calculating interest income on a gross basis.

The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash flows of the financial instrument through the expected life of the financial instrument or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount. The future cash flows are estimated taking into account all the contractual terms of the instrument.

The calculation of the EIR includes all fees paid or received between parties to the contract that are incremental and directly attributable to the specific lending arrangement,
transaction costs, and all other premiums or discounts. For financial assets measured at fair value through profit and loss (“FVTPL"), transaction costs are recognized in the
statement of profit and loss at initial recognition.

Interest income is calculated by applying the EIR ta the gross carrying amount of non-credit impaired financial assets/liabilities (i.e. at the amortised cost of the financial asset
before adjusting for any expected credit loss allowance). For credit-impaired financial assets, interest income is calculated by applying the EIR to the amortised cost of the credit-
impaired financial assets (i.e. the gross carrying amount less the allowance for expected credit losses)

Overdue interest and other ancillary charges in respect of loans are recognized upon realisation

3.2 Recognition of other i :

Revenue generated from the business transactions (other than for those items to which Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments are applicable) is measured at fair value of the
consideration to be received or receivable by the Company. Ind AS 115 Revenue fram contracts with customers outlines 3 single comprehensive mode| of accounting for revenue
arising from contracts with customers.

The Company recognises revenue from contracts with customers based on a five step model as set out in Ind 115:
Step 1: Identify contract(s) with a customer;

Step 2: identify performance obligations in the contract(s);

Step 3: Determine the transaction price;

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the perfarmance obligations in the contract(s);

Step 5: Recognise revenue when {or as) the Company satisfies a performance obligation.




PROTIUM FINANCE LIMITED

Notes to the Standal Financial
3.3 Fees and commission income :
Fees and cummission income includes Fees and commission charges other than those that are an integral part of EIR . The cumipany recugnises the other fee and zomriissicn
income under the terms and conditions of the relevant contract /agreement.

3.4 Income on derecognized (assigned) loans :

Gains arising out of direct assignment transactions comprises of the difference betwesn interest on the loan portfolio and the applicable rate at which the direct assignment is
entered into with the assignee, also known as the right of excess interest spread (EIS). The future EIS basis the scheduled cash flow on execation of the transaction, discounted at
.the applicable rate entered into with the assignee is recorded upfront in the statement of profit and loss.

3.5 Net gain on fair value changes :

The Company designates certain financial assets for subsequent measurement at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) or fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVOCQI). The Company recognises gains/loss on fair value change of financial assets measured at FVTPL and realised gains on derecognition of financial asset measured at FVTPL
and FVOCI on net basis.

3.6 Expenditures :

(i) Finance casts

Borrowing costs on financial liabilities are recognized using the EIR [refer note no. 3.1].

(i) Fees and commission expense

Fees and commission expenses which are not directly linked to the sourcing of financial assets, such as commission/incentive incurred on value added services and products
distribution, recovery charges, fees paid under guarantee scheme and fees payable for management of portfolio etc., are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss on an
accrual basis.

(ili) Other expenses

Expenses are recognized on accrual basis net of the goods and services tax, except where credit for the input tax is not statutorily permitted.

3.7 Financial instruments :

3.7.1 Date of recognition

A financial instrument is defined as any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial lisbility or equity instrument of another entity. Financial
instruments are measured at amortised cost, unless otherwise specified. All financial instruments are recognized on the date when the Company becomes party to the contractual
provisions of the financial instruments along with the certainty of ultimate collection in case of financial assets. For tradable securities, the Company recognises the financial
instruments on settlement date.

3.7.2 Initial measurement of financial instruments:

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initiall ed at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and f‘nancsai liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
are recognized immediately in profit or loss.

3.7.3 Day 1 profit and loss

When the transaction price of the financial instrument differs from the fair value at originatiun and the fair value is based on a valuation technigue using only inputs observable in
market transactions, the Company recognises the difference between the transaction price and fair value in net gain / loss on fair value changes. In those cases where fair value is
based on models for which some of the inputs are not observable, the difference between the transaction price and the fair value is deferred and is anly recognized in profit or
loss when the inputs become observable, or when the instrument is derecognized.

3.7.4 Classification & measurement categories of financial assets and liabilities

The Company determines its business model at the level that best reflects how it manages groups of financial assets to achicve its business objective. The Company’s business
model determines whether the cash flows will be generated by collecting contractual cash flows, selling financial assets or by both.

The Company’s busi model is d at portfalio level and not at instrument level, and is based on observable factors such as:
{i} How the performance of the business model and the financial assets held within that business mode! are evaluated and reported to the entity's key management parsonnel;

(i} The risks that affect the performance of the business model and, in particular, the way those risks are managed;
(i) The expected frequency, value and timing of sales are also important aspects of the Eumpanv/ s assessment. The business model assessment is based on reasonably expected
scenarios without taking ‘worst case’ or ‘stress case’ scenarios into account.

Solely payment of principal and interest (SPPI) test Sub to the to the rel busil model of the financial assets, the Company assesses the contractual
terms of financial assets to identify whether the cash flow realised are towards solely payment of principal and interest.

Principal for the purpose of this test is defined as the fair value of the financial asset at initial recognition and may change over the life of the financial asset. The most significant
elements of interest within a lending arrangement are typically the consideration for the time value of money and credit risk.

Initial measurement of financial instruments The classification of financial instruments at initial recognition depends on their contractual terms and the business model for
managing the instruments. Financial instruments are initially measured at their fair value.

The Company classifies all of its financial assets based on the business model for managing the assets and the asset’s contractual terms, measured at either:

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (AC)

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual zash flows and the
contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI} on the principal amount outstanding. The
changes in carrying value of financial assets is recognized in profit and loss account.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI if it is held within a business model whose abjective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and
the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. The
changes in fair value of financial assets is recognized in Other Comprehensive Income.

5 AS




PROTIUM FINANCE LIMITED

Notes to the Standalune Financial Suatzments

Financial assets at fair value through prait or loss {FVTPL)

A financial asset which is not classified in any of the sbove categories are measurad at FVTPL The Company measures all financial assets siasified as FYTPI at fair value at each
reporting date. The changes in fair value of iinancial assets is recognized in Prefit ane loss acLount.

3.8 Financial assets and liabilities :

3.8.1 Amortized cost and effective interest method
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of & debt instrurent and of allocating interest income over the relevant period.

For financial instruments other than purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets, the effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts =stimated future cash
receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) excluding
expected credit losses, through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the gross carrying smount of the debt instrument on initial
recognition.

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at which the financial asset is measured at initial recognition minus the principal repayments, plus the cumulative
amortisation using the effective interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount, adjusted for 3ny loss allowance. On the cther hand, the

gross carrying amount of a financial asset is the amortised cost of a financial asset before adjusting for any loss all e.

3.8.2 Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost except loan commitments, financial guarantees, and derivative financial liabilities.

3.8.3 Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets and financial liabilities in this category are those that are not held for trading and have been either desig 1 by gement upun initial recognition or are
mandatorily required to be measured at fair value under Ind AS 109. Manag anly desig an instrument at FVTPL upon initial recognition when one of the fallowing
criteria are met. Such designation is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

- The designation eliminates, or significantly reduces, the inconsistent treatment that would otherwise arise from measuring the assets or liabilities or recognising gains or losses
an them on a different basis; or

+ The liabilities are part of a group of financial liabilities, which are managed and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in acrordance with a documented risk
management or investment strategy; or

+ The liabilities containing one or more embedded derivatives, unless they do ot significantly modify the cash flows that would otherwise be required by the contract, or it is clear
with little or no analysis when a similar instrument is first considered that separation of the embedded derivative(s) is prohibited

Financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL are recarded in the balance sheet at fair value. Changes in fair value are recorded in profit and loss with the exception of
movements in fair value of liabilities designated at FVTPL due to changes in the Company’s own credit risk. Such changes in fair value are recorded in the credit reserve thraugh
OCl and do not get recycled to the profit or loss. Interest earned or incurred on instruments designated at FVTPL s accrued in interest income or finance cost, respectively, using
the EIR, taking into account any discount/ premium and qualifying transaction costs being an integra! part of instrument. Interest earmed on assets mandatorily required to be
measured at FVTPL is recorded using contractual interest rate.

3.8.4 Loan commitment
“Undrawn loan commitments are commitments under which over the duration of the i it, the Company is required to provide a ioan with pre-specified terms to the
customer. Undrawn loan commitments are in the scope of the ECL requirements.

3.8.5 Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Financial instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual i in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognized at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

3.9 Reclassification of financial assets :

The Company changes classification of its financial assets only on account of changes in its business model for managing these financial assets. Such reclassifications are given
prospective impact as per the principles laid down in Ind AS 109 'Financial Instruments’,

3.10 Derivative financial instruments :
The Company enters into derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to interest rate risk and foreign exchange rate risk. Derivatives held by the Company are Cross
Currency Interest Rate Swaps (CCIRS). Derivative contracts are initially recognized at fair value on the date of entering into contract and are subsequently remeasured to their fair

value at each reporting date. The resulting gains/losses are recog 1 in the 5t 1t of Profit and Loss immediately unless the derivative is designated and is effective as a
hedging instrument. For hedging instrument, the timing of the recognition in the St it of Profit and Loss depends on the nature of the hedge relationship. The Company
ignates its CCIRS derivatives as cash flow hedges of a recognized liability. The Company recognises derivatives with a positive fair value as = financial asset and derivatives with

a negative fair value as a financial liability.

(This space has been left blank intentionally)
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Hedge ascountrig

The Company e, ase of devfvaive instrurmens ‘o manage exoosusss (o vdeeel rate risk and foreign curency risk. in ordsr Lo manage particular risks, the Company appims
hedge accounting for trar sactin.gs thal reet spedilisd <iteiia.

At the inception of u hedze rel kip, the C y formally desip ana Jdoc ts the heoge relationship to which the Comoany wishes to apply hedge accounting and the
risk manzgement objective and strategy for underiaking the hedpe. The documentation includes the Zommpany’s risk management objective and strategy for undertaking hedge.
the hedging/economic 1elationship, the hedged iteni 1 transaction, the natre of the risk being hedged, hedge ratio and now the Company would assess the effectiveness of
changes in the hedging instrument’s fair value in offsetting the 2xposure to charges in the hedged item's cash flows attributable to the hadged risk. Such hedges are expected to
e highly effactive in achieving offsetting chanaes in cash flows and are assessed cn an on-going basis to determine that they actually have been highly effective tnroughout the
financial reporting periods for which they were designated.

Cash flow hedge

Hedges that meet the criteria for hedge accounting and qualify as cash flow hedges are accounted as follows:

A cash flow hedge is a hedge of the exposure to variability in cash flows that is attributabie to a particular risk associated with a recognized asset or liability and could affect profit
or loss.

For designated and qualifying cash flow hedges, the effective portion of the cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument is initially recognized directly in OC! within equity
(cash flow hedge reserve). The ineffective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognized immediately as finance cost in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
When the hedged cash flow affects the Statement of Profit and Loss, the effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recorded in the corresponding income
or expense line of the Statement of Profit and Loss.

When a hedging instrument expires, is sold, terminated, exercised, ur when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss recognised in
0Cl is subsequently transferred to the Statement of Profit and Loss on ultimate recognition of the underlying hedged forecast transaction. When a forecast transaction is no
Ionger expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that was reported in CCl is immediately transferred to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

3.11 Derecognition of financial Instr s

3.11.1 Derecognition of financial asset
A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or a part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the
financial asset have expired. The Company also derecognises the financial asset if it has both transferred the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition.

The Company has transferred the financial asset if, and only if, either

« The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or

« It retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumed a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows in full without material delay to third
party under pass throupgh arrangement.

A transfer only qualifies for derecognition if either:
+ The Company has trensfrrred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset or
+ The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset but has transferred control of the asset.

The Company considers control to be transferred if and only if, the transferee has the practical ability to sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party and is able to
exercise that ahility uniiaterally and without imposing additional restrictior:s on the transfer.

3.11.2 Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liahility are substantially modified, such an exchange or medification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference between the carrying value of the original financial liability and the consideration paid, including modified
contractual cash flow recognized as new financial liability, is recognized in statement of profit and loss.

3.12 Impairment of financial assets :
The Company records allowance for expected credit losses for zll financial assets, other than financial assets held at FVTPL, together with loan commitment and financial
guarantee contracts. Equity instruments are not subject to impairment.

(This space has baan lefi blank intentionally)
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General approach

For all ather financial instruments, the Company recognizes lifetime ECL when there has been a significant increase in credit risk (SICR) since initial recognition. if, on the uthe:
lrand, the credit nsk on the financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at
an amaunt equal to 12-month expected credit losses (12m ECL). The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognized i based on significant increases in the likelihood or
it d of an evidence of a financial asset being credit-impaired at the reporting date or an actual default occurring.

risk of a default nccurning since initial recog

Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit losses that will result from all possibie default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. In contrast, 12m ECL represeits
the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 monthe after the reporting date.

The measurement of ECL. is a function of the probability of default (PD), loss given default (LGD) (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default
|EAD}. The assessment of the PD and LGD is based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking information. As for the EAD, for financial assets, this is represented by the assets’
gross carrying amount at the reporting date; for loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts, the exposure includes the amount drawn down as at the reporting date,
together with any additional amounts expected to be drawn down in the future by default date determined based on historical trend, the Company’s understanding of the specific
future financing needs of the customer, and other relevant forward-looking information.

Coumpany categories its financial assets as follows :

Stage 1 assets

Stage 1 assets includes financial instruments that have not had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition or that have low credit risk at the reporting date. For
these assats, 12-month ECL (resulting from default events possible within 12 months from reporting date) are recognized.

Stage 2 assets
Stage 2 Assets includes financial instruments that have had a significant increase in credit nsk since initial recognition. For these aszets lifetime ECL (resulting from default events
possible within 12 months from reporting date) are recognized.

Stage 3 assets
Stage 3 Assets are considered credit-impaired and the Company recognises the lifetime ECL for these loans. The method is similar to that for Stage 2 assets, with the PD set at
100%.

Purchased or Originated Credit Impaired (POCI) assets
Assets are considered credit-impaired and the Company recognises the lifetime ECL for these loans. The method is similar to that for Stage 2 assets, with the PD set at 100%.

For financial assets, ECL is estimated as the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Company expects to receive, discounted at the original effective interest rate. The Company recognises an impairment loss or reversal of impairment loss in the profit and loss
staternent with a correspornding adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance account.

Thz Company does not limit its exposure to credit losses to the contractual notice period, but instead calculates ECL over a period that reflects the Company’s expectations of the
customer behaviour, its likeflihood of default and the Company’s future risk mitigation procedures, which could include reducing or cancelling the facilities.

3.13 Collateral valuation :

To mitigate its credit risks on financial assets, the Company seeks to use collateral, where possible. The collateral comes in various forms, such as cash, securities, power of
attorney, credit enhancements such as netting agreements. Collateral, unless repossessed, is not recorded on the Company’s balance sheet. However, the fair value of collateral
affects the calculation of ECLs. It is generally assessed, at a minimum, at inception and re-assessed on a quarterly basis/annual basis.

To the extent possible, the company uses active market data for valuing financial assets held as collateral.

3.14 Write-offs ; |

Loans and debt securities are written off when the Company has no reasonalile expectations of recovering the financial asset (either in its entirety or a portion of it). In such cases,
the Company determines that the borrower does not have assets or suurces of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off. A
write-off constitutes a derecognition event. The Company may apply enfurceinent activities to financial assets written off. Recoveries resulting from the Company’s enforcement
activities result in ;mpairment gains and are credited to statement of profit and loss.

3.15 Forborne and modified loan :

The Company sometimes makes concessions or modifications to the original terms of loans as a response to the borrower's financial difficulties, rather than taking possession or
ta otherwise enforce collection of coll |. The Company considers a loan forborne when such concessions or modifications are provided as a result of the borrower’s present or
expected financial difficulties and the Company would not have agreed to them if the borrower had been financially healthy. Indicators of financial difficulties include defaults on
covenants, or significant concerns raised by the Credit Risk Department. Forbearance may involve extending the payment arrang ts and the agi it of new loan
conditions. Once the terms have been renegotiated, any impairment s measured using the original EIR as calculated before the modification of terms. It is the Company's policy to
monitor forborne loans to help ensure that future payments sontinue to be likely to occur. Derecognition decisions and classification between Stage 2 and Stage 3 are determined
on a case-by-case basis. If these procedures identify a loss in velation to a loan, it is disclosed and managed as an impaired Stage 3 forborne asset, until it is collected or written
off.

(This space has been left blark intentionally)
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3.16 Determination of fair value :

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value is the price that would be received o c2ll an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurament is based an the presumpiion that the iransaction
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either;

- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

« In the absence of a principal market, in the maost advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the ascet or liability, assuming that markst participants
act in their economic best interest. A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate sconomic benefits by using the
asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. The Company uses valuation techrig that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to e fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of

unobservable inputs. In order to show how fair valuas have been derived, financial instruments are classified based on a hierarchy of valuation technigues, az summarised below:

Fair value measurement under Ind AS 113 are categorised into level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety ,which are as follows :

Level 1 Inputs

Those where the inputs used in the valuation are unadjusted guoted prices from active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company has access to at the
measurement date. The Company considers markets as active only if there are sufficient trading activities with regards to the velume and liquidity of the identical assets or
liabilities and when there are binding and exercisable price quotes available on the balance sheet date.

Level 2 Inputs

These where the inputs that are used for valuation and are significant, are derived from directly or indirectly observahle market data for substantially the full terrn of the asset or
liability.

Level 3 Inputs

Those that include one or more uncbservable input that is significant to the measuremert as whole.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have accurred between levels in the
hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period. The
Company periodically reviews its valuation techniques including the adopted methodologies and model calibrations.

Therefore, the Company applies various techniques to esti the credit risk associated with its financial instruments measured at fair value, which include 2 portfolio-based
approach that estimates the expected net exposure per zounterparty over the full lifetime of the individual assets, in order to reflect the ciedit risk of the individual counterparties
for non-collateralised financial instruments.

The Company evaluates the levelling at each reporting period on an instrument-by-instrument basis and reclassifies instruments whan necessary based on the facts at the end of
the reporting period.

3171 in subsidiaries and associates :

Investment in subsidiaries and associates are recognized at cost and are not adjusted to fair value at the end of each reporting period as allowed by Ind AS 27 'Separate financial
statement'. Cost of investment represents amount paid for acquisition of the said investment.

The Company assesses at the end of each reporting period if there are any indications of impairment on such investments. If so, the Company estimates the recoverable
value/amount of the investment and provides for impairment, if any i.e. the deficit in the recoverable value over cost.

3.18 Retirement and other employee benefits :
3.18.1 Short term employee benefit

All ployee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term employee benefits. These benefits include short term
compensated absences such as paid annual leave. The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered by
ploy is recognized as an exp during the period. Benefits such as salaries and wages, etc. and the expected cost of the bonus/ ex-gratia are recognized in the period in

which the employee renders the related service.

3.18.2 Post-employment employee benefits :

(i) Defined benefit plans

The Company provides for the gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering all employees. The plan provides for lump sum payments to employees upon death while in
employment or on separation from employment after serving for the stipulated years mentioned under The Pay of Gratuity Act, 1972". The present value of the obligation
under such defined benefit plan is determined based on actuarial valuation, carried out by an independent actuary at each Balance Sheet date, using the Projected Unit Credit
Method, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to an additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and gach unit separately to build up the final
obligation.

The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rates used for determining the present value of the obligation under defined
benefit plan are based on the market yields on Government Securities as at the Balance Sheet date.

Net interest recognized in profit or loss is calculated by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation to thie net defined benefit iiability or asset, The
actual return on the plan assets above or below the discount rate is recognized as part of re-measi of net defined liability or asset through other comprzhensive income.
An actuarial valuation involves making various ptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, attrition
rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, these liabilities are highly sensitive to changes in these
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

Defined benefit plans may be unfunded, or they may be wholly or partly funded Ly contributions by the Company, into an entity, or fund from which the employee benefits are
. 'paid. The Company is liable ta make differential payment for any shortfall between defined benefit payments and the contribution made by the Comaar
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(i) Defined contribution plans :

Defined contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive
obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to amployee service in the current and prior periods. The
Company contributes into following schemes under defined cantribution plans:

Superannuation

Defined contribution to superannuation fund is made as per the scheme of the Company.

Provident fund

Each eligible employee and the Company make contribution at a percentage of the basic salary specified under the Employee Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act,
1952. The Company recognises contributions payable to the Provident fund scheme as an expenditure when the

employees render the related service. The Company has no further obligations under the plan beyond its periodic contributions.

Employees state insurance

The Company contributes to Employees State Insurance Scheme and recognises such contribution as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period when services
are rendered by the employees.

(iii) Compensated absences

Privilege leave entitlements are recognized as a liability as per the rules of the Company. The liability for accumulated leaves which can be availed and/or encashed at any time
during the tenure of employment is recognized using the projected unit credit method at the actuarially determined value by an appointed actuary. The liability for accumulated
leaves which is eligible for encashment within the same calendar year is provided for at prevailing salary rate for the entire unavailed leave balance as at the Balance Sheet date.

Remeasurements on defined benefit plans, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined
benefit liability and the return on plan assets, are recognized immediately in the Balance Sheet with a corresponding debit or credit ta retained earnings through OCl in the period
in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods

3.19 Share based payments

The Company carries out fair value cost assessment of employee stock options on the grant date using Black Scholes model. The cost towards employ of the Company is
recognized as employee benefits expenses and that pertaining to employees of subsidiaries are recovered from subsidiaries, over the period in which the service conditions are
fulfilled. The cumulative expense/recharge recognized for equity settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period
has not expired and the Company’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. No expense is recognized for grants that do not ultimately vest
because of non fulfillment of service conditions. Service conditions are not taken into account while determining the grant date fair value of options, but the likelihood of the
conditions being met is assessed as part of the Company’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest

3.20 Leases :

The Company's leases primarily consists of leases for Building and office premises .The company assesses whether a contract contains a lease , at the inception of a contract. A
contract contains a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for a consideration. To assess whether a
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the company shether (i} the contract involves the use of an identified asset (ji) the company has

substantially all of the economic benefits from the use of the asset through out the period of lease and (jii) the company has the right to direct the use of asset.

Y] pory

ement and recogl
At lease commencement date, the Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability on the balance sheet. The right-of-use asset is measured at cost, which is made up
of the initial measurement of the lease liability, any initial direct costs incurred by the Company, an estimate of any costs to dismantle and remove the asset at the end of the
lease, and any lease payments made in advance of the lease commencement date {net of any incentives received).

The Company depreciates the right-of-use assets on a straight-line basis from the lease commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or
the end of the lease term. The Company also assesses the right-of-use asset for impairment when such indicators exist. At the commencement date, the Company measures the
lease liability at the present value of the lease payments unpaid at that date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease if that rate is readily available or at the
incremental borrowing rate.

Sub t to initial ement, the liability will be reduced for payments made and increased for interest. It is remeasured to reflect any reassessment or maodification, or if

there are changes in in-substance fixed . When the lease liability is sred, the corresg g adj is reflected in the right-of-use asset, or profit and loss if

the right-of-use asset is already reduced to zero.

Short term lease
The Company has elected not to recognise right of use asset and lease liabilities for short term leases of property that has lease term of 12 months or less. The Company
recognises lease payment associated with these leases as an expense on a straight line basis over lease term.

Company as a lessee:

For any new contracts entered into on or after April 1, 2019, the Company considers whether a contract is, or contains a lease. A lease is defined as ‘a contract, or part of a
contract, that conveys the right to use an asset (the underlying asset) for a period of time in exchange for consideration’. To apply this definition the Company assesses whether
the contract is or contains lease.

3.21 Earnings per share :
Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net pruﬁt after tax attributable to the equity shareholders for the year by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding for the year.

Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential dilution that could occur if securities or ather contracts to issue equity shares were axercised or converted during the year. Diluted
earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax attributable to the equity shareholders for the year by weighted average number of equity shares considered for
deriving basic earnings per share and weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all potential equity shares.
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.24 tmpairenent of nun-financial ascets -

Ihe “ompaiy assesses at cach balance sheet d=te whether there is any inurcation that an asset may be linpaired hased on internal/external factors. If any such indication exists,
the Company estimates the recoverable am.aunl of the asset. If such recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable amount of cash generating unit which the asset belongs
i is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amaunt is redused to its recoverable amount The reduction is treated as an imipairment loss and is recognized in the statement of
prafit and less. If at the talance sheet date there is an indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the
impairment i reversed subject to a maximurn carrying value of the asset before impairment.

3.23 Provisions and other contingent liabilities :

Pravisions «re rerognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle
the vbligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting
the expected future cash flows to net present value using an appropriate pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and, where
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.

A present obligation that arises from past events, where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannat
be mads, is disclosed as a contingent liability. Contingent liabilities are also disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will he
confirmad enly by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company. Claims against the Company, where
the possibility of any outflow of resources in settiement is remote, are not disclosed as contingent liabilities.

Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements since this may result in the recognition of income that may never be realised. However, when the realisation of
income is virtually certain, then the related asset is not a contingent asset and is recognized.

2.24 Income tax axpensss:
Income Lax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable ard deferred tax.

3.25.1 Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the yea. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of
income or expense that are tavable or deductible in other years and items that ore never taxable or deductible. The Company's current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. The company has opted for lower rate of tax under section 115BAA @ 22% plus surcharge of 10% and
cess of 4% . Effective tax rate being 25.17%.

3.25.2 Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the zarrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial st s and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recoanized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generaliy recognized for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits wiil b2 available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewad at the 2nd of 2ach reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expacied to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates {and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reperting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle tha carrying amount of its assets ard liabilities.

3.25.3 Current and deferred tax for the year
Current and deferred tax are recognized in profit or loss, except when they relata to itemns that are recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are aiso recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

3.26 Goods and Service tax input credit :
Goods and Services tax input credit is accounted for in the books for the period in which the supply of goods or service received is accounted and when there is no uncertainty in
availing/utilising the credits.

3.27 Cash and cash equivalents :
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less.

3.28 Property, plant and Equipment :

Recognition and measurement
Property, plant and equipment (PPE] is recognized when it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with it will flow to the company and the cost can be measured
refiably.

PPE are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises the purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working
condition for its intended use. Borrowing costs relating to acquisition of assets which takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are also included to the
extent they relate to the year till such assets are ready Lo be put to use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Gains or losses arising
from derecognitiun of such assets are measured as the difference Letween tie nat disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the Statement of
Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognized.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsetyuent costs are includad in the asset's carrying amount o7 recognized as 4 separate asset, as appropriate only if it is probable that the future economic benefits assaciated
viith the item will flow to the Company and that the cost of the item can be reliably measured. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is
derecognized when replaced. All other repair and maintenance expenses are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.
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Depraciation

Depreciation is provided on Straight Line Method ('5LM'), which reflects the management’s estimate of the useful life of the respective assets. The estimated useful life used to
provide depreciation are as follows:

Particulars E: d useful lite by the C y Useful life as per schedule Il of the Comy Act, 2013
Compulters 3 years 3 years

Office Equipment 5 years S years

Furniture and fixtures 10 years 10 years

Scftware and other intangibles 5 yeary 6 years

The useful lives and the method of depreciaticn uf property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. Changes in
the expected useful life are accounted for by changing the amortisation period or methodology, as appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting estimates

3.29 Intangible assets :

Recognition and measurement

An intangible asset is recognized only when its zost can be measured reliably and it is probable that the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to it will flow to
the Company. Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated
amartisation, The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value as at the date of acquisition.

Amortisation

Intangible assets are amortised using the straight line method over a period of 5 years, which is the management’s estimate of its useful life. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method are reviewed at least as at each financial year end. If the expected useful life of the asset is significantly different from previous estimates, the amortisation
period is changed accordingly. Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an intangible asset are determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and recognized as income or expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

3.30 Foreign currency translation :

Initial recognition

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the
foreign currency at the date of the transaction,

Conversion

Foreign cuirency monetary items are re-translated using the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date. Non-monetary items, which are measured in terms of historical cost
denominated in a foreign currency, are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

Exchange differences

All exchange differences are accounted in the Statement of Profit and Loss or Other Comprehensive Income as permitted under the relevant Ind AS.

4, Critical accounting judgement and key source of estimates uncertainties

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the Ind AS requires the mar te make judgments, esti and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
uf revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosure and th disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting year. Estimates and underlying
assumplions are :eviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the year in which the estimates are revised, Although these estimates are
based on the management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these ptions and could result in the outcomes requiring a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabllities in future years.

in paiticular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognized in the financial statements is included in the following notes:

3.1 Busi model =

The Company determines its business model at the level that best reflects how it manages groups of financial assets to achieve its business objective. The Company determines its
ousiness model at a level that reflects how financial assets as a whole and not an individual instrument performs; therefore the business model is developed basis a higher level nf
assessment at portfolin level rather than on granular instrument-level information and is based on observable factors such as:

(i) How the perfermance of the business model and the financial assets held within that business model are evaluated and reported to the entity's key management personnel.

(i} fhe risks that affect the performance of the business model and, in particular, the way those risks are managed.

(i} The expected frequency, value and timing of sales are also essential aspects of the Company’s assessment.

At initial recognition of a financial asset, the Company determines whether newly recognized financial assets are part of an existing business model or whether they reflect a new
husiness model. The Company reassesses it’s business model at each reporting periad to determine whether the business model has changed since the previous period.

Sased on this rent and future busi plans of the Company, the manag has measured its financial assets at amortised cost as the asset is held within a business
model whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows, and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
intarest
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4.2 Effective li-terest Rate (EIR) Method :

The Company’s EIR methodology recognises interest income / expense using a rate of return that represenis the best astimate of 4 zonstant rate of return over the expecied
behavioral life of loans given / taken and recognises the effect of potentially different interest rates at various stages and other characteristizs 2f the graduct life cycle including
prepayments and penalty interest and charges.

This estimation, by nature requires an element of judgement regarding the expected behavior and life cycle of the instrumeri, a5 well axpected changes India‘s Yase rate and
other fee income, expenses that are integrail part of the instrument.

4.3 Impairment of Financial assets :

The measurement of impairment losses across all categories of financial assets requires judgement, in particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows and
collateral values when determining impairment losses and the assessment of a sigrificant increase in credit risk. These estiinates are driven by a number of factors, changes in
which can result in different levels of allowances.

The Company's ECL calculations are outputs of models with a numbar of underlying assumptions regarding the chaice of variable inputs and their interdependencies. Elements of
the ECL models that are considered accounting judgements and estimates include:
= PD calculation includes historical data, assumptions and expectations of future conditions
. = The Company’s criteria for assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit risk and 59 allowances for financizl ussets should be measurad on a lite-time expected credit
loss and the qualitative assessment
= The segmentation of financial assets when their ECL is assessed on a collective basis
= Development of ECL models, including the various formulas and the choice of inputs
* Determination of correlation between macroeconomic scenarios and, economic inputs, such as GOP levels and collateral values, and the effect on PDs, EAD and LGD
+ Selection of forward -looking macroeconomic scenarios and their probability weightings, Lo derive the economic inputs into the ECL modeis

It is Company’s policy to regularly review its models in the context of actual loss experience and adjust when nacessary.

4.4 Impai of Non-Fi ial assets :

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indicstion that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exist, the company estimates the asset's recoverable
amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is higher of an asset’s fair value less cost of disposal and its value in use. Where the carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount, the
asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

4.5 Fair value of financial instruments :

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liakility in an orderly transacticn in the principal {or most
advantageous) market at the measurement date under current market conditions (i.e., an exit price) regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be derived from aclive markets, they are
determined using a variety of valuation technigues that include the use of valuation models. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but

where this is not feasible, estimation is requirad in blishing fair values. Judg its and estimates include considerations of liquidity and model inputs related to items such as
credit risk (both own and counterparty), funding value adjustments, correlation and volatility.

4.6 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets :

Provisions are recognized when

i. Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event; and

ii. itis probable that an outflow of resources embaodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; and

jii. a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Long term provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognized as a finance cost. A
provision for onerous contracts is measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the
contract. Before a provision is established, the Company recognises any impail loss on the assets associated with that contract.

Contingent liability is disclosed in case of

I. a present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and
ii. a present obligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimate is possible.

Contingent liabilities are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

Contingent assets :
Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements. Contingent asset are disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

4.7 Provisions for Income Taxes :
Significant judgments are invalved in determining the provision for income taxes including judgment on whether tax positions are probable of being sustained in tax assessments.
A tax assessment can involve complex issues, which can only be resolved over extended time pericds.

Estimates and judgments are continuslly evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectation of ruture events that may have a financial
impact on the company and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
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Note "5*

Cash and cash equivalents (% in lakhs)

| Particulars Asat Asat
March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024

Cash on hand -

Balance with banks

Current accounts 28,250.28 30,981.13

Bank deposits with original maturity of less than or equal to three months 55,782 95 58,706.25

Total 3.23 B3,687.38

S ]

Note 8"

Bank bal hand cash equi (i lakhs)

Particulars Asat Asat
March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024

Bank deposits with original maturity of more than three months 41,955.83 42.454.10

Total 41,955.83 42,454.10

Note: Bank deposits includes deposits under lien aggregating to Rs, 4,091.10 lakhs {as at March 31, 2024 Rs., 4,492.98 lakhs | for liabilities arising out of securitisation transactions and amount includes Rs. 2,001.13 lakhs
(as at March 31, 2024 Rs. 10,306.08 lakhs) for labilities arising out of overdraft facility. -

MNate “7*
Trade receivables (T in lakhs)
Particulars Asat Asat
March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024

Receivables considered good - Secured - -

i good - U d 404.89 54273
Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk 4330 -
Receivables — credit imp. - -
Total 453.19 542.73
Less: Impairment loss allowancs {36.13) [15.57)
Total 415.06 527.16
Trade receivables ageing
As at March 31, 2025 (% in lakhs)

Particulars Current but not. Outstanding for following periods from due date of
due Lessthan 6 & months - 1 year 1-2 years 2-3years more than 3 years Total
maonths

Receivables considered good - Secured 100.85 26855 9.67 - - - 379.08

1 which have si increase in credit risk - 30.82 - 4330 - = 74.12
Total 100.86 29937 9.67 43.30 - - 453.20
Less: Impairment loss allowance (38.13)]
Total 415.07
As at March 31, 2024 (% in lakhs)

Particulars Current but not for periods from due date of payment
due Less than 6 6 months - 1year 1-2 years 2-3 years more than 3 years Total
maonths

Receivables considered good - Secured - 524.56 7.06 L1 - 542.73
Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk = 2 = - -
Total - 524.56 1.06 1111 - 54273
Less: Impairment loss allowance 115.57)
Tatal 527.16

7.1 i) No trade receivables are due from Directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person or debits due by firms including limited liability partnerships (LLPs), private
companies respectively in which any director is a partner or a director or a member.

7.1{ii} No trade receivables are due from related parties.

{This space has been left blank intentionally)
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Loans (% in lakhs)
Particulars Asat Asat
March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
{4) Loan portfolic
al amertised cost
(i) Term loans 34373163 328,889.20
(i1) Loans and advances to related parties 361.95 =
at fair value through OCI
(i) Term loans 89,690,08 -
Total gross loans 433,783.66 328,889.20
Less : Impairment loss allowance
at amortised cost {9.058.98) [5,266.66]
at fair value through OC1 (500.47) -
Total Impairment loss allowance 19,559.45) |5,266.66)
Total net loans 424,224.21 323,622.54
(B) Of the above
(i} Secured against land, bullding & machinery 282,136.35 212,483.35
(i) Unzecured 151,647.31 116,405.84
Total gross loans 433,783.66 328,889.20
Less @ Impairment loss allowance
[} Secured against land, building & machinery (3.536.41) (L671.72)
{ii} Unsecured (6,023.04) {3,594.94)
Less : Impairment loss allowance [9,559.45) (5,266.66)
Tatal net loans 424,224.21 323,622.54
{€) Of the above
Loans in India
(i) Public Sector - -
{ii} Others 433,783.66 318,683.10
Total gross loans 433,783.66 328,889.20
Less : Impalrment loss allowance
{i) Public Sector - =
{ii] Others (9,559.45) (5,265.66)
Less : Impairment loss allowance {9,559.45) (5,266.65)
Total net loans a) 424,224.21 323,522.54
Loans outside India (b) = -
Total net loans {a] + [b] 424040 323,622.54
8.1 Coliateral :
Loans granted by the Company are secured by any or all of the iing as appli based an their

a) Equitable / registered mortgage of property.
b) Undertaking to creale a security.

8.2 The Company has provided no loans in current year to pramoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties other than as mentioned in RPT {refer  Note no. 46 |

8.3 Unsecured Loans includes unsecured business inans which is guaranteed by Credit Guarantee Fund Trust for Micro and Small Enterprises [CGTMSE) and Credit Guarantee Fund for Micre Uinits {CGFMU) amounting
to Rs. 59,790.64 Lakhs [March 31, 2024 Rs. 34,812 38 Lakhs)

8.4 There were no loans given against the coflateral of gold jewellery & hence the percentage of such loans ta the total outstanding assets (as 3t March 31, 2024 is Nil),

B.5 In accordance with its accounting policy for business model assessment, the Company has designated certain loans originated from Octobser 1, 2024 at fair value through other comprehensive income [*FVOCI),
which will be held within a business model whose objective will be achieved by both holding these loans 1o collect contractusl cashflows and ta sell.

[This space bas been left blank intentionally)
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Investments
As at March 31, 2025 {% in lakhs)
Particulars At ised Cost At Fair Value At cost Total
Through Other | Through Profit or Designated Subtotal
Comprehensive Loss through Profit or
Income Loss
Investment in Debentures 11,537.38 - . - = 11,537.38
Investment in Commercial Papers 10,347.62 - - 10,347.62
Investment in Pass Through Certificates B,132.09 - - - 4,132.09
Investment in Subsidiaries - - - 760.00 760.00
= Protium Business Services Private Limited
(76,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid-up for capital infusion)
- Shibul Technologies Private Limited - - - 1.00 1.00
(10,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid-up for capital infusion)
Investment in Government Securities 12,920.22 - = - - 12,920.22
Investment in Mutual Funds - - 8,643.91 - B8,64391 8,643.91
in ULIP - - 99.26 - 99.26 - 99.26
‘I‘D_Ial {A) @,31 - 8,743.17 - 8.?43.1? 761.00 SZ!MLM
Investment cutside India 3 - - - - -
Investment in India 42,937.31 8,743.17 = B,743.17 761.00 52,441.48
Total SB:I 42,937.31 - 8!713.1? = 8,743.17 761.00 SZ&I.Q-B
Less: Impairment loss Allowanee (C) {13.73) - - - - (13.73)
M—D: A-C) 42& = 8,743.17 - ﬂ,'ﬂil? 761.00 S&
As at March 31, 2024 (% In lakhs)
Particulars At Amortised Cost At Fair Value At cost Total
Through Other | Through Profit or Designated Subtotal
Comprehensive Loss through Profit or
Income Loss
Investment in Subsidiaries - - - - 760.00 760.00
- Protium Business Services Private Limited
{76,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid-up for capital infusion)
- Shibui Technologies Private Limited - - - - 1.00 1.00
{10,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid-up for capital infusion)
Investment in Government Securities 25,899.76 - = - 25,899.76
Investment in Mutual Funds - - 203.19 - 203.19 203.19
Investment in ULIP - = 47.62 47.62 - 47.62
Total (4} 25,899.76 = 250.81 - 250.81 761.00 26,911.57
Investment outside India - - = 5 =
Investment in India 25,899.76 - 250.81 250.81 761.00 26,911.57
Total (B) 25,899.76 - 250.81 - 250.81 761.00 26,911.57
Less: Impairment loss Allowance (C) (0.59) - - - - (0.59)
Total (D= A-C) 25,899.17 - 250.81 - 250.81 761.00 26,910.98
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9.3 at i 5t
Particulars 2 As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

Stage-1 Stage-2 Stage-3 Total Stage-1 Stage-2 Stage-3 Total
Investment in Debentures 11537.38 - - 11,537.38 - - =
Investment in Commercial Papers 10,347.62 - - 10,347.62 - - -
Investment in Pass Through Centificates B132.09 - - 8,132.08 - -
1 in ith 12,920.22 = - 12,920.22 25,899.76 - - 25,899.76
Total 42,937.31 - - 42,937.31 25,899.76 - = 25,899.76
9.2 An analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount and the corresponding ECLs is, as follows
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

Stage -1 Stage-2 Stage-3 Tatal Stage-1 Stage- 2 Stage-3 Total
Gross carrying amount - opening balance 25,899.76 - - 2589976 355399 - - 3,553.99
New assets ariginated or purchased 4293731 = - 42,937.31 25899.76 - - 25,899.76
Assets derognised or matured [exchuding write-offs) {25,699.76) - - {25,899.76) {3,553.99) - - (3.553.99)
Transfer to stage 1 - - = = = = -
Total 42,937.31 = = 42,937.31 25,899.76 - = 25,899.76
|Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

Stage-1 Stage-2 Stage-3 Total Stage-1 Stage- 2 Stage-3 Total
Opening balance in ECL 0.59 = = 059 f0.35) - - (0.36)
Mew assets ariginated or purchased 1373 : 3 ] 1373 059 = = 059
Transfer to stage 2 - - - - - - - -
Unwind of discount (recognised in interest income) - - - = - - - -
Changes to model and inputs used for ECL - - - - - = 2
Recoveries [0.53) = = {o.53) 0.36 = - 0.36
Total 1173 - = 13.73 059 = - 0.59

9.3 Details of subsidiaries
&, Protium Business Services Private Limited ["PB5”) - PBS is primarily engaged in the business of sourcing and origination of leads for lending opportunities to consumer or business lending. The Company was granted a certificate of

registration to act as Corporate Agent (Composite) under sub-section (1) of section 420 of the Insurance Act, 1338 by the Regulatory and ity of India on lanuary 25, 2024, It is wholly owned subsidiary of the
Coampany.
b. Shibul Technologies Private Limited {*STPL") - STPL Is primarily engaged in the business af p g Inf i related salutions, It is whally owned subsidiary of the Company.
MNote "10
Other financial assets (% in lakhs)
Particulars Asat . Asat
March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
Security deposits 73214 67333
Receivable from assigned and colent partiolio® 3392746 19,123.09
Other receivable 1,524.99 4,231.29
Total 36,184.59 24,027.71
Less: Impairment loss allowance (327.44) (129,39)
Total other financial assets 35,857.15 23,898.32

*With respect to assignment and co-lending deals, the Company has created an Excess Interest Spread (EIS) receivable with corresponding credit to Profit and less for the year, which has been computed by discounting
Excess Interest Spread (EI5) to present value with ¥ estimate and i
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Note "11"

Property, plant and equipment

As at March 31, 2025 (%inlakhs)
Description Gross Block Depreciation Net block
As at Additions Disposal/ As at March 31, As at Depreciation Disposal/ As at March 31, As at As at March 31,
April 01, 2024 Adjustments 2025 Aprll 01, 2024 for the year Adjustments 2025 Aprll 01, 2024 2025
Right of Use Assets 2,930.41 945.52 {10.57) 3,865.36 1,015.16 1,438.94 (10.21) 2,443.89 1,915.23 1,421.47
Leasehold Impravements 582,85 41.50 (1.00) 623.45 148,33 186.30 {0.50) 334.13 434,62 289.32
Furniture and fixtures 247.05 40.77 {0.88) 286.54 36.35 31.52 {0.47) 67.40 210,69 219,54
Office equipments 241,63 69.56 (10.60) 300.59 119.44 38.97 (9.53) 148,88 12219 15171
Computers 1,146.48 188.86 (339.75) 595,59 687.65 272.51 {190.35) 760.81 458,83 225.78
w 5,148.52 1,286.21 BSL!O} 6,071.93 2,006.93 1,968.24 llim 3!?64.11 3‘141.56 2,307.82
As at March 31, 2024 (% in lakhs)
Description Gross Block Depreciati Net block
As at Additions Disposal/ As at Asat Depreciation Disposal/ Asat As at As at
April 01, 2023 Adjustments | March 31,2024 | April 01, 2023 for the year AdJustments March 31,2024 | April 01,2023 | March 31, 2024
Right of Use Assets 1,221.82 2,322.77 (614,18) 2,930.41 509.15 B31.B0 {325.79) 1,015.16 712.67 1,915.23
Leasehold Improvements 129.56 553,79 (100,40} 582.95 48.70 164.22 (64.59) 148,33 80.86 434,62
Furniture and fixtures 103,03 235,35 {91.33) 247.05 14.73 29.50 (7.88} 36.35 88,30 210,69
Office equipments 176,60 66.98 (1.95) 241.63 63.97 56,61 (1.14) 119.44 112.63 122,19
Computers 972,55 192,87 (18.24) 1,146.48 406.36 295.25 (13.96) 687,65 566,19 458,83
Total 2,603.56 3,371.76 (826.80) 5,148,52 1,042.91 1,377.37 (413.35) 2,006.93 1,560.65 3,141.56

Mote: Mone of the above assets have been pledged.
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Note "12"
intangible assets and Intangible assets under development
As at March 31, 2025 (% in lakhs}
Description Gross Block Amortization Net block
As at ‘ Additions Disposal/ | AsatMarch 31, Asat Amortization Disposal/ ‘ As at March 31, Asat As at March 31,
April 01, 2024 Adjustments 2025 April 01, 2024 for the year Adjustments 2025 April 01, 2024 2025
A) Other gible assets
Softwares 5,613.77 1,145.72 (7.55) 6,751.94 2,343.23 1,208.20 (6.64) 3,544.79 3,270.54 3,207.15
le Others - = d % 4 & - - x -
Total 5,613.77 Eds.?l (7.55 6,751.94 2,343.23 1;20@-20 ES‘!] 1‘54&.79 3,270.54 3,207.15
As at March 31, 2024 (% In lakhs)
Description Gross Block Amortization Net block
As at Additions Disposal/ As at March 31, As at Amortization Disposal/ As at March 31, As at As at March 31,
April 01, 2023 Adjustments 2024 April 01, 2023 for the year Adjustments 2024 April 01, 2023 2024
Softwares 4,298.60 1,315.17 - 5,613.77 1,329.08 1,014.15 - 2,343.23 2,969.52 3,270.54
gible Others 5.04 = (5.04) - 2,31 0,96 (3.27) s 273 -
Total 4,303.64 1,315.17 (5.04) 5,613.77 1|3!1.!9 1,015.11 (3.27) 2!543‘23 2‘9?2‘15 3!!?0.51
B) i glble under develop (% in lakhs)
Description As at March 31,| As at March
2025 31,2024
Intangible under development 87.55 111.06
Total 87.55 111,06
Schedule of agelng of completion of intangible assets under development :
As at March 31, 2025 (% in lakhs)
(i) Particulars Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
year years
Project in process 87.55 - - - B7.55
as at March 31, 2024 (% in lakhs)
(i) Particulars Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
year years
Project in process 111.06 - - = 111.06
Mote: There are no projects whose completion is overdue or has ded its cost pared to its ariginal plan,
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Note "13*
Other non-financial assets (% in lakhs)
Particulars Asat Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
GST input credit 2,547.13 684.17
Prepaid expenzes 905.71 768.17
Salary advance 1B.57 B.95
Advances with vendors 3770 228.60
Others 46545 314.55
ITotal 431156 2,004.44
Note "14"
Derivative financial £
As at March 31, 2025 (X in lakhs)

Particulars Fair value assets | Fair value liabilities
Cash flow hedge

- Cross currency and Interest rate swap® 77,091.90 41.52

As at March 31, 2024 (% in lakhs)

Particulars Fair value assets | Fair value liabilities
Cash flow hedge

- Cross currency and Interest rate swap® 2746440 - 3504

Note : The Company has board approved palicy for entering into derivative transactions.
*Derivatives comprises of cross curmency interest rate swap entered by the Company to hedge foreign currency borrowings. Refer material accounting pelicy for derivative financial instruments.
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Note “15"

Trade payables (% in lakhs)

Particulars Asat As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Trade payables

Due ta micro and small enterprises 347.32 916.66

To athers 474.41 1,463.78

Tatal 821.73 2,380.44

Details of dues to micro, medium and small enterprises

The amounts due to Micro and Small Enterprises as defined in the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, has been determined to the extent of information available and compiled by the

Company. This has been relied upon by the auditors.

Disclosure pertaining to Micro and 5mall Enterprises are as under :

{2 in lakhs)

Particulars

Asat
March 31, 2025

Asat
March 31, 2024

(i} The principal amountand the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any
supplier at the end of each accounting year;

(i} The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the
Micro, Small and Enterprises Develop Act, 2006, along with the
amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during

{iil} The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making
payment {which has been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year)
but without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium

{iv} The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each
accounting year; and

(v) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues above are actually
paid to the small enterprise, for the p of disall of a deductibl
expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

34732

916.66

Total

347.32

916.66

Trade Payables ageing schedule :

As at March 31, 2025

{Tin lakhs)

Particulars

Outstanding for fi

g periods from due date afggﬂent

Current but not due

Less than 1 year

1-2 years

2-3 years

More than 3 years

Total

(i) MSME
{ii} Others
{iii} Disputed dues = MSME
[iv) Disputed dues - Others

4035
4754

306.97
42425

162

34732
Aa7a.al

Total

87.89

731.22

82173

As at March 31, 2024

{Tin lakhs)

Particulars

Outstandi

Current but not due

Less than 1 year

for followi
1-2 years

from due date of

2-3 years

ayment

More than 3 years

Total

{i} MSME
(ii) Others
{iil) Disputed dues — MSME
{iv) Disputed dues - Others

916.66
1,461.19

207

052

916.66
1463.78

Total

2,377.85

2.07

&
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Note “16"
Debt securities {% in lakhs)
Particulars As at Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
A) At amortised cost
(i) Secured
Listed redeemable non convertible debentures 2,517.94 10,592.30
{ii) Unsecured s -
Total 2,517.94 10,592.30
B) Out of above
Debt securities in India 2,51794 10,592.30
Debt securities outside India - -
Total 2,517.94 10,592.30
Terms of of Nen C ible Deb {NCDs)
As at March 31, 2025
Series details Face value per Date of allotment | *Balance as at March| Interest rate % per | Date of redemption | Redeemable terms
debenture 31, 2025 annum
{in lakhs) (Rs in Lakhs)
9.79%p.a.p.m.Protium Finance Limited 1.00 17-04-2023 2,517.94 5.79% 25-04-2025 Annual
As at March 31, 2024
Series details Face value per Date of allotment | *Balance as at March| Interest rate % per | Date of redemption | Redeemable terms
debenture 31,2024 annum
{in lakhs) (Rs in Lakhs)
Protium22-23-A-PPMLD-5ep2024 10.00 22-12-2022 5,564.41 B.93% 22-09-2024 Bullet
9.79%p.a.p.m.Protium Finance Limited 1.00 17-04-2023 5,027.89 9.79% 25-04-2025 Annual

*Balances as at March 31, 2025 is after considering the impact of unamortised processing fees Rs. 0.65 Lakhs (March 31, 2024 Rs. 46.18 Lakhs)
Nature of security - Debentures are secured by hypothecation of specified term loan receivables -

Note "17*
Borrowings (Other than debt ) % in lakhs)
Particulars Asat Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
At Amartised cost
{a) Term loans
(i) From banks 243,383.99 155,376.55
(i) From other parties 82,409.05 59,525.32
(b} fal s 49,976.56 77,665.66
{c) Loans repayable on demand
Bank overdraft 1,900.03 11,150.33
Total (a + b) 377,669.63 253,717.86
Borrowings in India 327,693.07 226,052.20
Borrowings outside India 49,976.56 27,665.66
Total 377.669.63 253,717.86
Secured borrowings 377,669.63 253,717.86
Unsecured borrowings - -
Total 377,669.63 253,717.86

Disclosure pertaining to stock statement filed with banks or financial institutions

a. The company has availed of the facilities (secured borrowings) from the lenders and thee loans are secured by an exclusive first charge by way of hypothecation of identified books debts and receivables.

b.Q Iy returns or

(This space has been left blank intentionally}
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Note 17(a)(i) Secured term loan from bank :

As at March 31, 2025 (% in lakhs)
Repay Term Interest range Residual tenure A
Monthly 9.14% - 11% Upto 1 Year 5373.48
1to 3 Years 34,081.95
3to S Years 21,904.99
5to 7 Years 23,511.90
Cluarterly 8.09%-11% Upto 1 Year 5,080.16
1to 3 Years 55,745.57
3to5 Years 79,728.86
5to 7 Years 19,584.00
Add: Interest accrued 332.75
Less: EIR impact (1,959.67)
Total 243,383.99
As at March 31, 2024 (X in lakhs)
Repayment Term 1 range Residual Amount
Monthly 8.34% - 11% Upto 1 Year 7,585.44
1to 3 Years 48,653.23
3to 5 Years 35,585.22
5to 7 Years 12,389.50
Quarterly 8.58% - 10.75% 1to3 Years 30,645.05
3to5 Years 21,761.58
Add: Interest accrued 202.31
Less: EIR impact {1,445.78)
Total 155,376.55

Nature of security
Term loan from bank is secured by hypothecation of specified term loan receivables

Note 17(a)(ii) Secured term loan from other parties

As at March 31, 2025 {2 in lakhs)
Repayment Term Interest range Residual tenure

Monthly 9.50% - 10.40% Upto 1 Year 2,720.91

1to 3 Years 14,375.00

Quarterly 9.60% - 9.90% 1to 3 Years 14,249.64

3to S Years 33,498.78

Monthly 8.50% - 9.25%* - Upto 1 Year 237.87

1to 3 Years 4,676.60

3to5 Years 1,063.10

7to 10 Years 7.422.16

10to 12 Years 4,143.47

Add: Interest accrued 179.26

Less: EIR impact ) {157.74)

Total 82,408.05

As at March 31, 2024 (X in lakhs)
Repayment Term Interest range Residual A

Monthly 9.50% - 10.40% Upto 1 Year 503.26

1to3 Years 23,012.87

Monthly 8.50% - 9.40%* 1to 3 Years 13,758.38

5to 7 Years 3,245.59

7 to 10 Years 3,455.26

10to 12 Years 15,600.88

Add: Interest accrued : 190.01

Less: EIR impact (240.92)

Ltal 59;525.32

* Pertains to liabilities arising out of Securitizations
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Note 17(b) Secured external commercial borrowings

As at March 31, 2025 (% in lakhs)
Repayment Term Interest range Residual tenure A t

Bullet 9.52%-10.14% 1to 3 Years 2B,241.86
Annually 3 to 5 Years 21,395.35
Add: Interest accrued 733.80
Less: EIR impact (394.45)
Total 49,976.56
As at March 31, 2024 (X in lakhs)
Repayment Term I range Residual tenure Amount

Bullet 9.62% - 10.14% 1to 3 Years 27,464.40
Add: Interest accrued 531.98
Less: EIR impact (330.72)
Total 27!555.66
Note 17{c) Secured bank overdraft :

As at March 31, 2025 (X in lakhs)

pay Term Interest range jual tenure A

Bullet 6.25% Upto 1 Year 1,900.03
Add: Interest accrued -
Less: EIR impact =
Ltal 1,900.03
As at March 31, 2024 (Xin lakhs)
Reg Term Interest range Residual tenure

Bullet 8.05%-8.31% Upto 1 Year 11,150.33
Add: Interest accrued 4
Less: EIR impact «
[Total 11,150.33

Nature of security

Term loan from bank is secured by specnied bank FD
Note : Average cost of all above borrowing is at March 31, 2025, 9.36% p.a. (March 31, 2024, 9.56% p.a.)

s

-
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Note "187

Other financial liabilities (% in lakhs]
Particulars As at Asat

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Lease liabilities (refer note no.45) 1,514.41 1,945.80
Accrued expenses 4,116.95 1,469.81
Payable towards assigned and colent portfolio 4,840.28 2,511.00
Other payables 316.58 8,263.17
Total 10,788.22 14,190.78
Note “19”
Provisions (% in lakhs)
Particul As at As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

i ial borrowings

Gratuity 486.79 268.25
Compensated absences 55.00 44.59
Total 541.79 312.84
Note "20"
Deferred tax liabilities (net) (% in lakhs)
Particulars Asat As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Deferred tax liabilities {refer note no. 34) 6,610.68 3,915.89
Note 21"
Other non-financial liabilities (% in lakhs)
Particulars Asat As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Statutory liabilities 1,080.94 44131
Advance from customers 2,762.18 2,703.74
Total 3,843.12 3,145.05
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Note "22%
Equity share capital
(a) Details of ised, issued and share eapital
| Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

No. of Shares ®in lakhs No.ofShares | Rinlakhs |
Autherized share capital
Equity shares of £ 10 each 156,005,300 15,600.93 156,009,300 15,600.93
lssued, subseribed and lully paid-up
Equity shares of ¥ 10 each 145,692,141 14,569.21 145,142,330 14,514.23
Total 145,692,141 14,569.21 145,142,330 14,514.23

{a}li}) Recanciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year

Particulars As at March 31, 2025

No. of Shares Xin lakhs
Equity shares
At the commencement of the year 145,142,330 1451423
Issued during the year 549,811 54.98
|ht the end of the ’Eu 145,692,141 14,569.71

(b} Rights, pref. and icti hed to equity shares

As at March 31, 2024

MNo. of Shares X in lakhs
94,677,800 5.467.78

50,464,530 5,045.45

145,142,330 1451423

The Company has single class equity shares having a par value of 2 10 per equity share. Accordingly, all equity shares rank equally with regard to dividends and share in the Company’s
residual assels. The equity shares are entitled o receive dividend as declared from time to time subject to payment of dividend to preference shareholders. In the event of liquidation of

the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the residual assets of the Company,

after di

of all p amounts in ion to the

number of equity shares held. Upon show of hands, every member present in person and holding any equity share capital therein, shall have one vote, in respect of such capital, on

every resalution placed before the Company.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The

distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

{c) Equity shares held by holding company

Particulars

_a-;wa.rs[h..mg!_s_
No. of Shares Tin lakhs

Consilience Capital Management

144,144,759

14,414.48

As at March 31, 2024
No. of Shares X in lakhs
134,124 759 14,414.48

(d) Details of shareholder{s) holding more than 5% of equity shares in the Company

Particulars

As at March 31, 2025
No. of Shares % Holding |

Consilience Capital Management

144,144,759

9B.94%

As at March 31, 2024
No. of Shares % Holdir

144,144,759.00 2931%

{e] There are no bonus shares issued or shares issued for consideration other than cash or shares bought back during the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024.

{f) There are no shares reserved for issue under options and contracts or commitments far the sale of shares or disinvestment during the year ended March 31, 2025 and Mareh 31, 2024,

() Equity shares held by prometers

Shares held by promoters at the end of the year As at March 2025 As at March 31, 2024 % Change
5. No. | Promoter Name No. of Shares | % of total shares| No. of Shares % of total shares | during the year
1 _[Consilience Capital Management 144,144,759 98.94% 144,144,759 95.31% -037%
(h) Far "s objecti policies and for ing capital, refer note —
i} Shares reserved for issue under em; = stock option plan
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 I As at March 31, 2024
No. of Shares
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each 3,095,278 | 2,940,346
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Note "23"
Other Equity (% in lakhs)
Particulars Asat Asat

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Securities premium account 198,929.53 197,780.10
Share based payment reserve’ 935.22 439.66
| Statutory reserve (created under Section 45-IC of the RBI Act, 1934)" 7,275.63 3,855.49
Retained earnings’ 25,678.32 12,058.98
General reserve’ 38.17 -
Cash flow hedge reserve” (918.13) (26.22)
Total 231,938.74 214,108.00

1) Securities premium:

Share premium is credited when shares are issued at premium and with the fair value of the stock options which are treated as expense, if any, in
respect of shares all i pursuant to Employee Stock Options Scheme. Share premium can be utilised only for limited purposes such as issuance of
bonus shares or adjustment of share issue net of tax, as ble under the Ce ies Act. 2013,

2) Share based payment reserve

Share based reserve is ted as required by Ind AS 102 'Share Based Payments' on the Employee Stock Option Scheme operated by the
G for employees of the company

3) Statutory reserve |created under Section 45-IC of the RBI Act, 1934)
Statutory reserve is created as per the terms of section 45 IC{1) of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

4) Retained earnings

Retained earnings represents the surplus in profit and loss account and net amount of appropriations made to/from retained earnings. The Company
recogni hange on of of the net defined benefit liability (asset) as part of retained earnings with separate disclosure, which
comprises of (ajactuarial gains and losses: (b) return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability
[(asset); (c) any change in the effect of the asset ceiling, excludi included in net i on the net defined benefit liability (asset).

5) General reserve

The reserve can be distributed/ utilized by the C in dance with The C ies Act, 2015.
6) Cash flow hedge reserve
It represents the cumulative gains/(losses) arising on revaluation of the derivative instr fes] i as cash flow hedges through OCl and

underlying hedged items.

{This space has been left blank intentionally)
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Note "24"
Revenue from cperations (% in lakhs)
Particulars Far the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
On fi ial assets dat ized cost
|'nterest income on loans 55,705.77 46,160.97
Interest income from investments 2367.06 1,114.60
Interest on fixed deposits with banks 7.,168.17 3,178.84
On financial assets measured at fair value through OC1
Interest income on loans 3,90452 =
Total 69,145.52 50,454.41
MNote "25"
Feesand ¢ ission income {2 in lakhs]
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Fees and commission income 3,979.19 2,179.57
Total 3,973.19 2,179.97
25.1 Geographical markets {in lakhs)
|Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Within India 3,979.19 2,17997
QOutside India - -
Total 3,979.19 2,179.37
25.2 Timing of revenue recognition {2 in lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Services transferred at a pointin time 3,979.19 2,179.97
Services transferred over time - -
Total 3,979.19 2,179.97
Note "26™
Net gain/(loss) on fair value changes (%inlakhs)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Net gain/ (loss) on financial i at fair value through profit or loss
= Investments 533.12 64.14
= Loans 3,352.64
Total 3,885.76 64.14
Fair value changes:
- Realised 385.08 58.77
- Unrealised 3,499 68 537
Total 3,885.76 64.14
Note "27"
Net gain on derecognition of financial instruments (% in lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Gain on derecognitien of financial instruments under amortised cost category 22,038.68 16,535.41
Total 22,038.68 16,535.41
Nate “28*
Other income (T in lakhs)
F For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Recovery against written-off financial assets 2,198.01 567.92
[l from support services 1,413.33 675.26
Others® 653.26 2,418.65
Total 4,264,560 3,661.83
*includes interest on income tax refund, marketing income ete.
Note "29"
Finance Costs {%in lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
4 at ized cost on financial liabilities
Interest on borrowings other than debt securities 29,601.69 17,714.98
Interest on debt securities 550.14 1,024.35
[l on lease liabiliti 203.48 181.25
Other finance cost B87.83 77.22
Total 30,843.14 18,997.70
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imigairment 24 feantial st % iniakhs}
: [Fam.;t?i?' > S R Sy L = 1 M = S s For the year onded
| March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
10n i fal & d at ized cost )
Impairment on {inancial assets 1,495.99 2,006.53
Loans written off 0J9283 4,566.22
Lass on Fereciosuie of Leans 1,510.85 218.67
Total 15,199.67 6,791.42
Note "31°
Employee benefits expenses {2in lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Salaries and wages 18,662.27 16,029.24
Contribution to and provision for:
Provident and uther funds 541.75 468.46
Gratuty tund (refer note no, 38) 123.75 90.71
Share based payment {refer nate no. 38) B25.45 439,66
Staft welfare expenses 748.32 570.11
Total 20,901.55 17,596.18
Naote "32°
Depreciation and amortisation [T in lakhs)
IParticulars For the year ended For the year ended
\iarch 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Depreciation en property, plant and equipment 1,968.24 1,377.38
Amaortisation of intangible assets 1,208.20 1,015.11
Total 3,176.44 2,392.48
Note "33"
Other expenses [T in lakhs)
| Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Loan Origination and Servicing Costs 3,332.09 5.360.71
IT expenses 1.614.20 1,316.02
Insurance 1,332.08 B7.81
Travelling and eonveyance 1,196.31 B51.90
tegal and professional charges 752.52 924.21
Coliection Charges 743.05 64425
Gifice £xpenses 501.06 52202
Business promotion expenses 22734 108.84
Rent, rates and taxes 201.89 598.61
Direclor's fees, allowances, and expenses 186.57 11894
Electrinty charges 185.13 157.46
Corporate Social Responsibility (refer note 40) 183.54 67.80
Auditor fees and expenses 147.08 B5.45
Printing and stationery 127.01 151.83
Postage and courier T7.44 96.84
Bank Charges 63.23 B7.97
Communication Costs 59.70 2337
Repairs and maintenance 47.88 47.01
Membership & Subscription 4261 102.57
Loss on sale [ scrap of fixed assets 17.11 46.50
Other expenses 4.07 10.03
Brokerage & commission 242 6.18
Total 11,044.29 11,419.36
Payment to auditors includes: (T in lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
) For statutory audit BL75 4598
b} Far limited review 3270 16.35
¢} Fer taxation matters 6.54 6.54
d] For other services (certificates] 21.80 19.62
e} For reimbursement of expenses 4.25
Total 147.04 88.49
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34 Deferred tax lisbilities (net)

34.1 Reconciliation of total tax charge

(% in lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Current tax 2,762.41 1,483.57
Adjustment to tax relating to earlier periods {329.78) =
Deferred tax 3,015.37 2,685.91
Total income tax expenses recognised in the current year 5,448.00 4,169.48
Income tax recognised in other comp income 320.59 21.02
Income tax expense for the year reconciled to the accounting profit:
Prafit before tax 22,548.66 15,696.61
Income tax rate 25.17% 25.17%
Income tax expense 5,675.50 3,950.84
Tax effect of:
Effect of Ind AS adjustments {net) 4,231.45) (3,264.53)
Impairment of Loans 1,131.64 505.04
Exp llowed under Income Tax Act, 1961 (1,509.51) (389.74)
Disallowanees under Income Tax Act, 1961 4,381 82 3,367.88
Income tax exp recognised in profit and loss 5,448.00 4,169.48

34.2 The following table shows deferred tax recorded in the balance sheet and changes recorded in the Income tax expense:

As at March 31, 2025 (% in lakhs)
Particulars Opening balancesason | R i in profit iin other | Closing balances as on
April 1, 2024 or loss (Exg )/ comprehensi March 31, 2025
Income income
Deferred tax asset
Impairment of financial instruments 1,369.95 1,131.63 - 2,501.58
Disallowances under section 438 of the Income Tax Act, 1961 67.52 (67.52) 20.58 20.58
Fair val of deri financials i 8.82 (8.82) 300.00 300.00
Total Deferred tax asset 1,446.28 1,055.29 320.59 2,822.17
Deferred tax liabilities
Ind AS adjustment (effective interest rate on fee income and expenses, EIS {5,113.92) {4,033.41) - (9,147.33)
on assignment)
|Difference between books and tax written down value of fixed assets {248.26) 37.27) - (285.52
Total deferred tax liabilities (5.362.17) (4.070.68) - i9.432‘85i |
Net deffered tax liabilities (3,915.89) (3,015.39) 320.59 (6,610.68)
As at March 31, 2024
Deferred tax asset [o] bal: ason | R i in profit | Recognised in other | Closing balancesas on
April 1, 2023 or loss (Exp 1/ comprehensi March 31, 2024
Income income
Deferred tax asset
Impairment of financial instruments B64.50 505.04 - 1,369.95
Ind AS adjustment (effective interest rate on fee income and expenses, EIS
Disallowances under section 438 of the Income Tax Act, 1961 42.16 2536 12.20 67.52
Fair valuation of derivative financials instrument - - 882 8.82
Total Deferred tax asset 907.06 53040 21.02 1,446.28
Deferred tax liabilities
Ind AS adjustment (effective interest rate on fee income and expenses, EIS {1,761.33) (3,352.59) - {5,113.92)
on-assignment)
Difference L books and tax written down value of fixed assets (396.74) 148.48 - Iz-ﬂﬂ[‘
Total deferred tax liabilities (2,158.07) {3,204.11)| - {5,362.17)
Net deffered tax liabilities [1,251.00) (2,673.71) 21.02 (3,915.89)

(This space has been left blank intentionally)
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Note “35"
Earnings per share ('EPS’)

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity sh

number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

holders of the C

y by the weighted average

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company with the weighted averag
number of equity shares outstanding during the year adjusted for assumed conversion of all dilutive poténtial equity shares.

i. Profit attributable to Equity shareholders:

(X in lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Profit/ (loss) after tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss 17,100.66 11,527.13
Net profit attributable to equity shareholders for calculation of Basic EPS 17,100.66 11,527.13
Net profit adjusted for the effects of dilutive potential equity shares for 17,100.66 11,527.13
calculation of Diluted EPS
il. Weighted Average Number of Shares and Earnings per share (EPS)
{Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Weighted average number of equity shares used as the denominator in 145,308,026 109,568,973
caleulating basic earnings per share
Adjustments for calculation of diluted earnings per share: - -
Weighted average number of equity shares and potential equity shares used 145,763,753 109,568,573
as the denominator in calculating diluted earnings per share
Effect of dilution :
Employee stock options 455,727 =
Basic earnings per share 11.77 10.52
Diluted earnings per share* 11.73 10.52

(This space has been left blank intentionally)
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Segment reporting

The Company operates in a single reportable operating segment of providing loans. All other activities revolve around the main
business. Further, all activities are carried out within India. As such, there are no separate reportable segments as per Ind AS 108 on
‘Segment Reporting’.

Contingent Liability & Commitment:

(%X in lakhs)
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Contingent Liability - -
Commitments
|Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account - 47.45
Undisbursed loan c i ts 19,321.13 10,498.21

Note:

1. There are no pending litigations against the Company.

2. The Company has a process whereby periodically all long-term contracts are assessed for material foreseeable losses. At the year
end, the Company has reviewed and ensured that adequate provisions (if any) required under any law / accounting standard / RBI
regulation for material foreseeable losses on such long-term contracts has been made in the books of account.

Employee Benefit:
In accordance terms of the Indian Accounting Standard 19 'Employee Benefits', the requisite disclosures are as follows:

i) Defined Contribution Plans:
The Company recognized charges of Rs 534.60 lakhs (March 31, 2024: Rs 462.78 lakh) for Provident fund contributions.

ii) Compensated absences
The actuarially determined liability for compensated absences of accumulated leaves of the employees of the Company is given
below:

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Assumptions:
Discount rate 6.59% 7.17%
Salary escalation rate 5.00% 5.00%
Rate of Employee Turnover For service 4 years and | For service 4 years and
below 25.00% p.a. & For | below 25.00% p.a. & For
service 5 years and service 5 years and
above 8.00% p.a above 8.00% p.a
Actual :
Present value of unfunded obligations (Rs in lakhs) 55.00 44.59
Expenses recognised in P&L (Rs in lakhs) 10.40 17.07

Discount rate; The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian Government Securities as at the balance sheet date
for the estimated term of the obligations.

ili) Defined Benefit Gratuity Plans:

Every employee who will complete five years or more of service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn) for each
completed year of service. The Company recognized charges of INR 142.98 lakhs (March 31, 2024: INR 90.71 lakh) for Gratuity Fund.
The same is payable at the time of separation from the Company or retirement, whichever is earlier.

Assumptions As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Discount rate 6.59% 7.17%
Salary escalation rate 5.00% 5.00%
Rate of return on plan assets NA NA
Rate of Employee Turnover For service 4 years and | For service 4 years and
below 25.00% p.a. & For | below 25.00% p.a. & For
service 5 years and service 5 years and
above 8.00% p.2 above 8.00% p.a
Mortality Rate During Employment Indian Assured Lives Indian Assured Lives
Maortality Mortality
2012-14 (Urban) 2012-14 (Urban)
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Employee Benefit (Continuad)

Table showing change in the present value of projected benefit obligation

(X in lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Present value of Benefit obligation at the beginning of the year (Unfunded) 268.25 129.06
Interest cost 19.23 9.42
Current service cost 123.75 81.29
Actuarial (Gains) on Obligations - Due to Change in Financial Assumptions 23.20 3.09
Actuarial Losses on Obligations - Due to Experience 58.57 4539
Benefits paid (6.22) -
Present value of obligation as at the end of the year (Unfunded) 486.79 268.25
Amount recognized in the Balance Sheet
(X in lakhs)
Particulars As at Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Piesent value of benefit obligation at the end of the year (486.79) (268.25)
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year
Funded Status (Deficit) (486.79) {268.25)
Net {Liability)/Asset Recognized in the Balance Sheet (486.79) (268.25)
Expenses recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss
(% in lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Current service cost 123.75 81.29
Net Interest cost 19.23 9.42
Amount included in employee benefit expenses 142.98 90.71
Expenses recognized in the Other comprehensive income (OC1)
(X in lakhs)
|Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Actuarial Losses on obligation for the year 8177 48.48
Net Exg for the year recognized in OCI 81.77 48.48
The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other
relevant factors
Balance sheet reconciliation
(% in lakhs)
| Particulars As at Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Opening net liability 268.25 129.06
Expenses recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss 142.98 90.71
Expenses recognized in OCI 81.77 48.48
Net (Liability) Transfer Out {6.22) -
Net liability recognized in the Balance Sheet 486.79 268.25
Cash Flow Projection
Maturity analysis of the benefit payments:
{%in lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Projected benefits payable in future years from the
date of reporting
1st Following Year 17.55 3.02
2nd Following Year 28.74 11.38
3rd Following Year 38.72 19.12
4th Following Year 44.19 25.39
5th Following Year 4581 28.40
Sum of Years 6 to 10 218.18 130.61
Sum of Years 11 and above 582.15 374.08
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Sensitivity analysis

(% in lakhs)

| Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Projected benefit obligation on current assumptions 486.79 268.26
Delta effect of +1% change in rate of discounting (38.85) (22.38)
Delta effect of -1% change in rate of discounting 44.89 25.83
Delta effect of +1% change in rate of salary increase 39.39 23.27
Delta effect of -1% change in rate of salary increase {35.92) (21.19)
Delta effect of +1% change in rate of employee turnover {2.50) (3.17)
Delta eftect of -1% change in rate of employee turnover 172 2.63

Qualitative disclosures

Gratuity is a defined benefit plan and company is exposed to the Following Risks:

Interest rate risk: A fall in the discount rate which is linked te the G.Sec. Rate will increase the present value of the liability requiring

higher provision,

Salary risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of members. As
such, an increase in the salary of the members more than assumed level will increase the plan's liability.

Asset Liability Matching Risk: The plan faces the ALM risk as to the matching cash flow. Company has to manage pay-out based on

pay as you go basis from own funds.

Mortality risk: Since the benefits under the plan is not payable for life time and payable till retirement age only, plan does not have

any longevity risk,

(This space has been left blank intentionally)
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3% Employee stock option plan
In accordance with the lutiot app d by the Shareholders on January 24, 2023, the Company has reserved share, for issue to employees through Protium Finance

Employee Stock Option Plan | { ESOP Plan 1). Under tha terms of ESOP Plan | Company may issue stock option to the employees of the Company each of which is convertible
into one equity share.

As on March 31, 2025
Grant date Exercise price [Rs) Opening ESOP | Options granted | Options expired Options Options forfeited Options exercisable at
during the year | during the year | exercised during| during the year | outstanding at the | the end of the
the year end of the year year
15-Apr-23 166 2,018,072 - 120,482 500,255 - 1,397,235 308,816
15-May-23 166 922,274 - 172,398 49,556 = 700,320 149,955
1-Jan-25 166 - 81,324 - - - 81,324 -
1-Jan-25 480 = B74,632 = = . 874,632 =
31-Mar-25 480 - 41,567 - - - 41,667 =
Total 2,940,346 997,623 ZSZESED 549,811 - SESEZ?B 45857]'1
As on March 31, 2024
Grant date Exercise price (Rs} Opening ESOP | Options granted | Options expired Options Options forfeited Options exercisable at
durirg the year | during the year | exercised during| during the year | outstanding at the | the end of the
the year end of the year year
15-Apr-23 166 = 2,018,072 - - = 2,018,072 -
15-May-23 166 = 1,015,646 93,372 b = 922,274 =
Total - 3,033,718 93372 - - 2,940,346 -

Method used for accounting for share based payment plan
The Company has used the fair value method to account for the compensation cost of stock options to employees. The fair value of options used are estimated on the date of grant using the Black—
Scholes Model. The key assumptions used in Black — Scholes Model for caleulating fair value as on the date of respective grants are:

Grant date Employee Type Risk Free Expected life(in Expected Dividend yield Price of the Options granted | Fairvalue of Weighted Vesting
interest rate years) volatility underlying share options average period(in
in the market at residual life in|  years)
the time of the years
option grant (Rs)*
15-Apr-23 Al 7.05% 3.75 25.00% 0% 166 1,204,820 51.35 179 3,00
15-Apr-23 A2 7.05% 4.25 25.00% 0% 166 481,927 §5.58 2.29 3.00
15-Apr-23 A3 7.07% 5.00] 24.00% % 166 331,325 60.64 3.04 4.00
15-May-23 51 specified employea 6.96% 4.10 25.00% 0% 166 66,264 54.04 222 3.00
15-May-23 52 specified emplovee 6.96% 4.70] 25.00% 0% 166 150,600 5891 2.82 4.00
15-May-23 53 specified employee 6.96%| 5.50| 24.00%| 0% 166 129,516 63.95 3.62 5.00
15-May-23 51 Others 6.96% 4.50] 25.00% 0% 166 308,429 56.33 2.62 4.00
15-May-23 52 Others 6.96%,| 5.00 24.00% 0% 166 157,225 60.22 312 4.00
15-May-23 53 Others B.9€% 550 24.00%| 0% 166 103,612 63.95 3.62 5.00
01-Jan-25 2025/51/166 6.63% 4.33 42.83%,| 0% 166 81,324 101.49 4.09 275
01-lan-25 2025/52/480 6.65%| 4.81 44 .85% % 480 245,466 29.51 4.57 375
01-Jan-25 2025/A1/480 6.65% 4.81 44,85% 0% 480 629,166 29.51 457 375
31-Mar-25 2025/A2/480 6.37% 4.63] 43.83% 0% 480 41,667 25.90 4.62 3.50
1.The weighted average fair value of options granted during the year was Rs 35.23 (31 March 2024: Rs 55.70).
2. For the year ended March 31, 2025, the Company has i exp of Rs 825.46 Lakhs as employes benefit exp on the af id employee stock option plan (Previous year Rs. 439.66

* Method of settlement - Equity settled ESOPs

(This space has been left blank intentionally)
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40, i ‘towards corf sacial ibility as per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 {read with schedule ViI lhereén
a.Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year — Rs. 174.61 lakhs (Previous Year Rs. 67.48 lakhs).
b. The details of amount spent in respective year towards CSR as follows: (Xin lakhs)
Particulars For the Year For the Year
ended March 31, | ended March 31,
2025 2024

Constructionf acquisition of asset:
Amount required ta be spent by the company during the year - -
Shaortfall of earlier year brought forward, - -
Amount spent -
Amount unpaid / provision/ Shortfall’ carried forward ¥

On purpose other than above:

Amount required to be spent by the company during the year 174.61 67.48

Shortfall of earlier year brought forward. . N

Amount paid 183.54 67.80

Amount unpaid / provision/ Shortfall/ (Excess) carried forward (B‘SJJJ -

Notes:

1.The Company has contributed to various CSR inftiatives in accordance with the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013. Contributions were made 1o CSR partners
such as Cuddles F dation, Akshara dation, Suryoday F dation, Swadha F ation, Indian Dream Foundation, and Youth for Seva. These partnerships focus on key

areas such as healthcare, education, =kill development and financial literacy. The Company has fully utilized the allocated CSR funds for the year. There is excess amount of Rts
8.92 Lakhs to be carried forward to succeeding years

2. in respect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent that are fred to be fe i to a fund specified in Schedule VIl of the Companies Act (the Act),
in compliance with second provise to sub section 5 of section 135 of the Act.

3. There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects, that are required to be transferred to a special account in compliance of provision of sub section (&) of section
135 of Companies Act.

41, Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 107 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures”

(a) Current and Non-current maturity: (R in lakhs)
Particul As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Within 12 months | After 12 months Total Within 12 months| After 12 months Total
ASSETS
Financial assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 84,033.23 - 84,033.23 BY9,687 38 - B89,68738
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 41,955.83 + 41,955.83 43,185.73 26837 42,454.10
Derivative financial instrument - 41.52 4152
Trade Receivables 415.06 - 415.08 527.16 - 527.16
Loans 108,677.60 314,546,651 42422421 97,631.38 22599116 32362254
Investments 48,677.95 3,749.80 52,427.75 26,102.45 BOB.53 26,910.98
Other Financial assets 12,921.77 22.935.38 35,857.15 12,756.01 11,142.31 23,898.32
Sub toral 297,681.44 341,273.31 638,954.75 268,890.12 238,210.37 507,100.48
Non-financial assets
Current tax assets {Net) - 43223 43223 = 1,284.31 1,284.31
Prepeny Plant and Equipment - 2,307.82 2,307.82 - 3,14156 3,14156
Capital work-in-progress - - = - - -
[ ible Assets under develap - B7.55 B7.55 111.06 - 111.06
Intangible Assets = 3,207.15 3,207.15 = 3,27054 3,27054
Other Non Financial assets 3,405.85 905.71 4,311.56 2,004.48 e 2.004.48
Sub total 3,805.85 6,940.46 10,346.30 2,115.54 7,696.41 9,811.96
Total assets 301,087.30 348|21 3.77 645,301.06 2715005.“ 245,906.78 516,912.44
LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities
Derivative financial instrument = - - - 35.04 35.04
Trade Payables B2173 = 521.73 238044 - 2,380.44
Debt Securities 251794 = 2.517.94 8,122.39 2,469.91 10,592.30
Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) 120,828,856 256,840.76 377.669.63 101,193.54 15252432 253,717.86
Other financial liabilities 10,261.77 526.44 10,788.22 13,052.92 1,137.86 14,190.78
Sub total 134,430.31 257,367.20 391,797.51 124,749.29 156,132.09 280,916.42
Non-financial liabilities
Provisions 27.14 514.65 54173 44.59 16825 312.84
Deferred Tax Liabilities (net) - 6.610.68 6,610.68 - 3,915.89 3,915.89
Other non-financial liabilities 3.843.12 - 3,843.12 1,256.98 1.888.07 3,145.05
Sub total 3,870.26 7,125.33 10,995.59 1,301.57 6,072.21 7.373.78
Total liabilities 138,300.57 264 492.54 402,793.10 126,050.86 IGZEZM,W usizsu.zo
{b) Financing arrangement
The company had access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of reporting period {%in lakhs)
Particulars As at Asat
March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
Undrawn backup lines 39,300.00 11,000.00
(e} _Carrying amount of given (% in lakhs)
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
Cash and cash equivalent - x

Bank balances other than cash equivalent* 6,092.23
Investments - .
Loan and advances 418,245.96 351,729.07

* Including interest accrued and reinvested accrued interest of Rs 457,97 lakhs. Further, out of Rs 457,97 lakhs, As 191.97 lakhs pertains ta the lien marked
fired deposits, Kabilities against which was paid in the month of March' 2025 while lien was discharged in the month of Apr' 2025.
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Notes ta the dal
{d) Financial assets are 1 d but not d ised in their entirety :
(i) Securitisation
(% in lakhs)
| Particulars Asat Asat
March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
Carrying amount of assets 23,745.64 38,743.02
Carrying amount of associated Uabilities 17.,512.50 36,021.17

() Assignment and Colending

The Company has sold loans [measured at amortised cost and FVOCH] by way of direct bilateral assignment and colending, as a source of finance,
As per the terms of these deals, since substantial risk and rewards related to these assets were transferred to the buyer, the assets have been de-recopnised

from the Company's balance sheet,

The table below summarises the carrying amount of the derecognised fi ial assets d at ised cost and the gain/ (loss) on derecognition, per
type of asset.
(T in fakhs)
Particulars For the year For the year
ended ended

March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
Carrying amount of de-recognised financlal asset 279,172.01 171.104.44
Carrying amount of retained asset at amortised cost 52,411.66 46,835.99
Net gain on sale of the d, gnised fi ial asset at d cost * 22,038.68 16,535.41
Net gain on sale of the de-recognised finandal asset at FVOCI* 3,352.64 -

*Amount represents net gain on derecognition of financial asset for the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024

(e} During the year, the Company has acquired loan portfolio from another NBFC, for a consideration of Ais.35,101.40 lakhs, recognised in the following stages /

asset classification as per Ind AS 109:

(% in lakhs
Amount

Stage
[stage 1
stage 2
[stage 3 (PoCi) *
Total

* Purchased or origi

i Credit i Loans

(This space has been left blank intentionally)
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Capital

The Company actively manages its capital base to cover risks inherent to its business and meets the capital adequacy requirements of the regulator -
Reserve Bank of India. The adequacy of the Company's capital is monitored using, among other measures, the regulations issued by RBI.

Capital management

Objective

The Company’s objective is to maintain appropriate levels of capital to support its business strategy taking into account the regulatory, economic and
commercial environment. The Company aims to maintain a strong capital base to support the risks inherent to its business and its growth strategy. The
Company endeavors to maintain a higher capital base than the mandated regulatory capital at all times.

Planning

The Company's assessment of capital requirement is aligned to its planned growth which forms part of an annual operating plan which is approved by the
Board and also a long range strategy. These growth plans are aligned to assessment of risks- which include credit, liquidity and interest rate.

The Company monitors its capital adequacy ratio (CRAR) on a monthly basis through its assets liability management committee (ALCO).

The Company maintains its capital structure in line with the economic conditions and the risk characteristics of its activities and the board reviews the
capital position on a regular basis.

Gearing ratio: (% in lakhs)
Particulars As at Asat

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Debt 380,187.57 264,310.16
Total equity 246,507.95 228,622.23
Debt to equity ratio (in times) 1.54 1.16
Regul y capital (X in lakhs)
Particulars As at Asat

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Tier | capital 207,495.37 203,899.44
Tier |l capital 1,261.10 -
Total capital 208,756.47 203,899.44
Total risk weighted assets 456,981.07 352,404.18
Tier | CRAR 45.41% 57.86%
Tier Il CRAR 0.28% 0.00%
Total capital 45.68% 57.86%

s AS
d ' &

{This space has been left blank intentionally)
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Risk Management framework

While risk is i in the Company’s activities, it is i through an integ d risk T i k, includi going identification, measurement and monitoring, subject
to rick limits and other controls.

The board of directars are responsible for the overall risk management approach and for app 1g the risk gies and principl

The risk committee has the overall ibility for the lop of the risk gy and impl ing principles, frameworks, policies and limits. The risk committee is responsible for

managing risk decisions and monitoring risk levels and reports to the Board

The Company’s risks are generally categorized in the following risk types:
a) Credit risk

b) Liquidity risk

) Market risk

d) Operational risk

) Foreign currency risk

a) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the G if ac orc party to a fi ial i fails to meet its contractual obli and arises principally from the

Company's trade receivables and Loans. The Company has adopted a palicy of dealing with creditworthy counterparties ard obtains sufficient collateral, where appropriate, asa means of
the risk of fi ial loss from defaults. In case the loans are to be d, similar credit process is foll i by the Company

The Company’s exposure o credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each WEvET, g alsa iders the factors that may influence the

credit risk of its customer base, including the default risk of the industry and country in which customers operate.

The C and Is eredit risk by setting limits on the amount of risk it is willing to accept for individual _4 ps (Single B g Limit)! p Borrowing

Limit) and for industry cone and by itoring exp in relation to such limits.

Credit quality of a customer is assessed based on its credit his and dealings with the Ct and market intelligence. O fing ¢ recei are regularly

manitored. The credit quality review process aims to allow the C to assess the p ial loss as a result of the risks to which it is exposed and take corrective actions.

Financial assets measured on a collective basis
The ¢ splits its exp into smaller h T portfolios, based on shared credit risk characteristics, as described below in the following order:

1/ i i.e. based on whether the loans are secured
Nature of security ie. the nature of the security if the loans are determined to be secured

Nature of loan i.e. based on the nature of loan

Significant increase in credit risk
The considers an to have significantly increased in credit risk when the borrower crosses 30 DPD but is within 90 DPD.

Impairment assessment

The company considers a financial defaulted and therefore Stage 3 (credit-impaired) for ECL lati in all cases when the borrower crosses 90 days past due on its
contractual payments. Further, the borrower is retained in Stage 3 (credit-impaired) till all the overdue amounts are repaid ie borrower becomes 0 days past due on its contractual
payments.

Exposure at default
The exposure at default (EAD]) represents the gross carrying amount of the financial instruments subject to the impairment calculation.

Loss given default
The credit risk assessment is based on a dardised LGD i k that inc the prot ity of default and subsequent recoveries, discounted,

Current economic data and forward-looking economic forecasts and scenarios are used in order to determine the Ind AS 109 LGD rate. The company uses own historical data and comhbines

such data with inputs to the Company’s ECL madels including determining the weights attributable to the multi i
Credit quality of assets
i) The table below shows credit quality and maximum exposure to credit risk based on y d stage il The i are gross of Impairment loss allowance.
(i lakhs)
SrNo |Particulars Loss All. Loss d at life time
measured at 12 ECL
ol ‘f" Financial Assets for| Financial Assets for]
(stage 1) which credit risk | which credit risk
has increased has increased
significantly and | significantly and
credit not impaired| credit impaired
(Stage2) (Stage 3)
| |Ason March 31, 2025
Esti d gross carrying amount at default 414,710.68 8,631.01 10,441.597
Expected credit Loss (3,349.26) (2,243.64) {3,966.55)
Carrying ameunt net of Impairment Provision 411,361.41 6,387.37 6,475.43
[} As on March 31, 2024
E | pross ying amount at default 319,964.57 3,516.39 5,408.23
Expected credit Loss (1,901.42) (887.20) (2,478.03)
Carrying amount net of | i Provision 318,063.15 2,629.19 | 2,930.20
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i) An analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount and fing ECL all e in relations to loans is as under:
{% in lakhs)
SrNo |Particulars Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 PoCl* Total
1 Gross Carrying amount balance as at April 01, 2023 237,160.19 1,901.08 1,588.94 - 240,650.21
New Loans originated during the year 377,760.53 - - 377,760.53
Transfers to Stage 1 266.83 (201.42) (65.41) .
Transfers to Stage 2 {5,053.06) 5,053.06 - -
Transfers to Stage 3 (9,885.89) {1,043.66) 10,929.55 -
Loans that have been de recognised during the year {160,042.62) . - (160,042.62)
Written offs - {4,566.22) (4,566.22)
of net exp - - - - -
Matured or repaid during the year (120,241.41) (2,192.67) {2,478.63) - {124,912.71)
Il |Gross ing amount balance as at March 31, 2024 319,964.57 3,516.39 5,408.23 = 328,889.19
New Loans originated during the year 507,539.42 149.46 - 4243 507,731.31
Transfers to Stage 1 635.37 (96.68) {538.70) - -
Transfers to Stage 2 (11,542.49) 11,564.47 (21.99) -
Transfers to Stage 3 (16,425.27) (2,489.18) 18,914.45 - -
Loans that have been de recognised during the year {226,760.35) - - - (226,760.35)
Written offs = = {10,661.25) (42.43) {10,703.68)
R of net exp - - = - -
Matured or repaid during the year {158,700,58) {4,013.45) {2,616.34) 1165,330.37)
Il |Gross Carﬁ amount balance as at March 3& 2025 414,710.68 8.631.01 10,484.41 - 433,6826.09

Mo. of loan accounts with principal and / or interest overdue (including loans classified as Significant Increase in Credit Risk [SICR} and credit impaired) as at March 31, 2025 is

1,811 (Stage 1), 2,120 (Stage 2) and 3,387 (Stage 3).

= in lakhs}
SrNo | Particulars Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 PoC1* Total
| ECL all balance as at April 01, 2023 2,115.74 435.85 805.36 - 3,356.95
New Loans ariginated during the year 391222 - - - 3,912.22
Transfers to Stage 1 6333 {32.26) {31.07) - -
Transfers to Stage 2 (583.856) 583.86 - -
Transfers to Stage 3 (1,326.58) (299.07) 1,625.65 - -
Loans that have been de recognised during the year (944.25) - - - (944.25)
Written offs % * (2,968.04) - (2.,968.04)
Impact on year end ECL of fi 1k stages (105.37) 296.40 349338 - 3,684.41
during the year
d or repaid during the year (1,229.81) (97.58) {447.25)] {1.774.64)
1] ECL all amount balance as at March 31, 2024 1,901.42 887.20 2,478.03 - 5,266.65
New Loans originated during the year 6,511.25 30.19 4243 6,583.88
Transfers to Stage 1 144.36 (6.40} (137.96) -
Transfers to Stage 2 (1,135.86) 1,141.35 {5.50)
Transfers to Stage 3 (1,838.92) (710.68) 2,549.59 -
Loans that have been de recognised during the year (1,811.88) - - - (1,811.88)
Written offs = . {9,003.45) (42.43) (9,045.50)
Impact on year end ECL of exposures transferred between stages 886.93 1,654.27 11,506.53 - 14,047.73
during the year
I i or repaid during the year {1,308.04) (752.30) (3,420.69) {5,481.05)
|11} !El:'l. allowance amount balance as at March 31, 2025 3,349.27 2,243.64 3,966.55 - 9i559.M

* Purchased or originated Credit Impaired Loans
Analysis of risk concentration

The following table shows risk concentration of the Company's loans basis risk exposure into smaller homogeneous portfolios, based on shared credit risk characteristics as under:

(3 in lakhs)

|Particulars Asat Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Carrying value of Loans
Loan against property (LAP) 240,510.60 183,128.28
Business Loan 147,805.92 91,368.38
Loan against machinery 28,005.70 17,840.72
Corporate Lending 13,615.38 11,285.29
Consumer loan 3,484.11 25,266.52
Loan to subsidi 361.95 =
Total mlua‘ss 3 5.20
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b) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk arises because of the possibllity that the Company might be unable to meet its payment cbligations when they fall due as a result of mismatches in the timing of the
cash flows under both normal &nd stress circumstances. To limit this risk, management has arranged for diversified funding sources, and adopted & palicy of manageing assets with
liguidity in mind and monitaring fulure cash faws and liquidity on a daily basis.

Maturity analysis of assets and liahilities

As at March 31, 2025 (% n lakhs)
Particulars Carrying amount | Not later than one| Laterthanone | Laterthanthree | Later than one Later than five
manth monthandnot | months and not | year and not later years
later than three |later than one year] than ¥
months
ASSETS
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents B4,033.23 66,965.65 17,067.55 5 L =
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 41,955.83 3134 22,770.53 18,153.96 = -
Derivative financlal instrument 41.52 - = = 152
Trade receivables 415.06 39341 = 2165 - 2
Loans 42422421 15,785.72 19.489.57 7440231 198,805.78 115,737.83
Investrments 5242775 B,153.59 1942431 2108405 283954 88025
Other financlal assets 3585715 73251 2,674.45 9,514.79 18,703 34 323204
Sub total 638,954.75 92,068.22 81.426.45 124.186.77 22184318 119,830.13
Non-financial assets
Current tax assets (net) 432.23 - - 43223 -
Property, plant and equipment 2,307.82 = - - g 2,307.82
assets under ds 2755 = = = B7.55
Intangible assets 3.207.15 = > = = 320715
Other nen-finandal assets 4.311.56 1,227.61 6345 141480 = 905.71
Sub total 10.345.31 123761 763.45 1,414.80 41223 6,595.78
Total assets 649,301.06 93,295.83 £2,183.90 125 601.57 221.875.41 126,425.51
LIABILITIES
Financial llabilities
Trade payables BIL.73 B21.73 - - -
Debt securities 251794 2517.%4 - - - -
{other than debt ties) 5377,669.63 10,523.04 2475.78 87,760.05 245,155.68 B,585.08
Other financlal llabilities 10,788.23 679235 1,514.57 1,954.85 525.44 =
Sub total 391,797.52 20,725.06 23,990.35 83.714.90 288,682.12 6,685.08
Non-financial liabilities
Provisions 54179 = - 2714 12258 382.07
Deferred tax liabilithes [net] 6,610.68 = =4 = = 561068
Other nen-financial liabilities 384312 384312 =3 =: = -
Sub total 10,895.59 2714 12258 7,002.75
Total liabilities 402,793.11 £9,742.04 248 804.70 15.687.83
As at March 31, 2024 (% in fakhs)
Particulars Carrying Amount | Not later than one|  Later than one Later than thres Later than one Later than five
month monthandnot | months and not | year and not later yars
later than three (later than one year|  than five years
manths
ASSETS
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents ES,687.38 76,554.64 1273275 = T
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 42,454.10 20527 2237548 19.404.58 26837 =
Trade receivables 2716 52118 = 5 = 4
Loans 336254 1431156 18,389.50 64,929.92 138,230.97 E7,760.19
Investments 25,911.06 17,95335 7.945.21 203.19 - BOB.60
Orther financial asiets 23,B98.28 156452 3935.67 _7,751.87 10,014.856 1,127.41
Sub total 507.100.52 111,716.50 65,383 66 91,789.96 144,514.19 89,696.21
Non-financial assets
Current tax assets {net) 128431 - = 1,284.31 -
Property, plant and equipment 3,141.56 4843 = = = 3,093.13
under 11106 - = 111.06 = -
Intangible assets 327054 L = < = 327054
Other nen-finandal assets. 2,004.48 69510 32067 76871 = -
Sub total 5.811.54 94353 340.67 B79.77 1,284.31 6.363.67
Total assets 516,912 86 112.660.02 65.724.33 !aiﬁ!.?! 143,798.50 56,055.88
LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities
Derivative financial instrurment 3504 - = = 35.04 -
Trade payables 238024 2,380,484 + £ = -
Debt securities 10.592.30 3,586.40 2,905.51 13892 1,535.54 20393
g5 {other than debt 1 153,717.86 15.274.42 14.212.37 54,796.31 166,376.82 3,055.54
Other financial liabllities 1419078 573352 6.027.30 1.392.10 1,137.86 =
Sub total 280.916.42 27.376.78 23,185.17 56,227.33 169,087.26 5,079.87
Non-financial lisbilities
Provisions 31284 44.59 21480 53.65
Deferred tax Nabifities {net) 5,915.89 - - - - 391589
Other non-financial liabilities 334505 560.88 153,64 54246 1,154.87 73330
Sub total 7371378 S60.88 15564 587.05 1,363.47 470274
Total labilities ;29020 27,937.66 23,798.81 56,814.39 170,856.72 9,782.61
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The table below summarises the maturity profile of the | cashflow of the pany’s financial liabilities
(% in lakhs)
[Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Within 12 months | After 12 menths Total Within 12 months | After 12 months Tatal
Debt securities 2,535.36 - 2535.35 8,624.50 253536 11L153.86
g5 [other than debt 150,147.49 299,564.14 449,731.63 121326.76 17868432 300,011.09
Trade payables Lrabrr] - B21.73 2,38044 = 238044
Other financial Habilitles 10.261.77 526.84 10,768.22 13,052.92 1,137.86 14.190.78
Total 163,766.35 300,110.58 453,875.94 145,384.62 182,357.54 327,742.16

) Market risk {interest rate risk)

Market Risk Is the possibility of loss arising fram changes in the value of & financial instrument a5 a result of changes In market varfables such as Interest rates, sxchange rates and
other asset prices. The Company’s exposure to market risk Is a function of assct liability management and interest rate sensitivity assessmenL The Company |5 exposed 1o interest
rate risk and liquidity risk, if the same s not managed properly. The Company continuously monitars these risks and manages thern through appropriate risk limits. The Ass=t Uiability
Management Caornmitiee {'"ALCO") reviews market related trends and risks and adopts various strategies refated to assets and llabilities, in line with the Campany’s ritk management
framewaerk.

Exposure lo interest rate risk
The group's expasures to fnterest rates on financial assets and financial liabilitles are detaled in the Equidity risk management section of this note
{%in lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Financial assets
Fixed-rate Instruments 190,257.57 13225362
Floating-rate instruments 236,001.67 191.265.14
|5ub- Toal 426,259.24 323,518.76
|Add: Accrued / Overdue Interest 7.524.42 537044
Less: Unamartized cost | loss allowance {9.553.45)) {5,266.65]
Total 424,224.71 323622.54
Financial Usbilities
Fixed-rate instruments 9749441 7839978
Floating-rate instruments 283.916.27 186,361.20
Sub- Total 381,410.68 264,760.98
Add: Accrued interest 1.785.40 151278
Less: Unamorized eost (2.512.51}f {2.063.50]|
Total 187.57 264,310.16 ’
Fair val il anakysis for I3
The i have b bbased on exposure to the interest rates for financial Instruments at the end of th 'g pericd and the stipulated chang

taking place at the bew-m!ng af the financial year and held constant throughout the reporting period in case of instruments that have floating rates.
It interest rates had been 100 basis points higher or lower and all other variables were constant, the Company's profit before tax would have changed by the following:

Particulars

Fleating rate loans

Floating rate barrowings

d) Operational risk
Operational risk is the risk af loss resulting from inadequate or faded internal ntuoesm people or systems, ar from external events. The aperational risks of the Group are managed

hrough comprehensive [nternal control systems and Failure of ageing L risk might lead to legal / regulatery dueto and lead
to financial loss due to control fallures, While it is not practical 1o efiminate all the epemiunal rizk, the Group has put In place ad control fi by way of segregation of
dutles, well defined process, staff tmnlng, mn!;:f and checker process, isation and clear 4 The effect of control fi Is assessed by internal by

&) Foreign currency risk
In the normal course of business, the company does not deal in foreign exchangs in the signi way. Any signil foreign exchang is fully hedged 1o saleguard
against exchange rate risk,

The carn) s ex f

As at
March 31, 2024

[This space has been left blank intentionally]
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Fair Value measurement

Valuation principles

Fairvalue is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the
measurement date under current market conditions (i.e., an exit price), regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using a valuation technique.

In order to show how fair values have been derived, are classified based on a hi hy of valuatis it

Level 1 = valuation technique using quoted market price: financial instruments with quoted prices for identical i in active markets that ¥ can access at
the measurement date.

Level 2 — valuation technique using observable inputs: Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are significant, are derived from directly or indirectly
ohservable market data available over the entire period of the instrument’s life.

Level 3 = valuation technigue with significant unobservable inputs: Those that include one or more unobservable input that is significant to the measurement as whole.

B
The Campany's fair value methodology and the governance over its models includesa ber of Is and other p d 1o ensure appropriate saf ds are in
place to ensure its quality and adeguacy. All new product initiatives (including their valuati hodologies) are subject to approvals by various functions of the
Company including the risk and finance functions.
Where fair values are determined by reference to externally quoted prices or observable pricing inputs to models, independent price d ination or validation is used.
For inactive ¥ (= I ive market inf ion, with greater weight given to infl that is idered to be more relevant and reliable.
The ibility of i resides with the business and product line divisi H finance dep is also ible for blist

with g

procedures governing valuation and ensuring fair values are in

There have been no transfers between levels during the period ended March 31, 2025 and year ended March 31, 2024,

Valuation methodologies adopted Fair values of financial assets, other than those which are subsequently measured at amortised cost, have been arrived at as under:

= Fair values of investments held under FVTPL have been determined under level 1 using quoted market prices of the underlying instruments;

= Fair values of fi ial i desij d under { cost/FVOCI have been measured under level 3 at fair value based on 2 discounted cash flow model,

Fair value of financial instruments measured at amortised cost :

The table below is 2 comparison, by class, of the carrying amounts and fair values of the C s fi ial i that are not carried at fair value in the financial

statements. This table does not include the fair values of non—financial assets and non—financial lizbilities

As at March 31, 2025 (X in lakhs)

Particulars Carrying Value Fair value measurement using Total
(Amortised Cost] Level 1 Level 2 Level 3*

Financial assets

Trade receivables 415.06 - = 415.06 415.06

Loans 335,034.60 = i 337,884.18 337,884.18

Other financial assets 35,125.01 - - 35,125.01 35,125.01

| sl Bemnetal ol

Investment 42,937.31 34,805.22 - 8,132.09 42,937.31

Total financial assets 413,511.98 34,805.22 - 381,556.34 416,361.56

Financial liabilities

Trade payables B21.73 - - 821.73 821.73

Debt Securities 2,517.94 - - 2,517.94 2,517.94

Borrowings 377,669.63 - - 377,669.63 377,669.63

Other financial liabilities 10,788.22 - - 10,788.22 10,788.22

Total financial liabilities 391,7597.52 - - 391,797.52 391,797.52

As at March 31, 2024 {Xin lakhs)

Particulars Carrying Value Fair value using Total
(Amortised Cost) Level1 Level 2 Level 3*

Financial assets

Trade Receivables 527.16 - - i 527.16 527.16

Loans 323,622.54 - - 323,622.54 323,622.54

Other financial assets 23,224.99 - - 23,224.99 23,224,989

Investrent and financial receivables -

Investment 25,899.76 ZSISSQJE = = 25,899.76

Total financial assets 373,274.45 25,899.76 - 347,374.69 373,274.45

Financial Liabilities

Trade payables 2,380.44 - - 2,380.44 2,380.44

Debt securities 10,592.30 - = 10,592.30 10,592.30

Borrowings 253,717.86 = = 253,717.86 253,717.86

Other financial liabilities 14,190.78 - - 14,190.78 14,190.78

Total Financial Liabilities 280,881.38 = = 280,881.38 280,881.38

* The camrying value of assets and liabilities at amortised cost rep a ble approximation of fair value.
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45.4

45.5

Lease accounting

The Company has entered into leasing arrangements for premises. Right of use assets ("ROU") has been included under
‘Property, plant and equipment’ and lease liability has been included under ‘Other financial liabilities’ in the Balance sheet.

Following are the changes in the carrying value of right of use assets (ROU):
(% in lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,915.23 639.32
Addition during the year 945.52 2,396.10
Disposals during the year {0.36) (288.39)
Depreciation for the year (1,438.94) (831.80)
Balance as at the end of the year 1,421.45 1,915.23
The following is the movement in lease liabilities:
(X in lakhs)
Particulars Asat As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,946.80 673.19
Addition during the year 922.35 2,347.68
Finance cost accrued during the year 203.48 181.25
Payment of lease liabilities made during the year (1,557.98) (952.28)
Disposal during the period (0.23) (303.08)
Balance as at the end of the year 1,514.41 1,946.80

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as of March 31, 2025 on an
undiscounted basis:
(% in lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Less than one year 1,075.51 1,036.94
Between one and five years 539.63 1,214.06
Mare than five years = =
Total 1,615.13 2,251.00
Expenses recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss:
(% in lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Depreciation expense on right-of-use assets 1,438.94 831.80
Interest expense on lease liabilities 203.48 181.25
Expense relating to short-term leases 270.50 388.03

E relating to leases of low value assets

The Company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the current assets are sufficient to

meet the obligations related to lease liabilities as and when they fall due.

A t recognised in the sta of Cash flow:
(%in lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Total cash outflow for leases 1,557.98 952.28

(This space has been left blank intentionally)
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46. Disclosure of transactions with related parties as required by Ind AS 24:

a. List of related parties and relationship:
Name of related parties by whom control is exercised

Holding company Consilience Capital M

Subsidiaries Protium Business Services Private Limited
Shibui Technologies Private Limited (Incorporated on March 24, 2023)

Key Management Personnel (KMP) Mr. Peeyush Misra - (Managing Director & CEQ)
Mr. P ba Ramachandran Seshadri - Independent Director (resigned w.e.f. 13-03-2023)
Mr. Parveen Kumar Gupta - Independent Director
Ms, A dha Rao - Ind dent Director (; inted wef 29-08-2023)
Ms. Dakshita Das - Independent Director (appointed wef 16.02.2024)
Mr. 5i Kunte - Independent Director inted wef 16.02.2024)

b. Transactions with Related Parties:

(% in lakhs)
For the year ended For the year ended
Nature of tra
Seae s Ao March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
from holding company

Consilience Capital Management - 83,224 97
Loan to subsidiary companies
Protium Business Services Private Limited 350.00 -
Shibui Technologies Private Limited 75.00 =
Loan repaid by subsidiary companies
Protium Business Services Private Limited
Shibui Technologies Private Limited 65.00 =
Commission to subsidiary
Protium Business Services Private Limited - 1,742.27
I income from subsidiary
Protium Business Services Private Limited ' 7.81 -
Shibui Technologies Private Limited 1.10 -3
Director’s fees, allowances, and expenses
Mr. Parveen Kumar Gupta 42.00 65.40
Ms. Anuradha Rao 34.00 11.99
Ms. Dakshita Das 34.00 -
Mr. Sitaram Kunte 39.00 2
Mr. Peruvernba Ramachandran Seshadri - 26.16
Fees received on behalf of subsidiary
Protium Business Services Private Limited 2,646.21 2,071.34
Cross charge
Protium Business Services Private Limited 1,413.33 675.26
Other reimbursement
Protium Business Services Private Limited 0.60
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¢. Related parties balance outstanding : %

As at March 31, 2025 (% in lakhs)
Entities controlled by

| e €, Subaidian

Particulars Holding pany ¥ KMP of the Group KMP of the Group

I made by holding company in equity shares of the

Company

Consilience Capital Manag 208,763.00 - - -

" i Subsidiary Comp

Protium Business Services Private Limited - 760.00 = -

Shibui Technologies Private Limited - 1.00 =

Loans given including accrued interest

Protium Business Services Private Limited = 35164 - -

Shibui Technologies Private Limited - 10.30 - -

As at March 31, 2025 (% in lakhs)
= f Entities controlled by

Ci C

Particulars E pany Y KMP of the Group KMP of the Group

i made by holding y in equity shares of the

Company

Consilience Capital Manag 208,763.00] - - -

I In Subsidiary Compani

Protium Business Services Private Limited - 760.00 = =

Shibui Technologies Private Limited - 1.00 - 7

Note:

1. Name of the related parties and nature of their relationships where control exists have been disclosed irrespective of whether or not there have been transactions
with the company. In other cases, disclosure has been made only when there have been transactions with those parties.

2. Related parties as defined under paragraph 9 of the Indian Acc Standard-24 ‘Related Party Discl * have been identified based on representations made
by key managerial persennel and information available with the Company. All above ions are in the ordinary course of business and on arms length basis.

3, The amounts disclosed in the table are the recognised as an exp during the fi ial year related ta KMP. The amounts do not include expense, if any,

recognised toward post-employment benefits and other long-term benefits of key ial |. Such exp are i based on an actuarial valuation

deone for each Company in the Group as a whole. Hence, amounts attributable to KMPs are not separately determinable. Director sitting and commission including
ineligible G5T input for FY 2023-24.

4. The Company has given loan to its subsidiaries for king capital i The loan has been utilized by the subsidiaries for the purp it was obtained. The
loan is unsecured, repayable on demand and carries interest rates at the rate of 10% per annum.

6. Services rendered to subsidiary
The Group has entered into contract with subsidiary for reimb of comman service charges on the same terms as applicable to third parties inan arm's length
transaction and in the ordinary course of business.
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47. Rating assigned by the credit rating agencies during the year :

(X in lakhs)
Instrument Credit Rating Agency As at March 31, 2025 As 3t March 31, 2024
Rating Amount Date Rating Rating Amount Date Illal:lu
Bank loan ratings Acuite Ratings & Research 350,000.00 10-Mar-25 | ACUITE AA- (Outlook : Stable) 200,000.00 09-lan-24 | ACUITE AA- (Outlook : Stable)
Limited
Mon convertible debentures Acuite Ratings & Research - 7.500.00 09-Jan-24 | ACUITE AA- (Outlook : Stable)
Limited
Non convertible debentures Acuite Ratings & Research 15,000.00 10-Mar-25 | ACUITE AA- (Dutlook : Stable) 15,000.00 09-Jan-24 |ACUITE AA- [Outlook : Stable)
Commercial paper Acuite Ratings & Research = - |NA 10,000.00 09-Jan-24 | ACUITE Al+
Limited
Pass through certificates - Consilience BL 2208 |India Ratings & Research - - |NA 601.00 12-lan-24[IND AA SO (Structured
[Series Al Investar) Private Limited Obligations) / Stable
Pass through certificates - Turiya -BL 2211 India Ratings & Research - |NA 794.10 15-lan-24|IND AA
(Series Al Investor) Private Limited 50 (Structured Obligations) /
Stable
Pass through certificates - Turiya BL - 2302 India Ratings & Research - - INA B54.50 18-Mar-24{IND AA + S0 (Structured
(Series Al Investor} Private Limited Obligations) / Stable
Pass through certificates — Turiya BL 230602 India Ratings & Research - - |NA 3,124.20 31-Jul-23{IND AA SO (Structured
Private Limited Obligations) / Stable
Pass through certificates — Turiya BL- 230703 India Ratings & Research 696.90 21-0ct-24| IND AA{SO)/Stable 2,197.30 30-Aug-23|IND AA SO (Structured
Private Limited Obligations) / Stable
Pass through certificates — Turiya BL 230501 India Ratings & Research = - |NA 3,110.00 31-May-23|IND AA SO (Structured
Private Limited Obligations) / Stable
Pass through certificates - Turiya BL-2304 Care Ratings Limited 3,155.00 10-Jun-24|CARE AA [50) 6,846.00 10-Jul-23| CARE AA SO (Structured
Obligations)
Pass through certificates — Turiya EDI-230801 Care Ratings Limited - |NA 3,504.00 22-Dec-13|CARE AA SO (Structured
. Obligations)
Pass through certificates - Turiya EDI - 230601  |Care Ratings Limited 2,255.00 19-1ul-24| CARE AA+ (50) 5,182.00 4-Aug-23| CARE AA+ SO {Structured
| Obligations)
Pass through certificates — Turiya LAP - 230701  |ICRA Limited 2,502.00 27-Nov-24|[ICRA] AAA[SO) 6,E24.00 20-Nov-23| ICRA Afc+ 50 (Structured
|Obligations)
Pass through certificates— Turiya LAP - 230802  |ICRA Limited 1,375.00 27-Nov-24|[ICRA] AAA[SD) 3,121.00 20-Dec-23|ICRA AA+ SO (Structured
Obligations)
Pass through certificates — Turiya LAP - 2401 ICRA Limited 1.577.00 17-Jan-25([ICRA] AAA(SO) 2,949.00 14-Mar-24(ICRA AA+ SO (Structured
Obligations)
Pass through certificates — Turiya BL- 2310 ICRA Limited 2,971.00 19-Dec-24|[ICRA] AA+{SO) 5,135.00 23-lan-24|ICRA AA SO (Structured
Obligations)
Pass through certiffcates — Turlya BL-2311 India Ratings & Research 231310 17-Dec-24]IND AA- [50)/Stable 7,250.00 24-Nov-23|IND AA - SO {Structured
Private Limited Obligations) / Stable
Pass through certificates — Turiya BL-231201 India Ratings & Research 979.50 4-Feb-25|IND AA[SO)/5table 3,124.00 26-Dec-23|IND AA - SO (Structured
Private Limited Obligations) / Stable
Pass through certificates = TURIYA BL - 240907  |India Ratings & Research 4,052.80 2B-Jan-25|IND AA[50)/5table -
Pass through certificates = Turiya LAP 241001 ICRA Limited 4,291.00 12-Mar-25|[ICRA] AA+{SO) =

{This space has been left blank intentionally)




48. Disclosure pursuant to Master Direction - Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Fingncial Company - Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023

a. Analytical ratios

|Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

Risk weighted assets (Rs in Lakhs) 456,981.07 352,404.18
Net owned funds (Tier | Capital] (Rs in Lakhs) 207,495.38 203,899.44
Tier Il capital (Rs in Lakhs) 1,261.10 -
CRAR (%) 45.68%, 57.86%
Variance in CRAR [%) -12.18% ~1.76%
CRAR Tier | capital (%) 45.41% 57.86%
Varlance in CRAR Tier | capital {3) -12.45% -1.53%
CRAR Tier Il capital (36) 0.28% 0.00%
Variance in CRAR Tier |l capital (%) 0.28% 0.23%
[Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier 1| -

capital

|Amount raised by Issue of perpetual debt -
Instruments

Liquidity coverage ratio (3¢} 210.14%, 330.96%
Variance in liquidity coverage ratio (%) -120.81% 224.43%|

b. Disclosure on risk exposure in derivatives
Qualitative disclosura

Details for qualitative disclosure are part of accounting policy as per financial statements. (Refer note No. 3.10 & 43)

Quantitative disclosures

{%in lakhs)

Particulars

As at March 31, 2025

As at March 31, 2024

Cross currency Interest rate

Cross currency interest rate

For hedging

77,091.80

27,464.40

| Marked to market position
a) Asset (+)
b) Liability {-)

4152

35.04,

Credit exposure

77,091.90

27,454.40

Unhedged exposures

Forward rate agreement / cross currency interest rate swaps

(% in lakhs|

Particulars

As at March 31,
2025

As at March 31,
2024

{i) The notional principal of swap agreements

(v) The fair value of the swap book

(i} Losses which would be incurred if counterparties failed to fulfil their ebli

under the

(1ii) Collateral required by the NBFC upon entering into swaps
(iv) Concentration of credit risk arising from the swaps®

77,091.50
4152

4152

27,464.40

(35.04)

*Concentration of credit risk arising from swap with banks.

Exchange traded interest rate (IR) derivatives

The Company has not traded in exchange traded interest rate derivative in for the financial year March,31 2025 (March,31 2024 - Nil).

t. Disclosure on exposure to real estate sector

% in lakhs)

Particulars

Asat March 31,
2025

As at March 31,
2024

(i) Residential morngages -

Lending fully secured by 1gages on
{ii} Commercial real estate -

ial property that is or will be occupied by the borrower or that is rented

) . t5-famih

Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real estates {office buildings, retail space, multi-purp: pr ]
buildings, multi i commercial industrial or h space, hotels, land acquisition, development and construction, etc.).
Exposure shall also include nan-fund based limits

(iil) Investments in martgage backed securities (MBS) and other securitised exposures -

a. Residential
b. Commercial real estate

139,202.73

59,503.48

105,992.56

B6,205.74

iv) Indirect re
Total exposure to real estate sector

is amount
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44. Diselosure pursuant to Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company - Scale Based lation) Directions, 2023 (Continued)

o, Disclosure an investments

(% in lakhs}
|Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2025 2024
{1] Value of investments
(1} Gross value of investments
{a}in india 5244148 2691157
(b} Outside India, - =
(i} Pravision for depreciation
{a) In India 1373 058
{b) Qutside India, = -
{iif} net Value of investments
{a) In India 52421.75 26,510.58
(b} Outside India, H -
Qosing balance 52.427.75 26.210.98
af isions held towards d fatis i
(i} Opening balance 0,53 036
(i) Add : Pravislons made during the - -
(i) Less : Write-off / write-back of 13.14 023
Closing balance 1573 059
e, Asset ability management:
Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and lisbilities
As at March 31, 2025 (% in lakhs}
Particulars 1-70en - 14 Oy 15-30 Days. Overimonthta 7 | OwerZmonthitad | Ower monthe o6 1 year L ¥ ¥ Total
montht ot montbn yest yean
Uabilities
Borrowings (ather than dabt securities) 3,050.05 31499 554162 B,611.33 15.635.04 2019545 54,064.60 137,044.62 39,368.29 B,685.05 2599,531.06
Debt securities - - 251794 = - - - - = 2,517.94
Fareign curcency labilities c - 1,686.40 209.40 - 1,500.00 3,000.00 48,396.47 2334679 - 78,138.57
Assets
Loans 14,185.70 1,600.02 = 9580 9,555.55 15,801.40 47,600.92 137,901.13 60,907.64 115737.83 A24,224.21
Investments 3,998.59 = 4,161.01 14.688.32 473599 12,781.57 831247 2,889.54 d BED.26 52.427.75
As at March 31, 2024 (% in takhs}
Particulars 1-70ap B 140y 15-30 Da. Over imonthto 2 | Over2 months to3 Ower 1 Ower Over Syean Total
manthy menthy oty year oy
Liabilities
g5 [other than debt securities) 1,18542 405.32 1458201 4,958.14 1211974 22.965.91 44,4050 97,2566 23,085.11 507587 226,052.20
Debt securities - B 2,558.08 - - 556431 . 246991 = . 10,592.30
Foreign currency Habilities - - 53198 - - - = 2713388 - - 27,665.66
Assels
Loans 12,826.04 148551 a0 5,032.89 835701 25,001.05 39.928.87 93,460,040 44,770.93 87,760.19 323,612.54
linvestments 4.497.39 3599243 546353 1.345.91 = 203.19 X - - B0B.52 26,910.98
a] Overdue Receivable fer non-performing loans and advances have been slotied in respective time bucket category as per d in App: lof Tor Assets Liabilities Management [ALM) system in NBFC,

b} Classification of asset and Liabdlives under maturity bucket is based on some estimates and assumptions and derived from internal MIS prepared by the company followed consistently.
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49. Disclosure pursuant to Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India (N

a. Funding concentration based on significant counterparty (borrowings)

king Financial Comp

y - Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023

As at No of significant counterparties® Amount in lakhs |% of total deposits| % of total
liabilities
March 31, 2025 24 341,181.67 NA 84.70%
March 31, 2024 18 197,292.93 NA 67.53%

*significant counterparties are defined as - A single counterparty or group of connected or affiliated counterparties accounting in aggregate for
more than 1% of the Company's total liabilities.

b.i Top 20 large deposits — not applicable

b.ii Top 10 borrowings

(X in lakhs)
Sr No. Name of the instrument As at March 31, | Asat March 31,
2025 2024
1 Total borrowings outstanding 380,187.57 264,310.16
2 Total amount of top 10 borrowings 243,765.45 159,369.82
3 Percentage of amount of top 10 berrowings to total 64.12% 60.30%
borrowing outstanding
¢. Funding Conc ased on significant i /product
Sr No. Name of the instrument As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Amount in lakhs % of Total Amount in lakhs % of Total
Liabilities Liabilities
1 Term lean 308,280.54 76.54% 178,880.70 62.05%
2 External commercial borrowings 49,976.56 12.41%) 27,665.66 9.60%
3 Working capital / short term facilities 1,900.03 0.47% 11,150.33 387%
4 Non convertible debentures 2,517.94 0.63% 10,592.30 3.67%
s Pass through certificates — securitization 17,512.50 4.35% 36,021.17 12.49%
Total 3B80,187.57) 942956 254.310.15! 91.68%
d. Stock Ratios
(Rin lakhs)
Sr No. Particulars As at March 31, | AsatMarch 31,
2025 2024
1 Commercial papers to total liabilities NA NA
2 Commercial papers to total assets MNA NA
3 Commercial papers to total public fund NA NA
4 NCDs (original maturity < 1 year) to total liabilities NA NA
5 NCDs {original maturity < 1 year) to total assets NA NA
6 NCDs (original maturity < 1 year) to total public funds NA NA
7 Other short term liabilities to total liabilities 34.34% 43.72%
8 Other short term liabilities to total assets 21.64% 24.39%
] Other short term liabilities to total public funds 36.38% 47.69%

e. Institutional set-up for liquidity risk management:

The Company has an Asset Liability © g G

(ALCO), a

held at periodic intervals which oversees the liquidity risk management. The Board has the overall respe
the strategy, policies and precedures of the NBFC to manage liquidity risk in accordance with the liquidity risk tolerance/limits decided by it. The ALCO consisting of

the Comp

ment is r

W's top

management strategy of the Company.
The Company also has a funding strategy that provides effective diversification in the sources and tenure of funding. It maintains an ongoing presence in its chosen

funding markets and strong relationships with fund pi

raise funds quickly from each source. There is no over-reliance on a single source of funding.

The Company has appropriate internal controls, systems and procedures to ensure

risk

y for

1ce to li
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1ent policies and procedure.

it level committee to handle liquidity risk management. The ALCO meetings are
t of liquidity risk. The Board decides

for ensuring adherence to the risk tolerance/limits set by the Board as well as implementing the liquidity risk

s to promote effective diversification of funding sources. The Company regularly gauges its capacity to
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Disclosure pursuant to Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company - Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 (continued)

f. Disclosure on liquidity coverage ratio
Disclosure in pursuant of para 89 of (Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India Non-Banking Financial Company - Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023. NBFCs with assets more
than Rs 5,000 crores, required to maintain Liquidity coverage ratio (LCR) as mentioned therein.
As on 31st December 2023, our Company has crossed Rs 5,000 Cr assets mark and adopted to start complying with the monitoring and tracking of Liquidity coverage ratio (LCR) as
part of Liquidity Risk Management framework from 1st January 2024 onwards as per RBI guidelines. The objective of this policy is to create an institutional mechanism to compute,
review and monitor periodically all the elements of the liquidity, develop suitable Liquidity Risk Management Framewark, identify potential risks, take suitable decisions and mitigate
such risks.
As per RBI guidelines to ensure strang liquidity, NBFCs shall maintain an adequate level of unencumbered High Quality Liquid Assets [HQLA) that can be converted into cash to meet
its liquidity needs for @ 30 day calendar time horizon under a significantly severe liquidity stress scenario.
The Company follows the criteria laid down by REI for calculation of Liquidity coverage ratio (LCR) which is represented by the ratio “Stock of HQLA” divided by "Total Net Cash
Outflows over the next 30 calendar days”. Total expected cash outflows [stressed outflows) are calculated by multiplying the ¢ ding balances of various categories or types of
liabilities and off-balance sheet commitments by 115% (15% being the rate at which they are expected to run off further or be drawn down). Total expected cash inflows (stressed
inflows) are calculated by multiplying the outstanding balances of various categories of contractual receivables by 75% (25% being the rate at which they are expected to under-
flow). However, total cash inflows will be subjected to an aggregate cap of 75% of total expected cash outflows. In other words, total net cash outflows over the next 30 days =
Stressed Qutflows - Min (stressed inflows; 75% of stressed outflows).
Company for purpose of computing cash outflows, have considered:
1. Secured wholesale funding i.e., all the contractual debt repayments,
2, Liquidity needs (e.g., collateral calls) related to financing transactions, derivatives and other contracts where ‘downgrade
triggers’ up to and including a 3-notch downgrade,
3, Currently undrawn committed credit and liquidity facilities,
4. Any other contractual outflows not captured elsewhere in the template i.e., operational expenditure.
Cash Inflows comprises of:
1. All other assets i.e., expected receipt from all performing loans,
2. Lines of credit — Credit or liquidity facilities or other contingent funding facilities that the NBFC holds at other institutions for its own purpose (Facilities which are sanctioned but
not yet disbursed)
HQLA is considered as per RBI guidelines.
(Zin lakhs)
Sr. |Particulars Q1 FY 2024-25 Q2 FY 2024-25 Q3 FY 2024-25 Q4 FY 2024-25
No. Total Total Total Total Total Total Total Total
unweighted | weighted | unweighted | weighted ighted ighted ighted ighted
value value value value value value value value
( ge) | (average) | | ge) | | ge) | (average) ge) ge) | (average)
High quality liquid assets
1 High Quality Liquid Assets
Assets to be included as HQLA without any haircut
(i) Cash on hand - - - - - - - -
{ii) Bank balance 6,305.05 6,305.05 6,390.43 6,390.43 B,441.28 8,441.28 21,008.96 21,008.96
(iii} Government securities 20,439.56 20,439.56 13,880.43 13,880.43 15,663.04 15,663.04 14,205.56 14,205.56
Total HQLA 26,744.61 26,744.61 20,270.86 20,270.86 24,104.32 24,104.32 35,214.52 35,214.52
Cash outflows
2 Deposits (for deposit taking companies) - - - -
3 Unsecured wholesale funding 8,819.06 10,141.91 11,126.89 12,795.92 10,702.01 12,307.31 12,649.26 14,546.65
4 Secured wholesale funding 24,206.69 27,837.70 26,000.70 29,900.80 27,581.67 31,718.92 30,536.53 35,117.01
5 Additional requirements, of which - - - - - - -
a|Outflows related to derivative exposures and other - - - - - - -
collateral requirements
b|Outflows related to loss of funding on debt products - - - - - - - -
c|Credit and liquidity facilities - = - - - - - -
B Other contractual funding obligations 11,173.12 12,849.08 13,276.94 15,268.48 13,284.23 15,276.87 15,100.73 17,365.84
7 Other cantingent funding obli - -
B Total cash outflows 44,198.86 50,828.69 50,404.52 57,965.20 51,567.91 59,303.09 58,286.52 67,029.50
Cash Inflows
9 Secured lending - -
10 Inflows from fully performing exposures 9,116.24 6,837.71 9,116.94 6,837.71 8,837.80 6,628.35 11,31535 B,4B6.51
11 Other cash inflows 74,852.41 56,139.31 65,6099.42 49,274.57 | 106,595.09 79,946.32 82,194.38 61,645.79
12 Total cash infl 83,969.35 62,977.02 74,816.37 56,112.28| 115,432.89 86,574.67 93,509.73 70,132.30
Total adj 1 value Tatal adjusted value Total adj 1 value Total adj d value
13 Total HQLA 26,744.61 20,270.86 24,104.32 35,214.52
14 Total net cash outflows 12,707.17 14,491.30 14,825.77 16,757.37
15 Liquidity coverage ratio (%) 210.47% 139.88% 162.58% 210.14%

A




Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

Disclosure pursuant to Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India [Non-Banking Financial Comp
HQLA is considered as per RBI guidelines.
(% in lakhs)
Sr. |Particulars Q4 FY 2023-24
No. Total Total
unweighted | weighted
value value
(average) (average)
High quality liquid assets
1 High Quality Liquid Assets
Assets to be included as HQLA without any haircut
(i) Cash on hand - -
(it} Bank balance B,743.41 8,743.41
(iii} Government securities 39,192.31 39,192.31
Total HQLA 47,935.72 47,935.72
Cash outflows
2 Depasits (for depaosit taking companies) - =
3 Unsecured wholesale funding 11,789.74 13,558.21
4 Secured wholesale funding 26,007.63 29,908.77
5 Additional requirements, of which - -
a|Outflows related to derivative exposures and other 5 5
collateral requirements
b|Outflows related to loss of funding on debt products - n
c|Credit and liquidity facilities = -
6 Other contractual funding obligations 12,581.70 14,468.95
7 Other contingent funding obligations - -
8 Total cash outfl 50,379.07 57,935.93
Cash Inflows
9 Secured lending
10 |Inflows from fully performing exposures 9,101.23 6,825.93
11 |Other cash infl 84,587.37 63,440.52
12 |Total cash inflows 93,688.60 70,266.45
Total adj d value
13 Total HOLA 47,935.72
14 [Total net cash outflows 14,483.98
15  |Liguidity coverage ratio (3) 330.96%
A b

y - Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 (continued)
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50, Disel to Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financisi Company - Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023

a. Sectoral exposure

(% in lakhs)
Sectors As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Total Exposure Gross NPAs % of gross NPAs to Total exposure Gross NPAs % of gross NPAs to
({includes on balance total exposure in {incdudes on balance ‘total exposure in that
sheet and off- that sector sheet and off-balance sector
balance sheat sheet exposure)
exposure)
1. Agriculture and Allied Activities - - - E a -
2. Industry
Food & beverages 20,208.51 60117 2.97% 17,343.87 154,89 0.89%
Textiles 16,871.32 548.83 325% 13,021.73 18528 1.42%|
Others 109,314.00 2,258.48 2.05% 8391753 1,143.52 1.36%|
Total of industries 146,393.83 3,398.48 2.32% 114,283.13 1.483.69 1.30%|
3. Services
Education/Prefessional 14,962.00 112 0.07% 79,598.29 1,736.60 2.18%
Retail trade B3,533.00 2,373.39 2.84% 97,614.10 1542.46 1.58%|
Others 131,335.00 2.086.86 1.59%) 13,807.27 - 0.00%
Total of services 229,830.00 4,471.37 1.95% 151,019.66 3.273.06 IE
4. Personal Loans
Retail loans 76,B81.11 257212 3.35% 34,084.63 645.49 1.89%|
Tatal of personal loans 76,881.11 257212 3.35%) 34,084.63 645.43 1,%
Grand total 453,104.94 10,441.97 2.30%] 339,387.42 5,408.24 1.59%|
b. Intra-group exposures:
(%in lakhs)
[s. No. Particulars As at March 31, 2025 | As at March 31,2024
1 Tatal amount of Intra-group exposures 361.95 -
2 Total amount of tap 20 intra-group exposures 361.95 -
3 P ge of intra-group exp to total of the NBFC 0.08% -
on borrowers/customers
© Unhedged foreign currency exposure - NiL
d. Related party disclosures
(% in lakhs)
Nature of i For the year ended March 31, 2025
Holding bsidiary [ Joint Key managerial Relative of KMPs Others Total Maximum
1 outstanding during
(KkmFP) the year
Advances’ - 361.95 - - - - 36195 401.95
Investment” P . 761.00 - - - - 761,00 761.00
Interest received - 8.91 - - - - 891 NA
Services provided - 1,413.33 - - - - 1,413.33 NA
Services received - - - - - - - A
i - - - 35378 - - 35378 353.78
Fees received on behalf of 3 2.646.21 - - - - 164621 A
Other reimbursement 0.60 - - - - 0.60 NA
Equity infusion - - - - = - = NA
(% in lakhs)
Nature of For the year ended March 31, 2024
Holding i A / Joint Key managerial Relative of KMPs Others Total Maximum
ventures personnel outstanding during
(kMP) the year
11 » - - - - - - - -
Investment” . 75100 5 - - - 761.00 761,00
Interest paid - - ¥ + - = a NA
Interest received - - = - - - - NA
Services provided - 675.26 - - - - B675.26 NA
Services received - 174237 - - - - 1,742.37 NA
Remuneration . - B 35123 - % 35123 NA
Fees received on behalf of - 2,071.34 ¥ - : 2,071.34 NA
Other relmbursement - - - - - - NA
Equity infusion 83,224.97 = i 3 - 3 83,224.97 NA

# The outstanding at the year end and the maximum during the year.
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e. Disclosures of complaint

¢, No Particulars As at March 31, 2025 | As at March 31, 2029
(Complaints received by the NBFC from its customers:
L Numnber of complaints pending at beginning of the year o 2
Z Number of complaints received during the year 23 11
3. Number of complaints dispesed during the year 20 13
31 Of which, number of complaints refected by the NBFC a a
4. MNumber of complaints pending at the end of the year 3 o
|Maintainable complaints received by the NSFC from Office of Ombudsman:
5 Number of maintainable complaints received by the NBFC from Office of Ombudsman 46" 79"
S (OF 5, number of complalnts resalved in favour of the NBFC by Office of Gmbudsman 42 75
52 ©f 5, number of complalnts resolved through frmed| fndhvi Isswed by Office of Ombudsman o 1
5.3 Of 5, number of complaints resalved after passing of Awards by Office of Ombudsman against the NBFC [1] 1]
B* Number of Awards within the time {other than those appealed) a o

**0ut of 46 complaints received from office of embudsman, 42 complaints have been closed by RBI and 4 are pending for closure however, the Company has submitted the response within the timeline.

*0ut of 79 complaints received from office of amk during the \ous year, 76 laints have been closed by RBI and 3 are pending for closure however, the Company has submitted the response within the timeline.
These complaints have been closed by RBI during the FY 2024-25 in favour of the Company.
Note: i refer to laints on the grounds ficalk il in b d O Scheme, 2021 (Previously The Ombudsman Scheme for Non-Banking Financial Companies, 2018} and covered

within the ambit of the Scheme.
*it shall only be applicable to NBFCs which are included under The Reserve Bank - Integrated Ombudsman Scheme, 2021.

1) Top five grounds of complaints received by the NBFCs from customers *
Grounds of complaints, (i.e, Number of Number of % increase/ decrease| Number of complaints|  Of 5, number of
complaints relating to) ints pending fved | in th iber of | pending at the end of | complaints pending
at the beginning of during the year | complaints received the year beyond 30 days
the year over the previous
Year
L 2 3 5 6

Service Related 1 &0 5 =

Behavior Related : 3 1 -

Refund Related - 6 1 =

Third Party 1 : 2 .

Others 1 - & =

gal 3 69 . -

As at March 31, 2024

Service Related 2 53 29% i o

Behavior Related - i o 5 =
| Refund Related = 9 125%) . -

(Third Party % 17 413 1 -

Others - 10 119} 1 - b

Total 2 90| 7% 3 -

* Note: These laints include the ived by the NBFC from the office of Ombudsman.

§) Breach of covenant

There is no breach of covenant of loan availed or debt securities issued.

h) (' in asset classification and i

The disel for di in assets classification and provisioning as per Master Direction - Reserve Bank of India {Non-Banking Financial Company - Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 is not applicable, as the Company

has not received any communications from the RBI for divergence in asset classification.

{This space has been left blank intentionally)
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Disclosure pursuant to Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India (N g Financial C

Registration obtained from other financial sector regulators

y - Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023

The Company is registered with the Reserve Bank of india ('RBI') as a non-deposit taking, Non Banking Finance Company (‘"NBFC'), vide certificate number N-
13.02374. The Company has been classified as an Investment and Credit Company vide certificate number N-13.02374. .

The Company got converted to Public Limited Company on April 12, 2022,

The Company has changed the name from Growth Source Financial Technologies Limited to Protium Finance Limited on June 01, 2022.

Disclosure of penalties imposed by RBI and other regulators - Nil

Exposure to Capital Market

{% in lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible debentures and units of = 203.19
equity-oriented mutual funds the corpus of which is not exclusively invested in corporate debt;
Advances against shares / bonds [/ debentures or other securities or on clean basis to - -
individuals for investment in shares {including IPOs / ESOPs), convertible bonds, convertible
debentures, and units of equity-oriented mutual funds;
Advances for any ather purposes where shares or convertible bonds or convertible debentures = -
or units of equity oriented mutual funds are taken as primary security;
Advances for any other purpeses to the extent secured by the collateral security of shares or -
convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds j.e.
where the primary security other than shares / convertible bonds / convertible debentures /|
units of equity oriented mutual funds does not fully cover the advances;
Secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and guarantees issued on behalf of] - -
stockbrokers and market makers;
Loans sanctioned to corporates against the security of shares / bonds / debentures or other| - -
securities or on clean basis for meeting promoter's contribution to the equity of new
companies in anticipation of raising resources;
Bridge loans to companies against expected equity flows / issues; 2
Underwriting commitments taken up by the NBFCs in respect of primary issue of shares or - -
convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds
Financing to stockbrokers for margin trading -
All exposures to Alternative Investment Funds:
(i) Category | -
(ii) Category It - -
(iii} Category Il -
Others - =
Total Exposure to Capital Market - 203.19
Provi: and C gencies
(% in lakhs)
Sr. No. |Break up of 'Provisions and Ci ies' shown under the head Expenditure in For the year ended For the year ended
Profit and Loss Account March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
i Provision for depreciation on Investment 13.14 0.23
i Provision towards NPA 1,488.52 1,672.67
i | Provision made towards Income tax 2,762.41 1,483.57
v Other P and Contingencies (with details)
(a)|Provision for Leave Encashment 10.41 17.07
{b}|Provision for Gratuity 218.54 139.19
{c}|Provision for Standard Assets 2,804.28 237.04
{d) | Provision for other financial assets 198.05 68.96
{e) |Provision for trade receivabl 22.56 14.07
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Disclosure pursuant to Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company - Scale Based Regulation)Directions, 2023
Concentration of Advances

(T in lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Total advances to twenty largest borrowers*® 18,455.68 13,721.31
Percentage of Advances to twenty largest borrowers to Total Advances of the NBFC 4.33% 3.16%
* Only principal outstanding
Concentration of exposures

{Tin lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Total Exposure to twenty largest borrowers/customers 18,596.49 13,B23.59
Percentage of Exposures to twenty largest borrowers/customers to Total Exposure of the NBFC 4.29% 3.19%
on borrowers/customers
Concentration of NPAs

{% in lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Total exposure to top four NPA Accounts 758.36 655.89
Sector-wise NPAs
Sector Percentage of NPAs to Total Percentage of NPAs to

Advances in that sector as at | Total Advances in that
March 31, 2025 sector as at
March 31, 2024
{1} Agriculture & allied activities = =
{ii) MSME 0.78% 0.45%
{iii) Services 1.03% 1.00%
(iv) Unsecured personal loans 0.59% 0.20%
(v} Others 0.00% 0.00%
& -

{This space has been left blank intentionally)
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Financial

51, Disclosure pursuant to Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India N king Financial Company - Scale Based Regulation)Directions, 2023
i. Movement of NPAs
(% in lakhs)
Sr.No. |Particulars Asat Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
i Net NPAs to net advances (%) 2.41% 1.23%
i Movement of NPAs (Gross)
a) Opening Balance 5,408.23 1,588 94
b) Additions during the year 18,956.88 10,929.55
¢} Reductions during the year (13,880.70) (7,110.26)
d) Closing balance 10,484.41 5408.23
il Movemnent of Net NPAs
a) Opening Balance 2,930.20 783.58
b) Additions during the year 4,900.75 5,810.52
c) Reductions during the year (1,313.09) (3,663.90)
d) Closing balance 6,517.86 2,930.20
iv Maovement of provisions for NPAs (excluding provisions on standard assets)
a) Opening Balance 2478.03 805.36
b) Additions during the year 14,056.13 5,119.03
) Reductions during the year (12,567.61) (3,446.36)
d) Closing balance 3,966.55 2,478.03
j- Information on instances of fraud:
Instances of fraud for the year ended March 31, 2025
(X in lakhs)
Sr. No. |Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
i Nature of Fraud il Fraud committed by customer
ii Mo. of Cases - 1
i Amount of fraud - 41.59
iv Recovery = =
v Amount written-off/Provided - 41.59

k. The Company has exposure to real estate sector as on March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024, Disclosure pertaining to real estate exposure is mentioned in Note 48(c).

I. Details of Single Borrower Limit (SGL) / Group Borrower Limit (GBL) exceeded by the Company

(2 in lakhs)

| Particulars

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

Single Borrower Limit {SGL) / Group Borrower Limit (GBL) exceeded by the C

m. Details of financing of parent company products
The Company doesn't have any financing of parent company products during current year or previous year.

0. Overseas assets

The Company does not have any joint ventures and subsidiaries aboard.

p. Off-balance sheet SPVs sponsored

The Company does not have any off-balance sheet SPVs sponsored.

q. Registration obtained from other finandial sector regulators

Regulator

Recelvables Exchange of India Limited (RXIL), TReDs platform

BSE Limited (Indian stock exchange)

PROOG7664
974469 | INEOO3507016

r. The disclosures given in the above notes pursuant to RBI Notifications are only to the extent they are applicable to the Company.

5. The Company has no transactions with the companies struck off under Companies Act, 2013 or Companies Act, 1956.

t. There has been no draw down from reserve during the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024

[This space has been left blank intentionally)




52. Disclosures pursuant to’ Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India (Transfer of Loan Exposures) Directions, 2021 issued by the Reserve Bank of India
("RBI") vide their Notification No. RBI/DOR/2021-22/86 Master Direction DOR. STR.REC 51/21.04.048/2021-22 dated September 24, 2021 [the “Notification”)

a. Details of transfer through assignment in respect of loan not in default during the year ended March 21, 2025*

Particulars To Bank/ NBFC

Aggregate principal outstanding of loans transferred through assignment (% in lakhs) 86,645.62
Aggregate consideration received (% in lakhs) 86,645.62
Weighted average maturity of Loans (in years) 631
Weighted average Holding period of Loans (in years) 0.81
Weighted Average Residual Tenor of Loans sold (in years) 5.50
Retention of Beneficial economic interest (in %) 13.20%
Coverage of Tangible security Coverage (in %) ** 194.06%
Rating-wise distribution of rated loans NA

b. Detalls of transfer through assignment in respect of loan not in default during the year ended March 31, 2024*

Particulars To Bank/ NBFC
Aggregate principal outstanding of loans transferred through assignment (2 in lakhs) 33,107.93
Aggregate consideration received (% in lakhs) 33,107.93
Weighted average maturity of Loans (in years) 9.18
Weighted average Holding period of Loans (in years) 107
Weighted Average Residual Tenor of Loans sold (in years) 8.11
Retention of Beneficial economic interest (in %) 14.93%
Coverage of Tangible security Coverage (in %) ** 187.11%
Rating-wise distribution of rated loans NA

* The above table does not include loans transferred by the Company through Co-Lending arrangement.
** For the computation of coverage of tangible Security ratio, the Company has considered only the secured loans.

c. Details of loan acquired through assignment in respect of loan not in default during the year ended March 31, 2025

| Particulars From Bank/ NBFC
Aggregate principal outstanding of loans acquired (% in lakhs) 36,892.19
Aggregate consideration paid (R in lakhs) 35,058.97
Weighted Average Residual Tenor of Loans sold (in years) 187
Coverage of Tangible security Coverage (in %) NA
Rating-wise distribution of rated loans NA
d. Details of loan acquired through assignment in respect of loan not in default during the year Nil

ended March 31, 2024

e. Details of stressed loans including special mention account transferred during the year ended March 31, 2025

Particulars Tog itted i

Mo. of accounts 30,187
Aggregate principal outstanding of loans transferred through assignment (2 in lakhs) 5,210.96
Weighted Average Residual Tenor of Loans sold (in years) 0.06
Net beok value of loans transferred (at the time of transfer) =
Aggregate consideration (% in lakhs) 165.68
Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts transferred in earlier years -

f. Detalls of stressed loans transferred during the year ended March 31, 2024 Nit

g- Details of stressed loans acquired during the year ended March 31, 2025

Particulars From Bank/ NBFC

Aggregate principal outstanding of loans acquired 4,280.74
Aggregate consideration paid 42.43
Weighted average residual tenor of loans acquired 1.16
h. Details of loans acquired during the year March 31, 2024 il

{This space has been left blank intentionally)
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53. Disclosure pursuant to Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company - Scale Based Regulation)Directions, 2023
The following tables set forth, for the periods indicated, details of loan assets subjected to restructuring as on March 31, 2025:-

(% in lakhs)
Sr. No. |Type of Restructuring Others
Asset Classification Standard | Sub-Standard Doubtful Loss Total
Restructured Accounts as on April 01, 2024 {opening |No. of borrowers - : 2 -  }
figures) Amount outstanding - 25.73 - 25.73
Provision there-on - 16.72 = 16.72
Fresh Restructuring during the period No. of borrowers - 3 - 3
|Amount outstanding - 14143 141.43
Provision there-on - 45.90 - 45.90
Upgradations to restructured standard category No. of borrowers - (1) - (1)
during the period Amount outstanding - (31.55) - (31.55)
Provision there-on - (7.28) - (7.28)
Restructured standard advances which cease to No. of borrowers (1) - - (1)
attract higher provisioning and/or additional risk
weight at the end of the pericd and hence need not  |Amount outstanding (25.73) - (25.73)
be shown as restructured standard advances at the
beginning of the next period Provision there-on (16.72) = - (16.72)
Downgradations of restructured accounts during the |No. of borrowers - = -
period Amount outstanding = = - &
Provision there-on - - = -
Write-offs of restructured accounts during the period|No. of borrowers - - = =
b Amount outstanding - - - -
Provision there-on = - - -
Restructured Accounts as on March 31, 2025 (closing |No. of borrowers - 3 - 3
figures)* Amount outstanding - 128.75 - 128.75
Provision there-on - 39.49 % 39.49
The following tables set forth, for the periods indicated, details of loan assets subjected to restructuring as on March 31, 2024:-
{Zin lakhs)
Sr. No. |Type of Restructuring Others
Asset Classification Standard | Sub-Standard Doubtful Loss Total
Restructured Accounts as on April 01, 2023 (opening |No. of borrowers 1 = - 1
figures) A t di 6.40 - - 6.40
Provision there-on 0.60 - = 0.60
Fresh Restructuring during the period No. of borrowers 2 1 1
Amount outstanding 25.73 - 25.73
Provision there-on - 16.72 = 16.72
Upgradations to restructured standard category No. of borrowers - - - -
during the period Amount cutstanding - -
Provision there-on = = - *
Restructured standard advances which cease to No. of borrowers {1) - - (1)
attract higher provisioning and/or additional risk
weight at the end of the period and hence need not |[Amount outstanding (6.40) = (6.40)
be shown as restructured standard advances at the
beginning of the next period Provision there-on (0.60) - = (0.60)
Downgradations of restructured accounts during the |No. of borrowers = - = -
period Amount outstanding - = - -
Provision there-on - - > -
Write-offs of restructured accounts during the period|No. of borrowers - - - -
b Amount outstanding - - =
Provision there-on & = - -
Restructured Accounts as on March 31, 2024 (closing |No. of borrowers 1 - : k
figures)* Amount outstanding - 25.73 - 25.73
Provision there-on - 16.72 - 16.72

* The cutstanding amount and number of borrowers as at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 are after considering recoveries during the year.

** Partial repayments in existing restructured accounts are disclosed under "Write-offs of restructured accounts”.
For the purpose of arithmetical accuracy as required by Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company - Scale Based Regulation)Directions, 2023
movement in provisions in the existing restructured account as compared to opening balance is disclosed under write-off/sale/recovery/ (for any change in provision) during
the year.

Since the disclosure of restructured advance account pertains to section "Others”, the first two sections, namely, "Under COR Mechanism” and "Under SME Debt
Restructuring Mechanism" as per format prescribed in the guidelines are not included above.
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54. Disclosure pursuant to RBI Notification No. RBI/DOR/2021-22/85 DOR.STR.REC.53/21.04.177/2021-22 dated September 24,2021
(X in lakhs)

Sr. No. |Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
1 No of SPEs holding assets for securitisation transactions originated by the 11 15
originator (only the SPVs relating to outstanding securitization exposures to be
reported here) .
Total amount of securitised assets as per books of the SPEs 23,745.64 38,880.03
3 Total amount of exposures retained by the originator to comply with MRR as on 6,950.91 8,198.48
the date of balance sheet )
a) Off-balance sheet exposures - -
= First loss - -
* Others - -
b) On-balance sheet exposures - -
* Firstloss 3,634.26 4,345.83
* Others 3,316.65 3,852.65
4 Amount of exposures to securitisation transactions other than MRR 456.73 811.52
a) Off-balance sheet exposures
i) Exposure to own securitisations
* First loss - -
= Others - #
i) Exposure to third party securitisations x -
= First loss - -
* Others - -
b) On-balance sheet exposures - -
i) Exposure to own securitisations - -
= First loss = %
= Others 456.73 811.52
il) Exposure to third party securitisations . <
* First loss - -
* Others - <
s Sale consideration received for the securitised assets and gain/loss on sale on 8,800.63 57,083.70
|account of securitisation*
6 Form and quantum (outstanding value] of services provided by way of liquidity Post securitization asset] Post securitization asset|
support, post-securitisation asset servicing, etc. Servicing: Rs. 23,745.64 Servicing: Rs. 38,880.03
Service fees - Rs. 1 Lakh per|  Service fees - Rs. 1 Lakh per
transaction transaction

7 Performance of facility provided. Please provide separately for each facility viz.
Credit enhancement, liquidity support, servicing agent etc. Mention percent in
bracket as of total value of facility provided.

(a) Opening outstanding 4,345.83 1,666.15
(b) Cumulative amount paid during the year 582.36 3,606.52
(c) Cumulative repayment received during the year 1,293.92 926.84
(d) Outstanding amount 3,634.26 4,345.83
8 Average default rate of portfolios observed in the past. Please provide breakup 1.48% 1.03%
separately for each asset class i.e. RMBS, Vehicle Loans etc.
9 Amount and number of additional/top up loan given on same underlying asset. | Nil Nil
Please provide breakup separately for each asset class i.e. RMBS, Vehicle Loans
etc.

10 Investor complaints (a) Directly/Indirectly received and; (b) Complaints There is no investor There is no investor
outstanding complaints received directly / |complaints received directly /
in-directly. Also, complaints  |in-directly. Also, complaints
outstanding is NIL. outstanding is NIL.

* There is no gain/loss on sale on account of securitisation

&
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Disclosure pursuant to RBI Notification No. DOR (NBFC).CC.PD.N0.109/22.10.106/2019-20 dated March 13, 2020
As at March 31, 2025 {in lakhs)
Asset classification as per RBI norms Asset classification Gross carrying Loss allowances |Net carrying Provisi quired | Difference between
asperind AS 109 | amount as per Ind (provisions) as as per IRACP norms Ind AS 109
AS required under Ind provisions and
AS 109 IRACP norms
(1) (2) (3) (4) (5)=(3)-1a) (6) (7) = (4)-8)
Performing assets
Standard Stage 1 414,710.68 3,307.58 411,403,089 1,658.84 1,648.74
Stage 2 B,631.01 2,243 64 6,387.37 3452 2,209.11
Stage 3 - - = - -
Subtotal 423,341.69 5,551.22 417,790.47 1,693.37 3,857.85
Non-performing assets (NPA) - - - -
Substandard Stage 3 9,150.54 3,617.95 12,768.48 915.05 2,702.89
Doubtful - up to 1 year Stage 3 1,157.55 308.20 1,466.46 23151 77.39
Doubtful - 1 to 3 years Stage 3 133.88 39.70 17358 40.17 (0.47)
Doubtful - More than 3 years Stage 3 - - - - -
Loss Stage 3 - =] . - -

b | for NPA 10,441.97 3,966.55 14,408.52 1,186.73 2,779.82
Other items such as guarantees, loan|Stage 1 19,321.13 41.68 - + 41.68
commitments, etc. which are in the scope of|
ind AS 109 but not covered under current]St2ES 2 ) - = = 4
Income Recognition, Asset Classification and Stage 3 . < ” -
Provisioning (IRACP) norms
Subtotal 19,321.13 41.68 - = 41.68

Total Stage 1 434,031.81 3,349.26 430,682.54 1,658.84 1,690.42
Stage 2 8,631.01 2,243.64 6,387.37 34.52 2,209.11
Stage 3 10,441.97 3,966.55 6,475.43 1,186.73 2,779.82
453,104.79 9,559.45 443,545.34 2,880.10 6,679.35
As at March 31, 2024 (%in lakhs)
Asset classification as per RBI norms Asset classification Gross carrying Loss allowances |Net carrying amount| Provisions required | Difference between
asperInd AS109 | amount as per Ind (provisions) as as per IRACP norms Ind AS 109
AS required under Ind provisions and
AS 109 IRACP norms
(1) (2) (3) (4) (5)=(3)-(4) (6) (7) = (a}-(6)
Performing assets
Standard Stage 1 319,964.57 1,870.75 318,093.82 1,279.86 590.89
Stage 2 3,516.39 887.20 2,629.19 14.07 B873.13
Stage 3 - = - -
Subtotal 323,480.96 2,757.95 320,723.01 1,293.92 1,464.03
Non-performing assets (NPA)
Substandard Stage 3 5,408.23 2,478.03 2,930.20 1,352.06 1,125.97
Doubtful - up to 1 year Stage 3 - - - -
Doubtiul - 1 to 3 years Stage 3 > - = - =
Doubtful - More than 3 years Stage 3 - - - - -
Loss Stage 3 - = - - -
Subtotal for NPA 5,408.23 2,478.03 2,930.20 1,352.06 1,125.97
Other items such as guarantees, loan|Stage 1 10,483.52 30.67 10,452.85 = 30.67
commitments, etc. which are in the scope off
Ind AS 109 but not covered under current|>t2B 2 h - ) -
Income Recognition, Asset Classification and Stage 3 14.69 _ 14.69 =
Provisioning {IRACP) nerms
Sul | 10,498.21 30.67 10,467.54 - 30.67
Total Stage 1 330,448.09 1,901.42 328,546.67 1,279.86 621.56
Stage 2 3,516.39 BB7.20 2,629.19 14.07 87313
Stage3 5,422.92 2,478.03 2,944.89 1,352.06 1,125.97
?LSJS?.&D 5,266.65 334&035 2,645.98 2,620.67

Since the total impairment allowances under Ind AS 109 is higher than the total provisioning required under IRACP (including standard asset provisioning) as at March 31, 2025, no
amount is required to be transferred to ‘Impairment Reserve’. The gross carrying amount of asset as per Ind AS 109 and Loss allowances (Provisions) thereon includes interest
accrual on net carrying value of stage-3 assets as permitted under Ind AS 109. While, the provisions required as per IRACP narms does not include any such interest as interest
accrual on NPAs is not permitted under IRACP norms.
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56. Disclosure pursuant to Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India [Non-Banking Financial Company - Scale Based Regulation)Directions, 2023

Liabilities side :

56.1 Loans and advances avalled by the non- banking financial company inclusive of i accrued thereon but not paic

{Xin lakhs)
Particulars As at Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

{a) Debentures ;
- Secured 2,517.94 10,592.30
- Unsecured - -
(b) Deferred credits =
(c) Term loans 308,280.54 178,880.70
(d) Inter-corporate loans and borrowing - -
(e} Commercial paper - -
{f) Other Loans
i. Pass through certificates — securitization 17,512.50 36,021.17
ii. External commercial borrowings 43,976.56 27,665.66
iii. Cash credit from bank 1,900.03 11,150.33

Assets side :

56.2 Break-up of loans and advances including bills receivables :
{Zin lakhs)

|Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

(a) Secured 282,136.35 212,483.36

(b) Unsecured 151,647.31 116,405.84

TOTAL 433,783.66 328,889.20

Loans and advances (net of provisions for Non performing asset) includes Loans, Finance Lease, Tax receivables and other advances

56.3 Break-up of leased assets and stock on hire and other assets ¢ ing is operational activities
(X in lakhs)
|Particulars Asat As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

(i) Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors ;
{a) Financial lease - -
(b) Operating lease =

(i1} Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors:
{a) Financial lease -
(b) Operating lease - -

(iii) Other loans
(a) Loans where assets have been repossessed - -
(b) Loans other than (a) above - -

56.4 Break-up of investments
(%in lakhs)
Particulars As at Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Current investments : - -
1. Quoted :
(i) Shares : (a) Equity - =
(b) Preference = =
(i1) Debentures and bonds - -
{iii) Units of mutual funds 8,643.91 203.19
{iv) Government securities 12,920.22 25,899.76
(v) Others
2. Ungquoted ;
(i} Shares : (a) Equity - -
(b) Preference - -
(i) Debentures and bonds 11,537.38
{iii) Units of mutual funds - -
{iv) Government securities -
{v) Others 10,347.62 -
Long term investments :
1. Quoted :
(i} Shares : {a) Equity - -
[b) Preference - -
{ii} Debentures and bonds -
(iii) Units of mutual funds - -
(iv) Government securities - -
(v) Others 99.26 47.62
2. Unquoted ;
(i) Shares : (a) Equity 761.00 761.00
(b) Preference = %
{ii) Debentures and bonds = 2
{iiil) Units of mutual funds - -
(iv) Government securities - =
{v) Others §,132.09
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selusur 2 persuant to. Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India {Won-Banking Financial Company - Scals Based egulation)Directions, 7022 [Continued)

36.5 Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed asin (2) and (3) above :

{Xin lakhs)
Particulars Amount net of provisions
Secured Unsecured _ Totalason
March 31, 2025

1. Related parties
(a) Subsidiaries - 360.50 360.50
(b} Companies in the same group - ~ -
{c) Other related parties - Z

2. Other than related parties 278,599.94 145,263.77 423,863.71

Total 278,599.94 145,624.27 821,224,21_
(% in lakhs)
Particulars A net of provisi
Secured Unsecured Total as on
March 31, 2024

1. Related parties
{a) Subsidiaries - % -
(b) Companies in the same group = = =
() Other related parties - = -

2. Other than related parties 210,811.64 112,810.80 323,622.54

Total 210,811.64 112,810.90 323,622.54

56.6 Investor group-wise classification of all investments (current and long term) in shares and securities (both quoted and unquoted):

(Xin lakhs)
Particulars Asat As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Market value / Book value Market value / break Book value
break up or fair | (Net of provisions) |up or fair value or NAV|  (Net of provisions)
value or NAV

1. Related parties
(a) Subsidiaries 761.00 761.00 761.00 761.00
(b) Companies in the same group = - - -
(c) Other related parties - - - -

2. Other than related parties 51,666.75 51,666.75 26,150.57 26,149.98

Total 52,427.75 52,427.75 26,911.57 26,910.98

56.7 Other information

(% in lakhs)
Particulars As at Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

(i) Gross Non-Performing Assets
(a) Related parties - -
(b) Other than related parties 10,441.97 5,408.23

(i) Net Non-Performing Assets
(3) Related parties - -
(b) Other than related parties 6,475.43 2,930.20

(iii) Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt - =

A&
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There are no prior period items which are impacting Company's current year Profit and Loss.
Expenditure in fareign currency (% in lakhs)
|Particulars " | For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Processing fees on borrowings 184.21 u
Membership & subscription charges 10.94 16.53
Total 195.15 16.53
There is no amount due and payable to micro and small suppliers registered under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 at the end of

the year other than as disclosed. No interest has been paid/ is ble by the Company during/for the period to these ‘Suppliers’ other than as disclosed. The above
information takes into account only those suppliers who have submitted their registration details or has responded to the inquiries made by the Company for this
purpose.

Utilisation of Borrowed funds and share premium :

As a part of normal lending business, the Company grants loans and advances on the basis of security/ guarantee provided by the Borrower/ co-borrower and
makes investments. These transactions are part of Company’s normal non-banking finance business, which is conducted ensuring adherence to all regulatory
requirements,

The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either borrowed funds or any other sources or kind of funds) to any other persons or entities
{Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall-

(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The company has not received any fund from any persons or entities (Funding Party) with the understanding that the company shall

(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries)
or

(i) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024

Compliance with number of layers of companies:
The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies {Restriction on number of Layers)

Rules, 2017,

Events occurring after balance sheet date - There have been no events after the reporting date that require adjustment in these financial statements.

Willful defaulter:
The Company is not a declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or other lender, in accordance with the g
the Reserve Bank of India, during the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024.

on willful defaulters issued by

Title Deeds of Immovable Properties not held in the name of the Company
The Company does not hold any immovable property as on March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024, All the lease agreements are duly executed in favor of the
Company for properties where the Company is the lessee.

The Company has no pending charges or satisfaction of charges, which are required to be registered with Registrar of Companies (ROC).

. Daily back up: Proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company. Back-up of the books of account and papers maintained in electronic

made is maintained on servers physically located in India on a daily basis, except in case of two applications {used for vendor and payroll record maintenance and
processing) which are operated by third party service providers, the nent is not in p ion of an appropriate Service Organization Controls report to
determine whether the back-up of books was maintained on servers physically located in India on a daily basis.

Audit trail: The Company uses accounting software which are the General ledger system, Loan origination system, Loan r gement system, Human resource
management system, Payroll processing system, Vendor g and Exg processing system for maintaining its books of account which have a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software, except that for:

Loan origination system — audit trail feature has not been enabled;

. General ledger system and Loan management system — audit trail has not been enabled at database level;

c. Human resource management system, Payroll processing system (operated by third party service providers) —appropriate Service Organization Controls
report not available to determine whether audit trail feature has been enabled and has operated throughout the year; and

&

d.  Vendor management and Expense processing system (operated by third party service provider) — audit trail has not been enabled at database level and
rel t evidence not available in the Service Organization Controls report to determine whether the audit trail feature enabled at the application (front-end)

layer was tampered with.

Further, there has been no instance of audit trail feature being tampered with wherever it has been enabled. Additionally, the Company has preserved audit trail in
respect of the financial years ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2025 to the extent it was enabled and recorded in respect of those years.
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68. No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 {45
of 1988) and rules made thereunder,

69. The company has not d into any sch of

70. There are no transactions which are not recorded in the books of account which have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

71. Previous year figures have been regrouped/re-classified wherever necessary to confirm to current year's classification. The impact of such regrouping/ re-
classification are not 1 to the Fi ial Stats 3

As per our report of even date attached

For S.R. Batfiboi & Associates (1P Fotandnnh&dluﬂhel(ﬂrﬂd
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